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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

• Ref. Ares(2020)2552488 - 14/05/2020 

[__ ___ -·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·Redacted _____________________ ] 
jeudi 14 mai 2020 15:18 

,-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·······-·-·- • ··-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-\ 
, Redacted , 
j ~.,_,._....,_~ ••:•a-,....-· '6' .... ...,...,. • ...,,,..,.,. p,•l',.'1,-~ •-••••• •·• ••••••••·• •·• • • • •••••• • • • ••••••• • • • • •••••••••••••·••••••••••••• -• I 

: Redacted : 
'· reportfrom ·a-ca Jr with Ti kT ok, f Aprir·-·-·-·-·-·-···-·-·-·- -·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·· 

On 1 April I received a call fromi Redacted :TikTok. 
l•• •• •••• •• •• •••• •• •••••• •••••• •••• •• •• •••••-•••••• •••• •••• •••••••••••••• •••• •••••••••••••••• ••••••••••••• • 

i Redacted !introduced TikTok and its mission. Following my question on privacy and several articles of 
,_TikTok-coiie~ting localisation data on users,l"-·Redac-t:e_d_,-:Stressed that they apply GDPR and collect less 

granular data on localisation. 

I enquired about their response to Covid-19 misinformation and disinformat ion-L__ Redacted _jxplained 
that TikTok is working with work with health ministries in 11 MS, WHO where they don't have 
representation. As for content moderation, new content is screened and a 'sticker' is attached to those 
videos with a Covid-relevant message that leads the user to an aut horitative source. Misleading or 
harmful content (non-verifiable medical information or Covid-related conspiracy theories) is 
removed. They are however not seeing high volumes of misleading or harmful videos related to Covid-

19. 

I informed that misinformation and disinformat ion is an important part of the Covid crisis, will remain an 
essential part of Commission's agenda, and reminded of the importance to continue and further step up 
the work on addressing Corona disinformation. 

' ' i Rridacted i i. .......... i 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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- Ref. Ares(2020)3870193 . 22/07/2020 

EUROPEAN COMMJSSTON 
DIRECTOR..'\ TE-GENERAL FOR COMMUNJCA TIONS NETWORKS, CONTENT AND 
TECHNOLOGY 

The Director-General 

Brussels 

DG CONNECT/RV/l4/AK 

i Redacted I 
i., , _ __ , - ·- ·- · - · - ·- ·-·- · - · - ·--·-· - • - · - · - · - ·- ·- · - · - · - ·- · - · - ·- ·- · - · - · - ·- ·--· ! 

TikTok 

E-mail: l .. Red acted .. '@bytedance.com 

Dear[_ Redacted_ L 

Following the adoption of the Communication "Tackling COVJD-19 disinformation -
Getting the facts righ.t"6, I invite you to participate in the mon.itoring and reporting 
programme set out therein, also in the context of the commitments you have subscribed 
in the Code of Practice on Disinformation. This programme will focus on COVID-19 
related disinformation and will cover all the EU Member States. 

The Communication clarifies the scope and areas of monitoring covered by this exercise. 
The type of data and information requested is specified in the attached document (see 
annex). 

We see this monitoring and reporting programme as a transparency measure to ensure 
accountability towards the public. Therefore, the Commission expects platforms and 
relevant industry associations to provide monthly reports, which will be published on the 
Commission website to ensure the largest possible publicity and accessibility for 
enhancing citizens' awareness about the outcome of your efforts in this filed . 

The monitoring and reporting programme will be articulated in two phases: 

1. Baseline infonnation on relevant policies and procedures as of 3 I July 2020. 

Platforms and re levant industry associations are invited to provide the Commission with 
an up-to-date information on tbe policies, procedures and actions they have enacted since 
the outbreak of the COVID-19 crisis as a response to the concomitant infodemic. 

This information should cover the status of the measures you h.ave implemented in each 
EU Member State through July 2020 (including, as appropriate, translation of policies 

6 Adopted on 10 June 2020, JOIN(2020) 8 final 

Colil1Ilission curopeelllle/Europese C<:immi~i!.'~.lfH.9.J,3rnxcllcs/Brusscl, BELGIQUEIBELGIB - Tel.l..,~-~-~-~<:!~~...] 
Office: BU25 01/066-Tel. direct bnet.. Redacted __ l 

[ ........ Redacted ....... i@ec.europ.a.eu 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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and related service features into local languages). In particular, this information should 
identify gaps or differences in the imp lementation of your relevant measures between 
Member States. It should also include quantitative information, where available, showing 
the impact of these measures as from March 2020. 

This information should be provided to the Commission in the form of a report not later 
than J 5 August 2020, which will be published on the Commission website. 

2. Monthly monitoring covering the period.from August 2020 to December 2020. 

Platforms and industry associations should then submit monthly reports no later than the 
15th day of each month , pres nting th output indicators set out in th annex to this letter 
and covering the pr c ding month. Thus, for example, the first monthly repo1t (covering 
the month of August) will be due by 15 September. This information should identify 
gaps or differences in the implementation of your relevant measures between Member 
States and will enable a monthly overview of the effectiveness and the impact of your 
poli cies in curbing COVJD-19 related disinformation. Your month ly reports will be 
published on the Commission website. 

We trust the commitment you have shown at the spike of the crisis will continue in this 
difficult phasing out period. Therefore, we expect to receive good quality reports and 
count on your support to ensure full transparency and a successful implementation of this 
important initiative. My services are available for a meeting at technical level to ensure 
workable an-angements. 

Yours sincerely, 

.. -. ( e-s i_gn ed) _ -·-, 
; Redacted ; , ____ .,. ,_..,. _ _ ,_, _,..,._ .... .. _ .. ,. 

Contacts: 
i-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--R_-;;d~·~t~·d-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·· -·······-····-········pcc.c11rona. cu, DG CONNECT 
'-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-•-·•-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·······•··-·-·-·-·-·-·-Y.~~c..c..;/;'-~~ 
1.4 Media Convergence and Social Media 

j,_ ·-··-·-·-·-·-·-···-·-·-·····-·-·--··-·-~~~i!£1!d jcc.curopa.cu , DG CO ECT I.4 
Media Convergence and Social Media 

Annex: Information Request 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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ANNEX 

Information Request 

Monitoring - Code of Practice on Disinformation 

A. Initiatives to promote authoritative content at EU and at Member State level -
PLATFORMSO LY 

Platfoims should provide data on the actions Data should be broken down by Member State 
taken to promote information from national and include where relevant in view of the 
and international health agencies, national and specificities of their services: 
EU authoritic , as well as professional media, • Identification of the sources promoted al 
including information on the use of EU and national level 
trustwot1hiness indicators for news sources. • volume of free advertising offered to health 

agencies and public authorities 

• relevant output indicators to assess the 
impact of such initiatives ( e.g. audience 
engagement data, including number of 
followers, views and shares) in each 
Member State. 

B. foitiatives and tools to improve users' awareness - PLATFORMS ONLY 

Platforms should provide data about Data should be broken down by Member State 
implementation of their polices to inform users and include where relevant in view of the 
when they interact with disinformation. specificities of their services : 

• umber of fact-checking organisations 
referenced in their services, for the 
purposes of issuing warn ing or labelling 
information tested as false or misleading 

• Measures taken to ensure due and expedite 
prominence to fact -checks and EU 
languages covered 

• Users' engagement data relating to pieces 
of content labelled as fact-checked and 
demoted 

• Measures taken to avoid resurgence of 
fact-checked disinformation which was 
removed due to its potential to bam1 
citizens ' health or public safety in violation 
of relevant community standards 

• Data showing the in1pact of such polices on 
users' behaviour 

C. Manipulative behaviour - PLATFORMS ONLY 

Platforms should report all instances of social 
media manipulation and malign influence 
operations or coordinated inauthentic 
behaviour detected on their services 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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Data should be broken down by Member State 
and include where relevant in view of the 
specificities of their services : 
• Information on the nature of the 

manipulative techniques used to ampli fy 
the reach of disinformation narratives ( e.g. 
fake accounts fake engagements, bots, 
coordinated interactions, role of 
influencers, hack-and-licks operations) 
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• Dimension of the networks involved (e.g. 
number of blocked pages, accounts or 
groups) 

• Geographic origin of the pages, accoLmts or 
groups involved 

• Languages used and the nanatives 
concerned 

• Target audiences, namely in the EU 
• Impact of relevant information operations 

(e.g. number of followers, views, shares). 
D. Data on flows of advertising linked to COVID-19 disinformation ALL SIG ATORIES 

1. Platforms should provide data on policies 
undertaken to limit advertising placements Q!! 

their own services. 

Data should be broken down by Member State 
and include where relevant m view of the 
specificities of their se1vices: 
• umber of ads rejected containing 

• 

2. Where relevant in view the specificities of • 
their services, platforms and trade associations 
representing the advertising industry should 
also provide infonnation on policies to limit 
advertising placements on third-party websites 
using disinformation around COVID-19 to 
attract advertising revenues 

• 

• 

4 

disinfom1ation on COVID-19. Please note 
that data on ads removed because they 
promote deceptive products or services 
(scams) should not be included as they are 
pa1t of a separate monitoring. 

umber of ad accounts terminated or 
suspended in application of these policies 
Trade associations signatories to tbe code 
should endeavour to collect statistically 
relevant information from their members 
enabling an overview of trends reflecting 
demonetisation of publishers of COVID 
related disinfomiation by using available 
samples of disinformation websites 
established by independent specialised 
organisations ( e.g. Global Disinformation 
Index, ewsguard). 
Transparency measures adopted to enable 
advertisers to exclude websites exposing 
disinfotmation around COVID-19 
Data to measure the effectiveness of such 
brand safety policies. Platforms and ad 
exchanges should report on the number of 
publishers' accounts tem1inated or 
suspended due to the presence ofCOV[D-
19 related disinfonnation on their websites, 
as well as the estimated value of ad 
revenues flowing to such accounts. 

- Elocironically signtd <ln 22/07/ 2020 17:41 (UTC•mi ,n accordance with ,ortide 4,Z (vdidity of electronic doet1JtJMts) cf Cornir.i;sion Decision 2004/%J 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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From: r·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-. ___ ,_ Redacteo -·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- li>tiktok. com J 
Sent: 11/2/2020 11:19:15 AM 
To: i._ __ Redacted ___ ]@ec.europa.eu 
Subject: Re: [External) disinformation with regard to vaccines and testing (TikTok) 

r-·-···-·"'···-·-· .... 
Dear[_Redacted i 
Thank you very much! 

May I take the opportunity to ask if you might be available to e-meet in the coming weeks, to introduce myself "in 
person" and to discuss our work on the Code of Practice of Disinformation and the road ahead? 

Kind regards 

f Redacted: t·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·. 
Or. Mon, Nov 2. 2020 at (!'.SR- !\M {-·-·-·-·-Reda,:ie<(·::···-·-·g;ec.ouropa.eu> wrote: 

Thank you, much appreciated and all the best in your new role! 

Best regards, 
r ~-·-·-•--·-•-·- ·1 

t_ Redactedj 

On 2 Nov 2020, at 09:51 J ·-·-···-·-·-·-·---·-·-·-Reda<;ted --·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-J&tiktok.com> wrote: 

Dear[_ Redacted_i 

Please allow me to introduce myself as[__ ___________ ____________________ _________ Redacted __ ·---·-·· ·-·-·· ·-·--·-·- -·-·· ·-·-·-·---·J 

[Rodoc1•dlpassed your request of Friday and we are currently looking into what information we can provide within your 
time!ine, if not before. 

We have already started some work on vaccine disinformation, recognising this to be an important area that will 
need close attention, and we have a number of campaigns already running with national public health authorities 
around Covid-19 (some of which are flagged in our latest disinformation report). 

Please do not hesitate to contact me in case anything else is needed and we will revert again shortly. 

Kind regards 

L._ ___ Redacted __ ___l 
1-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-~- ·-·---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·, 
; Redacted·-·-·-·-·--···-·-···-·-·-···-·-···-·-·-···--·-·-·-· i 
~Tel :L--~--·····~~~.\~--~----·-·1 
Email L. ___ , __ ~!~l'_c1~.---···-@t1ktok.com 

-----. -_Forwarded message ---------
From: L, _______ _1_~~9~£!~----·-·-J@ec,emopa.eu> 
Date: Fri , 30 Oct 2020, 19:57 
Subject: [External] disinformation with r~ard to vaccines and testing - kind request 
,'!.9~ .. ::[f!~~~-£!~i~Jll icrosoft. com>, [,.-:_B.~-~~_iii~~~=J@fb.com >, f.}~~i~iii@hyi tter. eorn>, 
L_ ___ f!~-~-~-~~--J@bytedance.com>, L..~~9i:1£.t.~.9 ... _@goqgle .com>, l.~~!J..~~!~~-:@fb.com> 
Cc: C:::::::~~:if~~i~~~~--~::::::19!ec. eu ropa, eu >, C::::::::~~_c1_ii~~::::::=:J@ec.eu ropa, eu >, r---·--·-·-Reciactec1-···-·--·-·Q?ec.europa. eu> 

Dear a11, 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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I would like to use our close collaboration over the past years for a quick request. 

_In the .context. oftbe broader Covid strategy and the need for urgent actions, we have been tasked this afternoon by 
i Redacted ho address disinformation and misinformation on vaccines (and testing) . 
'-·---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· ... 

While colleagues from DG Connect are reviewing the third batch of the broader Covid-1 9 d:isinformation repmis that you 
kindly sent, I wanted to ask for your quick assistance specifically on this angle. 

It would be very helpful if yon could provide - for tbe purpose of designing a good and targeted work-plan on fighting 
Covid vaccines disinfom1atio11 (and misinformation) - data/ information on how you assess the situation with vaccines, 
the main narratives, what are the reactions of tisers etc. It would also be very interesting to have some trends (and 
predictions) in this regard if you have them. The aim is to understand where we are in tenns of intensity of the campaign 
against Covid-19 vaccination and where things may go. 

Our plan is to come with proactive communication efforts and to assist member states. [ should stTess that the information 
from you would only be used for the purpose of designing the right actions and we would not share it with the general 
public. 

It would be much appreciated if you could provide the inf om1ation by Wednesday lunchtime, of course anything you 
could share even faster would be great. It doesn't need to have any specific format, and both qualitative and quantitative 
information could be valuable. 

I would also ask for a kind confomation of your readiness to offer space on your platforms for official national or EU 
channels and infonnation related to Covid- 19. 

Finally, as it will be essential in the next stages to pay special attention to the vaccination aspect, if you have any relevant 
updates on your terms of services or content moderation practices (promotion / demotion), please let me know as well. 

Given the urgency, I take the libetty to use this infonnal channel but f want to_.J!§§l!I.r yo~1Jlg_1!L~.~.-~<!9!~~§.j_i;ig_you with 
the agreement of the Vice-President (who is cooperating on this withl Redacted ;andi Redacted 1) and the 
knowledge of the President. .__ • • • • • • • • • • • • 

If you have any questions, don't hesitate to call or write. 

Best regards, 

!·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· ' 
! i 
! i 

I Redacted i 
! i 

! ' ! i 

t. -·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-· ! 

Euro1•can Commission 
Cabinet of Vice President Vera Jourova 
Values & Transparency 
BERL 11/173 
B-1049 Brussels/Belg iurn 
Tel.: C:::;::~w,~t~W~.,;::;~) 
Mobile: L._ __ ,_ Redacted ___ , _ __i 

i Redacted l@ec.europa.eu 
L ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-1 

Follow us on: 
r 1=--
~1 ---~II~ .. ____ _ 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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; 

. 

TikTok 
TikTok Input to European Commission Request on Covid-19 Vaccination 

Disinformation 

4th November, 2020 

• Information regarding how platforms assess the situation with vaccines, the 

main narratives, and the reactions of users. 

TikTok is cognizant that information and conversations around Covid-19 vaccinations are 

evolving as we learn more about their nature and timing. As such, Covid-19 vaccination 

disinformation is top-of-mind for us and we will rely on our existing scientific 

fact-checking partners (AFP, LeadStories and Science Feedback) to verify claims made 

about the vaccine, including vaccine ingredients and side effects. In many respects, this 

is just an extension of the work that we already carry out with our existing partners on 

Covid-19 disinformation. 

At this time, we have no available data regarding the reactions and engagement of users 

towards vaccine disinformation content. We do note that since TikTok works rapidly to 

tag I remove disinformation, engagement analysis may take some time and may even be 

challenging in the case of very rapid removal as users will not have had the time to 

engage. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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• Trends and predictions 

Harmful trends covered by our current Covid-19 disinformation policy include conspiracy 

theories about vaccines (eg theories which focus on microchips, Bill Gates' involvement 

and depopulation theories). Trends that we would likely categorise as non-harmful but 

which we are currently monitoring include satire related to vaccinations, eg people 

pretending to have vaccine reactions. 

• Any relevant updates on our terms of services or content moderation 

practices (eg promotion I demotion of content) 

We state in our Community Guidelines that TikTok removes medical misinformation that 

causes harm to an individual's physical health. To address new concerns around 

Covid-19 vaccines, we have rolled out specific guidance to our moderation teams to 

escalate anti-vaccination content to our fact-checking partners who have medical experts 

on their staff. When the content is clearly pushing out verifiably false information about 

vaccines (for example: false information about the vaccine's ingredients or side effects) 

and our fact-checkers agree the content is indeed harmful misinformation, we remove 

such content as a violation of our medical misinformation policy. 

In terms of counter-narratives, on 20th October TikTok announced Project Halo, an 

initiative of the United Nations and the Vaccine Confidence Project to engage millions of 

people around the world in the story of the international effort to find safe and effective 

vaccines for the coronavirus . A group of global top scientists and clinicians have joined 

forces with TikTok to tell stories - using the hashtag #TeamHalo - about their daily work 

and to educate the public on the development of a vaccine for Covid-19. By way of 

example, l _______ Redacted _______ _\ a bioengineer at the frontline of Covid-19 vaccine 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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development at Imperial College in London, explains what RNA is, how it differs to DNA 

and how important it is in the fight against Covid-19. 

So far, this community of scientists and clinicians has created over 100 videos, with over 

2 million views and over 4000 videos shared. The content is viewable across Europe in 

the following languages currently: English, Portuguese, Arabic. It is a long term initiative 

and will continue for as long as is needed. 

• Confirmation of our readiness to offer space on our platforms for official 

national or EU channels and information related to Covid-19. 

TikTok is very willing and ready to engage with official national and/or EU channels to 

support authoritative information related to Covid-19 and any vaccination disinformation. 

As highlighted in our previous reports, TikTok has already been working on some 

Member State initiatives in this area, eg working with the Spanish and Irish national 

health bodies on Covid-19 disinformation. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
CC: 
Subject: 

CNECT-l4@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-l4@ec.europa.eu] 
12/ 8/2020 9:33 :44 AM 

!._ ________ -·-···-·-~~C!~<;.\~.- -·-·- _ -·- ___ J @tikto k. com] 
CNECT-l4@ec.eu ropa.eu 
RE: RE : Re:RE : Re:[External] COVID Disinformation Monitoring Program - Vaccines 

Thank you very much for your understanding, 

The update of the invitation has been sent. 

Best regards/ Bien ii vous, 

Secretariat of DG CONNECT unit 14 - Media Convergence&. Social Media 
e-mai l CNECT-!4@ec.europa.eu 

t'/ ~-European Commission 
DG CONNECT ·· The Directorate-General for Commun ications Networks, Content and Tecl1 nology 
Mail: European Cornmission, BU25 BU25 05/094 B-1049 Brussels, Belg ium 
Address : Avenue de Beau!ieu/Beaulieulaan 25, B-1160 Brussels, Belg ium 

From:i Redacted 1@tiktok.com> 
l, - •- • - - •- • • •••-•• • •• • •• •• •• , ••••• • • •• •••••••• •• • •• • •••••••••••• ..I 

Sent: Tuesday, December 8, 2020 10:12 AM 
To: CNECT 14 <CNECT- l4@ec.europa.eu> 
Subject: Re: RE: Re :RE : Re :[Ext ernal] COVID Disinformation Monitoring Program -Vaccines 

Good morning 

Yes, this is indeed possible. And it will just be myself attending. 

Kind regards 

i Redacted ! 
'-·-·-·-·-·-···-·-·-·-· 
On Tue, Dec 8, 2020 al 9:~ 6 Afv1 <CNECT-l4@ec.europa .eu> wmLo· 

Dead Redacted i 
~--·-·-·-·.:: 

I hope this email finds you in good hea!1h. 

Could you please let us know if there is a chance to move the start of a meeting planned for 1 0 De-cernber 
2020 at 11 h, a bit earlier, at 9.30h? 

In addition, could you please inform who the participants from TikTok will be? 

Apologies for this short noticed request for the change of the meeting. 

Looking forward to your reply. 

Best regards I Bien a vous, 

Secretariat of DG CONNECT unit 14 - Media Convergence & Social Media 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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e-mailCN ECT-l4@ec,europa.eu 

~ -
':i~~r.,,· 

European Comm!is'sion 
DG CONNECT " The Dirnctorate-Gr,m,gral for Communications NeM·orks, Content and Technology 
Mail: Europ1,an Commission. BU25 8!.125 051094 B-H)49 Brussels, Belgium 
Address: Avenue de Beaulieu/Beaulieulaan 25, B-1160 Brussels, Belgium 

From:i Redacted hikto.kcorn> L .. .. .. .. .. .. .. _ ,. , . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . . .. .. .. .• .. .. .. .. .. .. . , 

Sent: Monday, November 16, 2020 12:03 PM 
To: CNECT 14 <CNECT .. l4@e,~.enropa.eu> 
Subject:: Re:RE: Re: [Extemal] COVJD Disinformation Monitoring Program - Vaccines 

Thank you very much, this date / time suits wel1 ,and I will look forward to the meeting. 

Will you send connection detai ls? 

Kind regards 

L .. Redacted ____ ; 

On tAcn, Nov ~ 6, 2020 at 1 ·; :43 f\l',;1 <CNECT-!4@ec.europa.eu> wrote: 

Dearl,Redacted_ i 

I hope this email finds you in a good health. 

As a follow up to the exchange of emai ls with the new HoU please let us know 
whether the date of10 December 2020, at 11 h would suit you well for the 
meeting withL._~!~~£!!.t .-.: 

Looking forward to your feedback. 

Thank you . 

Best regards I Bien a vous, 

Secretariat of DG CONNECT unit !4 - Media Convergence & Social Media 
e-ma i!C N ECT-14@ec.eu ropa.eu 

~ ;, 

, . . ~m: 
European Commission 
DG CONNECT - The Directorate-General for Communications Networks, Content and Technology 
Mail: European Comrnission, BU25 BU25 051094 B-104:9 Brussels, Belgium 
Address: Avenue de Beaulieu/Beaulieulaan 25, B-1 180 IB11.1ssels, Belgium 

From: L_ __ ·--·-···-·-···-·-·- -·---- ____ Redacted -·---·---·-- ·------------·-···--·b:. emopa.eu> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 8:08 PM 
To: i Redacted ]tlktok.com> 
Cc: CNEC'f'COV'llflvfONfToRTKIG-·PROGRAMME <CNECT~COVID-MON!TORING­
PROGRAMM E@ec.europa.eu>; CNECT 14 <CNECT-14@ec.europa,eu> 
Subject: RE: Re:[External] COVID Disinformation Monitoring Program - Vaccines 
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Dear !_ Redacted .J 

Many thanks for your email. I am very much looking forward to our cooperation. 
We appreciate your efforts and look forward to the information on your actions 
related to vaccines disinformation. 

l would be more than happy to (e)meet up soon to introduce ourselves and to 
discuss our cooperation. My assistant will be in touch to find a mutually 
convenient time to meet. 

Kind regards, 
L Redacted __ ! 

From: I Redacted ltiklok.corn> 
'·· ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· -·-·-·-·-·-·-·.Y 

Ser;it: .. Tuesday, November. 1 0 •. 2020. 11.: 1_6 AM _________ . 
To ::__ ____ ________ ________________ ____ __ _____ ~~-«!<!.C?.!~~----·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· -·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·_@ec.eu ropa. e u> ; 
[ ____ -·--·-·-·-···-·- __ Redacted ___ -·-·-·· -···-·-·- __ Jtktok. com> 
Cc: CNECT COVID MONITORING PROGRAMME <CNECT-COV1D-
MON1TOR!NG-PHOGRAMfv1E@ec.europa.eu> 
Subject: Re:[External] COVID Disinformation Monitoring Program - Vaccines 

Dea1i Redacted ! 
i... ·- ·- ·- ·- ·- ·- ·- ·- ·- ·! 

Many congratulations on your appointment and 1 wish you every success in this new 
role. Once you settle in, it would be fantastic to (e)mect, lo introduce ourselves 
properly and to discussTikTok's engagement on the Code. l myself am fairly new to 
TikTok, having started in September and being based in BmsselsfRed,c, .. !is based in 

1.--·-·-·-·-·· 
London). 

Indeed, last week we submitted some infom1ation related to vaccination 
r-•-•- ·-·-·-• · •- ·- ·-' - ·- •·1 

disinformation (attached here for ease of reference) and I met with:. ... Redacted ____ ! last 
Friday. He indicated that this new area may become a focus of reporting at some 
point. As regards our October report, we are in the final stages of completion now 
and so while we have already included some infomrntion on vaccine disinfom1ation 
(similar to tha1 submitted last week), we have not fully set up our system reporting 
yet for this new area. As such, \.Ve will likely have a more complete response for our 
November report , due mid December. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me at any point. 

Many thanks and kind regards 

[L.:~'.~Redacted ~'.~_:,":~-~--~--~-~-~~-~-~--~-_-Redacted·.~·- ~-~-~-~--~--~-~-~-~-~-~--~-~-~-~-~--~-~-~-~-~-~--~-~-~-: 
Tel · !_,_, _, _____ ,_, Redacted ·-·- ·- ·-·-·- · l 
[ Redacted ki,! t iktob.'. 0111 
l,.,,. •• ••••' • ••••••' • • • •••,. •• ••••' • ••••••' • ,.~ 

Or Mon . Nov 9. 2020 at 9: 1e Ptvi f _______ Redacted ______ 1@ec.europa.eu> wrote: 

Dear i Redacted : 
l . .. . .. . .. . .. . ... .. J 

I wanted to reach out and introduce myself to you as to one of our key 
interlocutors in the area of Disinformation, working together with the 
Commission on the Code of Practice. And I'm afraid that, along with this 
introduction , already comes a request to you as one of the signatories, which 
may not come as a surprise in these unprecedented times. 
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As you may know, L ... Redacted ___ ..,i retired from the Commission at the end of 
last month, and I have been appointed to replace him as [ __ Redacted_} at DG 
Connect's Unit on Media Convergence and Socia! Media. I am very 
honoured to take over this role. I especially look forward to working with you 
and continuing the excellent collaboration achieved so far on the Code. 

I would also like to take the opportunity to relaya request in relation to the 
COVIO-19 disinformation monitoring programme established under the 
June 2020 Communication. 

i - ·- · - ·-·--·- • - ·- ·- · - · - ·- ·- . . j- · - . - · - .... -·- . .. . -·- · - ·-· ... .. . ... · - . - - - • -· - · - ... . -· .... - , ,. ·-· j . 

I understand that ____ Redacted ____ :tromL, ______________ Redacted ·--- _____ ;cabinet has 
recently contacted you seeking your assistance in designing a targeted 
work-plan on fighting disinformation and misinformation around COVID 
vaccines. We very rnuch appreciate the inputs provided so far in response 
to this request. 

In follow-up, the Commission wou ld like the platforms toinclude in their 
further monthly monitoring reports a specific section highlighting 
actions taken to fight disinformation and misinformation around COVID 
vaccines. Given the importance of this topic, we would greatly appreciate itif 
you could begin implementing this request in your upcoming monthl:t 
updates on COV!Dw19 disinformation, which are due on 15 November. 

While the monitoring programme already encompasses COVID vaccines 
disinformation, we consider it wou ld be crucial to intensify and consolidate 
reporting on the topic. This will critically support the work the Commission 
and the Member States are undertaking to ensure public acceptance and 
uptake of COVID vaccines, which, as you know, are presently being 
developed and undergoing clinical trials. 

To ensure compret,ensiveness,the section on vaccines should address 
actions corresponding to the four reporting areas set out in the June 
2020 Communication and include, to the extent possible, relevant 
quantitative data on those actions in line with the indicators set out in 
Director General's letter on the monitoring program. 

Finally, as you know, as part of their responses to the infodemic, the 
platforms have successfully deployed on their services lnfonnation Panels 
which pull together and give prominence to authoritative information and 
information sources on COVID. In that regard we suggest the signatories to 
also consider deploying analogous Information Panels that give prominent, 
mnso!idated display< to evolving, autt1oritative information on the production, 
availabili ty and safety of COVID vaccines. In this regard I would like to draw 
your attention to therecently revamped the EU vaccination information 
portal (https:ffvaccination4nfo,eu/en), which is a usethl source of authoritative 
information on vaccines, as it pulls together all efforts done at the EU level on 
vaccination and on COVID-19 vaccination in pmticular. 

If you have any questions on this request, I would be happy to discuss. 

Kind regards, 
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Europe~n Commission 
DGCONNECT 
Direc10rate-General for Communicat ion:; Network:;, Content and Technology 
Unit 14 - Media Convergence and Social Media 

BU25 01 182 
, ... B=.l!l!l'l.Bruss.:!,s/Bc!gium 

i Redacted !, 
t-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·llf;Cc. europf1.tu 
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- Ref. Ares(2021)246297 - 12/0 1/2021 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

For registration please. 

Call with TikTok, 06/11/2020 

i Redacted i (CAB-JOUROVA) 

mardi 12 janvier 202110:54 

CAB JOUROVA ARCHIVES 

: Redacted : (CAB-JOUROVA) 
'-·-·-·-·- ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-j 

Flash report- meeting with Tik-Tok 6 November 2020 

Participants:• Redacted i(cab Jourova),: Redacted ](Tik Tok) 
·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·' '-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·. 

TikTok asked about the future of the CoP and the EDAP. 

L••••cled!thanked for TT's engagement in the Code of Practice and explained that vaccines will be our new 
focus on disinformation on covid. We believe the CoP should be amended, the CoP 2.0 should fill the gaps 

that have already been outlined in the September Code assessment. We see also some missing elements, 
such as more requirements on manipulative behaviour, setting more concretely the cooperation with 

fact-checkers, data disclosure for researchers. We are currently discussing these internally. 

i•-iasked what does TT see as effective measures on their network ? Is the demotion of false content 
more difficult than promoting authoritative content? 

TT recognises that common definitions and standards would be appreciated. TT was removing false 

health disinfo, had a sticker. TT pointed out that some of the committments are not relevant for their 
platform - it hasn't been able to look at user engagement and trends, they need more time to have a full 
understanding. 

[;:.:::stated that the impact of engaging with harmful content, esp. on health, needs to be addressed. 

1~-.•~':.'".•,bsked if the political ads are a problem on TT? Should we address how the paid-for content is used? 

TT has a political guide for elections. They set up a team focusing on German elections. On US elections, 
they were directing users to official sources. They will share a debrief report. It hasn't been a problem for 

the platform. 

TT is setting up a network of fact-checkers and would like to discover what are the more precise 
transparency requirements. 

[;_:;] replied that our June Communication was a good test, the DSA will provide general transparency 
provisions and this should be developed in the follow up to the Code. EDMO could be a useful umbrella 

for fact-checking. 

i;:;.~-:_) f!agged that thef::;.:!may wish to engage with top executives by the end of the month, also for 
l . . . . . . . ,, I. •• •• ••• ~ 

updates on further work on vaccines disinformation. 
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From: L ................. Redacted _____________ . ______ jec. europa .e u] 
Sent: 2/3/2021 5:33 :51 PM 
To: f -------------·-···-··· Redacted _______________________ !ec.europa.eu] 
CC: L.. ................... Redacted -----·-·-··-·-··· 7t1ktok. com] 
Subject: RE: Re:[External] RE : COVID·19 Monitoring Programme• Next steps 

Dear[Redacted l 

Thank you indeed for the fruitful conversation, and for sharing this, extremely useful! 

I will foUow up on the points that[.Redacted_jmentioned sharing some more information on the Eurobaromcter, 
and on further clarifications related to the upcoming meetings on the Guidance. 

Best, 

[ Redacted .1 

From:L. ....................... Redacted··-·-···-·-···- ·-·-···-@tiktok.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 3, 2021 5:40 PM 

To:L_ _______ __ -·---________ '3,~~-~~te.c.L.. __ ···--·--------------- _J@ec.eu ropa. e u> L ...... ·-··-· Redacted .............. J 
L. .... Redacted .... J@ec.europa.eu> 
Subject: Re: Re:[External] RE: COVID· 19 Monitoring Programme · Next steps 

L.__·-·-·· .. Redacted .......... ..J , 

Thank you for the good and helpful conversation. 

Here is the blog post that I mentioned, regarding our new user prompts for unverified 
information.: https://newsroom.tilctok.com/en-ie/new-prompts-help-people-consider-before-they-share 

As stated in the plost, "when we tested this approach we saw viewers decrease the rate at 
which they shared videos by 24%, while likes on such unsubstantiated content also 
decreased by 7% ". 

Kind regards 

l ? 

i Redacted i 
l...·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·. 

On Thu, Jan 28, 2021 at 10:41 AM CNECT-l4@ec.europa.eu <C ECT-I4(@.ec.europa.eu> wrote: 

Thank you very much for your prompt response, 

Please book this slot in your calendar and we w ill be sending the invite to you shortly. 

Best regards I Bien a vous, 
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Secret ariat of DG CONNECT unit !4 - Media Convergence & Social Media 

e-mail CNECT-·14@ec.eurnpa.eu 

European Commission 
DG CONNECT •· The Di rectorate -Generai for Communications Networks, Content and Technology 

Mail: European Commission, BU25 BU25 05/094 B-1049 Brussels, Belgium 
Address : Avenue de Beaulieu/Beau l!eulaan 25, B-1160 Brussels, Belg iu m 

From{._, ___ __ ______ Redacted _______ ____ ,J@tiktok.com > 

Sent: Thursday, January 28, 2021 10:37 AM 
To: CNECT 14 <CNECT-l4@ec.europa .eu> 
Cc: CNECT COVID MONITORING PROGRAMME <CNECT-COVlD-MONITORI NG-PROGRAM ME@ec.europa.eu> 

Subject: Re: [External] RE: COVID-19 Monitor ing Programme - Next steps 

. ----·---------·-·-·.., 
Deari Redacted ! '·-· -·-· --• ---· ----- ' 

Yes indeed , this date/time works well . And I would be happy to provide some feedback on the new 
proposed requirements at that meeting. 

Many thanks 

Kind regards 

. ..... , .... , ............ ,1 

! Redacted i . ' "·-·-·-·~·--·-·-·-·-·' 
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On Thu, Jan 28 , 20;;.1 a t 10:3·1 i\M <CNECT-l4@ec.europa.eu> wrote: 

Dea ri Redacted! 
!..-·--•-•••••• •• •-·--••' 

Hope this email finds you in good health. 

As a fo llow up to the exchange below could you please let us 
know whether next Wednesday - 3 February 2021, at 
16.30h is convenient for you and your team for a meeting with 

i Redacted land her co lleagues. ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-

Thank you in advance, 

Looking forward to your feedback. 

Best regards/ Bien a vous, 

Secretariat of DG CONNECT unit 14 - Media Convergence & 
Social Media 

e-mai l CNECT-I4@ec.europa.eu 

European Commission 
OG CONNECT - The Directorate-General for Communications r~etworks, Content and 
Technology 

Mail: European Commission, BU25 BU25 05/094 B-1049 Brussels, Belgium 
Address : Avenue de Beaulieu/Beaulieu!aa n 25, B-1160 Brussels, Be lgium 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_003011 
1242



From: L-·······-·······-·····-·····-········ Redacted -·········-·····-·······-···· ······rz&ec. europn. e u > 

Sent: T.wsd.av. Januarv 19. 2021 4:3 l PM 
1·0: l-············ .... :.· .. ~edac~d .... • ··-··········- Ji~QtJ.~E.?~_-E!!..'.~::::'. ............. -........... . 
• ~:.i::L~~~~~.!_e.~Ji$bytcdance.com; I Redacted ! 
t~R~F3j~~r;J~Jzqi~;-:~~1:~C~~!~~~~~[~=-~:~~:=~~:~=~~:~~~~~~~~!~~:,;:~:,~~~~~~::~:~:] , , _ _ 
L. ..... . · -··· Redacted ····-······· ji-,cc. eurnpa.cu .. >; C'.Nl:,l.. l CO\ ID ,v10 N l1 0 RI N (1 
PROGRAMI\.JE <CNECT-COVlD-l\·10NITOR[NG--

. r--~~!. ~:L~~~~1t~r~(i)}.:.:.::.:iy;:i. :l!i:.~i;~-;~:">::... .......... ::~.: .: ~: ~ Redacted ........ i -·····-·····-·-······1 

i Redacted !@cc.curopa.cu>; CNECT I4 <C1'{ECT-I4@cc.europa.cn> 
'subject: COVTD-19 Monitoring Pr,ogramrne - Next step~ 

Dear!_ Redacted ] 

We would like to thank Tik.Tok for the reporting on 
ac:tlons taken to fight COVID-19 dlsinformation, 
carried out since August 1n response to tt,e June 
2020 Communication . 

The reports have proven to be an important means 
of keeping citizens aware of the steps platforms are 
taking to counter COVID-19 related disinformation 
on their services. I n vievv of the significant 
challenges that large scale or.line disinformation on 
COVID poses to the pandemic, and to the 
vacclnation efforts, this !s of utmost importance. 
This exercise ls also essential for the Commission;s 
monitoring of the platforms' lmp!ernentaUon of their 
commltrnents under the Code of Practice during this 
crisis period. 

As we have prevlously communicated lnformal !y, 
the Commission services consider that, ln light of 
the ongoing pandemic, it is necessary to 
continue the reporting and monitoring 
programme. As a first step, ln !ine with the key 
phase of the vaccination campaigns with Member 
States, we consider it essential to extend the 
reporting for the first ha!f of 2021. Depending the 
evolution of the pandemlc and t he related 
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infodemic, we wll! re-,assess the situation in 6 
months, 

In practica! terms, we ask you to continue 
submitting monthly reports covering the 
period from January to June 2021, continuing 
with the current practice of submitting the reports 
by the 15th of the month following the reporting 
period. 

We understand that the reporting requlres 
signiflcant resources on the part of your company, 
At the same tlme, it ls essential to obtain and share 
information and insights about the measures put in 
p!ace and their effects. Providing citizens with clear 
and relevant information is also key, in view of the 
potential harmful impacts of COVID-retated 
disinformation on our societies. In line with these 
objectives, we wouid !lke to discuss with you how to 
optimise the reporting process. 

We would however also like to take this occasion to 
further engage with you regarding the content of 
the reports. From our perspective, some key points 
where 1.ve would like to see improvement include: 

• a stronger focus on current and 
foreseen actions related to COVI D-19 
vaccines applied on your services ( e.g< 
tools deployed to ensure easy access to 
authoritative information about vacclnes 
and national vaccination 
campaigns, measures to remove and/or 
demote dis- or misinformation related to 
COVID-19 vaccines, evolutions in 
advertising polices and enforcement to 
address COVID-19 vaccines dls- or 
misinformation). 

• Improvements in the quality of 
data regarding the impact and 
efficiency of the measures put in place 
(e,g. if your terms and conditions foresee 
the removal/demotion of certaln types of 
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COVID-19 related disinformation, hov>f 
many times has this lead to 
removal/demotion; if you are using tools 
to promote authoritative information - e.g. 
information panels, !abeis directing users to 
authoritative sources - how many times 
have EU users seen and interacted with 
such tools; if you are working with fact­
checkers, how many fact-checks relating to 
COVID-19 content have been carrled out, 
and how many tlrnes have users interacted 
1ivith the fa!se daims concerned and with 
the fact-checks). 

* Provision of more granular data 
(e.g. by Member State and language) on 
the availabmty of tools deployed and 
users' interactions with such tools. 

• Provision of data on the estimated 
vaiue of advertising prevented from 
being displayed on websites that 
purvey COVID-19 related 
disinformation (e.g, based on ur!s 
blocked for pubiishing policy violatlons, or 
with reference to third-party lists of 
disinformation websites ··- e.g. GDI). 

• Improvements 1n the structure 
and readabmty of the reports, 
induding through an executive 
summary, to facmtate the public's 
review of the reports. 

At the same time, we are ready to explore wlth you 
whether there are ways to streamline the reporting 
that could reduce the burden on your company, 
while ensurlng that the reports are meaningful and 
informative. 

Please note that, as flagged in the June 2020 
Communication, the Assessment of the Code, and 
the European Democracy Action Plan, the 
experience and flndlngs of the COVID-19 monitoring 
and reporting programme can also provide 
important insights for improving regular, recurrent 
monitoring of the Code going forward. Therefore, 
we are also very interested to engage with you and 
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discuss your experience and f1ndings concerning the 
programme, 

My secretariat will be in touch to ldentlfy a date that 
ls conven1ent for bot!l sides. 

i ·- ·-·-·--·- ·- ·-----·-·-·-· - ·-· i 
j i 

! : 
i i i • 

! 

I Redacted l 
i ' i i 
i i I -
i 
i 

' ! . '-·------·-----·----------·-·-' 

fa.1ro1w·~n c,,mm1,slmi 
D(i CONNECT 

rm2s m 182 
B-· ! { J49 B n.tS.'h.'•J s/Belgju m 

t._ ____ ~edacted __ , __ ) • 
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..... ----·- ---·- --·-·- - ---·- ---·- -
[_, ........ ~!:.~.~.~J!!_~·····-···j 
l. ................. ·~-···. ..... . .................. .,, ......... Red acted ..... ···-··· ................ ··-··· ........................... .: 

Tel ·l_ __ ---- - --- - Redacted_--- -- -·-·- _i 

Email: L. ........ Redacted ·····-· ~iktok.com 
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- Ref. Ares(2021 )2403387 - 08/04/ 2021 

From: f Redacted i 
l.-·-----·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-------·-·-------·-·-·-----·-·-·-·---·-·-·-·-· 

Sent: jeudi 8 avril 2021 09:32 
To: [_·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·Redacted ___ . _______ .! 
Subject: FW: report from meeting with platforms on vaccine 

Dear [_Redacted: 
For registration. 
Thank you 

l Redacted i 

disinformation, 22/2 

From: i__·-·-·-···-···········-·········-··· Redacted·······--······-···-·········-······ ~c.europa.eu> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 23, 202112:15 AM 

To: i Redact.~.~-·····-·········-···- ........ ··-·-·· @ec.europa.eu> L::::::::::j~~~~~j~_<C~~~~~~~~~~~j 
_; Redacte~···········-·-···-·~ec.e~.~<:'.P.a.:!:~?.'.'. i RE:~~cted ·-··--; 
i Redacted @ec.europa.eu>~ Redacted ! 
: Redacted • @ec.europa~e~°), Redacted , i 
!rnn VUl'IY'l lft llUIU IUIIIIUl'lllllrlllUIU l!IIU IIVUIUft ll'l llllft' .......... ... - ........................ - .................................. ._ ......... _ ______ , ______ , ________ _ , 

! Redacted @ec.europa.eu>;; Redacted ! L ... Redacted-·· .. ~ec.e~ropa .eu>;f ·--·· •• •--·-·- ·-·····Redacted··---··-··· · -··-··· •• i 
: Redacted@ec.europa.eu> 
i ·-·-·-'··-·-· -·----- · - ·-·-·-·-·-·-·---·-·-·-· - ·-·-·-·-·- ··-·-·- · -·-·-·-·-·-· -·-·-·-·-··-·-·-· - · -·-----·-·-· - ·- ~ .- ------· - ··-·-·-·-·-•-··-•- ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-cc:·; Redacted @ec.europa.eu>;1 Redacted 1 
1•••••••••"••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• . •-·-·-•-•-••·-·- ••·•·••-•- ••·-•· , ,..,.,..,.,..,..,..,....,.,..,.....,,.....,,,_,, ___ , ___________ ,_ , _____________ , __ ~:- :.:.:.; · •·•·•·•· ••• ••·•·• · •••••· -••· •J 

i Redacted tg>ec.europa.eu>;L. ........... .......... ~~sJ.i!.c~~~'----... . ...... : 

·c~:~:- Redadted ::::::·) @ec.europa.eu> 
Subject: report from meeting with platforms on vaccine disinformation, 22/2 

Vice-President Jourova met the representatives of Facebook, Google, TikTok, Twitter and 
YouTube about the urgency of addressing coronavirus vaccines disinformation. 

VP thanked companies for their engagement but warned that disinformation stays abundant 
and vaccine diplomacy is accompanied by propaganda waves by foreign actors. She asked what 
platforms could do to strengthen the actions to have less toxic content, and how we could 
facilitate cooperation between public authorities and online platforms in order to identify 
disinformation in a better way and promote health announcements from the authorities. VJ also 
underlined the need to work against disinformation in all MS and languages. Finally, she 
announced she would discuss the matter further with Member States. 

DOT Europe agreed with the importance of platforms' actions but noted that platforms are 
dependent on receiving the authoritative information to be promoted highlighted the role of 
media in explaining the importance of vaccination. 

Facebook pointed to the need for content from health authorities and suggested to facilitate 
contact with ECDC. 

Google offered once again ad grants and agreed that information from public authorities is 
needed to allow their services to be used well (e.g. maps on access to vaccines). You Tube added 
their emphasis on enforcement. 
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TikTok spoke about innovative methods to provide information about vaccines, as well as 
labelling, deepening cooperation with fact-checkers, and removing most toxic content. 

Commission raised the issue of repeated evidence on manifestly toxic content still circulating 
online even after being spotted by trusted flaggers. 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

,-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·1 
L-···-·-···-···-···- Redacted·-···-·-···-·-······· ltiktok. com] 
4/13/202112:22:03 PM 
L .. _ ............... . Redacted ... ... ... .. . . ;ec.europa.eu] 
Re: RE: [External] RE: Quick call? 

No problem - I will call that. I wasn't sure if you were in the office or working from home these days. Speak to you in 10'! 
()n T nt.\ Ap.r U, 20'..;L 2: 17 P\ ·1 l._ ...... Redacted_···--· !(c}Jec.europa.eu> wrnr,~; 

I think the office nw11ber should work well © 

L. .. Redacted .... l 

Otherwise I can quickJy setup a google meets room if you prefer 

FromL. ............... ·--·-··· Redacted .......... .... .......... .. . !tiktok. com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 13, 20211:09 PM 

To: t:::::·· ·.::::::::::::::::::::::::::_Redacted ::::::::::::::::·: ::::::::::::::Je c. e u ro pa. e u > 
Subject: Re: [External] RE: Quick cal l? 

Great , thanks- I will call you at 2.30pm. Whaty is the best number to reach you on? 

Cu TuG, Apr 1 ~\ 2u2 l, 1 :iH PM i Redacted @ec.europa.eu> wrote: 
'-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-' 

llmnks l Redacted j I am available from 2. I Spm-20 onwards today and in the afternoon tomorrow! 
I.,-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·• 

From: L..·-··············-·· Redacted····-·-·····-······· @tiktok.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 13, 202112:47 PM 

To: l. .....• ·-···-·····················Redacted ·······-···-····............. lec.europa.eu> 
Subject: Quick call? 

Many thanksi ~edacwd! this is helpful. 
L- •• · - •• •••• •-' 

rd love to take you up 011 the offer of a quick call, if that would be ok. Our CEO is meeting 
with VP Jourova next week, in part to discuss our efforts around disinfomiation, and I would 
like to better understand the upcoming process and timing if possible. 
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I am available 2-3 this afternoon and from 4pm onwards if that works for you, otherwise at 
10am or from 2pm onwards to11101Tow. 

Thanks! 

L Redacted_: 

On Tue, 1\pr t ?, 202t, i 1 ·25 ;\!vl <CNECT-COVID-MONITOR1 G­
PROGRAMME@cc.curopa.cu> wrote: 

Dear [ Redacted i 

Sony to come back to you only now on this, I thought I answered several 
days ago ©. I hope you had some good rest for Easter. 

Thank you for your detailed email and explanations, indeed, as anticipated 
this list includes several indicators which may not be relevant for your 
platfo1111 as well , as we also know well that TikTok ha been providing some 
precise information on interaction on its platform already. 

On the still unanswered questions on our side: 

• On point number 2, our idea was to understand the level of 
engagement of users not only with the panels, but also with the 
authoritative sources themselves, to have a picture of whether the 
inclusion of authoritative sources may have an impact on the way 
users consult authoritative infom1ation as well. 

• On how this request fits within the publication of the Guidance: 
the Guidance will provide suggestion towards how to sti-engthcn 
the Code of Practice, and the definition of clearer and more 
meaningful KP[s are a core of the process, alongside a more robust 
monitoring mechanism. The process of refining the COVID-19 
disinfonnation monitoring programme fits within the process of 
working towards better KPls to monitor the po licies put in place. 

Hope this help , and let me know if you wanted to have quick call about it. 
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Thanks, 

- - - - - - - -

j Redacted,! 

From: L ........................ Redacted .... .............. ...... alti ktok. com> 
Sent: Monday March 29, 202 l 11 :58 AM 
To: C -CT COYID MONITORING PROGRAMM • <CNECT­
COVID-MONITORING-PROGRAMME@cc.europa.cu>; 
[·.~·~·.~·.~·.~·~·.~·.~·~·~·~.~~~·£!~~~·.~·.~·~·.~·.~~·~·.~·.~·~··~ti kt o k. co 111>; l ......... ~!:~~~!!:<! ......... : 
: .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .... , . . Redacted ·-·····-·-·····-·-·-(ci),ec.europa.eu> 
Subject: Additional data requests - TikTok's feedback 

D ,-·-·-·-·-·-·, 
earl Redacted_! 

I am circling back on the recent data requests and apologies for the 
delay as we had to check across multiple teams. 

As a general comment, we only provide data where we have some 
level of certainty that the data we pull is both available and 
accurate, and that we can repo11 clearly and consistently. And as 
you know, we still have some bui lding out to do as regards our 
internal systems and infi-astructme. And so, we can provide very 
little more than we are currently providing unfortunately. We also 
had a question around how this latest data request could be seen 
alongside the new guidelines that are expected soon? 

As regards the specific items, we note that we are already providing 
data on items 1, 3 and 4. Per the email below, we were not clear on 
the meaning of item 2 but we are happy to respond to that one ifwe 
can get clarity. 

For the remaining items we either do not have this data (eg value of 
rejected ads) or it is nor relevant to how we operate our platfonn (cg 
demotion of content) or what we are seeing (CIB), or we cannot 
currently disclose the data for some reason. 

Happy to answer any additional questions in this area. 
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Many thanks 

Kind regards 

r •-••' • •- •-• - •-•- •-• ~ 

: Redacted i 
"-·-·-·-·-·-· -·-·-·-·· 

C•:t W~d, Mar rr 2021, f:43 PM 
[._ ___ Redacted _____ r@tiktok.com> '\,\'f(J !<.::: 

Thanks L Redacted ] 

It will likely be beginning / mid next week before 
we can provide our feedback as we need to sync up 
with several teams on all the data items. 

Can we get cla1ification on #2? Does this imply 
some so11 of organic campaign or deliberate 
amplification of content by the platfonn, different 
to static notice tags or infonnation pages? 

Many thanks. 

Best regards 

LRedacted_] 
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,-·-·-. -·---·-. -·-·-· -. -·-·-. -·---·-. -·-· . 
! Redacted i 
~--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·· ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·. 
[_ _______________________________________________ Redacted ______________________________________________ ~ 

Te I : t.·:_·:·: ·:_·:_':·:·:_·_ Redacted·:·:·:_·:·:·:·:_':·_ i 
Email : 1·-·-·-·Reciacteci·-·-·-1(@,tiktok.com 
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. . ; ---···· ·- ·· ·· ·· ·· ·· ··~ )2768338 • 26/04/2021 
Meeting with , Redacted ; , '" , ul\ 

Videoconference, 20 April 2021 

Meeting conclusions 

Participants Visitors' delegation: 

• Vanessa Pappas, Interim CEO, TikTok 

• L .... -·-•··--·-···--·-·-•····---·····-·-···•·-·-·-·······-·-··· Redacted · ··----·-·-· ·· -·····--·-·-·-· ·· ··-··· -· ·-·-· ·· ········ ··-·--·-i' 
TikTok Brussels 

COM: 

• Vera Jourova, Vice•President for values and transparency 
---·-·-----·-' ---·---. -· -------·-------' ---·-· -·-------' -·-·-·-· -' . ---·-· -·-----·-·• -·-----. -·-·------~----' -·-·-·-· . ; 

• ! Redacted 
• i 

1-------+-~······················· .. ·······································-······································································~------1 
Issues raised 
& follOW·UP 

On women in digital and digital literacy 

• Mrs Pappas explained her background and said that TikTok has 
been the new player and challenger in the platform space by taking 
a unique approach on short video space. 

• VP Jourova said that it is important for young girls and women to 
see women leading tech companies. This can prompt them to 
pursue careers in digital, which is a part of our digital future that the 
EU would like to foster. 

• Mrs Pappas mentioned that she is using her connections in 
universities to champion the next generation of tech leaders, 
including women. VP Jourova suggested to reflect on an initiative to 
foster women 's digital participation as well as media literacy 
projects. Mrs Pappas would be interested in becoming a partner in 
these efforts, since TikTok would like to invest in education. 

On platforms' responsibility 

• VP Jourova thanked TikTok for its participation to the code of 
conduct on countering illegal hate speech online and the code of 
practice on disinformation. She stressed that tech companies should 
minimise the negative impact on users, while continuing to innovate. 

• Mrs Pappas acknowledged that TikTok bears a responsibility. She 
said that the TikTok community finds ways of protecting itself, such 
as by developing digital literacy and safety videos (e.g. to combat 
tech addition) together with the creator community. 

On the fight against disinformation 

• VP Jourova stressed the need to step up the fight against 
disinformation , notably against vaccines. Though the code of 
practice on disinformation has yielded results, it does not cover all 
the market actors and has its limits as a self.regulatory arrangement. 
The Digital Services Act will fill this regulatory gap. 

• The code,i Redacted iadded, will remain important even after the 
adoption of1hese infflatives, as a bridge to legislation. It brings 
together companies with the community of civil society and 
institutions, which is a real added value. Work must continue with 
outside experts and in all languages. While content moderation is 
important, there needs to be focus on the algorithms and 
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architecture themselves, he added. Giving access to data to 
researchers is crucial to understand what the malicious actors are 
doing. He referred to the European Media Observatory that brings 
together fact-checkers and researchers and focusses also on media 
literacy. 

• Every three months, Mrs Pappas said , she is meeting with TikTok's 
safety advisory council in the US that brings together nine industry 
experts across the field to tackle issues such as deep fakes , teen 
health, cyberbullying, misinformation etc. Last month , TikTok has 
also launched a safety advisory council for Europe. 

• VP Jourova said that there are many different sensitivities and 
complexities: platforms need to understand the law and the legal 
tradition of each country in which they are operating when it comes 
to hate speech. 

• Mrs Pappas is in favour of a balanced approach but acknowledged 
that sometimes the lines are blurry. This is a challenge for platforms, 
she said , and the reason why TikTok relies on fact-checkers. She 
announced that in May TikTok will inaugurate an EU transparency 
and accountability centre based in Dublin, similar to the one in the 
US. Experts may check the company's content moderation systems 
and learn about the company's security and privacy practices as well 
as the algorithm codes that TikTok is using. 

On political advertising and elections 

• VP Jourova invited TikTok to contribute to the political advertising 
initiative that the Commission is preparing , including in defining the 
notion of political content. 

• Mrs Pappas said that TikTok does not allow for political advertising. 
She admitted that defining political advertising can be tricky and it is 
easier if done at the sponsor level. She argued that all platforms 
have different specificities but TikTok would in any case like to 
participate in this dialogue. 

• Mrs Pappas said that TikTok has set up early on a team to address 
challenging content during the US elections. Around 50,000 videos 
have been removed , though TikTok is a place of creative expression 
and not of political debate. She added that politicians should hold 
the same standards as all other users. 

,__ ____ _, .. ,_, ......... .... , ........ ........ .. .. .... , ........ ........ . .. .... , ........ ... ........... ................ .............. ____________ ----< 

l--·-·---·-·-·-·--·-·-- Redacted _______________________ ! 
Copies 

---. -. -· -·-·-. -· -----·-. -· -·-·-. -· -----·-. -· ---·-. -. -----. -· -·-·-·-. -· -·-·-. -. -----·-. -· -----·-· -·-·-·-. -· -----. -· -·-·-·-. -·-·-·-. -· -----·-. ---·-·-. -· -·-·-·- •·- • - · - .... 

Redacted 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 
Attachments: 

Dear Signatories, 

r-·-·-·-·-···-·-···-·-·-R~-c;!!!.~.!~c:t._. __________________ .@ec.europa.eu l 
10/14/202111:39:28 AM 

.. - •-••••••- •••••-••••••••••••••••••••••- ,•• • •-•• •-••••••••••••• •••••-• - • •• •••••••• •• •i ! ' • ••• -• • ••••••••••••••- ••••••••j I ~ 

i._ ___ --~~4:1~~!-~~- _______ J@doteurope.eu J; L_ __ -------~~~l!.<:.!~<:l ___________ _i@K°-':l-~l~:~9_r:!1J;.0 , 0 ,~0 ~-~1~5.1,!;~---···--l@globsec.org; LR~-~-~~!~~j@newsgua rd tech. com; 

[~ji1;~~Ji:~~::r~~::::~~~;~i~~J;!rl!~;~i2~;it]JErfiT::::!~~\?i~~1;1':i·~iit~ll!-~~~1?;~~~~':;~r::, 
,--·-R;;d;;;i:;d-··1@google.com;i Redacted @twitter.com]f ·-·-R~-ci;;;;·d··-·-@tiktok.com;i Redacted i 
~---------·---•- •-·-, • l--. - - - - ------- --·-··-·-·-·--•-·-• · -·- -- · - ·-·-•-·-·- ·• •••••••• •••• •••• •• • - --·----~ 1-·- ·-·-·-·--•-·-·-·-•-·-; • ••• • ••••••••- ••• • j •••••• •••--•J••••••••• - •-•••-• - ••·•-•-•- • - •- - • - • .,.J•-••• I 

U ~~_d_a_c_t~_j@doteurope.eu];L_ _____ f!."!'li'~!!>.<!_ __ _,!@eaca.eu;LB_e_'!_:1.!'!":<!~@eaca.eu1 Redacted @iabeurope.eu;; Redacted ;@wfanet.org]; 
t••·- - ·- ·- ·-•- •1 • !-·-·-·-·-·-····-·-·-·-·-·-•-·•-- ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-- ·-·-·-·-·-·-·.:.i~·-·-·-:-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- !·- --- -------------- -- -J -----. ---------------- -- ------ ,----"i·------------' 

l.~.!~~~!~j@ 1 a beurope . eu; l _____ -·--·-··-----·--.13~-<!~-~.~~--- ------..,....---·--------·--------_j® m1 crosoft.com l L ·-·-~-~-~~:_t~~---__j@globsec.org;:_~~~J§l avaaz.org; COP-
DIS I NFOR MA Tl O N@ec.eu ropa . eu; [ ___ ~~<!.':!':~e_d_~] @avaaz.org; i- !(§l I ogica II y. a i ;r-·-·-·-Red;~i;d·--·-·-i@newsguardtech.com r.=·.ii~i~!~~--=.J@vi meo. com; , ..... , ............... .. ,...... ...... ,-·--·-···-·-\ , .... , ........ , .. ... _ , .. , .................. , .. , ... ,. 
L Redacted 1@google.comi_R_o~~':t~~j@iabeurope.eu 

L •• - --·-------R°edacted ----- - -------~microsoft. com]; c:~:::::::.:::::~:::~~~a.~!~<:C:~:~:~:.:~:~:~:~J 
i Redacted i 

i Redacted L@!=!urprd06.prod.outlook.com]i"---R~;;~--.:;·;:j~~~J @bytedance.com;L~:~:~~~~~~~e..;L~:J@newsguardtech.com;!-·-·-·--R;dact~-d·---·-·1 
1._,_,_,_,~~<!~!?-~~-~-----J@eaca. e u J;[~-~.-:.~.~-~-~.R~~-~-~-i;.~=-~-~~~-~-~·=.~-~@ I ogical ly .ai]; COP- DIS IN FOR MATIO N@ec. e uropa .eu •-···-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-···-·-···-·-
[External] RE: text that has been drafted and closed so far for your information 
CoP Disinformation_ Preamble+Purposes_COM comments 14 Oct.docx 

Great thanks for sharing the draft of the Preamble and Purposes sect ions. We very much appreciate your work on it. 

Please find enclosed our comments. They point to issues that may need further clarification/precision/revision in order to align the draft with the Commission's 

expectations set out in the Guidance. 

When it comes to the Preambles sectio n, what we would l ike to highlight is the need to fully reflect the spirit of the Guidance e.g. regard ing the expectation that 

Signatories sign up to all commitments that are relevant for their services and that the sign-up forms also need to provide clarity about how the commitments 
re late to t he different services of a signat ory. We would also suggest to cons ider mentioning the link to the DSA when it comes to VLOPs as well as the 

broadened scope and participation in the new Code. When it comes to the Purposes section, as you wil l see we would suggest t o reconsider it overall. A more 

general and up-to date formulation that points to the main areas of the Code/Guidance may be more beneficial. Please see enclosed our detailed comments 

related to the enti re draft. 

We would be happy to further explain or discuss these issues with you. 

, __ Kind _regards, 

! Redacted i 
~ ....................... ,. ,_ 
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From:L .......... R.~~~_c..t~.~··········.J®doteurope.eu> 
Sent: Friday, October 8, 202111:59 AM 
To:r············Reci"acted···············i@google.com>;[:::::]~~3-it~~:::::J@gl9.b._~~f!.C?..rni.L~:i~i~ifl@.n..~wsguardtech.comf··Redacteci"···1@newsguardtech.com; 

L~~i;:~j~J~i~?.f??.~.t:·~~~-~~~~~g; i~:.:~:~:~:~:1i~~~•~I.:::::.: :~J@.~?!~.~~~P!::~.~::~L'''"'"'';·- ·-~~~.~<:!~~··· ·····;~:::: )~.~.?.!~.~r.~P..e.:~.~~J:'.:":":":":":'~:~~~~{~t:~:~:~·~:J ..................... . 
j Redacted i@fb.com>j_~~~!1~!~~J@fb.com;1 Redacted @mozilla.com>;L ........... ~.e.d..<!~t~.d ..... , ...... .l@microsoft.com>;L .... ~~.~~~!~~·····_J 
••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• {••••••• •••••••••••••••••••••• •••••••I,;;;;;;;;;;;;;;-.; ... • - •-•-•-•-•-•••- •- •-•-•-•-•-•-•- •,••••••• •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• ••••••, r•••-•••••••- •-•-•-•-•-•••-•-•••-•-•••••••-• - • - •-

r••R~•d;;ct;d••"@microsoft,com>;! Redacted !@twitter.com>;i Redacted !@twitter.com>;! Redacted @google.com>; 

'f :t~1~i1r:::,:~;~;::~~,L'.::i~~~~~~'.~:•:!~;iiiii~~i1~:!';~j~~i~i!tt:tt:~;1~;~I':f9~~-~~•~~·:t:::? ... , 
L .. ~_1!.d.<!~t_l!.d ... J@wfanet.org>;i Redacted@iabeurope.eu;i Redacted i@microsoft.com>; L. .. ~~~.~.<:=!~~ .. .J@globsec.org; 
F.~~~;;-~l@avaaz.org; COP DISIN°FORMATION <COP-DISINFORMATION@ec.europa.eu>r ::::~~~~£}.~f::]@avaaz.org;[- @logically.ai; 
:-•···· ·Re.cia.cteci"· ·····@newsgua rdtech .com r··Rec:i'acted···@vi meo .com; L..~~~.<!.~!~~ .. .1@goog le .com; r;~~~;;~!@i a be~r~pe .e u ;[' ••••••• ····Re.dacte·ci" ••••• ········i 
,., __________________ , ( • ••• , ••••••••••••••••••• ,.,1 L •............ - L .....................................................• 
L.. .... ~~~!lE!~<.! ......... :@ec.europa.eu> 

. Cc:[.~~.~~.~~.~~~~~ Red ac led ~~~.~~~~~~J® m i er oso ft . com> L ..... _ . .... . ... ~.e.d._<!_~t_!!.d_·-·• · ... . ...... ) ... . _ ...... . . -·· ......... .............. ......................... _ .................. . 
i Redacted i 

IL •• • - • - • - •-•-•- •- . - • - • - •-, - •-•-•1- • - • - •-• - •- • - ·-• - •••-. - •- •-• - • -•-•-•-. - •- • - • - •-. - ••• - •-•-•- • - ••••• I ' - . -•-.•.• . -•••-•., - . • · - • - • - "I • • •••••• •• • • ••• - •••• , - ••••• - •• ••••• - • •• ••• - .•.•.•.• .•.•.• . - .•.•.•.•. , •• •• • • ••• - ••••••••••••••• - ••••• - •••• • • • - • - ••• - , 1 • ............ . - . . .. .... , . ........... - ·•·- •• •••••••••• • - • - •-• • 

L .. . '3~~.~~!~~._J@eurprd06.prod.out look.com>;L .. ~~~!1~~!? ... J@bytedance.comt ..... f!E!<!~c.1!.~ .... i@newsguardtech.com;a Redacted , 
r····-·Ridaciect" •••• "j@eaca.eu>; c.·.·.:.::·.·:·.T~~cii~£.f~f :.·.:.·:·.::·.]gi logica I ly. ai> , ....................................... .. 

Subject: text t hat has been drafted and closed so far for your information 

Dearl Redacted ! 

Attached please find the revised Preamble and Purposes sections of the code that we have closed off for now for your information as promised. 

We are still working on the integrity of services issue at the moment and will move on to user empowerment as of next week. We w ill also shortly be 
sending you an invitation to take part as an observer to the drafting group on user empowerment next Friday as mentioned. 

Best regards 

. ----·-·-·-·-·-·--, ' • 

[.Redacted : 

DOT. 
europe 

I t • 'I" 

l.. .............. R!~acted ········-······i 
Rue. du Trone 60, 1050. Brussels, .Bel_gJum ................. . 
Tel: L ...... Redacted ... .. ! I Mob:L. ..... Redacted ........ .! 
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www.doteurope.eu 

DOT Europe was formerly known as EDiMA 
Transparency Register: 53905947933-43 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 

COP-DISINFORMATION@ec.europa.eu [COP-DISINFORMATION@ec.europa.eu] 
10/22/2021 3:14:14 PM 
L~~<!a_~!~l@aacc.fr'; [~kreakom.dk'; [B.i~i~!~~:J@tiktok.com'; r;:J@krea kom. dk'; L~~~~Ei;_d~@microsoft .com '; 

.1:~::~~iiiiij~~==~~~-~vml .co~.~l}{~~j~ii.~J@wtane_~or~)C:::::.:·:.'.::::.:.~~~~:ijii~iii4::.~~.=~·=='.::::,:·.~J 
L Redacted]@microsoft.com]; L~~!!!!~J~~.J@fb.com'; ! Redacted ;@aka.cz') Redacted ~fb.com'; 
C~Rj~i~i~I·:.J@aacc.fr' r:::8i~~si~~::J @iabeurop~~iiui;t.J:~.~.~.r;!:~q.J@google'.com-';L . ..R.e~~.~!E.J @eaca. eu ·; ,-·-·- -·--·-·-·--, 1---·-·-·-·---·, r ·-·-·-·-·-·-· ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· 
i Redacted i@mozilla.com' ·; Redacted !@google.com'·! Redacte<1,@mozi lla.com'· 'Redac1ed!@doteurope.eu1• 
!-------r·-··---' .---t.lr----~--- .. .:.~.-~,----- -----• ·•-·-·-·-·.:..J....-r -·-·-·-J -----~ ' 
: Redaeted i@doteurop e.eu';i_~e_<l_•~.!".d_:@twitter.com'; •--;@kreakom.dk';: Redacted i@iabeurope.eu ';a-@logi cal ly .ai; 
~:::: :=:=.-=-'---------. 1••••• - - • • •••••••• ••••-• • ••• '•• - • • 1 r -•••• •• •• •• •••J....,""n.1rv,w,vi••' r -- ------1:,:::::: ... . _, 
: Redacted J@twitch.tv; Redacted @doubleverify.com;L. .... R~!:l.<!£t~,!:1 .... .J@globsec.org;i_~!.~.~!:t!'.<.!J@logically.ai; .......... ·-............. '-·-·-,-·--,-.-··-·-·-·-·-·· i---·-·-·-·-·------·-·· .--------·--
! Redact .. d t@vimeo.com;[•""'"@alphaexplorationco.com;, Redacted ;@vosteurope.org; ["'""'""i@support.avaaz.org; 
!;;T@;~-;;;.org; [ ~~~~~~~~~i~j;i~t=~J@g lob sec .org£;;~1@w i;-;;i~·~g~t~:~·~ c:~~~:~~!!~ :::r@a;;;;;:~rg; 
c········· .. -;;;;~·~i.;;,···-······-@newsguardtech.com 

,t~:~~i~~i;r=:.:;~:~:~: ,~:~[::~;~~~~~;;;;1:~~:~:~::j;[~~~~=;~~:[~~:~~:•cted ! 

L ... R..~.~.'.'.<::!.! .':! ... J@ec.europa.eu]L.-··············-·······~~f:.l.~~!~~ ....................... _ ... ..i@ec.europa.eu];L ........ ~~~.~.':t_~.c;t ....... .J 
L._ .... ~~~~.':!e.d ...... .J@ec. europa .eu) 
[External] FW: Maldita.es CoP expression of interest 

Dear Signatories, 

Please see below Maldita's expression of interest to join the Code. 

Their expression of interest, l ike previous ones, - including t h eir suggested commitments · can serve as information on 
how to involve them in the process ahead, in particular in t he issues groups. 

Unless there are concerns in this regard, w e would invite Maldita, along w ith two other new prospective signatori es to 

t he Assembly to in tegrate t hem into t he process. 

We will soon ci rculate the draft agenda of the Assembly. As discussed on Tuesday, we would suggest to use the 

Assembly to work on the planning of t he work ahead. The meeting wi ll be opened by the welcoming remarks of 

L_ __ Redacted __ J member of the Breton Cabinet. 

The meeting will take place in Berlaymont , and we encourage you to j oin in person if you have the possibi lity, in 

part icular if you are based in Brussel s. Remote participation wi ll also be possible. We w ill be in touch soon w ith further 

detai ls. 

Kind regards, 

l Redacted7 and the Team 

From:L,··················· ···-······-·· Redacted ............. ·······-·······..@mal dita. es> 
Sent: Friday, October 22, 202112:30 PM 

,"fQ_:_<;,:Ql:' .. !?.J?.!.t::J,FORMATION<COP-DISINFORMATION@ec.europa.eu>;L .. _ ....... ~.e..<!~~t~!!... ........ J 
i Redacted i@maldita.es> 
L - - •- ·· · - ·-·- · - ·--· - · - • - · • •• 4 

Subject: Maldita.es CoP expression of interest 

Dear Team, 

This is! Redacted iat the 
l ... ,,. •- • •• •• •-- • • • .., ...... _ • • • ,.._ • .., .,..,..,.. • •••--•• • • • ,...,.. • •--•-•••• • • •••• • • - ,.., • • • • •,. •••••• •• •• • • •• • ....... .... _.,. • ., ••• '"' •••••• •---• • ••• • •••••• • • • ..... ., •• ,..,. • ••• ,.. _,... ,.. • •••--•• •'" • • - • • • •••••••••,I 

Spanish Fact-checker Maldita.es. In the name of the organization I represent, please take this emai l as 
our formal expression of interest to participate in drafting and signing the oew Code of Practice on 
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Disinformation. You can find the required information below. 

Best regards, 

,-----------··-·-----·-------·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- ·-·---·-·-·-•-·•-·-·-·-· -·-·-·-"-·-·-·-·-·-----·-·-·-----·-·-·-··---·-·-------. 
' ' . . 

Redacted 
Fundacion Maldita.es contra la desinformacion: periodismo, educacion investigacion y datos en nuevos 
formatos 

BRIEF BACKGROUND: 

Maldita.es is an independ nt journalistic platform focused on the control of disinformation and public 
discourse through fact-checking and data journalism techniques. We ar a non profit organization and an 
International Fact-checking Network (IFCN) signatory. We were par1 of the Commission's High Level 
Expert Group on Disinformation back in 2018. 

Our services are based on our three main objectives: 

• Monitor and control political discourse and promote transpar ncy in public and private 
institutions. 

• Verify and fight against misinformation. 
• Promote media literacy and t chnological tools in order to creat an a war community that can 

defend itself from disinformation and lies in all areas . 

Our watchword is "journalism to not be fooled" because through fact -checking and verification 
techniques, data journalism, archive research, technological tools and education we create content that 
enables citizens to have a greater reassurance about what is real and what is not in order to build 
informed opinions and decisions. We've developed innovative formats especially focused on social 
media and the creation of a community committed to the project that collaborates with us. 

HOW THOSE SERVICES ARE RELEV A.t"JT TO THE CODE: 

As a fact-checking and data journalism media outlet, our services are relevant to the Code since we are 
"provid rs of online s rvices that participate in the diss mination of content to the public", but v n 
more because all our activities ( editorial, educational, technological...) are focused on fighting 
disinfo1mation and misinformation. 

DESCRIPTION OF COMMITMENTS: 

A COMMITMENT TO NONPARTISA SHIP AND FAIRNESS. Using th same standards for every 
fact check and not concentrating on any one side. o affiliation nor declared support for any party, any 
politician or political candidate. 

A COMMITMENT TO TRANSPARENCY OF SOURCES: Providing all sources in our fact-checks 
and not using unnamed sources, identifying the relevant interests of the sources where the reader might 
reasonably conclude those interests could influence the accuracy of the evidence provided 

A COMMITMENT TO TRANSPARENCY OF FUNDING & ORGANIZATION 
Proactive transparency, using the website to detail each source of funding accounting for 5% or more of 
total revenue. Transparency in organizational structure and concrete responsibilities for editorial control, 
including the professional biography of all those who play a significant part in exercising it. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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A COMMITMENT TO TRANSPARENCY OF METHODOLOGY 
A clear and accessible explanation of the methodology used to select, research, write and publish its fact 
checks. Encouraging users to send in claims to check, while making it clear what readers can 
legitimately expect will be fact-checked and what isn't fact-checkable. 

A COMMITMENT TO OPEN AND HONEST CORRECTIONS 
A correction policy that is easily visible and accessible on the organization's website that 
ensures corrections are made openly and transparently, seeking as far as possible to ensure that users of 
the original see the correction and the corrected version. 

DECLARATION OF GOOD FAITH: 

We engage in this process in good faith and with the idea of subscribing the commitments of the new 
Code that are relevant to the services we offer. 

Maldita.es - Periodismo para que no te la cuelen 
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From: [___ _____________ Redacted ____ _________ _j@ec.europa.eu] 
Sent: 11/5/20211:24:11 PM 
To: L_ __ __________ Redacted _________________ i@tiktok.com] 
Subject: RE: RE: [External] quick question on covid vaccines for children 

Dear! Redacted ] 
'-·-·-·-·-···-·-·-·J' 

this is fantastic, thanks a Lotl 

l Redacted• 

From: L_·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·Redacted ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- -·-· 1@tiktok.com> 
Sent:_Friday, _November 5, 2O2_112:47_PM __ . 
To:L. ............................ Redacted ............................ J@ec.europa.eu> i-------------- Redacted _____ ----- ---- --1@tiktok.com> 

Subject: Re: RE: (External] quick question on covid vaccines for children 

Circling back again, i Redacted_i- so, we haven't issued a press release or anything similar re. Co vi di children 
but our efforts to combat misinformation on platfo1m continue as before. Just as we stongly enforce our 
policies towards vaccine and coronavirus misinformation, we will take the same approach for content 
whjch levels false claims about tbe vacci.nes/coronavirus aimed at ch.ildren. 
Also, as a proactive step, we continue to link users to authoritative information via the in app 
CovidN accines r source centre. 
More generally, we note that the EU seems to sti II be developing its specific policy around 
vaccines/children whereas the US has been more specific? 
Hope that helps! 
Best regards 

1•·- •- . •m,e· . · - · ·•• 

L. Redacted ... ! 

., ~·-···············-············1 
, 1 Redacted :@tiktok.com 

•-·-·-·----·-·-·-·-
,. r 

Seems to be, yes. It is not an easy process but everyone around the table wants to make it a success. 
Let me check with the T&S team on this, to see ifwe are doing anything in particular. I will let you 
know. 
Than.ks 
: Redacted i 
'-·-·-·-·-· .. ·-·-·-·-· • 

lJn I n. o . _ I_ I. 9:09 rote· 

Thanks[.RedactedJNo worries about yesterday, actually it seems that the process may be going in the 
right direction, what do you think? 

On my question below, it is more related to the latest news from FB in particular 
(https:/ /about. fb .com/news/2021 / l 0/su pporting-covid-19-vaccine-children/ ) • about updating their 
policies to include options to remove claims that argue that vaccin for covid does not exist for children, 
that vaccines are unsafe and so on and so forth. 

Thanks again for your help with this, very much appreciated! 
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,·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-, 
i Redacted ! 
t-·---·-·-·- --·- .i 

From:L ................... Redacted ...................... :@ti ktok. com> 
Sent: Thursday, November 4, 2021 7:19 PM 

·······-············· ····, 
To:L_. ____ ·------·--------- ----B-~c;!'!C..t~!I-.. . ;@ec.europa.eu> 
Subject: Re: [External] quick question on covid vaccines for children 

I got most of the discussion but something urgent came up at the same time 
unfortunately. Sounds like we have a plan in any case. 

We have pretty robust policies against covid misinformation in general (including 
medical misinformation) so chances are that anything like this would be caught under 
our general policy. What sort of measures were you thinking about though - removal 
type action or media literacy campaigns? 

Thanks 

r·-·-·--------·-·-·-·1 
[ Redacted j 

n 1 hu. o 4. 2 2 I 7:0 P !. ....... Redacted ..... .J@ec.europa.eu> wrote: 

Dean Redacted\ 

How are you? ice to sec you today at the meeting. I just have a quick question: I see that some 
platforms are putting in place some measures to fight disinformation about the covid 19 
vaccination campaign for children starting in the US. 

Would you have some heads up if tiktok is planning to do the same or has something already 
planned? I don't seem to be able to find something on your public announcements. 
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Thanks and have a great evening! 

L Redacted,: 

i Redacted I 
! ! 
L-- -- · --- -- --.,- -- -- - - ------ --- -- -- 1 

-European Commission 
DG Commun ications Networks, Content and Technology 
Unit 14- Media convergence and Social Media 
BU25 05/061 
B-1049 Brussels/Belgium 

,------------------ ----·------- ---, 

l_ Redacted .!@ec.eu ropa.eu 

https:// digital-strategy .ec. europa.eu/ en/ po I icies/code-practice-di si nfonnation 
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From: 

Sent: 

CN ECT-COVID-MON ITORING-PROG RAMM E@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COVI D·MO N !TORIN G­
PROGRAMM E@ec.europa.eu] 

12/8/2021 4:38:58 PM 
To: i Redacted ]Think And Go B.V.B.A)f Redacted lmicrosoft .com]; 1··R;d;~,;d·-1fb.com; r···Redacted-·-:google.com; 

l-•-•- •-·-· - •••-··-·- •- · - •- •••-·-·- • L ,-•- ••·•· - •-· •••·-•-•• ·• "-·•·•·•·•·••••• ·• ·•·-

!- -·-Redactecf ··-·-1u ktok .com; [ Reciiictei(~witter .com; :·Re-eiacteii"1twitter .com 
CC: 

!'- - ·-·-·-----·-·---·- ·- ·-·-·-· ,./. -·----·-·-·-·- ·-·-·-·- ·-·-·- ·-·- •: ·-·- . 4', • , ,, ,, ,, , J--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·1 
L .............. ·-····· Redacted ....................... iPec.europa. eu lL. ............................ Redacted .............................. @ec.europa .eu) 

Subject: [External] Prolongation of the COVID•lO Monitoring Programme and next steps 

Dear Signatories, 

I am wrltin9 to follow up on the offlcia! announcement that t he Corn mission has declded 
to prolong tl1e COVID-19 monitoring programme Into 2022 
(https ://ec.europa.eu/commission/presscorner/ deta il/en/mex 21 6598 ) . This decls1on 
comes at yet another difficu!t moment, as the number of infections is on the rise 
everywhere in Europe, the Omicron va riant worries health authoritles wor!dwide1 and 
disinformation related to vaccines poses se rl ous threats to the vaccination efforts of 
Member States. 

We are extend ing the programme until June 2022, when we wnt reassess the situation to 
see if further prolongation is needed in view of the evolution of the pandemic. 

We thank you for the efforts done so far in providing detalied reports on the actions 
taken to reduce the spread of COVID-19 di slnfonnation online and helping vacclnation 
campaigns. 

we believe that this ls also a good rnoment to think about tt1e efficiency of this 
mon1to r1 ng programme and see what adjustments are needed, This comes at an 
appropriate moment, in v1ew of the pubHcati on of ERGA's report assessing the 
monitoring programme (https ://erga-on line,eu/ wp-content/uploads/2021/11/ERGA-­
RECOMMEND.ATIONS- 2021 1.1.pdf) and the ongolng discusslons related to the design of 
the rnonitoring framework of the strengthened Code of Practice on Disinformation. 

In order to make the reporting exercise more efficient, useful and insightfu l, we wou ld 
li ke to ask you to take action related to the below points, 

1. Structure of the reports and standardisation of formats 

/' r '"' !S"' '1O1r'lterl o•+ lt~ r· he f:·Rr:;A •·eoo ri- tha ,-''1,1a,•0 '1 nt1 St'"'• · - t , i ~p (l f t- h ::i i·nnorts m'.;'i k~s /"'\_.} 0 ~-l . .J ?·· .i : . 'l._ • . J ... J .t~: .. ~~, . :t . , -- ,::;f""'.,_ 1 .-•~ - 'I; it, l)i;;::~ ...,_j "li,_.i~.f ::-.1 .l,Jt .. _-,,,~, I ~,· , . .J"l : • • ,3 .... ~ ~:! ....... L~. ) . K.:a ' -•~-

then~ dlfficuit to read and dlge~~L Reporting sl10uki be standardised as far as: possibie to 
ensure ti1at r·e\evant infonnation is provided in a manner t!·1at facilitates rnonitoring. 

As a fir-st :,tep tu address t:his, we asked at: the beqlnnlnq of the year to lnc!ude an 
executive surnrnary e1t the beglnninq of the report, which facilitates the reading of the 
reports, in particular fer the pubilc 

Tt: 'would be ldea! lf siqnatories c:ou id sta rt to t:hlnk of additional cmtkms to standardise 
the reports, and propose a more coherent structure that al lows fo r better ove1--view and 
rnon itor111g of the action:~,< 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT _HJC _ 012536 
1291



For example, we would suggest including relevant rnetrlcs and data that measure each 
KPI in tables, easier to read, interpret and track along t ime. 

2. Quality of the reports/ relevance of the information provided 

The reports detail a wlde range of actions and campaigns related to the fight against 
dlslnformatlon put in place by signatories. However, this monitoring programme is 
focussed on actions to fight COVID-19 and COVID-·19 vaccines related disinformation 
only. 

Some reports include up to one third of actions related to other domains (like climate 
change, or general actions on disinformation). To make sure that the reports are more 
focussed and clear, we suggest providing information and data solely related to actions 
taken against COVID-19 and vaccination disinformation. 

3. Quality of the information reported 

Tl1e reports provide an overview of a number- of actions taken. However, they do not 
provide an assessment of the efficacy of the platforms' measures. For example, when 
the reports provide number of visits to the COVID-19's platforms pages/centres 
providing authorltatlve lnforrnation on the vlrus and vaccination, there is no assessment 
of this number ln relation to the labels/tags applied on pieces of content, or lnformation 
on time spent on tt1e page. 

The ERGA report suggests to work towards defining more meaningful KPis, In view of 
the discussions happening in the framework of the strengthenlng of the Code, we would 
suggest that signatories already start thinking about this issue and start providing 
meaningful KPis and data related to the effectiveness of the measures against COVID-19 
dislnformatlon and vaccination, 

4. Information related to advertising and monetisation 

The reports contain lnfonnation about ads removed or prevented from running for 
vioiatlng the platforms' pollcies regarding Covld-19. Yet, information on the context ls 
often lacking, including in which phase these ads were prevented/removed, how may 
were actually displayed etc Also, reports refer to action taken aga1nst URLs, whHe lt is 
not clear on what basis/ in which context this happened. 

Reports do not contain, however, information regarding actions taken to demonetise 
purveyors of Covld-19 and vaccines related disinformation, In view of tt1e importance of 
achieving resu!ts regarding the dernonetisation of disinformation, we would like to ask 
you to start provldlng data also related to thls, Relevant signatories should a!so take this 
opportunity to start testing metrics capable of measuring the amount of onnne ads 
displayed over pages or through channels identified as purveyors of COVID-19 related 
dis1nformatlon. 

5. Member State and language specific data 
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As stressed already various times and also pointed out ln ERGA's report as one of the 
major shortcomings of this monitoring exercise, the reports still lack Member State 
level/ language specif1c data. This means that the reports fail to give a clear 
understanding of the actlons' implementation and impact at language··specific and 
f•1err1ber State leveL 

It is in fact also not clear from the reports whetl1er a policy ls available globally, EU-wide 
or only in a single MS, let alone whether the information is provided in the local 
language. 
The ERGA report argues that less than 15% of actions reported clear!y refer to local 
actions. 

We would like to ask you to improve the reporting in this regard. As a minimum, reports 
should be clear where t!1e policies/actions are imp!ement:ed/availab!e, while we expect 
signatories to start providing Member State level data, We expect signatories to present 
solutions to address tills issue, 

6. Qualitative analysis of the information 1·eported 

The reports !lst actions and relevant data per month. Hov.Jever, they come often without 
any context/assessment regarding the metrics etc. Fluctuations in the numbers over 
time are presented without context or qualitative analysis, whlch !eaves room for 
arblt:rary interpretation, For example, when we read in the reports that between April 
and July the amount of content on which COVID-19 labels are applied decreases, but lt 
suddenly lncreases ln August and September, to decrease again in October, there is no 
possibility to evaluate the reasons. 

It would be ideal to be able to have in the reports a qualitative analysis from the 
platform of the evolution of the measures. 

Where relevant, slgnatories should provlde context and assessment of the actions taken, 
to allow for better understanding of the impact of the actions. 

I would ask you to take action regarding the above mentioned points and - to 
the extent possible - ah'eady implement improvements in the next set of 
reports. 

In addition, we wm set up a meeting to discuss these issues further and see how 
tl1ese could be progressively improved, f:-jlso in view of the upcoming monitoring 
framework. 

My secretariat will be in touch to schedule a rneeting at a mutually convenient time, 

Let met thank you again for your col!aborat1on. I am looking forward to discussing with 
you how we can bring tr1is forward, 

Regards, 
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i. Redacted j and t t1e team 

European Commission 
DG Communications Networks, Content and Technology 
Unit 14 - Media convergence and Socia l Media 
B-1049 Brussels/Belgium 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_012539 
1294



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Exhibit 60 

 

1295



From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 

Dear all, 

L-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- Redacted ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·~ec.europa. eu] 
1/27/2022 5:00:48 PM 
i Redacted lwgoogl e.com ]; r---Reciacieii···1@googl e. com; r···-·-Reii'acted·-·-·-·@fb.co m; 
'[~~~~~~-@fb~~-~;;·; ·f::.:~-~~~~i;·~·.::1@tiktok.comi::::.::_:::::.::_:jf;,~.~r:_ii!i·.:~:.:·.:·.:·.:·.:J@t~-itt~~~~~-~]';-[~;~~~i~J@twitter.com; 

;··Redacte<-i"1@m icrosoft. com; L Redacted r@microsoft.com 
r-"--------- -·-·---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·---·-·-· ·---·-·-·-·-·--'.... t···----·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·, ·-·-·-·-·-·-·---
l. ~F~!:l.~.i~.c:l ......... , ________________ J@ec.europa .eu ]; L .... ______ ------- ~~~i!<:1.!?E .............. ______ _J@ec.eu ropa . eu I ;LR~.!lil-~!!!!.l 
L.---~~~-~~!~~---·--@ec.eu ropa. eu] 
[External] Urgent meet ing on disinformation linked the situation in Ukraine 

just to give you an head up regarding a meeting that our directori__ ___________ Redacted _________ ___lwould like to have with you to 
discuss about disinformation linked to the situation in Ukraine. Tentatively we have set this meet ing tomorrow 
morning at 10:30 but we will confirm the exact timing by this evening. We hope that all your o rganisations will be 
represented at the meeting. A quick feedback regarding your participation would be very m uch appreciated. 

Best, 
L.. Redacted _ _j 
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New Code of Practice on Disinformation 

Minutes of the 4th General Assembly of the Signatories 

Date: 28 January 2022 - 15:00 - 18:30. 

• General comments from the Commission: 
The Commission Guidance needs to be completely implemented. For example, the 

requirement for pre-testing of the systems 'architecture mentioned in the Guidance is not 

reflected in t he integrity of services section. 

It is not expected that all signatories take the same level of commitments, which is also in line 

with the asymmetric philosophy of the DSA. 

The Chapter on integrity of services seems to be well-advanced, although KPls need further 

improvement. 

Regarding the Chapter on users empowerment, the Commission expect stronger measures to 

implement the commitments and more granular KPls for measuring the process achieved. 

It is highly recommended that ERGA is involved for the definition of KPls. 

Regarding the progress on the DSA, the Commission recalled that the European Parliament 

endorsed the DSA and trialogues are about to start on Monday 31/01. The Code of Conduct 

on disinformation is a mean for addressing systemic risks on online platforms. There is a clear 

call for a co-regulation approach for tackling disinformation. 

• General comments from the External Action Services: support DG CNECT's feedback 

and pointed that harmful content and manipulative behaviour need to be reflected across the 

code. External Action Services are pleased to be part of the Task Force. 

• ERGA feedback: 
Overall, the integrity of services section is very well-written with balanced commitment, 

commitments are firm, but flexibility is ensured. 

A better inclusion of the Taskforce could be sought throughout the code. 

ERGA recalled that a break down at the Member State level is very important for transparency 

of what is achieved. 

Overall, there should be further details related to the actions taken by the signatories and 

what has happened following the actions taken. 

On Al-related commitments (6.2), it is important to know how measures will be used in 

practice. 

What is currently missing is to have track record of everything that has been done by the 

signatories and to know how signatories achieved their commitments. 

• EDMO feedback: 
EDMO emphasised the importance to have sufficient and specific KPls with meaningful 

benchmarks. Temporal and geographical scope should also be clarified. 

• Additional comments on the integrity of services section: 
External Action Services supports DG CNECT and pointed that harmful content and 

manipulative behaviour need to be reflected across the code. External Action Services are 

pleased to be part of the Task Force. 
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- [__,Redacted _ _j highlighted the ongoing discussions on merging AMITT and SPICE frameworks, 

to be born in mind when drafting the integrity of services section. 

• Actions points: 

The Commission circulated detailed written comments on both sections. 

ERGA will join the Monday session of 31/01 to discuss the KPls refinement with the 

Signatories, and will share detailed notes on KPls. 
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From: 
Sent: 

CNECT-14-EVENTS@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-14-EVENTS@ec.europa.eu] 
2/7/2022 5:45:05 PM 

To: L,B,~~-~£t~_<,!J@google.com; L_~~~iiif~.~i~f.-_J@fb.com ;[~~.~.~i~~@fb.com; c -·-iie~aci.'ed- - -:@ti ktok. com; 
frt~d~~i~;@goog I e. com ri;i;;;·;~.~;j•@google.co m ]; ,R;;d-;;~·i~;i:]@twitte r .com ;Lii~iii~ii@tw i tter .com; 

t~!i;~!i-·-1@microsoft.'~;~;t ~~:::::::::::~!~~~~~:~:·~:~·~,::·~·~:·~google.com];Cfl~~i~l] @microsoft.com; [~~~~;;-j_~~]@fb.com; 
C~i~~~«i~~iJ@twitter.com;[jffiiifo~~J@twitter.com; L~.~~~!;~J@google.comL~~:·.~~~i!!~c::J§'ltiktok.com; 
r:::~:~~:~~~~::J@byteda nee. com; C~~i~1i~.~iC]@fb.com f.~!i.:ii.\~:@fb .com; L·~.ii.iii.ii~~.~@ mi crosoft.com; 
L.~~~~.~!~.~ .. J@fb.com; c:::::: ::::::::::::::::::~;;;[.:c.~~~c: :::::::::::::::::::::@ec. europa.eul; r_=_::_:-~~cf:i:~1~:::_J 
:~::::::::B;,:~;;:~:;;c::::::::@ec. europa .eu J; r·········-···············-···R;d;~·t~·d·············- ····--·········1@ec. europa. e u J;C::::::~;,i;ii;i::::::J 
L_ __ _ R.;~•c.t~_d ____ @ec.europa.eu]; i R~!!".<;.•~!! __________ . _______ --·-·--·---j@ec.eu ropa .eu]; 

c=::::::~~i!~~~~~L:::::~eeas .europa .eu; L ___ ---~_e_d_c1_<;_t!1~---- __ ]}eea s .e u ropa. eu r--~- -:_:;;~;;-;~i,.;,- .-::·-~-:.:)@eeas.europa .e u; 
r-····· ···R;·,i;;"c;i.-;;d········1@eeas.europa.euL·:.·:.3f~j!!£t;.iC:.·:.: .'@eeas.europa .eu 

Subject: FW: Webex meeti ng scheduled: Disinformation Linked to the Situat ion in Ukraine 

Attachments: Webex_Meeting. ics 

Location: https:/ /ecconf.webex.com/ 

Start: 2/14/2022 4:00:00 PM 
End: 2/14/2022 5:00:00 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Dear All, 

As agreed, we are inviting you to a follow-up call with DG Connect and the European External Action Service on Monday, 
14 February, at 17:00-18:00 CET to discuss disinformation in relation to the situation in Ukraine. Please distribute the 

invitation to the appropriate persons on your respective teams. 

We are very grateful for your continued participation and look forward to speaking with you. 

Kind regards, 

Secretariat, DG Connect 14 

When it's time, start your Webex meeting here. 

Monday, February 14 2022 

5:00 PM I (UTC+01:00) Brussels, Copenhagen, Madrid , Paris 11 hr 

Start meeting 
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More ways to join: 

Join from the meeting link 

https://ecconf. webex. com 

Join by meeting number 

Meeting number (access code): 

Meeting password: - from phones) 

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only) 

Luxembourg Toll 

Some mobile devices may ask attendees to enter a numeric password. 

Join by phone 

~ Belgium Toll 

.._ Luxembourg Toll 

Global call-in numbers 

Join from a video system or application 

Dial @ecconf.webex.com 

You can also dial - and enter your meeting number. 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CNECT-14-EVENTS@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-14-EVENTS@ec.europa.eu] 
2/16/2022 11:34:10 AM 

JR~d;~-;;;;-]@google. com' [~_e_~iii~~-~google.com]L.~.~B~~f.t~.~-~.]@google.com;L:~~~~-~~;i'i~i~~~~-~-~fb.com; 
! Redacted i@fb.com; r-·-R~-d-~-~~;_:(·7@tiktok.com;[i,;;j-;,-~i;;j:@twitter,com;1R;;;;~;~-~twitter.com; 
'-C~~~d{C!~i~::@micro~oft:co-mT==~-~=:~:~i~.~~:f ~f :~c~c~c~c:~}§> google. com lL~~~£f;~]@mi crosoft. com[~i~i~idJ>fb. com; 

r-R;;i;~t~i@twitter .comr--iiid-;;~,;;r;@twitter.com {R;.ii~i-~d-1@googl e .com r-·-·--Reciaci;ci- - -- -rcvti ktok. com; 
I.. · - . - · - · - · - · - -·- · " .. . -· - • - ' - · - · - ' - • - • - ·- . - • ' __ , ___ o\ ___ • ---·-• -·-·-·-·-·-·--. _____ J::·='-·-·--· -·-·-·-· -----·-. -·-·-----·-·-·- -.-.: 
[j~~~~~i~:~~)@byteda nee. co mL~~~~~~s~~~:~~:@fb.com;l~;;~:;:,}@fb. com; l---·-·--·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·- --·,·13~g~fJ~.~---·-·--·-·--·-·-·-·-~--·-·-·_i 

:-:R;i;;;;;i·~microsof~:~.<?!1:'11'::.-=.--fi.;;j;;~,·;d~'l@_f?.,~.<?!Il~[:=:~:~:=~-!.~.~it~:~:=~:~J@byted_~~~~;.~?.!!._l.;_~·:.:::~~=~~-~'!-~::.:)@google.com; 
i Redacted k§)fb.com· ! Redacted 1@ec.europa.eu] ·i Redacted i 
~ :::: : : : : : : : : : : : • - • - • - • - - • - •-• - - ~ -~- • - · • • - •--• - • - •-•-• - • - • - • - • - • - • - • - 1• - • - •- • - • - • - •- • - •- •- • - •-- •- • • - • ' I / L • • •••• •••- •-•• •• •- •••••••• ••••; • •j 

i R<!d:act"d j@ec.europa .euh Redacte-d :@eeas.europa.eu Redacted j@eeas.europa.eu; 
f.'~~-~~~~iEfo°i{~:_j@eeas. europa .eu; C~~~:~j~~'.~~\'..;t'.'.'.'.'.'.:'.f@~;as.e uropa .eu; [--J~d~~~~'"':~1@~-;;; europa .eu 

Subject: FW: Webex meeting scheduled: Disinformation Linked to the Situation in Ukraine 
Attachments : Webex_Meeting. ics 
Location: https://ecconf.webex.com 

Start: 2/21/2022 4:00:00 PM 
End: 2/21/2022 5:00:00 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Dear All, 

We are inviting you to a follow-up call with DG Connect and the European External Action Service on Monday, 
21 February, at 17:00 -18:00 CET to discuss disinformation in relation to the situation in Ukraine. Please 
distribute the invitation to the appropriate persons on your respective teams. 

We are very grateful for your continued participation and look forward to speaking with you . 

Kind regards, 

Secretariat, DG Connect 14 

When it's time, start your Webex meeting here. 

Monday, February 21, 2022 

5:00 PM I (UTC+01 :00) Brussels, Copenhagen, Madrid , Paris 11 hr 

Start meeting 
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More ways to join: 

Join from the meeting link 

https://ecconf. webex. com 

Join by meeting number 

Meeting number (access code): 

Meeting password: - ~ rom phones) 

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only) 

Luxembourg Toll 

Some mobile devices may ask attendees to enter a numeric password. 

Join by phone 

~ elgiumToll 

.._ Luxembourg Toll 

Global call-in numbers 

Join from a video system or application 

Dial @ecconf.webex.com 

You can also dial - and enter your meeting number. 
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- Ref. Ares(2022)1564922 - 03/03/2022 

VERA JOUROVA 

VICE- PRESIDENT 

VALUES AND TRANSPARENCY 

Dear Mr Shou Zi Chew, 

European 
Commission 

THIERRY BRETON 

MEMBER OF THE EUROPEAN (OM MISSION 

INTERNAL MARKET 

Brussels 
CA.16/TB 

Shou Zi Chew 
CEO of TikTok 
By email!Redacted(d),tiktok.com 

i---·- ·-·-·-j 

As the war at our doorstep rages on and Ukrainians fight bravely for their country, the 
European Union is stepping up its support for Ukraine and the sanctions against the 
aggressor - Putin's Russia. Protecting Europe's infonnational space against toxic and 
harmful disinformation by the Kremlin's propaganda machine is a key component of 
these efforts. 

We understand that you have already taken certain measures to counter the dissemination 
of disinformation related to the crisis by Russian state-affiliated media outlets and by 
other actors, such as demonetising, de-amplifying or labelling state-affiliated channels. 
We commend your efforts in this regard. 

The current context calls for more than business as usual. We are way beyond the 
discussion on disinformation: we are addressing a propaganda machine that can be lethal 
in the context of this war. Exceptional times demand exceptional steps. 

By amending Regulation 833/2014, the EU has just adopted a new sanction, prohibiting 
the broadcasting or distribution of any content by the Kremlin's propaganda instruments 
RT and Sputnik within our territory. The objective is to block access by RT and Sputnik 
into the European Union regardless of their distribution channels. The sanction covers 
h·ansmission or distribution by any means such as cable, satellite, IPTV, Internet service 
providers, Internet video sharing platforms or applications. lt also envisages that any 
licences, authorisations and distribution arrangements, regarding the content of these 
propaganda outlets, have to be suspended. 

Commission curopeenne/Europcse Commissie, 1049 Brnxelles/Bmsscl, BELGIQUE/BELG IE - Tel. L.. Redacted ...l 
Office: BERL 10/222 - Tel. direct line L .. R.e<l~,;ted __ j 
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We count on you to talce swift action to implement the above Regulation in its entirety, 
including any content produced, distributed or otherwise enabled by these actors 
regardless of the distribution fonn, channel or source. We urge you to take all necessary 

measures to implement this sanction swiftly, fully and efficiently, avoiding any loopholes 
for the di semi nation of such content. 

Beyond the specific implementation of EU sanctions against RT and Sputnik, this is the 

moment to exert your upmost diligence not only in applying all elements of the Code of 

Practice on Disinformation but also to start showing how the concrete commitments 

discussed in the conlellt of it revision can be operationalised rapidly. 

Proactive steps to provide all your users with trustworthy real-time information on what 

you are observing on your systems, sharing relevant data as well as cooperating with 

networks of pecialised researchers will be of immense help. 

Moreover, unti l now your terms of service have not considered the possibility of your 

systems being used as means of war propaganda. Given the circumstances we urge you to 

consider adapting your policies to the changed situation, in anticipation of the risk-based 

approach which is at the core of the upcoming Digital Services Act. 

We count on your active engagement to support democracy all over the world. 

Yours sincerely, 
----~---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· 1 

Redacted 
• ·-·-·--·-·-·-·-•-<••-·-·-"-·-·-· 

Vera Jourova 
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Redacted 
r- ·- ·- :=:: : . . :: :: :: :=1=:- : .::::: .. :r:·--:::: .... ·••L ............ ,,. ........ - ....... ,.. ....... .. 
! Redacted f fhi cll' Breton .. .... ....... ................. ,- ............... ,-

Redacted 
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From: L~~~~=~~~-~~:~~~:~:~= Redacted ·~~~~~~~~~~:~~~~~=~~~-~ i ktok. com] 
Sent: 3/7/2022 4:03:12 PM 

To: L·--···-·-···-·-·-·-·-· Redacted·-···-·-·····-·- ·· ·- ~ec. europa. eu ];L, __ ···-·-·-···-·-··· Redacted -·- ···-·-·-···--.. J§)tiktok. com] 
Subject: Ukraine - TikTok report #2 
Attachments: Second TikTok report to European Commission_Ukraine_Russia Disinformation -2.pdf 

Deari Redacted i 
--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·. 

Please find attached Ti.kTok's report. 

Kind regards 

[ Redacted ! 
L _ _______ ______________ _ I 

On Tbu, !vl.ar 3, 2022, ~ ;JO A rvl L ...... _,_.Redacted_·-·-·-·-·J yec.europa.eu> VrTGte; 

Dear Signatories, 

I am sending you the below email on behalf ofl_,_·-·····-·Redacted ___ . ___ _..] to follow up on yesterday afternoon's 
meeting. 

Dear Signatories, 

Further to yesterday meeting, I would like to get a better understanding of the measures you are taking to 
implement the sanctions togethet· ,,ith data illustrating their impact. 

As indicated in the letter of L._·-···-··-·-~~.<!~£.t~_<! ......... -..Jto your CEOs, beyond the specific implementation of EU 
sanctions against RT and Sputnik, we also urge you to take further measures to stop the dissemination of 
disinformation related to the war in application of the Code of Practice. 

Here is the list of measures and related KPis which l would ask you to cover in your reports to the Commission. 

1. ensure a more consistent labelling, demotion or removal of debunked information or deceptive 
manipulated material, and where appropriate adapting terms of services to the exceptional 
situation. 

~ KPI: number of labels applied, number of demoted/removed conteot items, number of pieces of 
content fact-checked, information on updates made to their terms of service, to the extent possible we 
would appreciate to have also information related to the impact of such measures. 
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2. extend the geographical and language coverage of fact-checking activities through the 
cooperation with independent fact-checkers to debunk and label disinformation 

----► KPI: number of fact-checking organisations you are cooperating with, number of countries and 
languages covered from the EU and Ukraine/Russia. 

3. Ensur a more prompt and consistent closure of accounts that are persistently disseminating 
Russian propaganda and/or disinformation 

----► KPI: number of closed/suspended accounts/users and the number of views and engagements 
related to content shared by these before their removal 

4. Adapt vour recommender systems in particular to promote authoritative sources, to de­
amplify disinformation content that has been debunked and pages/groups/accounts which 
repeatedly share false information. 

----► KPI: information on relevant updates of their recommender system, numbers of promoted 
authoritative sources and of views and engagement with such sources. 

s. Put in p1ace measures to provide users with authoritative sources and reliable information 

----► KPI: measures taken to share such information, views and engagement with such information 

6. Reduce monetization/advertising opportunities for malicious actors and for users which may 
not seek to manipulate public debate but attempt to monetise on the back of a conflict (including to 
solicit funds and "false" donations). 

----► KPI: number of concerned accounts/users/channels ( depending on the service) demonetised and a 
num rical estimation ofth impact of th d monetisation efforts. 

7. make sufficient local language content moderation resources available 

----► KPI: number of staff per language concerned. 

8. make available to researchers relevant information and datasets to accurately detect and assess 
disinformation trends related to the crisis. This includes real time information (like the one provided 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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by CrowdTangle) on pages/content views and engagement. In view of the exceptional 
circumstances, selected researchers, should have access to relevant and complete datasets 
related to problematic content and coordinated malicious activities quickly after platforms have 
acted upon this. We suggest to collaborate on this with EDMO to facilitate swift access to 
relevant data to researchers at these exceptional times. 

--+ KPJ: Number of investigations done by selected researchers using data provided by platforms 

Points 1, 3, 4 and 6 are particularly important. 1 would appreciate receiving the next reports ahead of our meeting 
on Monday 7 March. 

Finally I would like to confirm that the Regulation requires the operators of search engines to delist RT and 
Sputnik. This would be covered by "lt shall be prohibited for operators .... to enable, facilitate or otherwise 
contribute to broadcast any content . .. " 

Thanks very much for your efforts and cooperation. 

Kind regards, 

! Redacted i 
t. -.. - -- -- · - ··- -- --. - . - -- -- ··- --. - .• 
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From: 
Sent: 

CNECT-14--EVENTS@ec.europa.eu (CNECT-!4-EVENTS@ec.europa.eu] 
3/10/2022 5:01:28 PM 

To: l. ........ ~~~!'~.!e.~-·-····.i®eeas.europa.eu; c ::::::::~i~~£!i.(: :::::Jeeas.europa.eu; c :~·.:::~i~!iii~.=~::·Jeeas.europa.eu; 
[ =~Jfo.~.a.~.t.~~::::Jeea s.eu ropa. eu; C".~:=:=:~~~~i!S:i!.f :=:=]eeas.europa.e u; [~~i~..i!fiesL]fb .com; [Jl~~i~l~~C]fb .com; 
C~J~~~fiisLJfb. com i c~~~jfifa~_ii~C:~Jfb.com i L:~~jf~i~iii~LJfb. com; [~i.iiiiii1]fb. com; c~~~~Aii!i~i~~L:~~Jtiktok. com i 

Subject: 

f.':.:.':.:.·:~i~.i.{!!L ....... Jbyteda nee .com; [ ~·.~.~~·.~~~~iii~iL~.=.~··=·~i ktok.com; C".~:~:=·.~.!.~.~~i~~·.==:Jbyteda nee .com; 
[::~~~;;;~:~Jgoogl e. com; [~~i~l~:~Jgoogl e .com; r::::}fi~~i}~iL:Jgoogle.com; c:::~~~~~!~C:jgoogle. com; 
r······Rectii'cieci···-·google.com; 1°Re<iacieci1microsoft.conn;f Redacted 1 1.-•-•-·-. -·-· - -·-•-•-•-·•• - • ••-• -•-•-·-·-•--' L•-•- •- •• • • •• •• • • •••• •• • - • •• • • ••·• · • ••· •·• •• · - • •• ·••• •• •• •-• - - • ••• •• •• •• •• •• •• • • • • 

Lif!i~~~~Jmicrosoft.com]; [.)~~~ii'iii'.Jmicrosoft.com; C~~~~i~~Jtwitter.com; L~!~i~~~i) witter.com; 
[~~:~i~?.~.ti!~~~~'.Jtwitter.com; c=:i3~ii:.1iCJtwitter.com 

FW: Webex meeting invitation: Disinformation Linked to the Situation in Ukraine 
Attachments: Webex_meeting. ics 
Location: https://ecconf.webex.com 

Start: 3/14/2022 4:00:00 PM 
End: 3/14/2022 5:00:00 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Dear All, 

As agreed, we are inviting you to a follow-up call with DG Connect and the European External Action Service on 
Monday, 14 March at 17:00-18:00 CET to discuss disinformation in relation to the situation in Ukraine. Please 
distribute the invitation to the appropriate persons on your respective teams. 
We are very grateful for your continued participation and look forward to speaking with you. 

Kind regards, 

Secretariat, DG Conned 14 

0G CONNECT CNECT.1.4 is inviting you to a scheduled Webex meeting. 

Monday, Mard·1 14, 2022 

5:00 PM I (UTC-1·01:00) Brussels, Copenhagen, Madrid, Paris 11 hr 

More ways to join: 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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Join from the meeting link 

https: / / ecconf. webex. corn 

Join by meeting number 

Meeting nurnber (access code): 

Meeting password: - - from phones) 

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only) 

Luxembourg Toll 

Some mobile devices may ask attendees to enter a numeric password. 

Join by phone 

~ Belgium Toll 

~ Luxembourg Toll 

Global call-in numbers 

Join from a video system or application 

Dial @ecconf.webex.com 

You can also dial - and enter your meeting number. 

Need help? Go to https://help.webex.com 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

cc: 

Subject: 

[ ______________ ___ Redacted ______________ i@ec.europa.eu) 
3/30/2022 10:11:42 AM 

r~~i~i~~J@microsoft.com{R~dac'i;;d~google.comr-·-·Redacied ____ @google.com; r-·-···-R.eda'c:"teci""'-·-·~tiktok.com; 
., . ,..._ ,.,.._.,_ ·- • - ' - • • ·-•-·- • 1 l _ ___ - • -· - , ... . fl •i•1•1 £, - •-•-, ... ,_ •-•-•- •- •• • - •• '-,,.. .,. ......... ' ,. .... , ,. ·•. -•-•- · .-•-•• •• ·-• - •••-•-, !::.:,-.:.":~- •-•-••' • •• , ... '-•••-•• ••· 

L_ ___ ~!l~!'~.!~~----:@bytedance.com; l Redacted @bytedance.com; L-----~-~~--,!~ ____ j@tiktok.com; 
!°Red-acted-\@tb.com f_R,ecfactect"'~tb·.-~-;~-;r::::~-~e<ia-cied __ , ___ @fb.com; [ R~d;~;~-!@fb.co m; f ~:~~~~~1@fb.com; 

r~;;;;;~dl@riitter.com; i Redacted :@€witter.co~;-ri;~:~;;@t~itt:er.com '-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·1 •-----------·J 
":=:=:: :-=:= :: ~=:!.-. - ·-· --- -- --·- --· ...... -- -.... _ 1 ........... - ........ ---·-~· -·-. --- --- --. ---.... -·-' t. .... -~---..... J r·-· -·-· -·-· -·-·-·-·-· -·-· -· -·-·-. -·-·- ·-·-·-·-· -·• 
; Redacted i@ec.europa.eu]1 Redacted i 
'--.1."'l•-l.l'!::;n• -1.."l ' ;"'l~sl'I0.-1.."tl,!'"••--•-•• •-•-•••-•••-•••--•.,.----..,..,....,,..._, •• - !:.•••••••--•••-•-•••• ••·••••-•• •••••••., ••-•••••-••J 

L_~-~~ct-~_c,!!1:l.~.--aJec.europa.eu];i Redacted •@eeas.europa.eu;i Redacted i ,-·-·-----·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·---·-•-n••- ~--·-·---·-·-•--7=;=:=:=:=:=.t. _________________________________ , __ """I.............................. ·---·-------·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·---· 
i Redacted l@ec.europa.eu]; i Redacted :@ec.europa.eu}; i Redacted i 

(=:=R~d~~t~d::::::y-··-eict. ec. e u ro a. e u] · ("-'==_,.,.,.,.,.,.,~=-'"R.;-;r;~t'.;-;r~_,.,.,.,~----·-·-·-·-·-·-·-11 ec. e u r?;-a·.-eu··r .,.,.,.R·~·acted··-·-·-7 
• < ·- - ·-·- ·- ·- ·- ·-·---·-·-,-.@ p ' ·-·-----·-·-·-·-·-·-···-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-··-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·· @ p ],. ______________ . _________________ _ 
1 Redacted i@ec.eu ropa.eu J; r-------------------Redacte-ci"- ------ - ------·-i@ec.europa.eu]; r··i,i;;d;ci;:i·-·-i 

1-'·· ...... ............ · -· • 1 ··.J..---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· ·------~ 1·---·-·-· - · -·-·----" 

i Redacted @ec.europa.eu]; i Redacted ~@ec.europa.eu] 
L ....... -·-•-·'"·• .. ·-·-·••,..1 l • •• •• •••••• , ... ... ........ . .. . .. . ... .. . ... . . . . - ................. . . .. . . . .. ............................ .. J 

[External] This afternoon's meeting on Ukraine 

Dear Signatories, 

At this afternoon's meeting on Ukraine we are looking forward to hear about your most recent insights from the 
ground on trends observed both regarding TTPs and disinformation narratives. 

We would be particularly interested to hear: 

- if you have observed an uptick in disinformation narratives related specifically to a) alleged war crimes e.g. 
related to Russian prisoners of war, b) refugees, c) use of manjpulative media; 

- whether you have put in place any new measures/policy adjustments in this regard e.g. by a) adjusting terms 
and conditions b) protecting recommender systems against manipulation e.g. by coordinated likes, comments 
etc. c) promoting authoritative/trustworthy sources; 

- if you are putting in place particular efforts to fight disinfom1ation a) in MS that seem to be particularly 
exposed to disinformation according to analysts ( e.g. Hungaty, Bulgaria, Romania) and b) where pro-Kremlin 
disinformation is distributed by media outlets that are not Russian state affiliated media. 

Kind regards, 

i Redacted] 
i... .................. ....... .. ....... J 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_004720 
1319



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Exhibit 68 

 

1320



From: 
Sent: 

CNECT-14-EVENTS@ec.europa.eu 
Monday, April 4, 2022 12:47 PM 

To: r Redacted l 

[I:::: R~d;;;,;,a::,--1@eeas.eu rop~:~1~:;.-<\acted J ~~~;,_s,~~ropa .eu; [:~~~~~;:r;::~;,u ropa.eu; 
i_ ____ '3!_<!~C:~E!.~------@eeas.europa.eu;L_l!~<!~~t!~--~fb.coml Redacted ~fb.com; i Redacted ~@fb.com;[_~--~--~--~~~i~_;;j~~--~~--~-_])fb.com; 

1-···-R;daci;d·····-wtb.com;[~_~_~,;;ii;~}@fb.com; ;····RE!da'cied0 0-.c}@tf1ct-;k.com;C'.~:~:~~B!!!~~l~~~~:~:~~J@bytedance.com; 

Subject: 
Attachments: 

Dear All, 

L .. -·-·-- ·-·-·-· -·-•-·-·-·-·- - L---·-·-·-•-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- ,----- r·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--. :·-·· ·Redactecf- -·7 @ti ktok.com!"" "Redac'ie'if '"'7@bytedance.com; Redactecfl@g oog le .com I Redacted r@g oog le .com; 
t:~-~,-~!.~~-~{~~:-~-:~@gbog le.comrn·~·a~·a;·~re'" goog I e.con{"'R'e"cia"cieci'"'@g"oog le.com[i~-d~~,;dl@mic-rosoft.com; [~ij!~i!_~] 
r-R;d;;;;i;d·Q) m icrosoft. com; f R;d~~t;d·@m icrosoft.com; (.''-'ri.':d~~t;~j'""'"'§>m i crosoft.co~r:.:::-~;~~c'i;d~·-·-@ m icrosoft.com; 
•?-·-·-·-·-·-·~·-- . .., .. , ...... ! ;-.-:,:.;·--·-·-·: ·.: ..... ................ .... ... !-;:.·.~·.::.-; ·-·-·- ·-·;-·-·-·- ' !-·-·--·-·-·-·-·~-. l.. , .. . .. : ... . ... ....... ... . . . .. . ... , • • .,, 

i Redacted 1@tw1tter.com; l~_l!<!.~c~~J@tw1tter.cont_ __ -~~<!~c_1~~-----·@tw1tter.com; l Redacted_ ~twitter.com 
[External] FW: Webex meeting invitation: Disinformation Linked to the Situati on in Ukraine 
Webex_m eeti ng.i cs 

As agreed, we are inviting you to an update call with DG Connect and the European External Action Service on Wednesday, 6 April at 17:00-18:00 CET to 
discuss disinformation in relation to the situation in Ukraine. Please distribute the invitation to the appropriate persons on your respective teams. 

We are grateful for your continued participation and look forward to speaking w ith you. 

Kind regards, 

Secretariat, DG Connect 14 

DG CONNECT CNECT.1.4 is inviting you to a scheduled Webex meeting. 

Wednesday , April 6, 2022 

5:00 PM I (UTC+02:00) Brussels, Copenhagen, Madrid, Paris 11 hr 
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Join meeting 

More ways to join: 

Join from the meeting link 

https ://ecconf. webex. com 

Join by meeting number 

Meeting number (access code): 

Meeting password: 

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only) 

Luxembourg Toll 

Some mobile devices may ask attendees to enter a numeric password . 

Join by phone 

~ 67 Belgium Toll 

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
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From: CNECT-14-EVENTS@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-14-EVENTS@ec.europa.eu] 
Sent: 
To: 

4/19/2022 9 :53 :44 AM .. ____ ___ .. ---·- _. -·-. _____ __ ______ _ 

.E~~~~~iii~~~~~;~);~~;~;;:~:~~::==~:--:===~~~~~~i~i~!t~'.~~::;~~:~:~~J~~ec.eur~:~e:!;tl.~---·-·-~·~~~1.i~~~~~~~·.~.~.J 
i Redacted !§lec.europa.eu ]; [__ _________ ~_e_cJ~~!~<!__. __________ jec.eu ropa. eu]; L_ __ ~_e_<!~~!~~-----J 
! Redacted lec:~uropa .eu ]; r···-···-····- ······R~di~ted·-·-················1ec. eu ro a .e u ]; r····-·······Re<l,;icted·····-·····1 

c:~:~:::·:~~~~~\e:d:·:·: ····-···@ec.eu rop~ -~_u_]j ___________ Redacte~--------·· --· P-__ -- @;~:.~~!.9£~:~.~t[:~:~~~~~I~:~~:~J. 
• Redacted ,ext.ec.europa.eu]; Redacted @ec.europa.eu];' Redacted ; 

)~~:~~~~~:::::::;:~~J~~~~;~~~~~:~~~!=~~~~~~f~~::~:~~~~~==;fief.:l 
f..._ ... ~~~~.!:'.!~':! ....... ~eeas.europa.eu; [~-~.ii~I~-~Jfb.com; C~~;~i~i~J fb .com; C:~~iii'~i~~i_;.i~::Jfb.com; 
L~:::Jfi.~~~!iif~::Jr= b.com; [::::~~I~~~i.i::::Jtb.com; c~~ii~:~~Jfb .com; c~:=~~~-~_;;;_cf~:i~:~:Jti ktok. com; 
r-:~·:.-~:~-~.~.iii~l·:·:::.ibytedance.com; c~:~:~:~!~~~ii~C~::Jtiktok.com; [:~=:~.~~i~i~~:·~:Jbytedance.com; 
C:8;.~.'!£\~:~}googl e.com; C~~i.ii~i)~oogle.com; L. ... Redacted_,_.lgoogle.com; C:~=~~;~!iL:)google.com; 
r··-·-R;;;;;;t;;d·-·--1googl e. com; rR;;;,i;~i;;;iim icrosoft.com; r·R;;d;;;~·i~d-··1m icrosoft. com; f'·R;d;~,~·-:m icrosoft. com; 

[~}~J~f ~~~~;itt; r.com; [~!~~.i~~lt;itt~ r. com; f.'~:.'!i~~ji~i,~~j;:.;itt;r .com; C~~!~!~.~~~~l~itt~~~comLl 
[~~~i~ii;f.;_ti_:=]m icrosoft. com; [:~~~~£t~=~:::]m icroso ft. com; [~=~~~;~:~~i~~~~~jm icroso ft. com 

Subject: 
Attachments: 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

FW: Webex meeting scheduled: Disinformation Linked to the Situation in Ukraine 
Webex_meeting. ics 
https://ecconf.webex.com/ 

4/20/2022 3:00:00 PM 
4/20/2022 4:00:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Dear All, 

As agreed, we are inviting you to an update call with DG Connect and the European External Action Service on 
Wedl'\esday, 20 April at 17:00 -18:00 CET to discuss disinformation in relation to the situation in Ukraine. Please 
distribute the invitation to the appropriate persons on your respective teams. 

We are grateful for your continued participation and look forward to speaking with you. 

Kind regards, 

Secretariat, DG Connect 14 

Wednesday, April 20, 2022 

5:00 PM I (UTC+02:00) Brussels, Copenhagen, Madrid , Paris 11 hr 

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

Minutes of the negotiation session 

Date: 19 April 2022 -17:00-19:00 

Agenda: 

a) Discussion on research empowerment section 

Agreed points: 

Commitment 8.1.2 

General comments 

A working group needs to be created to agree on the definition of a "reasonable time" 
in this commitment. 
Another working group should work on how to tackle the content that has been 
removed from the platforms. 

Measurel 

The Commission stressed the importance to mention the EDMO's code of conduct in 
this section. However, it was agreed to reformulate the sentence mentioning the code 
of conduct in measure 1. 
Also, to inform the Signatories about what they commit to if the code of conduct is 
mentioned in this section, EDMO will send an advanced version of the code of 
conduct. 
EDMO's code of conduct is planned to be published by mid-May 2022. 

Measure2 

The modifications made to measure 2 and its QRE were approved by all Signatories. 

Measure3 

- The Signatories all approved the QRE and SLI added for this measure. 

Measure 4: 

The Signatories all approved the QRE and SLI added for this measure. 

Commitment 8.1.3 

The QRE and SLI linked to this commitment will be discussed in a working group. 
Suggestions for new KPls were made by the Signatories in comment. The suggestions 
which have been approved by Signatories have been integrated directly in the online 
word document. The comments were left when no agreement was found. 
Measure 3 needs to be further discussed in a working group. 

Commitment 8.2 

The formulation of commitment 8.2 was approved by all Signatories. 
Measure 1, 2, 3 and their QRE and SLI were approved by all Signatories. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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Measure 4 will be discussed in a working group as no agreement was found on the use 
of "more resilient". 

Actions points: 

• A WG was created to work on the following outstanding points: 
o Commitment 8.1.1, measure 2 
o Commitment 8.1.2, measure 1 
o Commitment 8.1.3, measures 3 and 4 (QREs and Slls) 
o Commitment 8.2, measure 4 
o General point on data sharing about content that has been removed 

• Section 7.2 of the empowerment of users chapter should also be finalised. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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From: L..·-·-·····-·····-···· Redacted ············-··········_jec.europa. eu I 
4/27/2022 8:25:57 AM Sent: 

To: 

CC: 

[:=~;;:~~!~~] ,, icros:oft.com; L~_iji~iii~·:.Jgoogl e .com; L. Redacted .. 7 google .com; L.~.~~·-~-~~~i~i~·-~·~·.~.]tiktok. com; 
L::::::~;~;fiiC::.]bvteda n ce. com; c=:::::::ij~~i!~}~::::::::::lbvtedance. com; r.-:::::.k~A~fiif:::::Ji kto k. com; 
[:::ii~~~iiii:::3b.com; C:::ii~:~f.iiii:::Jfb .com; L~:°J3.~°iiiiiif :~Jfb .com; L~~~;~i~i:~Jfb. com; [ij~ici~{Jfb. com; 
i° Reci:icie<Ttwitter.com; r···"ii'edacieii-·-1twitter.com; f--R;·d·;ct-;_;dttwitter.com; i Redacted !microsoft.com] 

i~~~l~t~};~:!:~1;=~~'.~~:~~I:::;~~-·-·_"_1::::~:::;r:~~~-::f ;~~1 

Ett~}!~~;~;:::{r'.~~:::::::~;·_,,~~=~=~!_;~:~:o~::1c:::~:~~~E-~-·--' 
C~-·-·-R;~~j~.:i·--·-:J@eeas.europa.eu; [~~~~:~~Ei,~~i!i.4.~:~~~~~~}eas.europa.eu; c=.=··=·=~!~3-ii.!.~:==:=:=]eeas.europa.eu 

Subject: [External] This afternoon's meeting on Ukraine 

Dear Signatories, 

At this afternoon's meeting on Ukraine we are looking forward to hear in particular about your most recent 
insights regarding: 

• Trends observed regarding TTPs and disinformation narratives; 
• Any updates regarding the activity of Russian state-affiliated accounts ( embassy accounts etc.); 
• Situational awareness and actions taken regarding disinformation spread by other actors, in particular 

other state-affiliated actors/media (e.g. Chinese diplomatic accounts/state backed media); 
• Any new actions taken on your side, including changes in Terms and Conditions or actions taken 

regarding deamplitication; 

- Looking forward to our discussion! 

i ... Kind.re_gar1s, 
i Redacted: 
i._ ________ , __________________ • 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 

j ············-·········Redacted····················- · iec.europa.eu] 
5/4/2022 10:37:03 AM 
[:=~;;:~~!~~] ,, icros:oft.com; L~.iji~iii~·:.Jgoogl e .com; L. Redacted .. 7 google .com; L~.~~·.~.~~~i~i~·.~·~·.~.]tiktok. com; 
L~.~~~~~~~~~~~~~~:Jbvteda n ce. com; c=:::::::ij~~i!~}~:::::::Jbvtedance. com; r.-:.-:.-:.k~iii~iif:.-:::Ji kto k. com; 
r·····Rec1acie<i·····1tb.com; r ····iieiiicieii·····1tb .com; r ······Re'd°iicied······--wb .com; r··ii.';d;~,.;;j···:fb. com; r·R;;;i;~i~··:tb. com; 

t~~~;.~1~5;:;it~er.com; [~~~ff~~f ~i~~~~]t~itter .co~~T~~~·~~~~j~·itt~ r .com; c :~::::::::::::~~.~~g~~~.~~~.~~~.~.~~~~~J~icrosoft.com 1 
f ••••••••••••••••••••• ····-·······R~·;:1~~,;d:····-····················-········Jec. eu ropa . eu ];[__ ___ ........ Redacted ...... , .......... L ........... , 

; Redacted :ec.europa.eu];i Redacted @ec.europa.eu]; Redactei:J ... J 

t~~~~.~~~~~~1~~~~.~~]~~~~~::r~~~~~~·l~i~~~~~~~~~~~~~~·~~~~~~·~~~.~~~:~i~~~~~.~~~~~.~:~.~~~ .. }~:~+::::~u.l;j_~~~~~E!.!~ ..... ! 
r·····ii.;,i·:i,;t@<i·····iec.europa.eu]) Redacted iec.europa.eu];I Redacted i 
t '"""~~i~~~~-;;csc.:~~-europa .e LI l L. ''"··············-·········-·R·~;~t~d····-····-·· ········-···- ... iec . europa .~·~c·······-····· 

1 ..... ~~~~£!!.~ .... _@eeas.europa.eu; C :::.:·.:·I~~~{if.:: ·.:·.=Jeeas.europa.eu; [ .:·.: .=~!~3..ii.!.~:==::Jeeas.europa.eu 
[Externa l] This afternoon's meeting on Ukraine 

Dear Signatories, 

At this afternoon's meeting on Ukraine we are looking fo rward to hear in particular about your most recent 
insights regarding: 

• Trends observed regarding TTPs and disinformation narratives; 
• Updates about enforcement and circumvention of sanctions, and in particular 

detection/removaJ of clips/excerpts from the sanctioned channels; 
• Any updates regarding the activity of Russian state-affiliated accounts ( embassy accounts etc.) 

and th.e effectiveness of your policies in this regard; 
• Any new actions taken on your side, including changes in Terms and Conditions. 

Looking forward to our discussion! 

Kind regards, 
i Redacted• 
i. •- ---~----•-•-•-- ·• - •- • I 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_009842 
1334



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Exhibit 73 

 

1335



From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 

[__ ______ ______ -·····-~~cJ~.<:;.t~g_ ____ . ---·· ·--·- _@ec.europa.eu I 
5/11/2022 9:50:26 AM 

[ij~~~-;.iidJ'§>m icros:oft .com; l_~~~~-~~~-~googl e .com; C'.:i~~'.~iqj~~:'.:'.~ googl e .com; 1:::::::~~~~i~~::::=J@ti ktok. com; 
L, ___ Redacted _____ i@bvtedance.com; C:::::=:~.;~~f~::::::::::@bytedance.com; c.:-.:::·:_if~iic~.'.:-·:J@tiktok.com; 
c--R;d~-~t;d- -J§l fb.com; c·:~ii~~j_~-:J@fb.com; C'..-:.·_~i$s~!f'..-~:J:§)fb .com; [~~j~i,~J@fb.com; C~i~ci~_K§>fb. com; 

r~~g~~~~~~=i!~~-~=c~o~J~~~~-~'.~~-~=~~=t~e~~~~S~it;~~!~:.~~~; t -~; r-·-·--~~~~=::;~t~-d·---~--~-~--~~!@microsoft.com] 

[;rir~r~:;~:::·:,~E;~i~[~;i;=i~;~~~~i~!~~i;};t[~~;;!:\:~~-~-
: Redacted :@ec.europa.eu]; L ___________________ ~e_d_a_<c_t~~----·-··-·--·-·---·-j@ec.europa.eu]; L Redacted i 
L~-~~-~~!8-~~~~=-~ -~ u ro pa. e u l; r-·-·- ·-·· ·~~~:~~~~~~~~~-:~~~~ ~-~~~~ti~---·-·-·-···-·-·-·-·-·-· -·-·-·-r§l, e C' eu ro pa . euF - - --- --- ---

[_ ________ ~~!l?.~~-d _________ ~ eea s. eu ropa .e u ;;, __________ Redacted ___ __ _@eeas. europa .eu; L_ __ ~-~~~<:.!~~ _ _J@eeas.europa.eu 
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
• Insights about fact-checking activities: further information about your actions to step up 

fact-checking in relevant languages, volume of fact-checks related to the war, your 
experiences regarding the effectiveness of fact-checking, challenges, lessons learned. 

• Updates about enforcement and circumvention of sanctions; 
• Ally updates regarding the activity of Russian state-affi1iated accounts ( embassy 

accounts etc.) and the effectiveness of your policies in tbis regard; 

As you can see it from the below agenda, in addition to the usual subjects, we would particularly appreciate 
more insight and information related to fact-checking. 

Looking forward to our discussion! 

Kind regards, 
l_Redactect.J 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

cc: 

Subject: 

r-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·--·-·-·-·· 
L. .. -·-·--·-·-·-·-·-· Redacted ···-·--·-·- -·-·-·-·-__!ec.e uropa. eu) 
5/18/2022 11:35:18 AM 
Cij~~~s!~] microsoft.com; L~-~~i~i~:Jgoogle.com; L__Redacted _ l google.com; L~.~-~-j~~~i~i.f:C.~.~Jtiktok.com; 
L:::=:~~~~:s~~:::::]bytedance.com; L-·-·-·-·-Reda~~~~=:::::::::;bytedance.com; [ ·:.:.J{~siiiEiii.:.-: ~-.i'tiktok.com; 
c:J~~~ftisLJfb. com; L:::::~~i~iiiisC:3b .com; c~~'.}fa"ef~~jii~=~Jfb. com; c~~~~l~CJfb. com; c~~~~~!~Jfb. com; 
C~.e~j_i~Jtwi tter. com; [Jf~ii:IiiCJtwitter.com; f.~~i~i~~Jtwitter .com;_ c :::::::::::::::R.~I~E!~<C:::::::::::::Jmi crosott.com J 
r·-·-·- -·-·-·-·-·-riec1acie<i"'"·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·1ec. europa . eu]; i Redacted 1 
i·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·---·-·-·-·-·---·-·-·-·-----·-·-·- ~·-·-·---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-' '--·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-~·-' 
[::YI~~s"ii~:::Jec.eu ropa .eu 1; c :::::::::::::::::::::::::::~:~~~~~~::::::::::::=::::::::::::::=:Jec. europa .e u J;L._~-~ -~s~~ .J 

frii! f ti~iii ~~~j ~~r~~:~er~~~-~~~~:-=:~:~:~:~~~~~!~~~:~~;i;;i~i:?:~~:~~-~~-a_._:~_lj~·;;!:!~::-.-;~~; L .... ~~~-~g!~ .... i 
f ---- Redacted- -- ]ec .eu ropa .eu J L,_ -·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·~~~-!lS.t.~ __________________ , _____ ,_l@ec.eu ropa. eu ]; r ··Re<iac.tecl-J 
c~~~~~ii~-~~~~:..e u ro pa. e u l; c::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::~!if.~~1~::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::"'fi c. eu ro pa . e u J; 
t.. ..... Redacted ...... 2i@eeas.eu ropa .eu; r ··-·-·--·-rie-ciiic!ed·- --·--1eeas.eu ropa.eu; r··--Redac·teci"- -@eea s.europa .eu 

'---•- -- ·-· - •- ·-·- •-· - ·-·-• - · - •- · - · - · - · -' L --•- •• •- -- · - •- ·-•-~- •--•- •-,-

[External] This afternoon's meeting on Ukraine 

Dear Signatories, 

At this afternoon's meeting on Ukraine we are looking forward to hear in particular about your most recent 
insights regarding: 

• Trends observed regarding disinformation narratives; we would be pa11icularly 
interested to have your insight and experience from the ground on propaganda spread 
by "Z", and narratives blaming the EU and the US for famine in Africa, 

• Trends observed regarding TTPs/inauthentic behaviour observed on your platforms and 
action taken this regard (e.g. regarding duplicated comments); 

• Your actions regarding algorithmic recommendations to de-amplify pro-Kremlin 
propaganda and elevate authoritative sources; 

• Updates about enforcement and circumvention of sanctions, and updates regarding the 
activity of Russian state-affiliated accounts and the effectiveness of your policies in 
this regard; 

• Any new actions taken on your side, including changes in Terms and Conditions. 

Looking forward to our discussion! 

Kind reg~rds, 
[ Redacted i 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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From: CNECT-l4@ec.europa.eu [CNECT·14@ec.europa.eu] 
Sent: 5/24/2022 4:45:37 PM ,··········--·········-······· ·--·--···• 
To: L~~~=~~~~~~~~~~.~:~=~~::'.~~=:~~'.~;~~§ii.(===::===========J~.~ ... ~~~2P.~.:~.~.liL ............ ~~~.~_st~g··············L··-············, 

_r-····Reeiiic.ie<i······~~:~.~L~Pa .eu ]; L_·-·················~~~.~.~~.~~-·········-········J >ec. eu ropa.euJL.~w~w~! .. ~~~~!!~~·······___l 
i Redacted @ec.europa.eu); r·······--······Redacteci················ec.europa.eu]L ..... !!e.d.<!.~t~~ ....... .l 

l~~~}i~~~f f ~AE~i;~;~~~~~~~~~~!~~=~~:,~:~±!~~~1~:;~~~f;~~;--7 
'-···························--··-········;ec.europa.e u] , ••.•.•.•.•.•...•.•...•.•.•.•.•.•. .@eeas.eu ropa. eu,.···········-·-·-·······-·····-·····peeas. eu ropa. eu, 
c:~=~~:R..ii.d.a.ci~~~~=~::~]eeas.europa.e1.L ... Redacted. __ .. @eeas.europa.eu; c::=:=:=!§~~c.i~~:=:=:::Jeeas.europa.eu; 
L.~~~~liiL) b .com; [ fe._;~i~t..~Jfb.com; L::::i~:~~£iii::~Jfb .com; l. ...... ~.E:t!l!c.t~.~:~-~:Jfb .com; L::::ii.~:~£!ii:~:Jtb.com; 
L:~iii~:~;;~Jfb.com; L:::~R..~.d..~-~i~'iC:Jti ktok.com; r:=:=:=--=:=~--~~ii!f :=:=:=Jbytedance.com; [::::::Jif~~~~~i~:::::::Jti ktok.com; 
[:::::~'ii.~_a_ci.~~::::Jbytedance.com; C K~;!i.~:J google.com; [ Biiii{~:~J google.com; L~:K~~i~ii~~Jgoogle.com; 

r····Redacteci····1@google.com; r--···Redacted·-···1google.com; rR·edacieii1microsoft.corn; r··Re--ciacteci'l rnicrosoft.com; 
... -· -•-•- - · - •••-·••• •-•••·-· '-•-•• ••·-•• ••• - ,• l- - ----· -·-·- ·-·-·- · - · • 

c:~~~~£i;;t:J microsott.com; [~-~~~~i.~~~stiL~Jmicrosott.com; c :~~~~£~~~Jmicrosott.com; L~~~~\:!!~Jtwitter.com; 
[ji_e~i£~'Jtwitter.cornt13~~.~S?.t~.cfl@twitter.com; c ~~~~.i~~j'twitter.com 

Subject: FW: Webex meeting invitation: Disinformation Linked to the Situation in Ukraine 
Attachments: Webex_meeting. ics 
Location: https://ecconf.webex.co 

Start: 6/1/2022 3 :00:00 PM 
End: 6/1/2022 4:00:00 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Dear colleagues, 

In view of the demanding schedule this week for finalisation of the text of the revised Code of Practice on 
Disinformation, as well as the bank holidays this week in Europe, the next update call on disinformation in relation to 
Ukraine will be held next week, on Wednesday, 1 June 2022 at 17:00 - 18:00 CET. 

Please distribute the invitat ion to the appropriate persons on your respective teams. 

We are grateful for your continued participation and look forward to speaking with you. 

Kind regards, 

Secretariat, DG Connect 14 

DG CONNECT CNECT.1.4 is inviting you to a scheduled Webex meeting. 

Wednesday, June 1, 2022 

5:00 PM I (UTC+02:00) Brussels, Copenhagen, Madrid, Paris 11 hr 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT _HJC _ 004564 
1340



_:;:,:::. :::,1~1~ :~~lirn~f. ·'.:· -:: 
,,?,, __ ""\ ,~ "' '\" '\ /~' "' '\\ ~' ~ ' 

More ways to join: 

Join from the meeting link 

htips://ecconf.webex.com 

Join by meeting number 

Meeting number (access code): L, _______ R_~~-<:t!'.~.---·-·-·J 

Meeting password: from phones) 

Tap to join from a mobile device (attendees only) 

Belgium Toll 

Luxembourg Toi! 

Some mobile devices may ask attendees to enter a numeric password. 

Join by phone 

Luxembourg Toll 

Global call-in numbers 

Join from a video system or application 

Dial L__ _ ____ __-·-·-_Redacted ______ ____________ ! 

You can also dial ~ nd enter your meeting number. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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From: L.-·-·-·········-·-····Redacted ···············-····J ec.e uropa. eu) 
6/1/2022 12:19:27 PM Sent: 

To: 

cc: 

Cij~~~~ii] microsoft.com; L~-~~iiii~:Jgoogle.comf·Re°dacteci"-·~google.com; L~.~.:.J~~~i~i.eiC.:.:Jtiktok.com; 
L::::~}!~~f!!!~·.::~:~'.Jb yted a nee .com; L-·-·-·-·-Reda~~~~::::~:::]byteda nee. com; [ ·:.:.J{~siiiEiii.:.":~-.i'ti kto k. com; 
c:J~~~ftisLJfb. com; L:::::~~:~iiiisC:3b .com; c~~'.}fa"ef~~jiiC:~Jfb. com; c~~~~l~CJfb. com; c~~~~~!~Jfb. com; 
C~-e~j.i~Jtwi tter. com; [Jf~ii:IiiCJtwitter.com; f.~~i~i~~Jtwitte~,f.9.rr!L~~-.:.:.~·.~·.~:~::.l{~~~Ie..if.~:~::.~·.~.~·.~·.:Jmi crosott.com J 

E~.:~;;~~~~.:~-:~~~:::·~;:~:~~t~;·~-~~.~-~~-~-~:~.~-~-~-~-~-~-~~-?~~~~~~~~:=·~--~~~-~1~:~--~-~-.~--~--~~=~~~t:~ u 1c:[~d.~£t~~---·1 

frii!tti~iii~~~j~~r~~:~er~~~:~~:ji~~~~=~ii~~~!=~~!~~=~iii~:~~ii~i=~~~~~~~:-~~!~~~~~~!~@·;;!;~::·~;~L .. _.~e..~~-~!~~-·.J 
[ .~=-::.~!-~.i~t~-f ~:~Jec .eu ropa .eu) L-·-·--·-···---···-·-·~~-<!~<:.te..<! ..... _. ___ , ____________ J§lec. eu ropa. eu ]; L.13~E3'£!.~~__j 

E:]~~i~\I~~~~:j;::~:.·=~~~~~:~~i:::~~::~i~;~~Ifli~!~:;i~~~:i~~;~~:i~~~~I~.c .•. ~~.~;:;.~;.~l:_}@eeas.europa.eu 
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

• Trends observed regarding disinformation narratives; as indicated during our last meeting, we would 
be particularly interested to have your insight and experience from the ground on narratives blaming 
the EU and the US for famine in developing countries, 

• Trends observed regarding TTPs/inauthentic behaviour observed on your platforms and action taken 
this regard; 

• Updates about enforcement and circumvention of sanctions, and updates regarding the activity of 
Russian state-affiliated accounts and the effectiveness of your policies in this regard; 

• Any new actions taken on your side, including changes in Terms and Conditions; 

• Any media literacy related activities related to identifying disinformation on the war in Ukraine. 

Looking forward to our discussion! 

Kind regards, ,-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·--·-1 
L. Redacted .. J 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Attachments: 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

CNECT-l4@ec.europa.eu [CNECT·14@ec.europa.eu] 
6/3/2022 3:57:47 PM 
r···-·-············-···-···-···-·-···Re<i"acted·· ············-·····-···-·····-·····:-ec. eu ropa. eu ]; L .............. Redacted:::::::::::::c,::J ·-···· . ············· 
.L~:~:~~i~i~~~i~C.J.~~~~~.~~pa .eu]; l:.:·.:·:·.~~·:·_::::.;;.;~:~~~jl~;.;;;;~;;;:;;;;~ec. eu ropa.e~1L ... R .. d.8e.d~.ct~~-···········] 

/::::·:::.Rf !!!fil·~:::==~~~:~~-:~.~0:i~:~.~)jJ •• c·.c.~·.cR;·d!~f!J!;.t .~-.c·.~-~-.c·.1~;~;:~:;~~~~~;Y'""'•'•'~"iJ'i~tecl···-···1 

t~~'.~~~~~~i~!~~~~~~~~?;~·.:~:~~:·.:~1&~~~~~.~.~~~N-~~l~:.:}~~.~·.~~·.~·.~·.~~·.~·.~.l.i~:~~~:~:~~I~~~~~~~~;f ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~? 
L. ...................... ~.~!'£!e.d . ....................... .L€~.!~.~~]ec. europa .eu]; L.·-······-·-···~~~~.!e.d __ ._ ............ @ec.eu ropa. eu]; 

[~~=~:~~~E!~~~~~~:~~J~>eeas.europa.,.~.\!x~.~·.~.~·-~Ri..i;i.i~iec1i'········· :eeas.europa.eu; c·····Re<iacte·d·-······1eeas.europa.eu; 
L~.~~·~~~£~~~·.~·)>eeas.europa.euL..13.~.~!!<:.!.!!:!_j@eeas.europa.eufRed~cte~fb.com; r··Redac·t'ed·"Jfb.com; 

c~~jii.~~~£t.~si~=Jfb. com; [~~~~'.·~~~I~c_ii~C~~:Jtb. com; c ~~~!!~~~~~iii:~Jfb. com; [ji~i~l~iCJtb.com; L~~'.~'.~i~\_ii_~i~~f~~~Jt iktok. com; 
[:.-:.:.:.~i.~.ii{i~:·:.:.-~.Jbytedance.com; L~.~~-_F~~~.~.~~4~~.~~-.Jtiktok.com; [ :~-.~:~.!.~.~~!!~C:=:Jbytedance.com; 
[}\.i~iii~~Jgoogle.com; [ ~~ii.{~:f]google.com; [ :~:e~~£~icf:] google.com; C'.::.~i~iiii~~~'.:]google.com; 
[ :=:=~~~~ji~:=.·=_'Jgo ogle. com; f..il~~~_;;'j~]m icrosoft.com; v-i_ Redacted !microsoft.com; C~~i~!~Jmi crosoft. com; 
[·~~~i~~~·?.£iii.~:~Jmi crosoft.com; c::J.fe~~i!~~=Jmicrosoft.com;[.'~~isi~~Jtwitter.com; c:~~~:~iif~witter.com; 
[:~:~~~~!~~~~:Jtwitter .com; [j~~!~.t~~Jtwi tter .com; [_'==--=--~·=:::=:=:=:=~ii!a~jiiC:=_-=:=_-=:=:=:=:=·:Jext.ec .euro pa .e u] 

FW: Webex meeting invitation: Disinformation Linked to the Situation in Ukraine 
Webex_meeting. ics 
https://ecconf.webex.com 

6/8/2022 3 :00:00 PM 
6/8/2022 4:00:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Dear All, 

As agreed, we are inviting you to an update call with DG Connect and the European External Action Service on 
Wednesday, 8 June 2022 at 17:00-18:00 CET to discuss d is information in relation to the situation in Ukraine. Please 
distr ibute the invitation to the appropriate persons on your respective teams. 

We are grateful for your continued participation and look forward to speaking with you. 

Kind regards, 

Secretariat, DG Connect 14 

DG CONNECT CNECT.1.4 is inviting you to a scheduled Webex meeting. 

Wednesday, June 8 , 202:2 

5:00 PM I (UTC+02:00) Brussels, Copenhagen, f·Aadrid , Paris 11 hr 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_004550 
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More ways to join: 

Join from the meeting link 

https://ecconf.webex.con 

Join by meeting number 

Meeting number (access code): L-·-·---~-~~-'=t~~---·-·-.J 

Meeting password: L_ ___ Redacted _____ i4 - from phones) 

Tap to Join from a mobile device (attendees only) 

Belgium Toll 

Luxembourg Toll 

Some mobile devices may ask attendees to enter a numeric password. 

Join by phone 

--Belgium Toll 

~ Luxembourg Toll 

Global call-in numbers 

Join from a video system or application 

Dial L. ___ E!'!.i.~£\~-----J@ecconf. webex. com 

You can also dial ~ nd enter your meeting number. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT _HJC_004551 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

cc: 

Subject: 

l.__·-·-···- --·-···-·-Redacted -·-·····-·-·-·-·-·-·-·· iec.e uropa. eu) 
6/23/2022 1:44:22 PM 
Cij~~~s!~] microsoft.com; L~-~~i~i~:Jgoogle.com; L..Redacted _ l google.com; L~.~.~.J~~~i~i.f:C.~.~Jtiktok.com; 
L~:~:J~~~E!if~:~Jb yted a nee .com; L-·-·-·-·-Reda~~~~::::::::]byteda nee. com; [ ·:.:.J{~siiiEiii.:.':~-.i'ti kto k. com; 
c:J~~~ftisLJfb. com; L:::::~~:~iiiisC:3b .com; c~~'.}fa"ef~~jii~=~Jfb. com; c~~~~l~CJfb. com; c~~~~~!~Jfb. com; 
c~-e~j.i~Jtwi tter. com; [Jf~ic.,~:::Jtwitter.com; f.~~i~i~~Jtwitter .com; c:.:::.-:::·-·····Redac.f~I.·:.-:.·:~.-:::.:.~Jmi crosoft.com l 
L-·-···-·-···-·-·-·····-·-···-·-···-· Redacted--···-·--···-·-·····-·-···-·-···-·-·-:ec. e u ro pa • e u l;t_···-·-···-·-·-·· Redacted · ·····-·~-m .J ····--···-·-·-
['"···Redacie<i'··-·;ec. eu ro pa. e u l; r-·····-···············-·······Redacted········· ··--···--·-·····-·7e C. eu r Op a . e u 1; ! ··-·-1"!~~.a.c!~ ... _.! 

[~~:]f~i~f~C~Jec.eu ropa .eu]; [:'.::::~:~:~=:~:~:'.:~e.<fa.~f~l:'.:~::::::::::~:~::Jec. e uropa. eu J;L,_ .. ~~~!'E!~~ ...... J 

_[I;;:;.}t~JiHff;:;:;:Jext.ec.europa;~~~)_;.L_,.,_,.,.,.-.,~·-,.·~~-~.,~f!!!!L,.,.,.,'1-·-···-·-·-·-·--·}@ec.e~!.:'P..~:.~.~l.iL . ..,~.~.~~E!~~ .... J 
L. ...... ~~-~.<::'!~ ....... Jec .eu ropa .eu]; L---------·-···---·-·-~~.~!3..~t~~ ... -.... -·--·---·-··j®ec. eu ropa. eu ]; L.~e..~~.~!.1!.~_l 
L. .. Redacted ..... iec. europa .eu l; r········-···-·-···-·-- -·--·-·R-edacted-·--·-·--·-·-·-·-···-·-·-·-·-·-]>ec. eu ropa .e u ); 
r··-·· Redactecf-·-·7@eeas.eu ropa .eu c·-·- -· -Reiiacie<T- --·-· 1eea s .eu ropa .eu; r-···-·Redi:ic-teci-·-·-·@eea s.e uropa. eu 
L--·-•-•- ·-•••--·-•-·---•• ••·-·,. ,l·- ·-·-· - ··- ••·• ·-•-• • •-·- •- ·-·•·-·•·--·• •-•--•-·- ·- •- ·• •••- •• ·••- ••·-

(External] This afternoon's meeting on Ukraine 

Dear Signatories, 

At this afternoon's meeting on Ukraine we are looking forward to hear in particular about your most recent 
insights regarding: 

• Tt·ends observed regarding disinformation narratives; as during the past 
weeks, we would be particularly interested to have your insight and experience 
from the ground on narratives blaming the EU and the US for famine in 
Africa, 

• Trends observed regarding TTPs/inauthentic behaviour observed on your 
platforms and action taken this 1·egard; 

• Your actions regarding algorithmic recommendations to de-amplify pro­
Kremlin propaganda and elevate authoritative sources; 

• Any new actions taken on your side, including changes in Terms and 
Conditions. 

In addition, we would like to discuss with you how to best take forward the discussions on Ukraine in the 
Task-force and combine them with our regular meetings. 

Looking forward to our discussion! 

Kind regards, 
,-·-···-·--·-·-·-·-·--1 
L. Redacted _j 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 
Attachments: 

COP-DI SIN FO RMATION@ec.eu ropa .eu [COP-DISI N FOR MA Tl ON@ec.europa.eu] 
6/27/2022 2:33 :09 PM 
r·--·Redactecf -·-·9 ki nzen. com ]J·-·Recia'cteii -·-1@10gica I ly. a i]; r--·-·-·-·-·-·Rectacteci-·-·-·-·-·-·-·1eaca. eu ]; r·-·-·-·-Re<1acied-·-·- -·1 

"E~~~!·;~Jciuiiho-dse.com];[.~-.::.:.·~:.:.-:.:.:~.~.cJ~.~-~e..C!.:.:.-:.: .:.:.':.:.-:~:~-;;;j·~-~~·;; ·ft.·~~~i;-c~·~~~~-~~~~~~'.~Jii~!~~:~~~:~:~~~:~~~~=~~~;;"t:~rg]; [~-:;;;;~ 

r.:::~~ig~,j~-~.'Jneeva .co]; E~;~~kreakom. dk; c.=:==:=-==:=.=-=-=·-=:~~~-~~i~:==-=-=-=:=.=:=.=·=:='.Jmal d ita. es ];C:~::~i~i i.(~L:~J 
If.·-·-· Redacted ____ , __ ]ti kto k. com]; L·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- -------------·-·-· Redacted ·-·-···-·······-·····--·-···--•···- r, i er oso ft.com]; L, ___________ B.~.<!il~~i!.!L , •. _______ _j 
:~:;;;;~;pk re a k Om. d k]; c····-·-·-···--·-···-···R;d-;;c;·te<:C"'-·-···-·····-·-·-·-·-~ o Ogle. com l; c ·-·-·····-·····-·-·-···Redacted'"'"'" ···-· ··-·-·····-···1ea ca . e LI ); 

[~-~-~-~~~----.~·-~---~:_d_~:~ed- --~-1-·-···-·-:·"j google;~.~~,H:~:~:::~:::~:~:~:::~~~c:~~~:::~:::::~~----·-·-J~ ic~osoft.c,om]L~~~~B~~Efo~( ~~J 
a._, _____ ~~~!!_c_t~ _____ .Jd ou evenfy .com );L, ______ -·-·-·-·-···~~!1.~.~e_~_, ___________________ jnews ac .. :~.?-~tL~~~'!!~~:,~.,~.L .. 
['-·-·- --Redacted .. _ --·lglobsec.org); [-·-·--·- -- -···Redaclec1-·-·-···-·- -·-·-·-·:logi ca I ly. co. u k]; [__ _________ -···Redacted _ -----·-···-__] 
['-·- Redacleci'- - ]vim e O. CO m] ; r -·- ----- ----- Redacle<J ____________ --- -'g O og I e. CO m 1 r - --------- ------ R-edacied ______ --·------ - --!wf an et. 0 rg]; 

c .-:.·:.-: .-:.·~_·:.·:.: .-:.·~jf~~ji~iii=.·:.·_, ______ -·····-.Jn ewsg U a r dtec h, com); c=~~~~~~~~~~~~~~=~~~~:)~~~c_\'fC~~~~~~~:~=~~~~=~~~~] a beu r Ope. eu); 
[:=:::::~~~ii~f:::::::Jeeas .euro pa. eu; L===--~~===--:.='.~~~~f!~ti~~~-·:.==-====~:~~-Jdoteu rope .e u l[~--~~-<!~~~e._f ] 
[ B~<!~_c)l!':!.Jiabeurope. eu]; L.__ _____________ -·····-·!i~-~~E!~ .----·-···-·-···-·····-·Jmedi am ath .com] L_ __ . ____ ---·-·-~~~-~~-~~·-·-···-·-·-·-·-.J 
r;_;..~pt h eb rig h tap p. CO !Tl] r:.:·.:·.:·_=I~~~!·i~·-=·-=-=··::=Jwfa net. 0 rg]; [ .=.:·.: .=.::=-=.:·.: .:·.:~i~i{i_~ :::·.=:::·.:·.:·.:·.:::.=Jfa kto gr af. h r] ;[ Redacted i 

[ ::3~icf ~~i ~~:::::Ja I p ha e)( p I O rat i On CO.CO ml r: ::::=::::::::::::::::ifr~~:£i~::::::::::::: ::::::::::::, ri s pt hi n ki ng. CO ml L-~~~-~-~-~~d ____ j 
[~'.j({~¥~~i_i;~~:~] >voste urope. org];[~'.~='.~~~'.~~~~~~ifC~~~~~~:=)witter. com); [.=-=-=·=~--=~~~-st~~=~·~·-=-~·-:.J 
f_~~".i~j~j med fa math. com] ;C::::::::::::::::::~!~ii~:~:cC ::::::::::::::::::Jn ev a-I abs . com] ;r:::~:~:::::::::::~~:~i~~~::::::::::::~:::Jad ob e. com ] ; 
L::::::::::::::::::::~~~:~:(e~cL::::::=::::::=:Jdemagog .org. p I]; c:.·~~Fijiiii~:.-:.-:.Jeeas. europa. eu; c~~~~=~~~~-~~ci-~~~~=-=~~=-·Jb.com ); 
L .... ·-·····-~-~':!<!<:.!!!!l_. ____________ @rsf.org};l_ _____________ ____ R_e:_d_as!E:d.. ___ ___________ _]avaaz. org ); L_ ____ ~_E!!:!! £~~----·-;vi meo. com;L.~~<!~,::_t~_~__i 
[=.==~~~~~~~C~Js Up po rt. a va a Z. 0 rg] c~:::::::=::~::_~e:~aii~::::::::::::::::Jrvr. S k); r:::::::::::~~~~Ei~~c::::=:Jav a a Z. 0 rg] j L_, __ ~edacted ___ _J 
rr·· Re-ciacteif'-·r google .com r -·-·· -·-···-··-···-ReciiicieCi··-·-·-·-···-·-·······-·lfu. com l; r~·-·-·-·_-·rte<iai:ie<i·-·- -·-·-l<i n zen .com l [ j§:i.4.~£!~~~J 
[«,,.ct .. jCh-c. eu];L_ _____ , _____ Redacted-·-···-·-·-· lch-c. eu ];L_·-···-·-·-·-·-·-·Redacte<1 _____ ,_, ___ , ____ ]go ogle .com Ji__ ____ , _____ Redacted ________ ___! 

rr Redacted lavaaz. org] L__ -·- ----·- -Re<lacted ______ -·-·- __ j usti n. tv 1 ;L ___ -·------ -·-Redacted-·-·----·-- ---· ;rsf. org]; L. Redacted '" 1 
If ___ Re<lacted __ , __ ]rsf .org]; L·-···-·-·-·-·-·Redacted ________ , _______ :eu i .eu]t_ _______ , __________________ Redacted ·-·-·-·-···-·-···-.. ___ _,idemagog. org. pl]; G.-!~~j 

c_:·.:·.:·.::::·.I~~~~.t~C::·.:·.::=Jwfa net. o rg ); L::::::::~::::::::~~~~~~~::::::::::~:~:::~~:}j o t eu rope. e u r:=:=:=:=J~~~~~~~:=:::=:==:@w ho targets. me]; 

k~~-~~;~j~~~~~~~r~~~j~f:.~~:.~~~~~:~1~~~~~~!.sk=~~;=~~-~~~r:cr=~~~~;~~~~~~~-~~:3-11~~~~~~!~~~:a~:~1~~~~~-;~E~C!~.~---·-·J 
C:::=:=::~!~~i\~:~::=:=:::=Jrvr. skC_=·-=:=.=:=:=.=··=·-=:=:=:=:J~~~~~teci- -·-·-·-:=:=·-=·=:=·-==:=.=··]doubleveri fy. com]; [:.·:.· Redacted .:.-:J 
[ B~~:~~~:) witte r .com J; [~~~~~~~~~!£!~cL~~~Jeeas .e uropa. eu; f.:~--~~~~:.:::.:::.=~-~ii(~~:::.~~~--~~~~:.:~~:Jeaca.eu J; [',;.;:;;~;~·: 
r:=:::==:=:~~~£~fc£:=:=:=:::=:=:]m i crosoft. com]; [:::.~~==:=~--=~~:.::.~---:~--~~~£!~l.:.::.:::.::~--~~~~:::.~----~~-.Jpagel I apoliti ca. it Jf~;,;~:~i~~J 
f'---·-···-·-·-·-·-Re<t"actec:r-···-·--···- -·:n ewsgua rd tech. com] r·-·-···- ---------·-·--···iiec1acteci·-·-···-·-·-·- - -·-·· -·-···:n e wsguardtech. com] ; 

L ._, __ __!_~~~~-~.!e_c!._ _____ }gleeas.europa.eu 

[l_ ___________ ,_~~.~~=-;~::~-~-~--J~c. eu ropa. ~~ji,~: :~-~-:~_u_J~;,~~~!~~:~:::~:~:::~:~::~:~!~::~~;p~~-; ~j' ;,~-~~-;~:~:!:~~-Jpa. eu ];: Redacted J 

u.·: .-: ·~~~~~-tel=.'Jec. europa .eu 1 r::::::::=:=:::::::=:~~~!~:i~·-·····-·····-···::J@ext .ec. eu ropa. eu J; L- -·---~-~-~-~-'=~f!_!:!_, _____ ,J 
[ -·-·-·- Redacted _________ jec.europa.eu ]; L--·-·--·-·--·-·--·-···-·-···-·Redacted ·-···-·-·-·-·- -·-·--·-···-·-·J~c.eu ropa .eu]; l_ __________ Redacted ___________ ! 
L:~:::::~:jii~a..c~K:::::~:::.J@ec.europa.eu ]; co P-D1S1 N FOR MA no N@ec.europa.eu 
[External] Second CoP Task-force meeting: Agenda and Feedback (by 1 Ju ly) 
Draft Agenda Permanent Task-force 5 July 2022.docx 

Dear Members of t he Task-For ce, 

Please find attached the draft agenda for the second meeting of Task-force, t aking place on the 5t~ July 2022, from 

15:00 to 17:00, which will be followed by the first meeting of the Crisis Response Subgroup, from 17:00-18:00. 

The meeting(s) will be virtual only (Webex invitat ion will follow). 

➔ We would be gratef ul if you could confirm participation and indicate who from your organisation will 
attend, by Friday 151 of July. Should you have any suggestions related to the agenda, please let us know by then too. 

As you w ill see, one of the agenda points is dedicated t o t he establishment of t he different Task-force sub-groups. Based 

on our conversation during the last meeting, we suggest forming the following sub-groups as a matter of priori t y: 

1. Monitoring and Reporting 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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o Priorities: deliver harmonised reporting templates and work on structural 
indicators 

2. Transparency Centre 
o Priorities: set up and operate the Transparency Centre 

3. Integrity of Services 
o Priority: deliver a list and terminology of TTPs 

4. Scrutiny of Advertising 
o Priority: deliver a methodology to report on demonetisation to include a new 

SLI (1.1.1) 
5. Crisis Response {including Ukraine, COVID-19, future emerging issues ... ) 

o Priority: regularly exchange and cooperate on developments related to the war 

in Ukraine, establish a risk assessment methodology and rapid response system 
to be used in crisis situations 

6. Outreach and Integration of New Signatories 
o Priority: promote the Code and reach out/integrate new Signatories 

➔ On that basis, could you please let us know, by Friday 1 July COB, the sub-group(s) in which you would like to 
participate? We would also be grateful if you could specify if you are willing to take leadership in organising and 
advancing the work of one of the concerned subgroup(s). 

In order to make the task-force a true collaborative effort and a success, we very much count on your active 

participation in the sub-groups, of course taking into account the resources available in particular for smaller signatories. 
Should you have any questions in this regard, don't hesitate to reach out to us. 

Regarding other agenda points, we will soon circulate the relevant draft documents, i.e. a first draft of the Vademecum 
on the work of the Task-force and a Call for Interest for new additional Signatories. 

Finally, we propose that following the plenary Task-force meeting, members of the (to be formed) subgroup dedicated 
to crisis response hold their first meeting. Considering the importance of the issue, we believe it is important to swiftly 
kick off exchanges in this format on the actions to counter disinformation around the war in Ukraine. 

We are looking forward to your feedback. 

Best wishes, 
CoP Disinfo Team 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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EUROPEAN COMMJSSIO 
DIRECTORATE-GENERAL FOR COMMUNICATIONS NETWORKS. CONTENT Al'ID TECHNOLOGY 

Media Policy 
Media Conve1·gence and Soda I Media 

AGENDA 

SECOND MEETING OF THE CODE OF PRACTICE'S PERMANENT TASK-FORCE, 

5 July 2022, 15:00-17 :00 

FOLLO\VED BY FIRST MEETING OF THE CRISIS RESPONSE SUB-GROUP 

5 July 2022, 17:00-18:00 

15:00-15:10 Welcoming remarks and adoption of the agenda 

L·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-J~!!-~~£.t!!~.-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· jDG CNECT 14) 

15:10-16:10 Vademecum on the work of the Task-force: 

Discussion »ith J:1sk-force Members in view oJ" the ~1doption of the V,1demecum. 

16:10-16:25 Task-force sub-groups: 

Establishment of the sub-groups in light of the b1terest expressed by Task-force 

Members. 

16:25-16:40 Call fot· Interest for new Signatories: 

Disc11ssio11 with Task-force Members ill view of the publicatio11 of a call for interest 
and· further outreach acti-i,ities. 

16:40-16:50 AOB and Concluding Remarks 

16:50-17:00 Break 

17:00-18:00 First meeting of the Crisis Response sub-group: 

Exchange with Members of the subgroup on actions related to the war in Ukraine. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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Message 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 
8/10/2022 2:49:09 AM 

-@kinzen.com]; Alexis Bley ■■■l@eaca.eu] ; @microsoft.com]; 
@fb.com]; BLASCHKE Vannie ec.europa.eu]; Carlos Hernandez 

@maldita .es]; I 
microsoft.com]; Chine Labbe 

die Moreau 
@microsoft.com]; 

@vimeo.com); 
@ext.ec.europa.eu]; Gordon Crovitz 

@newsguardtech .com]; Ines Narciso I @vosteurope.org]; 
-thebrightapp.com]; Jana Kazaz ~globsec.org); Jelena Berkovic 

vimeo.com]; John-Orr Hanna @crispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes 
vosteurope.org]; ■■■l-@twitter.com]; Karolina Pietkiewicz 

@bytedance.com];ll■■ll■■l@fb.com]; Laura Le Rohe 
Luana Lo Piccolo-@support.avaaz.org]; Luca Nicotra -@avaaz.org]; 

@google.com]; ■■■■■■■I @microsoft.com]; 
@fb.com]; Mark Little-@kinzen.com]; ■■■■■■ @twitch.tv]; 

@microsoft .com]; ■■■■I @google.com]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral ~@avaaz.org]; 
@justin.tv]; Paul Coppin @rsf.org]; Paula Gori ■■l@eui.eu]; Pawel 

@demagog.org.pl]; Stanislav Matejka @rvr.sk]; STUMP Krisztina 
ec.europa.eu]; Tfmea Cervenova @rvr.sk]; Tjade Stroband 

@microsoft.com]; Tommaso Canetta @pagellapolitica.it]; Veena McCoole 
@newsguardtech.com]; Vincent Berthier @rsf.org); Virginia Padovese 

@newsguardtech.com] 
Crisis Response Subgroup - Agenda for today's meeting 

Attachments: Draft Agenda Subgroup Crisis Response 10.08_.docx 

Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup, 

Please find attached the agenda for today's meeting of the crisis response subgroup. 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0000636 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Appointment 

From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
Sent: 8/24/2022 1:55 :14 AM 
To: • • ]; Alexis Bley @microsoft.com]; 

@ec.europa.eu]; Carlos Hernandez 

I 
microsoft.com]; Chine Labbe 

die Moreau 
@microsoft.com]; 

@vimeo.com]; 
@ext.ec.europa.eu]; Gordon Crovitz 

@newsguardtech .com]; Ines Narciso I @vosteurope.org]; 
.@thebrightapp.com]; Jana Kazaz [l■■l@globsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic 

e>vimeo.com]; John-Orr Hanna -
@vosteurope.orgJ;■■■■-@twitter.com ]; 

@neva -labs.com]; ■■■■l@bytedance.com]; 
@fb.com]; Laura Le Roho @rsf.org]; Luana Lo Piccolo - @support.avaaz.org]; Luca Nicotra 

-@avaaz.org]; @google.com]; ■■■■■■I @microsoft.com]; 
@fb.com ]; Mark Little -@kinzen.com]; 

Subject: 

Location: 

Start : 
End: 

@twitch.tv]; 
Nadia Guerlenda Cabral -@avaaz.org]; 
Paula Gori @eui.eu]; Pawel Terpilowski 

@rvr.sk]; STUMP Krisztina 
@rvr.sk]; 

@pagel lapol itica.it]; Veena McCoole 
@rsf.org]; Virginia Padovese 

Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task-force) Meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

8/24/2022 7:30:00 AM 
8/24/2022 9:00:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup, 

@mi crosoft. com]; ■■liiii @google.com ]; 
@justin.tv]; Pau l Coppin @rsf.org]; 
@demagog.org.pl]; Stanislav Matejka 

@ec.europa.eu); Timea Cervenova 
.com]; Tom ma so Canetta 
newsguardtech.com]; Vincent Berthier 
uardtech.com] 

In accordance with the calendar set forth in the Terms of Reference, we send you the recurring meeting invitation for 
our bi-monthly meetings. 

Looking forward to seeing you, kind regards, 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0000638 
1359



Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer or mobile app 
Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode:­
Down!oa,:t,Teams I foin .. on .the_web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams,tech.ec .. europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: -
Alternate VTC instrucbqns 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn More I Helo I f'vfoeting ODtions 

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
9/1/2022 1:12:38 AM 

-@kinzen.com]; Alexis Bley @microsoft.com); 
@fb.com]; BLASCHKE Vannie ropa.eu]; Carlos Hernandez 

@maldita.es]; ■ 
microsoft.com]; Chine Labbe 

wsguardtech .com]; Ines N vosteurope.org]; 

die Moreau 
@microsoft.com]; 

vimeo.com); 
on Crovitz 

• az ■■I Jelena Berkovic 
vi 

inking.com]; ro 
@twitter.co ne 

bytedance.co . , au @rsf.org]; Luana Lo Piccolo 
-@support.avaaz.org]; Luca Nicotra -@avaaz.org]; Lucy Call @google.com];-

@microsoft.com];~~~~,===1=1 @fb.com]; 
-@kinzen.com]; ■■■@twitch . tv]; ■■■■@microsoft.com];-

le.com]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral -@avaaz.org]; Olaf Cram me ■■■l@iustin .tv]; 
@rsf.org]; Paula Gori @eui.eu]; Pawel Terpilowski 
agog.erg.pl]; RABBACHIN Alberto @ec.europa.eu]; Stanislav Matejka 

rvr.sk]; STUMP Krisztin @ec.europa.eu]; Tfmea Cervenova 
vr.sk];■■■■■ @microsoft.com]; Tommaso Canetta 
ol itica.it]; Veena McCo @newsguardtech.com]; Vincent Berthier 

rsf.org); Virginia Padovese ■■I @newsguardtech.com] 
Subject: Crisis Response Subgroup Meeting 7 September 
Attachments: Agenda Subgroup Crisis Response 07 .09.docx 

Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup, 

Please find attached the agenda for our meeting next week, September 7. With regards to ongoing narratives on 
Ukraine, it could be particularly relevant to discuss any activity related to the ongoing Cherson offensive and the EU 
decision to tighten rules for visa to Russian citizens, as well as narratives seeking to undermine public support for 
sanctions (e.g. leveraging the current energy crisis). In view of the resurgence of threats to public health, it could also be 
relevant to discuss COVID-19 and any visible trends concerning the Monkeypox outbreak. 

We also take the opportunity to highlight that following our discussion last week, Avaaz has created a shared document 
to collect ideas for possible experts to invite to the subgroup in the Teams Group. We invite you to add experts whose 
work you find relevant for the exchanges of the subgroup to this list. 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0000799 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start ; 

End : 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
9/2/2022 7:16:55 AM 
Alexis Bley (EACA) @eaca.e 

• soft.com); C • @newsguardtech.com]; 
@googl @tiktok.com]; Claudie Moreau (EACA) 
aca.eu); @google.com); David Goddard (DV) 

ubleveri . 1111~ @google.com]; Fiona Campbell-Webster 
@mediamath. @tiktok.com); Gabrielle Robitaille 

@wfanet.org); Gordon Crovitz (Newsguard) @newsguardtech.com]; Greg 
Mroczkowski (IAB Europe) @iabeurope.eu]; Ines Talavera (IAB Europe) ■■l@iabeu rope.eu]; 
Ingrid Hackett (MediaMath) @mediamath .com]; @gmail.com]; 
(Twitter) ■■t@twitter.com]; Justin Adler-Swanberg (Media Math) @mediamath.com]; 

@fb.com]; Lisa Ginsborg (EDMO) @eui. eu]; (YouTube) 
@google.com]; (Microsoft) osoft.co 

@fb.com); (Microsoft) crosoft.com]; (Google) 
@google.com]; Rob Rakowitz (WFA/GARMl I .org]; Sam Jeffers (Who Targets Me) 

~whotargets . me];■■■■■I (Twitter) r.com]; Stanislav Matejka (ERGA) 
@rvr.sk]; Stephan ie Posner (DV) doubleverify.com]; (Twitter) 

@twitter.com];Timea Cervenova (ERGA) r.sk]; 
@microsoft.com); Veena McCoole (Newsguard} @newsguardtech.com ]; Vi rginia Padovese 

(Newsguard) @newsguardtech.com]; RABBACHIN Alberto @ec.europa.eu]; 
BLASCHKE Vann ie ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon ec.europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne 

@ext.ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia @ec.europa .eu); BIRGER Albin 
ec.europa.eu] 

Ad Scrutiny SG // TC CoP on Disinformation 
Microsoft Teams meeting 

9/6/2022 8;00;00 AM 

9/6/2022 9:30:00 AM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Ad Scrutiny Subgroup, 

Please find below the connection detail s for our next meeting on 06.09 at 17:00 - 18:30. 

The theme of the meet ing is: 

SG Worksnop l: Sharing of current practices on SLI's within member organizations 

Kind regards, 
CoP Team 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0000233 
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Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode:­
Down!oa,:t,Teams I foin .. on .the_web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech.ec.europa .eu 

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
9/14/2022 12:42:42 AM 

• com]; Alexis Bley @eaca.eu]; Amre Metwally-@clubhouse.com); 
• t.com]; Anja Bechmann @cc.au.dk]; Antoine Bernard 

-@neeva.co ]; ■@kreakom.dk; Carlos Hernandez■■■ @maldita.es]; 
iktok.com); ■■ii■■■ll■■■■@microsoft.com]; 
soft.com]; Cecilia Kunz Paulsen.@kreakom.dk]; Chine Labbe 

ech.com]; 
m); Claudie @google.com); 

@microsoft.co ■■■I elphine Gatignol 
om]; Dominika Had da Brogi @eui.eu];-

@vimeo.com]; google.com]; Fiona Campbell-Webster 
@mediamath.com]; Gabrielle Robitaille et.org]; Gordon Crovitz 

sguardtech.com]; Greg Mroczkows iabeurope.eu]; 
as.europa .eu ■■■■l@eeas.europa.eu ] ; Gwenaelle Mercier ■■■l@doteurope.eu ]; Ines 

@vosteurope.org]; I _■■■ · pe.eu]; Ingrid Hackett 
diamath.com]; Iva Nenadic ■■■■■■tE'twitch.tv]; James Van 

@mediamath.com ~thebrightapp.com); Jana Kazaz 
globsec.org]; Jelena Berkovi . ]; 

~alphaexplorationco . comJ;■■■ @vimeo.com]; Joana Triana 
disinfo.avaaz.org]; John-Orr Han @crispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes 

vosteurope.orgJ;■■■I ~gmail.com]; -@twitter.com]; Justin 
__ ,_,,,:@med iamath.com]; Karol ina Pietkiewicz @neva-labs.com]; Katarina Klingova 

ec.org]; ■■■@adobe. com]; Kinga Osierda 
agog.org.pl] ■■I fb.com]; 
m); Laura L sf.org); Laura Moraes @avaaz.org]; Lauri Tierala 
]; Lisa Ginsbo Q>eui.eu]; Luana Lo Piccolo-@support.avaaz.org]; Lubos 
rvr.sk]; Luca Nicotra - @avaaz.org]; Lucie Mala @firma.seznam.cz];-

@rnic;rosofl.eom]; Ma, ina Sacr i:slan 

, @fb.com]; -@kinzen.com]; 
microsoft.com]; Michal Feix.@ch-c.eu]; 

Michal Halas @ch-c .eu]; @google.com]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral ~ @avaaz.org]; 
@justin.tv]; Olaf Steenfadt■■■■@rsf.org]; Ondrej Tolar 

-@firma.seznam.cz]; Paul Coppin -@rsf.org]; Paula Gori -eui.eu]; Pawel 
Terpilowski ■■■■■■@demagog.org.pl ); IPetra de Place Blak ■■■l@uni.au . dk] ; Rob Rakowitz 

@wfanet.org]; Romain Digneaux @doteurope.eu]; Sam Jeffers whotargets.me]; Sarah 
@avaaz.org]; • ]; 
uk]; Siada El 

@tiktok.com]; ~1111 .uk); 
sabrina.spielederATeeas.europa.eu .eu]; Stanislav Matejka 

@rvr.sk]; Stephanie Pos ■■■l@doubleverify.com]; 
@twitter.com); @eeas.europa.eu; Tamara Daltroff @eaca.eu]; Timea 

Cervenova (ERGA) r.sk];■■■■■ microsoft.com]; Tommaso Canetta -
PagellaPolitica tica.it]; Townsend • europe.eu]; Veena McCoole 

rdtech.com]; Virginia @newsguardtech.com]; 
eas.europa.eu; BIRGER Albi u]; BLASCHKE Vannie 
ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon 

. opa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne . . uropa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 
ec.europa.eu]; RABB fll■■■■■lll@ec.europa.eu ] ; STUMP Krisztina 

@ec.europa.eu] 

Third Plenary meeting of the Task-force of the Code of Practice 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

9/20/2022 6:00:00 AM 
9/20/2022 9:00:00 AM 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0000297 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Show Time As : Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Task-force, 

Please find below the connection details for the next plenary meeting of the Permanent Task-force of the Code of 
Practice on Disinformation, taking place on September 20, from 15:00-18:00 CET. You can also find enclosed the 

suggested draft agenda[~ 13092022 Draft Agenda Permanent Task-force Third meeting 20 September.docx]. 

The Plenary will allow the Task-force to receive updates on the work of the subgroups regarding the specific 
del iverables of the Code. It also aims to get an update from the Signatories about the state of play of the preparations 
regarding the implementation of the Code. The Task-force will also discuss the kick-off of the work of the Subgroup for 
the outreach and onboarding of new signatories. 

In case you have any suggestions, comments or additional points to be added to the agenda, please let us know by 
Friday noon. 

The preparatory documents related to the Plenary will be available in the dedicated folder within "Meetings" (for this 

event, see D Third Task-force meeting - 20 September 2022), in the general channel of the Teams group. Here, you will 
be able to consult the written progress updates and the terms of reference of each subgroup (to be uploaded by the 

subgroup coordinators by 19/09 in the morning at the latest), and any additional documents relevant for the meeting. 
Please always make sure you check this folder ahead of the meeting to be aware of the preparatory documents. 

Important information regarding joining the video conference of the Third Plenary to avoid any issues for joining the 
meeting: Please be aware that in order to join the call, you need to have access to the Task-force Teams group. All Task­
force members active so far should have access now, but do not hesitate to reach out should that not be the case. 
Please test this ahead of the meeting to avoid last-minute problems. 

In case an additional member of your organisations would like to join the call (not yet added to the Teams group) please 
let us know as soon as possible, so the necessary technical steps can be taken to integrate them in the system ahead of 
the call. Due to security checks, the process is not instantaneous and it may therefore not be possible to join the call at 
the last minute. So the necessary steps need to be taken well ahead of the meeting to avoid technical issues that 
prevent joining the meeting. 

Please don't hesitate to reach out to us in case of any additional questions. 

Regards, 

The CoP Disinfo team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0000298 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 
Passcode:­
DownloadTearns I Join onthe_web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: -
Alternate VTC fnst ruct ions 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED-
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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From: 

Attendees: 

Location: 

Subject: 

Importance: 

Start Time: 

End Time: 

Required Attendees: 

Optional Attendees: 

CNECT-COP-T ASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu[CNECT-COP-T ASK­
FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 

Alexis Bley (EACA 
Labbe (Newsguard (TikT.£!1.__ 
Claudie Moreau (E (DV); -
- (Google) ; (TikTok); Gabrielle 
Robitail le (WFA); Gordon Crovitz (Newsguard) ; Greg Mroczkowski IAB Europe); 
Ines Talaver B Europe); Ingrid • 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Ad Scrutiny Subgroup (CoP task-force) - regular meetings 

Normal 

Mon 9/19/2022 8:00:00 AM (UTC-07:00) 

Mon 9/19/2022 9:30:00 AM (UTC-07:00) 

Alexis Bley (EACA); 

insbor 

Labbe (Newsguard); (Google); (TikT2.!51...._ 
Claudie Moreau (EA oo~dard (DV); -
- (Google); : --(TikTok): Gabrielle 
Robitail le (WFA); Gordon Crovitz (Newsguard); Greg Mroczkowski (IAB Europe); 
Ines Talavera (IAB Europe); Ingrid Hackett (MediaMath); ;-
- (Twitter • Justin Adler-Swanber MediaMath • ; Lisa G~ 
EDMO ; You Tube ; ·crosoft) ; -

, (M icrosoft); Goo le ; Rob 
Rakowitz (WFNGARM); Sam Jeffers (Who Targets Me); 
(Twitter); Sfanislav Matejka (ERGA); Ste hanie Posner (DV); 
(Twitter); Timea Cervenova (ERGA); ; Veena 
-u~e (Newsguard); 

cCoole 
; -

:-

Microsoft Teams meeting 
Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode:-

Download Teams I Join on t he we b 
Join with a video conferencing device 
- @vteams.tech.ec. europa.eu 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0000850 
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Video Conference ID: -
Alternate VTC instructions 
Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn More I Help I Meeting options 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0000851 
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Message 

From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 
Sent: 9/20/2022 5:23 :29 AM 
To: 

Hernandez 
microsoft.com]; Chine 

@ec.europa.eu]; 
@ec.europa.eu]; Carlos 

I 
com]; Claudie oogle.com]; 

@mi . , dju 
m~; i 
LIPE a 

Gordon Crovitz @newsguardtech.com]; ATeeas .europa .eu 
@eeas.europa.eu]; Ines Narciso■■■I @vosteurope.org]; 

@twitch.tv]; Jana Kazaz filglobsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic @faktograf.hr]; -
@vimeo.corn]; John-Orr Hanna ■■■I @crispthinki ng.com]; Jorge Gomes 

@vosteurope . orgJ;■■■■■■l@twitter.com]; ■■■l@gmai l.com] ; 
@neva-labs .com]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna @ec.europa.eu]; 

@eeas.europa.eu;-..,et■■■@fb.com]; Laura Le Roho @rsf.org]; 
@bytedance.com); Luca Nicotra -@avaaz.org]; @google.com]; 

@microsoft.com]; Marina Sacristan 
@fb.com]; -@kinzen.com]; 

@microsoft.com]; eek @google.com]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral 
-@avaaz.org]; Olaf Cram me ■■II!! @justin.tv]; Paul Coppin ■■■■@rsf.org ); Paula Gori 

@eui.eu]; Pawel Terpilowski @demagog.org.pl]; RABBACHIN Alberto 
@ec.europa.eu); Teeas.europa.eu ■■■■@eeas.europa.eu]; 

@rvr.sk]; STUMP Krisztina @ec.europa.eu]; 
as.europa.eu; Timea Cerv 
ft .com ); Tommaso Cane 
dance.com]; Veena Mee 

@rsf. org); Virg inia Pavodese 

@newsguardtech.com]; @eeas.europa.eu 
Subject: CoP Task-force Crisis Response Subgroup - Agenda Meeting 21.09. 
Attachments: image001.png; Agenda Subgroup Crisis Response 2.109.docx 

Dear Members of the Crisis response subgroup, 

Ahead of our meeting tomorrow, we send you the proposed agenda. In line with the discussion of 7 
September in the subgroup, regarding the "Tour de Table" we encourage you to share as much as possible 
input ahead of the meeting in writing to keep the discussion round, efficient and concentrate in the oral 
interventions on new developments and priority issues. 

We also encourage you to have a look at the draft for potential ~ br~~'embtiv~,~~tion~ b'n'€ m-~rg~·~t·cHs~'~. kindly 

prepared by Jorge, that should be discussed under agenda point 3. 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0000642 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Attachments: 

CN ECT-COP· T ASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CN E CT-COP· TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa. eu] 
10/4/2022 4:38:28 PM 

L. ............. Redacted ............. Jeaca. eu ); L ....... -.... Redacted ·-·········-·_jfb.coml!__._ ........... - ... Redacted ··-···· ·····-····· 'p ec.e uropa. eu ]; 

f ·--·····-- ··-·Re~~~,~~:~:~t~--·:mal di ta .es J; t~~:~:=~===:~=~~~~i~~:::::::::::::::~e::!;;~ok .com]; [,:~:;~~.;;!~.;~.~~t.:racted i 
r-·Redacieci"··"t m icrosoft.com ]; r-·· ··--·-·····Redacted·· ···-········'1newsguardtech. com ]; r········· -Redacted ··········· i i_.,., .. , .. ,_.,. ........... _ ,,..I i ............................. , ... -....................... -----·---· ......... , 1... ........ _, _____ , __ ,..,_, .. .............. .......... . -

~==-=~;~~i;~°;~~~s;~~~~~:'.~~f ~~~~~ti~~~~~: z~ ;:: ::ir-~;:;~~~•' •·com J; 

u· ·iie<iacte.1··1goo g I e. com]; r •·• •.•.••• ·Redacieci"·· •••••••• "'l'ec. e u ro pa. eu J [ •• ••••••••••••• • • Rec.iaci;.i ••••••••••••••••••• iec. e u ropa. eu]; 

[:::::::~:~~~i~:~:::::::::Je ea S. eu ro pa. eu; [::::::::::=:::~~a:cJ.~~::=:::::: ::=:Jv oste U rope. 0 rg) c:::::==~~~3-ii~::::::::J 
[ }{id.~~!~~:Jtwi tch . tv] ;[~~~~~:::~:~::·~~~~iiL~.:::::~::Jg Io bsec. or g] L:::~:::::~:~=~~-~::::~ici~~!e..<C:~:~.~:~:::::~::~:~~Ja ktog raf. hr] L~!~.~~.~~~U 
L ................ Redacted ·········-······ lvimeo.corrt. .......... . .......... Redacted .......... ............ 1crispthinking.com]; { Redacted ... ! 
[~:j:i~~~~;~~:~:}voste urope. orgJL~·.:.-·.-·.-·.:.lii~~~.~e_:ii,_·~·.=···.~·.-·Jtwitter. com L===~~~~:~-~·~.J~.~.!'E!~cl=.·~~~-·~.·~~~~~Jg mail. com ]C-ii;;~;;i;J'"J 

l~ .. ~~P..<!.;;;.~.~;eea s.e~~v:~~:~E!~=?:~f~~~~~E!:~:~:~:~~:~:::Jfb. ::~;:r ~~~~~:~·Redacted"~:: lec.1~~~f.~~~~1.~.~·.~.~.~~.~~~C!~~.~:~·.~:~:~.1 
[~c::=~:::~~:a~~;;;;Jb.~:.~~~.:.~~;~:.·:~~~·=:~~.~~~t~::::::~~~~~~:~~~lj.c:=:::::;·.·:~~~[ i~:·~~:;~~·7···1google.com]; 

[ ~;i:_;.£~~lki nzen .com 1r-·········Reciac·teci···-··· -··@twitch.tv J; c=~'.~'.~'.~'.~~~~~'.:'.~'.:~=~ri~.!l~iiC~~::::~~=~::.~~~~::Jmicrosoft .com l f~~~~~J 

{::.:.::.::.:.~~l~~t;·~~·:·.::.:~.~~·g·l·~~~;;}~l~t:::~::~:~::~~~i!1~~~::~~::j;~i:;~f1vaa~;~~]tted_: :~: :-·· Redacted ••••••••• ··-·· ~u sti n. tv]; 

rr:-··· ••• ··Rec1.icied····-·····1d em agog. o rg. p I]; r········-· ···- _ ····---·······Rei:iacteci······ ···-···-················1ec. e u ro pa. e u]; 

[[~~.~~~~~~::.;;!~~:~~~~~:~::~·~~;~u~;~~~·~:~:~~~~~~~~~~~:~~1::::::~·;:::·~;·~·=·;;~~;~i~~~:~:~i;~·~~~i~~c;~:~·=·=·~:~=:=:=:=:=··)vr.sk]; 

L. .... B.l!.~~.~!~~ .... .JQ. Redacted ? microsoft.com) L ................... !'~!!~~e.d··········-- . .... .. . }:>ag el I apoli ti ca. it L ... B.~.~.~~.t~c.! ..... J 
r •.• Redac1ec1 ·~ 1i>bytedance.com]; r·······················Redacted············--··········:newsguardtech. com); 
0J ...... Redacted .. r. ~@eeas.europa.e~; c ·-·········-·· ···Redac'ieci······: ·········1rsf.orgL_ .... Reda.cted ....... ! 
C::~:~::!l~j§.!~~::~:~:::Jnewsguardtech.comJL ...... ~~~~P!~!·L .... @eeas.europa.eu 
[External] Kind reminder: Crisis Response Subgroup: Agenda and action items for 05 October Meeting 
Agenda Subgroup Crisis Response 0510.docx 

Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup, 

This is a kind reminder to please follow up on the agreed action points ahead of tomorrow's meeting. This concerns, on 
the one hand, your comments and edits to the pre-emptive actions document, and on the other hand to send in an 
explanation of your repeat offender policies in response to the question of VOST (c.f. below). 

We re·attach the agenda for ease of reference. 

See you tomorrow, and kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup, 

In anticipation of the meeting next week on Wednesday, we share with you the proposed agenda. In view of Meta's 
recent disruption of one Russian and f)f)f.' Chinese influence campaign on its services, they have kindly agreed to present 
their action at the next meeting. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_009127 
1376



To allow us to cover the great number of points foreseen for discussion, we would kindly request you to take in 
particular the following actions ahead of the session: 

Review and complement the ~ document on pre-emptive actions on emergent crises: In order to stimulate 
the discussion and facilitate understanding of what subgroup members could imagine contributing, we have 
added a table at the bottom of the document where you could indicate the ways in which you may potentially 

partake in this activity. Of course, you may also edit and comment on all other elements of the document 
additionally. 

{For platform subgroup members) Send your reply to VOSTs question on your services' repeat offender 
policies until Monday COB: In line with the discussion of last week, please send your input on the following 
question: Do signatories' platform services proactively monitor the behaviour of accounts that have violated 
their policies at least once, and to what extent is the platforms' enforcement against renewed infringements 
dependent on user reports? 

Thank you very much for the great work, we look forward to our next meeting. 

Best regards, 

[R•d•«oc1!and the EC CoP Disinfo Team 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task-force) Meeting 
Attachments: imageO0l.png; Agenda Subgroup Crisis Response 1910.docx 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

10/19/2022 2:30:00 PM 
10/19/2022 4:00:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup, 

In advance of our meeting next Wednesday, please find attached the proposed agenda. If you haven't already, please 
also remember to 

? enter your capacity and ideas to contribute to a common preemptive action in the ~ table of the shared 
document 

? indicate your interest in participating in the working group for the crisis response reporting templates in 

~ this form 

Kind regards, 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_008876 
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The CoP Disinfo Team 

-------- ---------- --·--- -········-··"·····"· 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer or mobile app 
Click her~J_9:_J9in the meeting_ 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode: ­
Download Teams I Joi n_ on th-e web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

~ c.eu1·opa.eu 
Video Conference ID: 
t'.\ltemate \ffC instructions. 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn Mo!·e I He!p I Meetinq options 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_008877 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 
Show Time As: 

Recurrence: 

Dea r i Redacted ! 
.... . ... .. , ... .. . ..... , .. ,1 

l,_, _ ·-·-· ··-·-·-· -·-·-·-· __ ·-· ··-R~dacted ·-· -· ··-·-··· -·-·-·-·-·-·-·- -·-· _ :ec. e uro pa. e u ) 
11/1/2022 4:29:58 PM 

[·-·-· -·-···-·-·· ·-·-·R-~d-;;~tid ···-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-Ji kto k. com] 

l~~~-~~-Redacted ~~~-Jt1ktok.com 

Connection details// Future of the Internet event - 2 November 2022 

image001.png; Fwd: Prague panel on disinformation 

Webex 

11/2/202212:35:00 PM 
11/2/20221:55 :00 PM 
Tentat ive 

(none) 

Thank you very much for having agreed to take part in the panel discussion on disinformation at the Future of the Internet event on 2 November 2022. 
I believe that1 ___ Redacted __ j has shared with you the details concerning the moderation of the discussion (please see the e-mail attached). 

Please find below a link to connect online tomorrow. Please connect ahead of the panel discussion at 13:35 CET so we are sure that everything works well. 

JS 13:45-
1 14:55 

Details of the panel discussion: 

Website of the event: https:lj digital-strategy .ec.europa .eu/ en/ events/high-level-multi-stakeholder-event-future-internet 
Twitter: https :ljtwitter. com/Digital EU/ status/1587067866 792177664 

Panel: Disinformation in Central-Eastern Europe: lessons learned from the war in Ukraine 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

Meeting number (access 
code):­
Meeting password: 

( 
from phones and video 
systems) 

TT_HJC_008820 
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The panel will provide a forum for discussion between platforms, policy makers, and civil society organisations to discuss platforms policies and measures taken 
in the region to counter disinformation and how the new co-regulatory framework based on t he Code of Practice on Disinformation w ill allow to fill gaps and 
address shortcomings. 

Participants: 

? 
? 
? 
? 
? 

Redacted 
Moderator~ • Redacted i 

\,., ..... , ..... , .. ,_, ........ ................... .. ,_ ... ,_ , .. , ........ ............... ,· 

Framing questions: 
1. What are the lessons learned from the disinformation on the UA crisis in the region and what action should be taken to tackle disinformation campaigns 

more efficiently in the future? 
2. What are particular actions platforms have undertaken to counter challenges of the region when it comes to disinformation related to the war in 

Ukraine and are these actions sufficient? 
3. How wi l l the new Code of Practice on Disinformation contribute to l imit the impact of disinformation? 

Kind regards, 
.................... ..................... _, _,_, _ __ , ___ ,_ ... , .. ............... , ... _ .. , _,_ ,_, _ ,_, ____ ,_ 

; 

Redacted 
-----·------------·- -- -- -------- ------ --·--- ·-- -- -----------------·--- ----------' 

European Commission 
DG Communications Networks, Content and Technology 
DG des Reseaux de communication, du contenu et des technologies 
Unit 1.4 - Disinformation 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

CN ECT-COP· T ASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CN E CT-COP· TASK·FORCE@ec.eu ropa. eu] 
11/11/2022 11:12:59 AM 
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Subject: Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task•force) Meeting 
Attachments: Agenda Subgroup Crisis Response 1511.docx 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

11/15/2022 2:30:00 PM 
11/15/2022 3:30:00 PM 

Show TI me As: Tent ative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Dear all, 

We're updating the meet ing invitation w ith t he proposed agenda for Tuesday. Please fi nd it attached and copied below 
for your convenience. 

1. Opening and Welcom ing remarks 

2. Sharing of new developments and actions taken related to fighting disinformation 
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a. War in Ukraine: Disinformation narratives, e.g. about Russian retreat from Kherson, on sanctions in 
connection with the energy crisis,inflation and food shortages in developing countries. 

b. Public Health and Pandemic: Disinformation narratives related to COVID-19 and new actions taken by 
signatories to limit such disinformation (including any policy changes) 

[Wherever possible, please share input ahead of the meeting in writing to keep the discussion round efficient and 
concentrate in the oral interventions on new developments and priority issues, in particular new policy changes and 
latest developments on trends and narratives.] 

3. Discussion on the outcomes of the EU High-Level conference on the Future of the Internet in Prague of 
November 2nd 2022 regarding disinformation on Ukraine in Central-Eastern Europe 

4. Discussion on the state of play of subgroup deliverables and the way ahead: crisis chapter of the monitoring 
template, risk assessment methodology and rapid response system 

5. Any other business 

We look forward to the meeting, kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Dear all, 

In view of another conflict of the subgroup's regular meeting with an important event for t he disinfo community- this 
time an important event by the European fact-checking Standards Network ( EFCSN) in Brussels - we propose to 
reschedu le for Tuesday 15. November at 15:30. As a reminder, we want to focus th is meeting main ly on a first discussion 
of the draft working paper for the risk assessment methodology and rapid response mechanism, which we will ci rculate 
as soon as possible 

We hope this works for everyone. 

As always looking forward to seeing you, kind regards, 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer or mobile app 
Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 
Passcode:­
Download Teams I Join on the web 

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
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Crisis Response Subgroup 

Written input on planned actions to reduce Ukraine related 
disinformation in Central and Eastern Europe 

Responses to the European Commission request of 28 November 2022 

Faktograf: 

To follow up on the Prague conference, Faktograf prepared this relatively short overview of our 
activities and insights. It includes data on our outputs and insights on narratives and sources & 
vectors, as well as a few alerts (RT Balkans and current monetization practices that support 
disinformation). 

Faktograf is a fact-checking non-profit media working from Croatia mostly for audiences in Croatia 
and in Croatian language, but the scope of disinformation and misinformation that is being fact­
checked is wider due to [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/seecheck.org/index.php/abouU_;!!DOxrgLBm!Fk391YBw9w 
nvUja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVk4WCgx7 4$" \h ] of fact-checkers from South East Europe (EU MS Slovenia & Croatia 
+ EU "candidates" Serbia, Bosnia and Herzegovina and Montenegro). 

Since the start of the war in Ukraine, [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_http:/faktograf.hr_;!!DOxrgLBm!Fk391YBw9wnvUja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_ 7jd Pica YB4WbNOw24ydWhOI Id 
BRgeEllkVkiTRZe5I$" \h ] established [ HYPE RUNK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_ https:/faktograf.hr/live-blog-rat-u-ukrajini-
2/_;!!DOxrgLBm!Fk391YBw9wnvUja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVkxfmK6w0$" \h ] and by November 30 produced 103 articles, out of which 88 were 
published in the section [ HYPERLINK 
"https:/ /urldefense.com/v3/_https:/faktograf. hr/razotkriveno_; ! ! DOxrgLBm ! Fk391 YBw9wnvUja 
3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVk3khYdAU$" \h] (debunks on social networks - Meta's 3PFCP), while 15 were analysis 
published in other sections of the website such as [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/faktograf.hr/pod-
povecalom_; ! ! DOxrgLBm! Fk391 YBw9wnvUja3I PWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEen F70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jd Pica YB4WbNOw24ydWhOI Id 
BRgeEllkVkDVoAKqQ$" \h ] (deep dive reporting and analysis) and [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/faktograf.hr/ocjena­
tocnosti_;!!DOxrgLBm!Fk391YBw9wnvUja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVkbmQpCgc$" \h ] (fact-checks of politicians' statements). Faktograf also participated 
in the [ HYPERLINK 
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"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/ukrainefacts.org/_;!!DOxrgLBm!Fk391YBw9wnvUja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVkH-4IRy0$" \h] providing 87 articles to the database. 

Social networks have proven to be a fertile ground for pro-Kremlin disinformation in Croatia. 
Facebook remained the most popular social network amongst Croatian users but Telegram has 
proved to be the most important network for the dissemination of pro-Kremlin propaganda and 
disinformation, due to its complete absence of any kind of content moderation. Pro-Kremlin 
disinformation and propaganda narratives in Croatia most often spill over from neighbouring 
countries, especially Serbia (home to regional versions of Sputnik and RT) and Bosnia­
Herzegovina, which share the same language with Croatia, enabling digital content to cross 
borders freely and effortlessly. Content of such disinformation and propaganda has mostly been 
aimed at vilifying Ukrainians as neonazis and trying to paint a picture that the war in Ukraine is 
actually being fought between Russia and the collective West. Pro-Ukrainian disinformation has 
also been reaching social networks in Croatia, but a huge majority of disinformation Faktograf has 
debunked since the beginning of the war obviously comes from Russia. The majority of 
disinformation being propagated on Facebook comes not from pages, but from private profiles 
(usually with obviously fake names) who spread it via Facebook groups. Disinformation and 
propaganda is most often being spread via short video clips, often claiming to reveal some sort 
of "hidden truth" behind the war in Ukraine with the aim to justify Russia's actions. 

Additionally, we noticed that Russia Today (in English available here [ HYPERLINK 
"https:/ /urldefense.com/v3/_https :/swentr .site/_;!! DOxrg LBm ! Fk391 YBw9wnvUja3IPW m-
3X5iRYD I280I Een F70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyC NmZx _ 7jd Pica YB4 WbN Ow24ydWhOI Id 
BRgeEllkVkNTwChSg$" \h ]) has recently started publishing its "[ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/rt.rs/_ ;!!DOxrgLBm!Fk391YBw9wnvUja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVkvs_dsBA$" \h ]" version. It [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/rt.rs/news/6092-braco-gledajte-rt-margarita­
simonjan/_;!!DOxrgLBm!Fk391YBw9wnvUja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVkW8oBc7s$" \h ] it will be starting its television channel in Serbian language by 2024, 
but since November 15th 2022 it is publishing on its [ HYPERLINK 
"https:/ /urldefense. com/v3/_https:/rt.rs/_; ! ! DOxrgLBm ! Fk391 YBw9wnvUja3I PW m-
3X5iRYDl280I Een F70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyC NmZx _ 7jd Pica YB4WbNOw24 ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVkvs_dsBA$" \h ] and its profiles at [ HYPERLINK 
"https:/ /urldefense.com/v3/_https:/t. me/rtbalkan_; ! ! DOxrg LBm ! Fk391 YBw9wnvUja3IPW m-
3X5iRYD I280I Een F70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx _ 7jd Pica YB4 WbN Ow24ydWhOI Id 
BRgeEllkVkzq-B9HI$" \h ] ("This channel can't be displayed because it violated local laws"), [ 
HYPERLINK 
"https:/ /urldefense.com/v3/_https:/m .facebook.com/rtbalkan. rs/_;!! DOxrg LBm ! Fk391 YBw9wnv 
Uja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVkdzVqQJc$" \h ], [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/www.instagram.com/rtbalkan_;!!DOxrgLBm!Fk391YBw9wn 
vUja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVk2_zW4yo$" \h ], [ HYPERLINK 
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"https:/ /urldefense. com/v3/_https :/twitter .com/rtbalkan_ ; ! ! DOxrg LBm ! Fk391 YBw9wnvUja31 PW 
m-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVkYuZOpPA$" \h ], [ HYPERLINK 
"https:/ /urldefense. com/v3/_https:/www.tiktok.com/@rtbalkan_ ; ! ! DOxrgLB m ! Fk391 YBw9wnvU 
ja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVkkEOPYWI$" \h ] and [ HYPERLINK 
"https:/ /urldefense. com/v3/_ https :/www.youtube.com/@rtbalkan_ ; ! ! DOxrgLBm ! Fk391 YBw9wn 
vUja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEen F70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_ 7jd Pica YB4WbNOw24ydWhOI Id 
BRgeEllkVkw9slvAk$" \h] ("This channel is not available"). The operation seems to have an editor 
in chief ([ HYPERLINK "https://urldefense.com/v3/_ https:/rt.rs/opinion/jelena-milincic/5822-rt­
konacno-na-balkanu/_; ! ! DOxrgLBm! Fk391 YBw9wnvUja3I PW m-
3X5iRYD I280I Een F70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DT xEpX2NyCNmZx _ 7jd Pica YB4 WbN Ow24ydWhOI Id 
BRgeEllkVk6VusJ0s$" \h ]), but is lacking impressum (information on the publisher, the editorial 
policy, the editors and the newsroom). 

The SEE Check Network analysed the data from five regional fact-checking web portals during 
the first 150 days of the war in Ukraine showing that they had published a total of 313 analyses 
in which 1,396 articles and social media posts were rated as manipulative or inaccurate. Only 274 
articles and publications were subsequently corrected after evaluation by fact-checkers. A total of 
1,573 inaccurate and manipulative claims were recorded in the region, most of which are part of 
Russian propaganda that has found its way into the countries of Southeast Europe. Furthermore, 
the analysis found that "the media from Serbia are the most common sources of misinformation 
for the entire region, and tabloids dominate among them, which, without exception, are politically 
sympathetic to the current authorities. Of the 20 individual sources with the most rated articles, 
16 are from Serbia, two from Montenegro and two from Bosnia and Herzegovina." Details on the 
analysis are available here: [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/seecheck.org/index.php/2022/08/19/global-narratives-and­
local-actors-150-days-of-the-war-in-ukraine-and-over-1500-disinformation-in-the­
region/_;!!DOxrgLBm!Fk391YBw9wnvUja3IPWm-
3X5iRYDl280IEenF70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyCNmZx_7jdPicaYB4WbNOw24ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVksPO0FEA$" \h ]. 

Lastly, it is important to also reference the research on data provided by fact-checkers in South 
East Europe. "ProPublica found Google placed ads on 13% of English-language websites that 
NewsGuard deemed unreliable for having repeatedly published false content or deceptive 
headlines and failing to meet transparency standards. In contrast, ProPublica's analysis found 
anywhere from 30% to 90% of the sites most often flagged for false claims by fact-checkers in 
the non-English languages examined were monetizing with Google". Details on the analysis are 
available here: [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_ https:/www.propublica.org/article/google-alphabet-ads-fund­
disinformation-covid-elections_ ; ! ! DOxrgLBm ! Fk391 YBw9wnvUja3 I PW m-
3X5iRYD I280I Een F70ycUVzvUvaqQ0re5DTxEpX2NyC NmZx_ 7jd Pica YB4WbNOw24 ydWhOlld 
BRgeEllkVkiuNE9pc$" \h ). 
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For this overview to remain short, important details may have been left out, so please do reply 
with questions and comments. Also if there is a more appropriate form for this short report. 
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GLOBSEC 

GLOBSEC inputs for Crisis response working group 

1) STAFF FOR CENTRAL EUROPEAN COUNTRIES 

No one has ever told public representatives, trusted flaggers or researchers including 
GLOBSEC the exact number of staff they have for decision-making on content moderation 
in CEE countries. Public representatives, who were not given any information on this 
included several Slovak ministers and Prime Minister during their meeting with Meta 
representatives or other big tech platforms. Therefore, GLOBSEC researchers suspect 
there is no one, no specific employees of Meta, who actually understand local languages 
and social and political context in the regions outside of contracted third-party fact­
checkers and trusted flaggers. 

Reliance purely on Al is not sufficient. NLP is still not working properly or with sufficient 
reliability for CEE languages. GLOBSEC and other researchers from CE regions have 
numerous examples of Meta taking down the content of various CSOs raising awareness 
in public on different events and topics, e.g. Holocaust remembrance (Post Bellum in SVK) 
or raising awareness on Russian hybrid threats (Atlantic Council of Bulgaria in BG). 
Talking about historical grievances in the region is an important part of resilience building, 
but such content is being taken down by Al reacting to catch words like "Holocaust" or 
denial of it. 

Need for balanced coordination between big tech platforms with both NGOs and public 
administration (e.g. when Slovakia blocked disinformation websites following the invasion 
of Ukraine, the Facebook pages of these websites remained active). 

+ We need platforms to invest in human resources in Central Europe 

+ Tech platforms laying off employees raises concerns about whether and how 
will they comply with the requirements of new the Code of Practice on 
Disinformation 

2) RUSSIA INFLUENCING PUBLIC OPINION THROUGH OFFICIAL GOVERNMENT 
ACCOUNTS 

Although RT and Sputnik are blocked, Embassy accounts of the Russian Federation 
keep spreading (war) propaganda and disinformation while their followership is growing 
(see Figure 1 for the Embassy of the Russian Federation in Slovakia). One of the 
examples of how active the Russian embassy has been through its social media account 
is the attempted influence operation in Slovakia in September 2022 (Figure 2). Russian 
ambassador accused Slovakia of violating a bilateral treaty with Russia on the 
maintenance of cemeteries of soldiers fallen during the WWI and WWII and blamed the 
mayor of the village Ladomirova for destroying a WWI military cemetery in the village. 
While this information was false, such narratives were amplified both on social media and 
taken over by Russian media. Content shared by Russian embassies can be qualified as 
spreading war propaganda. 
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GI FOLLOWERS 

---

FOLLOWER GROWTI I l I/0l/19-11126122 

68.8K +43.3K + 170.25% 

Figure 1: Follower growth of the official Facebook account of the Russian Embassy in Slovakia 
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Figure 2: Screenshot of the Face book account of the Embassy of Russia in Slovakia 
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3) CROSS-PLATFORM COORDINATION ON THE EU LEVEL 

of the 

Platforms should also coordinate between themselves and come up with unified 
technological solutions to identify harmful content across the platforms. This would allow 
for a coordinated approach to taking down malign and illegal content. For example, once 
harmful content is removed from Facebook, it should not continue flourishing on other 
platforms. The accounts of these individuals were blocked on Facebook but continued to 
function on Tik Tok (Figure 3). 
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Figure 3: Tik Tok accounts of two 
most active disinformation actors in 
Slovakia 
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Google: 

Ongoing support for Ukraine 

The Russian invasion of Ukraine and the ongoing war have created a humanitarian disaster, 
damaged critical infrastructure, and upended energy markets and supply chains. Since the first 
days of the invasion, Google has been [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/inside-google/company­
announcements/helping-ukraine/_;! !DOxrgLBm!Eibbl1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJYTfo55N$" \h ] the Ukrainian 
people, the Ukrainian government, and all those affected by the war. Nearly 10 months later, 
Ukrainians are still facing deadly attacks and the realities of life in an active war zone - and we 
remain focused on helping by providing cybersecurity and humanitarian [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/around-the-globe/google-europe/working-with­
unesco-to-support-ukraines-teachers-on-world-teachers-
day/_;! ! DOxrgLBm ! Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpq H5C4VF3xJWEXpWUE$" \h ], blocking 
disinformation, and providing authoritative information to people in the region. 

We're continuing to provide critical cybersecurity and technical infrastructure support by making 
a new donation of 50,000 [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_ https:/workspace.google.com/lp/business/?utm_source=google&ut 
m_medium=cpc&utm_campaign=na-US-all-en-dr-bkws-all-all-trial-e-dr-
1011401 &utm_content=text-ad-none-any-DEV _c-CRE_595115551801-
ADGP Desk*20*7C*20BKWS*20-
*20 EXA *20*7 C*20Txt*20** A20Google *20Workspace*20** A20Core _ Google *20Workspace*20C 
ore-KW ID_ 43700060153385061-kwd-346911454270&utm _term= KW _goog le *20workspace-
ST _google*20workspace&gclid=Cj0KCQiAsdKbBhDHARlsANJ6-jeA97mh­
jQiR8NtHEy9I9g_OXHUPdf3u2d-0u5en­
sLQE8waGCSq8aAuOaEALw_wcB&gclsrc=aw.ds_;JSUIJSUIJSUlfiUIJX4IJSUIJQ!!DOxrgLBm! 
Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz-
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpq H5C4VF3xJSkntf-_ $" \h ] licenses for the 
Ukrainian government. By providing these licenses and giving a year of free access to our 
Workspace solutions, including our cloud-first, zero-trust security model, we can help ensure 
Ukrainian public institutions have the security and protection they need to deal with constant 
threats to their digital systems. Through Google.org and our employees, we have now committed 
$45 million in cash donations. In addition, we have provided $5 million in donated Search 
advertising and four [ HYPERLINK "https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/outreach­
initiatives/google-org/googleorg-
fellowship/_;!!DOxrgLBm!Eibbl1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJT _nrins$" \h ] for[ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/inside-google/company­
announcements/warsaw-announcing-more-support-
ukraine/_; !!DOxrgLBm!Eibbl1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJdNQICXf$" \h ]. As part of this 
commitment, we also announced [ HYPERLINK 
"https:/ /urldefense.com/v3/_https :/ukraine .googleblog .com/2022/ 12/googleorg-fellowship-
600. htm I_;!! DOxrgLBm ! Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz-
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CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJQJQDhDT$" \h ] grant and a 
Google.org Fellowship to the East Europe Foundation which will work with Ukraine's Ministry of 
Digital Transformation to scale the national "Diia" Digital Education Portal. 

The Ukrainian government is under near-constant digital attack. That's why shortly after the 
invasion, we expanded eligibility for [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/projectshield.withgoogle.com/landing_;!!DOxrgLBm!Eibbl1 
DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfql dcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJSGSScXH$" \h ]. our free 
protection against DDoS attacks, so that Ukrainian government websites and embassies 
worldwide could stay online and continue to offer their critical services. Since then, we've 
continued to implement protections for users and track and disrupt cyber threats. 

Google's Threat Analysis Group (TAG) has been tracking threat actors, both before and during 
the war, and sharing their findings publicly and with law enforcement. TAG's [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/threat-analysis-group/update-on-cyber-activity­
in-eastern-europe/_; ! ! DOxrgLBm ! E ibbl 1 D HabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0q VGz-
CYSYEjkfq Ld c Yon9TyoLN8olzHsbAe8SreGhoRlpq H5C4 VF3xJT ncz5 _ t$" \h ] have shown that 
government-backed actors from Russia, Belarus, China, Iran, and North Korea have been 
targeting Ukrainian and Eastern European government and defense officials, military 
organizations, politicians, NGOs, and journalists, while financially motivated bad actors have also 
used the war as a lure for malicious campaigns. 

Mandiant, a part of Google Cloud, is also providing direct assistance to Ukrainian government 
entities under the [ HYPERLINK "https://urldefense.com/v3/_ https:/www.prnewswire.com/news­
re leases/ crdf-g lo ba I-becom es-platform-for -cyber-d efe nse-assi sta nee-col la bora tive-cd ac-f or -
ukraine-301676373.html_ ; !! DOxrgLBm!Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpq H5C4 VF3xJef AL9T0$" \h ] - including 
compromise assessments, incident response services, shared cyber threat intelligence, and their 
[ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/www.mandiant.com/resources/insights/ukraine-crisis­
resource-center_;!!DOxrgLBm! Eibbl1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJQ67w7DX$" \h ] - helping the 
Ukrainian government detect, mitigate, and defend against cyber attacks. 

Ukraine - and the broader Central and Eastern European region - are also facing a 
disinformation cnsIs. We're helping them by [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/threat-analysis-group/continued-cyber-activity­
in-eastern-europe-observed-by-tag/_; ! ! DOxrgLBm! Ei bbl 1 DHabBYo3i pOH p26JTEDkt6n0q VGz­
CYSYEjkfq Ld c Yon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBS reGhoRlpq H5C4 VF3xJdZT76vY$" \h ] and disrupting 
coordinated influence operations from Russian threat actors. To date, we've removed more than 
80,000 videos and 9,000 channels on You Tube related to the ongoing war in Ukraine for violating 
our Community Guidelines and Terms of Service. We've also blocked YouTube channels 
associated with Russian state-funded news channels, globally: more than 750 channels and more 
than 4 million videos, including channels tied to RT and Sputnik. YouTube has also expanded our 
major violent events policy to cover content denying, minimizing or trivializing Russia's invasion 
in Ukraine. And since March 2022, we have [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/support.google.com/adspolicy/answer/11940285?hl=en&ref_ 
topic=29265_; !! DOxrgLBm! Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz-

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_004159 
1397



CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJbA8ingq$" \h ] ads serving in 
Russia. We have also paused all ads on Google properties and networks globally for advertisers 
based in Russia; have paused globally the monetization of Russian state-funded media; and are 
prohibiting any ads from them. It's important to note that our current [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/support.google.com/adsense/answer/10502938?hl=en_;!!D 
OxrgLBm! Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz-
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpq H5C4 VF3xJSq_ T0WP$" \h and 
HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/support.google.com/youtube/answer/6162278?hl=en_;!!DO 
xrgLBm!Eibbl1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJd4PUSsK$" \h already 
prohibited many forms of content related to the war in Ukraine from monetizing. This includes 
content that incites violence. In addition, we have paused the monetization of content that exploits, 
dismisses, or condones the war across our services. 

We also recognize that misinformation has specific regional dimensions. That's why we've forged 
partnerships with think tanks and civil society organizations to conduct region-specific research 
into misinformation and disinformation, rolling out [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/inside-google/company­
announcements/warsaw-announcing-more-support-
ukraine/_; !!DOxrgLBm!Eibbl1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJdNQICXf$" \h ] networks and 
nonprofits. This includes a recent $2.5 million Google.org grant to [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/www.techsoupeurope.org/_;!!DOxrgLBm!Eibbl1 DHabBYo3i 
pOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz-
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJf11 za8y$" \h ] to help civil 
society organizations across Central and Eastern Europe leverage technology to fight 
disinformation at scale. 

Access to authoritative information is critical for those on the ground and those seeking to flee 
danger in the region. In the early days of the invasion, we [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/inside-google/company­
announcements/helping-ukraine/_;!!DOxrgLBm!Eibbl1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJYTfo55N$" \h ] closely with the 
Ukrainian government to set up a system that sends rapid air raid alerts to Android mobile phones 
in at-risk areas, and to feature information on Search and Maps about shelter, humanitarian 
services, and aid points. Globally, we've surfaced features on Search to provide quick access to 
authoritative information, including highlighting news coverage from trusted sources and other 
helpful context about the war. And on YouTube, we've surfaced videos from authoritative sources 
in search results and recommendations. The breaking news and top news shelves on YouTube's 
homepage have received more than 100 million views in Ukraine. 

Additional investments from Google and YouTube in fact-checking 

On November 29, 2022, Google and YouTube also announced a $13.2 million grant to the [ 
HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/www.poynter.org/ifcn/_;!!D0xrgLBm!Eibbl1 DHabBYo3ipOH 
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p26JTEDkt6n0qVGz-CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJdlHngzX$" 
\h ] (IFCN) at the nonprofit Poynter Institute to launch a new Global Fact Check Fund to support 
their network of 135 fact-checking organizations from 65 countries covering over 80 languages. 
Building on our previous work to address misinformation, this is Google and YouTube's single 
largest grant in fact-checking. 

Across Google and YouTube, we aim to connect you with high-quality information, and help you 
understand and evaluate that information. Fact-check features on Google Search, News and 
You Tube are an easy way to find information from independent fact-checking organizations. You 
can find fact-check and additional context features across our surfaces, such as: 

• Fact checks from independent organizations in Google Search results. [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_ https:/www.google.com/search/howsearchworks/informatio 
n-quality/*tools_ ;lw!! DOxrgLBm!Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpq H5C4 VF3xJcxL YTGz$" \h ) relevant 
fact check articles in results in Search, News and Google Images to ensure you get the 
full context while you're searching. 

• Fact-check [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/support.google.com/youtube/answer/9229632?hl=en 
_ ;!!DOxrgLBm!Eibbl1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfql dcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJUVCtvpP$" \h) appear at 
the top of search results for queries related to a specific claim, helping provide viewers 
with additional context. These panels are available in six countries and we're working to 
roll them out in additional markets. 

• The HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/products/news/google-news-
an n iversa ry-loca I-reporting-
fun ding/_ ;!! DOxrgLBm ! Ei bbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfql dcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJSkkBEux$" \h) section in 
[ HYPERLINK "https://urldefense.com/v3/_ https:/news.google.com/home-opt­
in?oc= 13&oci=glbl_20 _blog_;!! DOxrgLBm! Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpq H5C4 VF3xJY6FJM-I$" \h ] on 
desktop. In addition to headlines, you'll now see the original claim made along with the 
fact-checked assessment from independent organizations. 

• [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/toolbox.google.com/factcheck/explorer_ ;!!DOxrgLB 
m! Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOH p26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpq H5C4 VF3xJYQUDiko$" \h] searches 
claims from among 150,000 fact checks from reputable publishers. 

• Following a major news event, the HYPERLINK 
"https:/ /urldefense. com/v3/_https :/support.google .com/youtu be/answer/9057101 ?hl=en 
_ ;!!DOxrgLBm!Eibbl1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfql dcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJR2aS9Lm$" \h ] may 
appear in YouTube search results for relevant queries, showing you developing stories 
from news sources that follow Google News content policies. 

• [ HYPERLINK "https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/products/search/get-the­
full-picture-with-helpful-context-on-
websites/_ ;!!DOxrgLBm!Eibbl1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz-
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CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBS reGhoRlpq H5C4 VF3xJaXrUoRo$" \h is 
another Search feature that helps you see more context about a result before you ever 
visit a web page, just by tapping the three dots next to the result. 

• When information you're searching for isn't broadly available yet, Google Search [ 
HYPERLINK "https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/products/search/new-
notice-search-rapidly-evolving-
results/_;! !DOxrgLBm! Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBS reGhoRlpq H5C4 VF3xJbAeK75Z$" \h ] on your 
results indicating that it can take time for a range of sources to publish information on a 
topic. 

We're continually making investments in our products, programs and partnerships to help fight 
misinformation, in Ukraine and globally. YouTube also recently launched [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/www.youtube.com/@HitPause/featured_;!!DOxrgLBm!Eibbl 
1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJSiTDZmb$" \h ], a media literacy 
initiative to help viewers spot and evaluate misinformation. Additionally, Google continues to 
partner with organizations focused on media literacy through the [ HYPERLINK 
"https :/ /urldefense. com/v3/_https:/newsinitiative. withgoogle .com/_;!! DOxrgLBm! Eibbl 1 D Ha bB 
Yo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpqH5C4VF3xJSSCk27i$" \h ]. Since 2018, the 
Google News Initiative has [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blog.google/products/search/information-
literacy/_; !!DOxrgLBm! Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3ipOHp26JTEDkt6n0qVGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpq H5C4 VF3xJTKrUvNW$" \h ] nearly $75 
million in projects and partnerships working to strengthen media literacy and combat 
misinformation around the world. Our grant to the IFCN builds on that commitment. 

Lastly, in May 2022, we were honored to HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/thedigital.gov.ua/news/mikhaylo-fedorov-vruchiv-pershu­
vidznaku-m iru-kompanii-google_; !! DOxrgLBm! Eibbl 1 DHabBYo3i pOHp26JTE Dkt6n0q VGz­
CYSYEjkfqldcYon9TyoLN8olzHsbAeBSreGhoRlpq H5C4 VF3xJ clfh hh U$" \h] award introduced 
by President Zelenskyy for our work to support the people of Ukraine. Since then, the war has 
taken on new dimensions, and we remain steadfast in our commitment to being worthy of that 
award. We join the international community in expressing our sincere hope for a return to a 
peaceful and sovereign Ukraine - and will continue to look for new ways to help those whose 
lives have been so deeply and tragically affected. 
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Maldita.es 

We would like to share with all of you a short reflection on our experiences (and those from other 
fact-checkers that are not signatories) regarding disinformation about Central and Eastern Europe 
and the war in Ukraine. 

Importance of cooperation 

As the Russian invasion started, a massive wave of disinformation could be seen coalescing 
literally within minutes. If we had learned one thing from the worst times of the pandemic, it was 
that coordination and cooperation was the only approach possible if we wanted to be effective 
against it. 

• When the war began, Maldita.es rapidly got in touch with fact-checkers from all around 
the world in order to develop [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/ukrainefacts.org/_;!!DOxrgLBm!HWWjF15QavhzlXV 
4Jk1JuJPH1wRot6H3NqKQVz6ttj4vM2kTeeOctU0hl Tq­
RWMg_L3czceMb9bX0tnpJpO4CQ2e31pMf34$" ]. This database has resulted in over 
5,000 debunks from almost 1000 organizations in 88 different countries, all of them 
available in a website. The objective of this coordination between fact-checkers was not 
only to avoid a duplication of efforts, but to understand this phenomenon from a 
transnational perspective, looking for narratives and monitoring contents in different 
countries. The next step we are planning to take is opening the tool to researchers. 

• The project of [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/efcsn.com/_;!!DOxrgLBm!HWWjF15QavhzlXV4Jk1J 
uJPH1wRot6H3NqKQVz6ttj4vM2kTeeOctU0hL Tq­
RWMg_L3czceMb9bX0tnpJpO4CQ2ehMmsBUw$" ] (EFCSN), with Maldita.es in its 
consortium, has taken shape in the context of the war in Ukraine. Within this framework, 
we have been able to be in touch with organizations based in Central and Eastern Europe, 
including Ukraine. The EFCSN has tried to support small organizations by fostering 
technical capacity building (e.g. establishment of improved databases) and skills training 
(e.g. on advocacy activities) to empower the fight against disinformation in the region. The 
association is open to new members and to continue facilitating and embracing the efforts 
of independent fact-checkers. 

• Maldita.es also took part in HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/edmo.eu/2022/03/04/ledmo-establishes-a-taskforce­
on-disinformation-about-the-war-in­
ukraine/_;!!DOxrgLBm!HWWjF15QavhzlXV4Jk1JuJPH1wRot6H3NqKQVz6ttj4vM2kTe 
eOctU0hL Tq-RWMg_L3czceMb9bX0tnpJpO4CQ2e_AycQFk$" ]. Here we shared our 
daily insights, common trends and narratives, as well as guidance to continue to fight 
disinformation about the conflict. This exchange was translated in [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/edmo.eu/2022/06/29/10-recommendations-by-the-
tas kforce-on-di si nformati on-and-the-war-in-
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ukraine/_;!!DOxrgLBm!HWWjF15QavhzlXV4Jk1JuJPH1wRot6H3NqKQVz6ttj4vM2kTe 
eOctU0hL Tq-RWMg_L3czceMb9bX0tnpJpO4CQ2eZCcYMUk$" ] published online. It is 
yet to be checked if these final recommendations have been listened to and are applied 
by relevant actors. 

• During this crisis, platforms have relied on the content produced by Maldita.es for 
information panels or 3rd party verifications (e.g. Meta's 3PFC). We asked for improved 
data access to platforms signatories of the Code, so we could better understand the threat, 
but it did not materialize as we had hoped. 

Constant evolution of narratives 

At the very first stage of the invasion, disinformation was abundant but rather easy and quick to 
debunk. Images taken from video games or old videos from past conflicts were being 
disseminated in social media as real footage of the war outbreak. Next, disinformation 
decreased in number of contents but increased in its sophistication, forcing us to switch 
from simple techniques to OSINT to debunk them. 

The situation on the battlefield shaped the trending narratives, with disinformation adapting 
to fit the particular events. Those promoting disinformation tried out different contents, starting 
off by accusing [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/maldita.es/malditobulo/20220926/bulos-presidente-ucrania­
zelenski/_;!!DOxrgLBm!HWWjF15QavhzlXV4Jk 1 JuJ PH1 wRot6H3NqKQVz6ttj4vM2kTeeOctU0 
hl Tq-RWMg_L3czceMb9bX0tnpJpO4CQ2e52STrvA$"] of fleeing the country the first day of the 
invasion, shifting to false allegations of war crimes or drug addiction. We also found narratives 
directly linked to European realities. Hoaxes portraying [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/maldita.es/malditobulo/20220831/bulos-desinformaciones­
refugiados-ucranianos-espana-
europa/_;!!DOxrgLBm!HWWjF15QavhzlXV4Jk 1 JuJPH1 wRot6H3NqKQVz6ttj4vM2kTeeOctU0 
hl Tq-RWMg_L3czceMb9bX0tnpJpO4CQ2e5uiQU34$"] as nazis to influence their status, as well 
as contents on energy shortages or [ HYPERLINK 
"https:/ /urldefense. com/v3/_https:/mald ita.es/malditobu lo/20220902/pol iticos-ue-1 0000-foro-
2021 /_ ;!! DOxrgLBm ! HWWjF 15QavhzlXV 4J k 1 JuJ PH 1 wRot6H3 N q K QVz6ttj4 vM2k T eeOctU0h L 
Tq-RWMg_L3czceMb9bX0tnpJpO4CQ2ejJBM8iE$" ] that tried to shape decisions in foreign 
policy. 

Increasing our production and capacities 

The distance between Spain, where Maldita.es is based, and Ukraine has not prevented 
disinformation from targeting our country. The huge wave of misinformation and disinformation 
we were confronted with forced us to boost our efforts and stretch our resources to their limit. 
Being quick when debunking was extremely crucial so our team organized weekend shifts to keep 
up with the dissemination of disinformation and various colleagues joined Maldita's team to 
increase our capacities. 

This effort has resulted in HYPERLINK 
"https:/ /urldefense .com/v3/_https :/maid ita.es/malditobu lo/20221124/conflicto-mil ita r-rusia-
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ucrania­
bulos/_;!!DOxrgLBm!HWWjF15QavhzlXV4Jk1JuJPH1wRot6H3NqKQVz6ttj4vM2kTeeOctU0hL 
Tq-RWMg_L3czceMb9bX0tnpJpO4CQ2en3C9p10$" ] debunking disinformation related to the 
war and everything surrounding it. 

We hope you find this short reflection useful and do not hesitate to make comments and ask 
questions for further clarification. We are also looking forward to your summaries and your 
different approaches. 
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Meta 

Disinformation: 

• Coordinated Inauthentic Behavior: Our security teams are on high alert and working with 
researchers to identify emerging threats and respond as quickly as we can, including 
taking down Coordinated Inauthentic networks. Since the beginning of the invasion of 
Ukraine, we have taken down three distinct networks operated from Russia that targeted 
discourse around the war for violating our policy against Coordinated Inauthentic 
Behavior. See [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/about.fb.com/news/2022/02/security-updates­
ukraine/_;!!DOxrgLBm!GtMwYAmkkSCJ_nD5zD3MsT _n 1 n4-
dg3RVyYN4g00gzaCdNw1 RNH5Xbx2DXpTWu0K7IJHSSrT1 hUo_iYPBwFb4aoWsw$" ], 
[ HYPERLINK "https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/about.fb.com/news/2022/08/metas­
adversarial-threat-report-q2-2022/_; !! DOxrgLBm !GtMwY AmkkSCJ _n D5zD3Ms T _n 1 n4-
dg3RVyYN4g00gzaCdNw1 RN H5Xbx2DXp TWu0K7IJ HSSrT1 hUo _iYPBwHWDHZJIQ$" 
], and [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/about.fb.com/news/2022/09/removing-coordinated-
i na uthentic-behavior-from-ch ina-a nd-
russia/_; !! DOxrgLBm!GtMwY AmkkSCJ _n D5zD3Ms T _n 1 n4-
dg3 RVyYN4g00gzaCdNw1 RNH5Xbx2DXpTWu0K7IJHSSrT1 hUo_iYPBwGTzXRC3g$" 
] for our public announcements about these takedowns. We also [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/about.fb.com/news/2022/12/protecting-people-from­
online-threats-in-2022/_;!!DOxrgLBm!GtMwYAmkkSCJ_nD5zD3MsT_n1n4-
dg3RVyYN4g00gzaCdNw1 RNH5Xbx2DXpTWu0K7IJHSSrT1 hUo_iYPBwF5eY7zyA$" 
] earlier today with a comprehensive view into what we've learned in 2022 in protecting 
people from various threats, including our work to disrupt covert influence operations 
and spyware vendors, our bug bounty program, and new account security features. 

• State-controlled media entities: In the EU, Ukraine and the UK we restricted access to 
RT and Sputnik. Globally we are showing content from all Russian state-controlled 
media lower in Feed and adding labels from any post on Facebook that contains links to 
their websites, so people know before they click or share them. All ads and posts from 
state-controlled media outlets on Facebook and lnstagram are labeled prominently. We 
also apply these labels to lnstagram profiles, the "About this Account" section of 
lnstagram accounts, the Page Transparency section of Facebook Pages and in our Ads 
Library. 

Misinformation: 

Fact-checking: We continue to expand our fact-checking network - recognizing both the ask to 
ensure consistent implementation of the Code across the EU and the increased risk that Central 
Eastern Europe faces. In July we announced an expansion of our existing fact-checking 
capacities in Central & Eastern Europe with the addition of new local third-party fact-checkers in 
Estonia, Romania, Albania, Kosovo, and Slovenia. The new fact-checkers in Estonia and 
Romania will bolster existing capacity, while the Albania, Kosovo and Slovenia fact-checkers 
are the first in those countries. 

Demonetisation: All our usual policies apply in Central Eastern Europe. 
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• Our [ HYPERLINK "https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/transparency.fb.com/en­
gb/policies/ad-standards/unacceptable-
content/misinformation/_; ! ! DOxrgLBm !GtMwY AmkkSCJ _n D5zD3Ms T _n 1 n4-
dg3RVyYN4g00gzaCdNw1 RN H5Xbx2DXp TWu0K7IJHSSrT1 hUo _iYPBwFamwA04A$" 
] prohibit ads that include content debunked by third-party fact-checkers. And advertisers 
that repeatedly attempt to post content rated by fact-checkers may also incur restrictions 
to advertise across Meta technologies. 

• For the monetisation of initially organic content, (1) per our [ HYPE RUNK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/www.facebook.com/help/publisher/content­
guidelines_;!!DOxrgLBm!GtMwYAmkkSCJ_nD5zD3MsT_n1n4-
dg3RVyYN4g00gzaCdNw1 RNH5Xbx2DXpTWu0K7IJHSSrT1 hUo_iYPBwHGDu--Zw$"], 
any content that's labeled as false by our third-party fact checkers is ineligible for 
monetization, and (2) any actor found in violation of our Community Standards, including 
our misinformation policies, may lose the right to monetize their content, per our [ 
HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_ https:/www.facebook.com/help/publisher/monetization­
eligibility_;!!DOxrgLBm!GtMwYAmkkSCJ_nD5zD3MsT_n1n4-
dg3RVyYN4g00gzaCdNw1 RNH5Xbx2DXpTWu0K7IJHSSrT1 hUo_iYPBwFt-dtwBg$" ]. 
We note that monetization is only eligible in certain regions (there is more information in 
[HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/www.facebook.com/business/help/26712878401498 
1_;!!DOxrgLBm!GtMwYAmkkSCJ_nD5zD3MsT_n1n4-
dg3RVyYN4g00gzaCdNw1 RNH5Xbx20Xp TWu0K7IJHSSrT1 hUo_iYPBwHEn 1 0i9A$" ]). 
For example, accounts based in Bulgaria, Czechia, Russia, and Slovakia are not eligible 
for monetization, but accounts in Ukraine, Romania, and Poland are. 

• We are also prohibiting ads from Russian state media and demonetized their accounts. 

Expert engagement: We have stepped up our engagement with local experts on the ground, 
including co-organizing events with local misinformation-countering organizations, such as 
DebunkEU in Lithuania and the Media Literacy Coalition in Bulgaria, among others. These 
events are aimed at increasing awareness of our policies for civil society, academia and the 
public. We also brought together 23 misinformation and disinformation experts from 10 
countries across the CEE region in Warsaw this winter. This was a critical opportunity to debate 
and receive stakeholder feedback on our misinformation policies, including in the context of the 
war in Ukraine - balancing freedom of speech and the safety of our users. We also received 
encouraging feedback that our platforms are some of the most complicated to create efficient 
disinformation campaigns on. And we were pleased to hear from several experts that Meta 
stood out in its willingness to engage and hear from misinformation and disinformation experts 
in the region. 

In addition, we are working closely with government stakeholders across the region. For 
example, Meta internal expert leads on topics of Content Policy, Influence Operations and 
Misinformation are holding a series of workshops for the Bulgarian Ministry of e-Governance. 
We plan to expand this effort in 2023. Similarly in Slovakia, we are in active contact with 
government and non-governmental experts to hear and get feedback from our Slovak 
communities. We are welcoming the expertise of the Council of Media Services with whom we 
are communicating regularly on different issues of both technical and content nature. Our aim is 
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to continue working together closely with the Slovak administration and show our openness for 
future collaboration on common projects on media literacy. 

Dedicated escalation channel: When the war started, we created a direct and temporary 
escalation path for appropriate bodies/administrations to report content to us regarding the 
ongoing war. As of today, this escalation channel is active in Bulgaria, Poland, Slovakia, Latvia, 
and Estonia. The content that is reported to us through this channel is removed if in breach of 
our Community Standards. For such content, we also ask our cyber security team to check the 
possible presence of coordinated inauthentic behavior where there are signals of this potential 
activity. Where the content does not violate our Community Standards, we conduct a legal and 
human rights assessment, after which the content may be restricted in the relevant jurisdiction if 
the content is found to be clearly unlawful. Content eligible to be reviewed under our fact­
checking program may also be enqueued to independent third-party fact-checking 
organizations. If fact-checkers assess the content to be false, we reduce the distribution of the 
content and label it globally. 

Media literacy campaigns: We also recognise that the fight against misinformation is multi­
pronged, and find that there is value in proactive and pre-emptive measures aimed at 
strengthening our users' digital citizenship and resilience to this harmful content. On that basis, 
since the invasion of Ukraine we launched educational media literacy campaigns to raise the 
awareness of our users in Poland, Slovakia, Lithuania, Latvia, Estonia, Albania, Bosnia and 
Herzegovina, Kosovo, Serbia and Bulgaria. All of these campaigns were designed in 
partnerships with our local fact-checking partners as well as expert safety NGOs. We reached 
16 million users and had 72 million impressions with our campaign in all countries. We are 
looking at launching similar campaigns in 2023. 

Content moderation: By way of background, we have robust technology and expert review 
teams who detect, analyze, and take action on millions of pieces of content every day on 
Facebook and lnstagram. Like many machine learning models, our technology improves over 
time as it receives more examples of violating content. In instances where our technology is 
near-certain that content is breaking our rules, it may remove it automatically. Where there is 
less certainty, it will prioritize content for our human review teams to look at. This allows our 
human review teams to assess the most difficult cases of borderline content, instead of simply 
looking at reported content in chronological order. 

Globally, we have around 40,000 people working to provide safety on the platform, including 
15,000 content reviewers who are collectively capable of reviewing content 24/7 in more than 70 
languages, including all languages of the EU. We have teams of native Russian and Ukrainian 
content reviewers with local linguistic and cultural context as well as language coverage across 
all the primary languages in Central and Eastern Europe such as Polish, Czech, Romanian or 
Hungarian, as well as languages spoken by African, Caribbean and Arab diaspora communities 
that have been impacted in the region. 

When it comes to enforcing our policies, there are several ways we always work to help make 
sure we're applying our policies as accurately and consistently as possible. 

• First, our policies are extremely detailed to remove any room for interpretation or 
subjectivity. The goal is for any two people looking at the same piece of content to make 
the same decision, when reviewed against these policies. 
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• Second, every reviewer undergoes an onboarding process and regular re-training to 
make sure they properly understand our policies and how to apply them. 

• Third - and very importantly - we conduct weekly audits across all our review teams, to 
maintain quality and accuracy, and understand where mistakes are being made, so we 
can take steps to address them. We audit reviewers' decisions based on a random 
sample, meaning it wouldn't be possible for a reviewer to evade this system or choose 
which decisions are audited. Our audits on the Central and Eastern region have shown 
good levels of accuracy, and are consistent with our results across other review sites 
and other languages. 

• Fourth, jobs are allocated to reviewers randomly, so no reviewer would be able to 
guarantee that they'd be reviewing a certain piece of content. And again - decisions are 
eligible for auditing, meaning we'd be able to see patterns over- or under-enforcing. 

Despite these efforts however, we know there will be examples of things we miss or we take 
down in error, as both machines and people make mistakes. This is why we have a global 
appeals system where users can let us know if they think we have made an error and we will 
review it. Once they have exhausted their appeals process with us, users can also submit an 
appeal to the Oversight Board, who then select the most significant and challenging cases to 
deliberate. 

Finally, the work that we do to get feedback from a network of local and international partners 
(including as outlined above) allows us to identify emerging risks and move quickly to address 
these risks. We recognize that local context and language-specific expertise is essential for this 
work, so we will remain in close communication with experts, partner institutions and non­
governmental organizations. We also maintain an open dialogue with your administration, and 
continue to make huge investments to improve our systems for moderating content. 
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Microsoft 

Re measures to reduce disinformation on Ukraine in Central and Eastern Europe 

• Microsoft's Digital Threat Analysis Center (DTAC) team closely tracks cyber-enabled 
influence operations. The DTAC team incorporates analysts from the recently acquired 
Miburo Solutions, a digital analysis and consulting company that specializes in the 
detection and assessment of foreign influence operations. DTAC's mission is to detect, 
assess, and disrupt digital threats to Microsoft, its customers, and democracies worldwide. 
The analysts on the team's four regionally focused hubs analyze and report on nation 
state threats, including both cyberattacks and influence operations, combining information 
and threat intelligence with geopolitical analysis to provide insights and inform effective 
response and protections. DT AC analysts focused on Europe/Eurasia report on a wide 
range of Russian influence tactics used to malign or diminish support for Ukraine: 
propaganda and disinformation published across different languages; people-to-people 
and party-to-party engagement; real-world provocations; and those that blend cyber and 
influence activity, like hack-and-leak campaigns. DTAC's work includes analyzing the 
ways these methods are leveraged to target audiences in Central and Eastern Europe. 

• In June of this year, Microsoft issued its "Defending Ukraine" [ HYPERLINK 
"https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blogs.microsoft.com/on-the­
issues/2022/06/22/defending-ukraine-early-lessons-from-the-cyber­
war/_;!!DOxrgLBm!GNrGLGpRKl7X456qm-
9NnbbZOxtJJhlM9Gap0ODlvH5Rs1 PUgeg8iOQV1 uiP3maZrFpllojt5HTy8uix56WlxvmO 
0SsBrw$" ] detailing the relentless and destructive Russian cyberattacks and influence 
operations, that we have directly observed in the hybrid war Russia is waging against 
Ukraine. In a [ HYPERLINK "https://urldefense.com/v3/_https:/blogs.microsoft.com/on­
the-issues/2022/12/03/preparing-russian-cyber-offensive­
ukraine/_;!!DOxrgLBm!GNrGLGpRKl7X456qm-
9NnbbZOxtJJhlM9Gap0ODlvH5Rs1 PUgeg8iOQV1 uiP3maZrFpllojt5HTy8uix56Wlxvmq 
M_hRug$"] issued in early December, Microsoft has further detailed its observations that 
the Russian attacks on Ukraine and allied countries rely in part on a cyber strategy that 
includes at least three distinct and sometimes coordinated efforts - destructive 
cyberattacks within Ukraine, network penetration and espionage outside Ukraine, and 
cyber influence operations targeting audiences in Europe to fuel real-world discord. The 
report specifically highlights Russian influence operations targeting European 
populations-such as audiences in Italy, Czech Republic, and Germany, among others­
using different influence levers, including propaganda campaigns, to amplify organic, local 
dissent and diminish support for Ukraine. 

• Russian propaganda continually seeks to amplify the intensity of popular dissent across 
Europe by boosting select narratives online through state-affiliated media outlets and 
social media accounts to undermine elected officials and democratic institutions, most 
recently focusing on energy and inflation. To monitor the consumption of news from 
Russian state-controlled and state-sponsored news outlets and amplifiers, Microsoft's Al 
for Good Lab has created a Russian Propaganda Index (RPI). This index measures the 
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proportion of this propaganda flow to overall news traffic on the internetl11. We will be 
expanding the coverage of the RPI in the coming months to include additional European 
countries, including in the CEE region. 

• Microsoft has in addition supported nonprofits, journalists, and academics both within 
Ukraine and across allies, allowing those partners to broaden their defense of the 
information ecosystem. For example, Microsoft recently partnered with International 
Media Support (IMS) and the Center for Strategic Communication and Information 
Security within Ukraine to improve rapid information sharing and response between the 
private sector, NGOs, and journalists within Ukraine through a dedicated secure 
communications hub. 

• Linkedln's Professional Community Policies explicitly disallow disinformation and 
misinformation, and its in-house Editorial team provides members with trustworthy content 
regarding global events, including the conflict in Ukraine. Linkedln has an internal team of 
hundreds of content reviewers located all over the world (for 24/7 coverage), 
approximately 280 of which are located in the EU, and includes specialists in a number of 
languages including English, German, French, Russian, and Ukrainian. These reviewers 
use policies and guidance developed by a dedicated content policy team and experienced 
lawyers, and work with external fact checkers as needed. When Linked In sees content or 
behaviour that violates its Professional Community Policies, it takes action, including the 
removal of content or the restriction of an account for repeated abusive behavior. 

• Microsoft Bing has undertaken defensive interventions on over 600,000 distinct queries 
related to the Russia and Ukraine conflict, which have yielded approximately 85 million 
impressions on Bing from January 1, 2022 to December 12, 2022. Microsoft Bing also 
takes action to remove autosuggest and related search terms that have been found likely 
to lead users to low authority content. Microsoft Bing continues to partner with fact 
checking organizations, including through Schema.org, and apply fact check labels to help 
users understand the context and trustworthiness of certain content in the EU. 

Re policies and enforcement actions to improve demonetization efforts and amplification 
I dissemination through advertising 

• Microsoft Advertising has not seen any significant traffic or recently received escalations 
or takedown requests related to the Ukrainian crisis. 

• Microsoft Advertising is preventing serving advertising related to the Ukrainian cnsIs 
pursuant to its Sensitive Advertising Policies. Under this policy, Microsoft Advertising 
reserves the right to remove or limit advertising in response to a sensitive or high-profile 
news event to prevent the commercial exploitation of such events and to ensure user 

111 See [ HYPERLINK "https://urldefense.com/v3/ _https:/blogs.microsoft.com/on-the-

issu es/2022/06/22/ defend i ng-u kra i ne-early-I essons-from-the-cyber-war/ _; ! ! DOxrgLBm ! G N rG LGpRKl7X456qm-
9N nbbZOxUJ hi M9G a p0ODlvHSRs lPU geg8iOQVlu iP3m aZrF pll ojt5 HTy8uix56WlxvmO0SsBrw$" ], p. 15; and [ 

HYPE RUNK "https://url defense .com/v3/ _https :/biogs. m icrosoft .com/ on-the-issues/2022/12/03/prepari ng­
russia n-cyber-offensive-ukra i ne/ _; ! ! DOxrgLBm !GNrGLGpRKl7X456qm-
9N nbbZOxtJJ hi M9Ga p0ODlvH 5RslPUgeg8iOQV lu i P3maZrF pll ojtSHTy8uix56WI xvmq M_h Rug$" ] 
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safety. Furthermore, our Misleading Content Policies prohibit advertising content that is 
misleading, deceptive, fraudulent, or that can be harmful to its users, including 
advertisements spreading disinformation. 

• Microsoft Advertising requires its syndication partners (i.e., those partners that display our 
advertisements on their services) to abide by strict brand safety-oriented policies to avoid 
providing revenue streams to websites engaging in misleading, deceptive, harmful, or 
insensitive behaviors. Our publisher policies include a comprehensive list of prohibited 
content that ads cannot serve against, including, but not limited to, sensitive political 
content (e.g., extreme, aggressive, or misleading interpretations of news, events, or 
individuals), and unsavory content (such as content disparaging individuals or 
organizations). Partner properties that violate our policies are removed from our network 
until the partner remedies the issue. 

• Microsoft Advertising banned all advertisements from the media outlets Russia Today 
(RT) and Sputnik across our ad network and will not place any ads from our ad network 
on these sites. Since February 2022, we blocked 2,321 domains from our network. 

• Linked In has been banned in Russia since 2016 and has implemented the European bans 
on Russian state media. In addition to not operating in Russia, political ads are banned on 
Linkedln, which includes prohibitions on ads that exploit a sensitive political issue, 
including the current Russia-Ukraine war. Linkedln also does not provide a mechanism 
for content creators to monetize the content they post on Linkedln. 
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TikTok 

TikTok input to European Commission request [28 November, 2022) 

re: initiatives to address disinformation on Ukraine in the CEE region 

15 December, 2022 

TikTok is pleased to provide the information below further to the European Commission's request 
to provide written details on actions taken by platforms in the context of disinformation regarding 
the war in Ukraine across the Central and Eastern Europe region. 

As a company, we are doing everything that we can to support the Ukrainian people and 
government during this difficult time, with relevant platform initiatives. Fighting harmful mis/dis­
information is priority work for the company, as we outlined during the Future of the Internet 
event in Prague. 

1. Planned actions to improve measures to reduce disinformation in the CEE region 

TikTok employs a layered approach to misinformation detection, leveraging multiple overlapping 
strategies to ensure comprehensive and responsive coverage. These strategies include machine 
learning models, sensitive keyword lists, user reports, view thresholds, and proactive responses 
to emerging trends triggered by input from external fact checking partners. 

We are presently prioritizing the launch of dedicated machine learning models across Poland, 
Romania, and Hungary in 2023, with a planned expansion of coverage to all EU member states 
pending external Fact Checking support. 

Since the beginning of the war, representatives from TikTok's misinformation policy and 
detection teams have met on a weekly basis with our external fact checking partner, Lead 
Stories, to receive advance warning of emerging misinformation narratives, facilitating proactive 
responses against high-harm trends, and ensuring moderation teams have up-to-date guidance. 
We will be continuing this collaboration. 

A new initiative that we accelerated this year, based on some work that we had in the pipeline, 
was the labelling of state controlled media. As the war unfolded, we saw the urgency of pushing 
out that work more quickly. To date, 101 accounts linked to Russian State controlled media have 
been successfully identified and geob!ocked from all EU member states. Mitigation efforts 
against SAM propaganda have been further supported by the launch of a machine learning 
model targeting content originally produced by these organisations and subsequently reposted 
by users. Additional improvements are planned for early 2023. 

2. Covert Influence Operations in the CEE region 
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TikTok's[ HYPERLINK "https://www.tiktok.com/community-guidelines?lang=en" \h ] prohibit 
covert influence operations and we have set up specifically-trained teams that are focused on 
investigating and detecting such operations on our Platform. As new deceptive behaviours 
emerge, we'll continue to evolve our response, and strengthen our enforcement capabilities. 

Part of what makes TikTok unique is the overwhelming authenticity of our creators and their 
content. We don't allow activities that may undermine the integrity of our platform or the 
authenticity of our users. Going forward, in our quarterly Community Guidelines Enforcement 
Reports, we'll publish insights about the covert influence operations we identify and remove from 
our platform globally to show how seriously we take attempts to mislead our community. We'll 
update on our progress as we continue to innovate when it comes to being transparent and 
accountable 

3. Content moderation and fact-checking capabilities 

We continually work to ensure that TikTok is a source of reliable and safe information. Our 
Community Guidelines prohibit harmful misinformation and deceptive behaviours and this 
guides our efforts for the war in Ukraine as well. No one is immune from our community 
guidelines - we take action against any account that breaches our rules, including harmful 
misinformation, and this applies to all media, including Russian state-media. We use a 
combination of human and automated moderation to remove harmful content. 

Prior to the invasion of Ukraine, we had put together a dedicated safety team. Within the first 
few weeks of the outbreak of war, our team removed 41 ,191 videos, 87% of which violated our 
policies against harmful misinformation. The vast majority (78%) were identified proactively. We 
also quickly identified and removed 6 networks and 204 accounts globally for coordinated efforts 
to inf luence public opinion and mislead users about their identities. Within the first month, we 
also removed 321,784 fake accounts in Russia and 46,298 fake accounts in Ukraine, which 
removed 343,961 videos. 
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As of March 8th 2022, we suspended all new content creation and live-streaming from Russian 
users. We quickly acted to comply with restrictions on Russia media and we also rapidly 
introduced a new policy around 'conflict zone' labelling of state-controlled media, which means 
that Russian state-controlled media, including those not covered by the EU sanctions, are now 
labelled. 

Since the invasion, we have continued to work closely with the Ukrainian government in order to 
ensure that their official accounts are verified and to help us identify misinformation. 

Of the 11 languages associated with the CEE region, TikTok has content moderation ability in all. 
Fact checking partners are in place for 3 of the markets within the region, with plans for further 
expansion in 2023 across all local languages. Currently, TikTok's fact-checking programme 
includes active, ongoing coverage in 16 languages across Europe. On top of our planned 
expansion in 2023, we will continue to invest in tools to ensure effective content moderation and 
enforcement. 

4. Policies and enforcement actions to improve demonetisation efforts in the CEE 
region 

TikTok does not offer advertising revenue share in the EU, nor are adverts placed "on" content 
on TikTok and so our response is focused on disinformation content as it relates to the war in 
Ukraine as it may appear in adverts on the TikTok platform. 

We expressly prohibit political advertising. Our advertising policies prohibit advertising 
placed by political actors, and we do not allow advertisements and landing pages which: 
"reference, promote or oppose a candidate for public office, current or former political 
leader, political party, or political organization. They must not contain content that 
advocates a stance (for or against) on a local, state, or federal issue of public importance 
in order to influence a political outcome." 

Furthermore, of the countries in the CEE region, we currently only allow advertisements in 
Poland, Hungary, Romania and the Czech Republic. Our political advertising policy referenced 
above applies in these countries as it does globally, and we have local language speaking 
moderators serving each of those countries, covering Polish, Hungarian, Romanian and Czech. 

Additionally, we do not allow Ukrainian and Russian advertisers to target European Union 
markets, and we have had this policy in place since March 2022. 
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We look forward to continuing to work with our partners within the framework of the Code of 
Practice on Disinformation I Crisis Response Subgroup and are available for any further 
questions. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_004176 
1414



Twitch 

Background on Twitch Misinformation Policy: 

Every day, people come together live on Twitch to build communities that celebrate a variety of 
interests, passions, and talents. We're proud that Twitch can bring people together-but we do 
not believe that individuals who use online services to spread false, harmful information, have a 
place in our community. While these individuals are not prevalent on Twitch, they could cause 
significant harm if allowed on our service. 

We have partnered with over a dozen researchers and experts to understand how harmful 
misinformation spreads on line and ensure our approach to mitigating its risks in our community 
is effective for Twitch, given our distinctive long form ephemeral nature. We've learned that 
Harmful Misinformation Actors account for a disproportionate amount of damaging, widely 
debunked misinformation online. Together, we've identified three characteristics that these 
actors share: their online presence-whether on or off Twitch-is dedicated to (1) persistently 
sharing (2) widely disproven and broadly shared (3) harmful misinformation topics, such as 
conspiracies that promote violence. We've selected these criteria because taken together they 
create the highest risk of harm including inciting real world harm. 

The main tool that Twitch uses to remove misinformation from our service is our [ HYPERLINK 
"https ://safety.twitch. tv/s/article/Comm unity-
Guidelines?lang uage=en _ US&31 HarmfulMisinformationActors" \h] [ HYPERLINK 
"https://safety.twitch.tv/s/article/Community-
Guidelines?language=en_US&31 HarmfulMisinformationActors" \h ]. We indefinitely suspend 
actors who meet all three of the above criteria. Our enforcement actions under this policy in the 
context of the invasion of Ukraine have been relatively low, primarily because Twitch is not an 
ideal platform for spreading misinformation. Twitch content has a low rate of virality compared 
to other platforms and content types. It is difficult with livestreams to garner large amounts of 
concurrent viewers and it takes time to grow an audience, and most content is gone the 
moment it is created so content is not reshared in the same way. Secondarily, because our 
content is long form and does not go viral in the same way, our focus is not on individual pieces 
of content, but instead on those who persistently share harmful misinformation topics. This 
means singular statements or briefly sharing a belief in a conspiracy theory does not meet our 
bar to be removed from Twitch. 

Concrete actions planned to improve measures to reduce disinformation on Ukraine in 
Central and Eastern Europe: 

We continue to monitor our ecosystem for dedicated harmful misinformation actors spreading 
mis- and disinformation related to the war in Ukraine. Additionally, we receive monthly 
briefings from misinformation experts detailing new and emerging misinformation trends in 
Eastern Europe, and use those to inform policy changes. 

So far, we have taken action against Russia Today, Sputnik, TV-Novosti, and Rossiya 
Segodnya under our policies (and have since early March when the EU imposed sanctions). 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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We also remove a number of actors whose online presense is dedicated to making persistent 
misinformation claims, such as claims that the Ukrainian state is run by Nazis or claims that 
public health facilities are bioweapon labs. 

Those areas remain a priority for Twitch and we stand ready to take any further action as 
necessary. 

Detection and content moderation capacities in the languages concernedWe have three 
main routes for detecting dedicated misinformation actors: 1) reporting from users or 3rd party 
sources to our dedicated email address; 2) reporting from external misinformation experts, such 
as the Global Disinformation Index; and 3) proactive flags from our Threat Intelligence teams, who 
proactively monitor our platform for a variety of safety and security threats. 

Once content has been flagged for review, internal specialists who have language expertise in 
both Russian and Ukrainian conduct deep-dive investigations into the content on Twitch. 

Policies and enforcement actions to improve demonetisation efforts in CEE, i.e. to avoid 
that advertising is supporting disinformation in these languages, and to avoid that 
disinformation content in these languages is amplified through advertising or 
disseminated in the form of advertisements. 

At Twitch, we do not allow political advertising on our platform. Additionally, because we directly 
remove any identified harmful misinformation actors from our service, advertisements will not be 
shown next to their content. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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From: 
Sent: 

To: 

CC: 

Subject: 
Attachments: 

Location : 

Start: 

End: 

Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task-force) Meeting 
Agenda Subgroup Crisis Response 3011.docx 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

11/30/2022 3:30:00 PM 
11/30/2022 5:00:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence : (none) 

Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup, 

Ahead of our meeting this afternoon, we are send ing you the proposed agenda. We have taken good note of several 
requests of subgroup members to discuss new developments concerning Twitter's crisis response actions. We are in 
touch with Twitter's new lia ison points for the Code and hope to welcome them today to discuss the flagged issues as 
part of the tour de table. 

Looking forward to seeing you, kind regards, 

Kind regards, 
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The CoP Disinfo Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer or mobile app 
Click here to ioin the meeting 

Meeting ID: 
Passcode: ­
Download Teams I Join on the web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech.e 
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

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-[Redactro1ec.europa.eu] 
12/2/2022 5:47:38 PM 

~~~;~~~~~:~~~~~~:~~~~~;~~f {;~~:~:~:~:~;:~:~:~:~:~:~if~:~ti:;t:r;t l--·-·-·-·-·--·-R;ii;;;i;;;j·-·~-~~~.~-;:~i .eu] f:_ .. Redact!t·e~rel lapel itica. it]; 

L:=::I~~!£!ii.<C:::Javaaz.orgc_·~~~-·~~-·~.·~~.~~a.ci.~~:~~~~~~~~~·~~1globsec.org); c.-~.-~--~ji~j:s~--~--~--~Jeeas.europa.eu; L"~i~i~l~~Jfb.com; 
[ ::::::::~~~~ii~:~:=:=:=::J-vr.s k;L_···--······-···· .... ~~~~E!!~ . ·-·--······ ....... _§> logica I ly. co. uk ]; L.. .... E~~!!«:~~P ....... .J 
[~ii~~~£t~]google. com l; c:~: :!!~:~i.t~i::.:~:~::@eeas. europa .eu; L~i~~;j;~Jabeu rope. eu; c~~i.~\~~~Jf eedback. org; 
L~:~:~~~:~:::~:~:::::::~iiii~~.:::::::~~:~~::::~~:::Jmed ie n a nsta It ·nrw. de]; L~:.~·.~~iii..;£ tei~.~.~Ji abe u rope.eur--····-R~d~·~·t~d·-···-'J 
!L~.~~~~.~~~Jadobe. com]; c=:==:~~~ii~:::::]csa .be; c.·~.·:::.':.':.·:.':.·~~~~E!!~:.'::.':.·:.·:.':.':.Je ui .eu]; [=~~.·~~~~~.·~.~i.i~!~~~~~~~~~~.·~.·.iava az. org]; 
r::: ::::::: :::::=:}t~ii~}~~:=:==::::::: ==:=J microsoft. com]; c~=:~~I~~ii~.L~:Jfb .com; r:=.~~.!~.~~;~:::=:Jrfs. 0 rg; (~~~~~Redacted .~J r ···R;;t;.·~t;d······!B.<20gl e.com ]; c~=:~~-;j_~~!~·i:~:~:~]tiktok.com L .. ~~~~'::~~.d ... )@eeas.eu ropa .e U; [ ji~i~}~~.·~:Jea ca. eu; 
l._ ... ~~.~~-~J.~~ ...... jg) eea s. eu ropa .e u; L~:~:~~~:~~~:~~:~:~~iii~!;.~:~:~~:~~~::~~~~~]microsoft.com] r···· ···················R~·,:i~~i;;i ·············-···· ... )ec . eu ropa. e u ]; : ··-······ ·····-··Fi;d;;;;i:;;j······· ·· ••• -····:ec .eu ro pa . eu J 
[External] Logistics • Fourth Plenary 
Logistics.pdf; Agenda • Fourth Plenary of the Task·force of the Code of Practice on Disinformation.pdf 

Ahead of the fourth plenary next Tuesday, please find attached once more the agenda as well as some 
practical information. 

By now, everyone should have received an email prompting you to provide additional data in the 
Commission's visitor system. Please fill in this V-PASS form prior to your arrival. You wi ll then receive a QR­
code which you have to show at reception along with a valid ID to receive a temporary access badge. If you do 
not fill in the form, you will not receive a QR·code and thus w ill have to do everyth ing on site which wi ll take 
signi ficantly longer. Hence, we strongly advise you to register all necessary data prior to your visit to speed up 
the security check -for yourself and others. If you have not received an email from V-PASS, please inform us 
immediately. 

We strongly advise you to come early to complete the registration and security check as the Borschette Center 
is very busy and waiting times can be a bit longer in the morning. Once you made it past the security check, we 
will welcome you and guide you to the meeting room where we invite you to some coffee and small pastries. 
Please note that we wi ll not have a coat. However, you wi ll be able to store your be longings in a designated 
area in the meeting room. 

Wearing a face mask is not mandatory in Brussels, however, given the recent surge in cases, you might still 
want to wear one. This is up to you, there w ill be face masks at the entrance of the build ing. 

After the plenary, we will head to Siendas Jourdan, a Sardinian wine bar, for an informal get-together to finish 
off the day. 

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out. 
If you require immediate assistance on the day, you may call our colleague: Redacted iat l Redacted ! 

·-·-·-· --·-' -·-·-· -·-·-·-·-·-·-·"' ·-·-·-·-·-·--·-· -·-·-·-·-·-· .. .,,. 

Kind Regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 
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EUROPEAN COMMISSION 

- -
DIRECTORATE-GENERAL FOR COM:MUNICA T IO NS NETWORKS, CO rT ENT AND TECHNOLOGY 

Media Polley 
Meilla Coovt"rgco~·e ;,md Sodal l\It'dl.a 

Fourth Meeting of the Code of Practice's Permanent 'Task-Force 

6 Dece mbe r 2022, 10 :30 - 17 :00 

Centre Albert Borsc hette - Rue F roi ss art 36 , 1040 E tterb eek, B elgium 

F rom 09:30 A rrival & scc1n-i1J check 

10:00-10:30 11'7elcome c~(fae 

t. W'elcoming remarks 
10:30-10:45 

L._, __ ,_,_, _,_,_,_, __ ,_, Redacted ___ ,_,_,.,.,_,., ... ,.,_, _ , ! DG C E CT) 

10:45-11:00 2. Introduction of new signatories 

3. Upda te about the s ta te of play of the implementatio,1 of the Code -

11 :00- 12:00 
at company/ signatory level - and preparations for the first 
reporting round by the Signatories 

(sho rt interve n1jo ns by Signatories) 

4. Presentati.on of th e slate of play of the subgroups' delivera ble s: 

• S C Ad Scrutiny' . SG Monito ring ,rnd Re porti ng 

12:00- 13:00 • SG Inte grity o f Services 

• SG Tran sp,uency Centre 

• SG Crisis Response 

• SG Outreach 

(P resenta tioo by the Subgroup coo rdinato rs foUowed by discussion) 

13:00-14:15 L 1111eh 

14:15-14:30 5. Jlemarks by Cab inets Jourov,', and Breton (TBC) 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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6. Spotlight Discussion 

Disinformation su rround ing the war in Ukraine - lessons learnt 
from the Crisis by the Co l' com muni ty 

Short intervc ri,io ns by signaror ics: 
14:30-15:30 - ll?bal 111ere tbe main threats Iba/ J'Ollr organisation/ company obser,,cd on !be 

c,i.riJ? 

- 117bai 11mw11·es rlid_yon take to reduce rli.,·i11fom1alion on /be crisis? 
- 117b,,t are yo11r k9• concerns and t1111i11 /e,,r11i11g.<? 
- 117bat do yon ue as arcns.for.f11rlber a cl ion? Do yon bave s11ggcstio11s on boJJI to 

take this fonvard 1111du tbe Code? 

15:30-16:00 Cojfee break 

16:00-16:45 7. Upcoming deliverables under the Code and next steps 

16:45-17:00 8. AOD & conc ludi ng remarks 

From 17:00 I 11/ormal .rocial gathering 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
CC: 

Subject: 

L. ......... _ ....... Redacted .................... _google.com] 
12/8/2022 10:08:24 PM 

l ............ ........ Redacted ...................... )feedback.org] 
CN ECT ·COP· TASK ·FOR CE@ec.e uropa. eu; L:······-·······~::::fa:e~jiiiL:::::::::::::~::::Jti ktok. com J;L ....... ~.~.~!1~!~~-···· .J 

~~~,~lif :::;:~~=-if ~~~~I~1~~,;_;~~~i~~~[~~~~~~~~~~~~~acted J 
c-··Rediici:eci'···:microsoft.com]; r Redacted lmicrosoft.com]; Redacted : 

t}i~~~;~~:~Jnewsguardtech .com lL~:=:=:=:=:~:=:=:=:=:=:=:=~~~~!~i!=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:Jeaca _'eu l L • Redacted ·-·r •••••••••••••••••• 
r-·-···---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·· 1-·-·-···-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-l 

[ . .... R..e.d.a~!<l;C! .... Jgoogle. com Jt ................. Redacted ................. J m icrosoft. com]; L. .... ~~.~~~t~£1 . ...... J 

li.. . ... Redacted ...... .Jglobsec.org]; :.. .............................. Redacted .. ...... ...... .............. .. . .Jvi meo.com 1r-········Re·ci.'c'ted·········1 
[L.!'t~~.~~t~.__igoog le. com]; L ... - .............. ~.~~<:t!~ ... ·········-···· ··jec. europa. eu JL ............... '!~1!.c.t~.~········ ........ Jvosteu rope .org]; 
r· ·-···-- • --iieiiacteci· •• - •·-·•·• - ~itwi tch. tv] f •• • -·Redacieci··• -·• • rrhe brigh tap p .com]; r·· -··--··Recia·c1·et1- ••• ··•·•··:g1 ob sec .org]; 
r~~~~;~~~~:~~~~::.::.~:~~id~~~~.;i::.::.~:::.~~~:::.~ •••••••• fakto~~·~i:·h~];L::.~:~:;~~~~:::.~~::.~ ••• - R.edacieci'··· ·········· ····~;:;:;:~·i-,:;;;~:~~·~ir·····R;dacted ..... ) 

[ .:.:·:}f~acte<i··· ••• -Jcrispthi n king. com 1c··············=:=~i~=~~}~:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:Jvoste urope. org];[.~·::~.=~~~:~c.~~~=~·~·:~.J 

C~i.ii.~£i.i.~Jneva•I abs.com 1c::::=:::=:::::=:::=~:~~~ii~~::::=:=:=:::=:=::=:J>yteda nee .com]; c :::=:=:=:=~~~~£~icc=:::::=:]tb ;~.?.!':lifB~~~c."t;~J 
L ..... ~~~.~.!e.<!. ..... }§) rsf. orgJ ; r··············Reciacteci················1s up po rt. a vaa z. o rg J; r···-·· ····ifeciaeteci········ -·:ava a z. o rg l ~!~a.c!~.i 

r~~~~;~~~~·~~~~~~!~~fr~=~~~=:~~~;;~;;~~~~:=~~~::;i~~:~~j;~:r!t-~~'.~~~~~~'.~;i'.i~~~~~~i;~:~~=~!~:~~~!~=~~1~·i~Jrosoft .comJ[~:·~:~~:~1 
L .......... Redacted····- ···- .google.comL. ...... _ ............ Redacted··········-········ ·-· ]avaaz.org]L. ................ Redacted ................ Justin. tv ]; 
: . .. .............. Redacted ··-···-·····jrsf.org];L_ ............ Redacted ............. Jeui.eu]L. ........ Redacted ....... J 
IT-·- --···· Redacted ·-··-· _ 1demagog.o rg. pl]; L. .... _ ........ _ .......... Redacted····· ·-·-·-·-···-·- _ . _._Jrvr. sk]L ....... Redacted ........ . J 

Ei~~~~~~~i~~~i·i~J;~i·~~~.fii~t=:=~=~=~=:~~;~~~~~~;~~~·~~~~~==~~~~~=~=~~:::!r~:~:=~~·~~i~~i:=~=:~~~~i~I~=:=:=:=:J 
[~:~;_,(ait~:Jrsf .orgJ; ["~~.~~~.·~~~~.·-~!<!a.cj;~~~~~.~.~~~:Jec.euro pa. e u J; L~:::~:~:R:e~iii~:cC:~:Jeeas .eu ropa .eu; 
L .. .J~.l:.~i.l.C.~~.<L...J@eeas.eu ropa. euc······Rediicted········~ eeas.europa .eu; c:~·.~:=:~:=:=·.=:::I~!£~~~c·.~:=:=·.=:=:=·.=:Jec.europa. eu ); 

[ __ .. l'.t~l!l!<c.t~ __ Jgoogle.com iL ..... ···-·· -··· ...... ~~.i;i.:ic_;t~~ ....................... jmeta. com]; L.R~~~.tesi.Justi n. tv; LB.~!l~f.!e..<1.irsf. org; 

~·· ························R·~a;~~c~ ••• ················1bvted~~~-:.~~:~ f :~ !L .......... Re<1acieci"·~~.:c~:~-···1mal d ita. es [Jb~:dda~~~: ·co~]; 

[~~.=~~~~££iiC~~~~]ec. eu ropa. eu 1c:·.~·.=.~·.:·.~·.=·~·.=·~·.~·.~·.:·.B~!l~.~.~~.d ..... ·.:·.:·.:·.:·.=:·.~·.=·=·~·.~·.J:rispthi n king.com 1c::::~~~:s(~~=:::=J 
[ ........ B~~.<J.!<.t~ ........ Jf e ed back. o rg] ;t_·-·····················-·-'!~~i!.<c.~!!~ ............................ l€ I ob sec. o rg]; L~•j!£t'!'IJ°tWi tter. com 
[External] Re: Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task.force) Meeting 

We appreciate the flags of this content and have removed them for violations of our policies. We w i ll come 

prepared to give an update on the latest at the meeting next week, including any additional removal numbers. 

Best, 
. .... - . 
' ' l Redacted.! 

On W ed, Dec 7, 2022 at ! 2:28 PM i Redacted taJ, fccdback.org> wrote: 
1,. ,_,_, .. , ......... ............ ._ .... ,.,_, .. , .... ... , . ....... .... ..... , .. , • • _.,,_,.,,,_, .. , ....... ~ 

Hello all, 
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In response to the request for "further evidence or updates", here are a few observations we have made. 

* We see that the Youtube videos that were mentioned in our email of last week (with respectively 500k, 200k and 16k 
views) have been deleted for "violating YouTube's Community Guidelines": 
https ://www. youtu be. com/watch ?v= R4zW lrh WG ls 
https:// www .youtu be. com/watch ?v=oo-LjifaqiM 

https://www.youtube.com/watch ?v=W98Od1Qv aQ 

* On TikTok, there are videos like this one sharing a link to the video on Rumble, or playing the "died suddenly" trailer 

like t his one in French. We do not see the notification directing users to authoritative information (on individual videos 

or in search) that was mentioned by Lorenzo Andreozzi during the call last week. 

* On Twitter, the video that had 1.8 Million views last week now has 1.9 Million views. 

* The Rumble video that had lOM views now has 12.8M views and the links that Science Feedback identified as 
containing a version of the video (see e.g. this page) have gained an extra 200k interactions at least on social media 
according to Buzzsumo data. Our count for total interactions was at ~ssok last week and is now at 763k interactions, 
a ~35% increase. 
For background, Buzzsumo tracks interactions on Facebook, Twitter, Pinterest and Reddit corresponding to likes, 

comments and shares of posts/tweets sharing UR Ls containing the video; the total number is dominated 
by interactions on Facebook and, to a lesser extent, on Twitter. 
This shows that, despite the measures taken by platforms, the video has still circulated quite widely over the past 
week. 
Note that the above list has mostly gathered links for English speaking videos, but Tommaso and colleagues at Pagella 
Politica have published an art icle on the EDMO website showing that fact-checkers across Europe have seen this video 
propagate in many EU languages. 

I hope this is helpful. 
Best regards, 

i __ Redacted ___ i 

-·-·-·---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·~ 
i ! 

L--·-·-·-·-~-~-~-~-~-~-~-~ ----·-·-·-·' 
@ClimateFdbk I @HealthFeedback 

On 7 Dec 2022, at 14:1 8, C ECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu wrote: 

Dear Crisis response subgroup members, and in particular representatives of You Tube, Twitter and 
TikTok, 

Following up on last week's discussion in the Subgroup on the proliferation of the "Died Suddenly" 
documentary - in view of the dangerous health claims made in the video - please remember to follow 
up on the below request from Science Feedback, Pagella Politica and VOST. 

We would request in particular that You Tube, Twitter and TikTok check the matters raised internally in 
their respective services and give an update to the subgroup, at the latest at the subgroup meeting 
next week, but ideally in writing beforehand. We also invite all subgroup members to send in further 
evidence or updates on their actions. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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As discussed on previous occasions, we see such exchanges and follow-ups as vital for the subgroup, in 
particular regarding time-sensitive matters such as this one. So we trust that Subgroup members deal 
with such matter with the appropriate importance. 

Best regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

From: L.-·····-·-·····-·-·····-·Redacted ... . . . ·.·· _ -··· 7feedback.org> 
Sent: Thursday, December 1, 2022 2:59 PM 
To: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT·COP·TASK·FORCE@ec.europa.eu> 

Cc: !_-·-·- ····-·-·· -·-·-~~.c:l.~~!~.c:I .. -·-·····-·-·····-·-·l@tiktok.com>; [-··-·· - ··-. -Reda-cteci·-••• -·-····-·: 
[=:~=:~.~~!~~~!~C!~~~~ .. ~:-·:@ec.eu ropa . eu >; [-~~- ·~.~-~=.~~~-~~-.~~~-~.~~~~~ie_cC=.~~~~~~~~~-~=~~=.~-·jn ewsgu a rdtech. com> ;Jiecia.cteci·: 
[ ••••••••••• ·······RedactecT····················@n ewsgu a rd tech. com>; ['~_'~·~·~--~--~--~·~_-~·~_-~·~~~·~·~·~.!~d~·~.·~·~·~.·~.·~·~·~.·~_-~·~·Jgo ogle .com>; 

!. ... ·-·······-·······-·····~.!:~.~.<.:':.~!L._._._. ____ .1maldita.es>; L. ....... ~~~~C:~.!:~······-···!kinzen.com>;L_ Redacted _] 

~r~~~~~;t~~f ~~~~?~;~:-::r·_.~~·.~-·~·~·.~-·~~~:~.~~~!.~~.~~~~~-·.·_~_~_)_~:.~~.:~:f~~.~.:;l:~~~~:::e:~~.~~.~-~:t~~_i 

i_;:::: : ::: :: ::".!!~~<:_t~~-·-···· -·- ••• -· im I c~~~?.f~::~~.~}L-·-···-·-·-·-·-···-·-·-·-·~-:dacted ·······-···-··············· i , ............................. ············-
4 .. Redacted . ..@microsoft.com>:_ ___ -·-- --·-- -~·~c_l~~~e~-·-·- ··- --·----·!newsguardtech.com>; L.-·-···-···-~~~.<!<:~~.~ ... _ ... _ ..... J 
<L. ... ~!c<!.!l_"·\~c_l .... •google. com>; L. .... -····················~~.<.!!!C:t.!:~ ................ _ ....... _ ... lea ca .eu>L._ .. Redacted ·-·- .J 
<L.~ •. ~.~.~~~~.~.!~~.~·.~.~.1googl e. com> L-.~~~.~.-~~~~~~.=~~~Bicf~~~~~~.~.·.~=:~~~~.=:~~.= 1m i crosoft. com>;[_ ··-· Redacted -·-·..J··-·· ··-·-· 
<L~~~-:~~~:~-~-ci.a_~j~~:~:~=~~:~'gl o bse c. o rg >; L~:~:~~~:~:~.~~~:~:~~~~~:~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~!~~-~~~:~~~~~~~:~~~~~~~~~~~:~~~~~~~~~~Jvi m e o. com >U~~.~.~~~.~.~ _. ! 

~~~~~~~~;-~-~~~~~~~~:~:~::::~~~:~~~cr~:;~~-~:~:~:~.-~:~:~:~.-~:~:~~~~-~-~-i~~~~~~~~~~:~:~:~.·~:~:;~~~·~~~~~.~~-:-~~~~;.~_a_:tu>;[··-·Redacied·-·-] 

<L~.-;~~' the b r i ghta pp. com >; L~~~:~:~:~~~~~:-:~~~~i.~~~e~:~~~:~:-:~-~:~:~~~ ]g Io b sec.or g> r- ··-·R-eciacte-ci ··-·-·· l 
<1. ....... _ .. R..E:.<!.~<:.t.!:~-·····-·__lfa ktograf .h r>L_ .. ·-·- .. -·-·· -·-·-. _R._~d.a_c.t~.<.!. ___ .. ··-·_.-·-._;vi meo. com >L._·-···· Redacted··-···-· i 
4 -·--·-·-Reciacieci-·-- -·-krispt h inking .com>; L~:~~:~~:~:~:~~~:~:~::~~~~~!~~~:~:~:::~:~:~~~:~:~:~Jvo steu rope .org>; L=~--~.i_il~-!=-!~~--~~J 

{~~d.~~~~~j@twi tter. com>; :~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~:~~~~~~~~f~i~~~~~~~~~~~~:~~~:~~~~~~lneva-1 abs .com> f :~~~~~£i~~:~·~j 

~[.~.:~~;~~~~~~~~~ii•~;}.~:Y!~~~~:~e~~;:~:~~~~~~:~~r:~:r~~~~·~·~·~~e~~~x~~~~~·= ·=~~vaaz.~r=~~~.~~:~.-···Re-;acEd~.~~:~'.-~~.J 

:L~-~:~:~:~ci~~nzei~ ~~~~==~~~=.~~~·.~~~~t~~~:~·.~:~:~·.~·.~~:~t;;:itch . tv> ;r -·- - -~ft~~~~~}~c~~-~~r~·~ ••• ! 

:~~~~~;~;:i:~~:·.·~~~~~~~~~~~:~~~-~;~i~~~~~~~:~:~~;~~~~~~~~~~·s·t~.~~·~~·:~~~~]~~~~:~~~:~~~~~~~~~:~:~:~:~:~ :~~:~~~a~~·;~~e~~~~~~J 
i_ __ --·-~~':!.~cct_e~ __ -·-·- _ 'eui .eu>; [ __ -·-·- --·-- --·-- --·--R..~<!.a_c_t~.~-·- --·-·---·-----· ___ ldemagog.org.pl>;L_ ... -... Redacted ···-·····J 
<r-·· • -·-··Redaciecr··-·-·· · 1rvr. sk>r······ -·······-··············Reda-cieci·-·········-·······-···-········:rvr .sk> i ·-·-·-· Redacted ·-·-··· 1 

~i~~~~~~.~~i~~!~1~:~!~~~~~~:~J~~:~::~~;~;~~i.~~~~.~.~!:~~~~~~~i~i~~~.i~~l.~~~~.~-'.~~~~:~~-~r-~~[·.~:~:~·~~=~~~~~~~.~~·.~:~!~·.~·.~:J 
<C ··-Redacieci-·· ·:ec. e uropa. eu>; r····-·-·····-·-·····-·-·····-·-···Reci"acied·-·-···-···-···-···-···-·-···-·-·-·1ee as. euro pa. eu> L ~~~l!.<:_l~<cl._.J 

r·······-·······-·-·Redacieci·······-·······-···-·1eeas. eu ropa. eu>[ ·-·---·--·-·Redacted _ -·- _ -·-·- i 
f ··-·-·-R;·ct~~i;;d···-·-···@eeas.eu ro pa. e u> r··· -·-·· -·-Reciacteci-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-i 
{~ ~:~:~~~.~.~~,~~:~ ~ ~:-·:e C. e Ur Op a. e U >; [~::::::~e~:ai!~~:::···:g O O gl e. com c - -·- -- -·-Reciacte_d _._ - --·--J 
<L_. ___ .13~~~!=~e_cl_. ____ meta.com>; j__~E!.<.!'.l<ct.!:~_ ljustin.tv; L~~<.!.~<ct~~ !rsf.orgj Redacted ! 

f.~.;.;..;..;;;.;.~~~~~:~~~~~~·~;~ .. ;.~.~~~.~~!~~i~:~:~:;~:~·.::~-:;·~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~;;;~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~m:~d~~:.:·sc~~~J~~~~;·rj 
[ _-:·.~-~~= -~ ~-~~~-~- ~~~~~--~!~~·~ ~i~~ ~-~~~~~- ~-:~=~-~--~~~~-_Jee. e u ro pa. e u >; L"~~~-~~~=~~~~~~==~-~~~a_cj.~~-·-···-·-·-· ··-·-·-· ··1twi tt er. co m >l .8.E!.Q.~.~.!~!!.l 

:._ .. ········-·-·······13.!:~~.£!e.cl_ ............. _....... :cri spth inking .com> L.-·····-·········-···-···-~~~Jlcted rreed back. org>; 
Ket_._ . . -·- . ··-·· ... Redacted.-·-·- . ··-·· . -·- .. ~ glo bsec.o rg> 
Subject: Re: Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task-force} Meeting 

Dear all, 
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During the Crisis Response Subgroup Meeting yesterday, fact-checkers informed the group 
about a viral pseudo-documentary called "Died Suddenly" claiming that COVI D-19 vaccines 
are killing people on a massive scale, which is currently circulating on platforms in many EU 
languages. 

You can see reviews written by fact-checkers here for instance: Health Feedback, Aaence 
France Presse, Lead Stories. The video has been uploaded to Rumble primarily (10 Million 
views), but also Bitchute (video removed), and dozens of other URLs which are being shared 
on social media platforms, notably Telegram. 

Since some platform representatives weren 't at the meeting, we would like to follow up to ask 
how they dealt with this specific piece of content as well as some other questions. 

Specifically: 
• On Youtube there are several videos, some of which are removed and some are not, 

see here (500k views), here (200k views) , here, here(videos removed) and here (16k 
views). Could Youtube explain how they proceed to review these videos and decide to 
remove them or not? What can explain the inconsistency? 

• On Twitter, this video has 1.8 Million views and tweets linking to a URL with the video 
have received about a hundred thousand interactions. What will be Twitter's approach 
to the issue? Could Twitter share the amount of reports it has received regarding this 
specific content, and what measures were taken to date? 

• TikTok's representative (Lorenzo Andreozzi) mentioned that people searching for the 
video on the platform would receive a notification directing them to authoritative 
information, however we do not see such a notification when searching for 'died 
sud den!y' on Tik Tok. Cou Id you C~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~.R..e~!-~:\.e~C~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~J 

Generally we would also like to ask all the platforms, how the dissemination of the same 
content, in languages other than English, is being prevented and what are the measures in 
place to avoid this. 

Regarding Circumventing platform's policies against misinformation 
A second point we discussed was that misinformation spreaders are adapting to circumvent 
platforms' policies against misinformation. For instance, we see that many users invite their 
followers to go watch the video on another platform without necessarily making false claims on 
the original platform itself (an example on TikTok). 

In this kind of crisis situation, we recommend that platforms develop interventions to inform 
their users, allowing them to access authoritative information. For instance, fact-checking 
organizations (or others) could compile data on which posts promote the video and platforms 
could display a notification next to the content for users to find context. 

We propose to meet with interested parties to write a more specific proposal. Please let us 
know who would be interested in working on th is. 

Best regards, 

~-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·; 

Redacted i 
i 
i ! 
i. ' -'-·-'-·-·-' -'-·-·-' -'-·-·-' -'-·-·- ' -'-·-·- ' -·-·-·-' -·-·-·-' -·-·-· -'-·-·-' -'-·-·-' -'-·-·-' -'-·-· J 

On 30 Nov 2022, at 13:38, CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu wrote: 
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Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgrnup, 

Ahead of our meeting this afternoon, we are sending you the proposed agenda. We 
have taken good note of several requests of subgroup members to discuss new 
developments concerning Twitter' s crisis response actions. We are in touch with 
Twitter' s new liaison points for the Code and hope to welcome them today to discuss 
the flagged issues as part of the tour de table. 

Looking forward to seeing you, kind regards, 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer or mobile app 
Chck here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode:­
Down!oad Teams I Join on the web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vtea rns.tech.eceu ropA,0.V 
Video Conference ID: 
AlternateVT C instructions 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

LearnJv1ore ! Help I Meetrng __ options 

<Mail Attachment.ics><Agenda Subgroup Crisis Response 3011.docx> 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 
12/8/2022 12:52:51 PM 

'r _R_e.!l.?£~~--- _________ _jfb .com); L_ _________ R_e_d_tc!~C!. __ _____ ,_jn mhh. hu );L._,_,_,_, Redacted ·-·-·-·- l 
[__ _______ _!<_e_d_a_!:!~C! _________ jec.europa .eu ); 'L ______________ --~-e_!1!1~!~cl_ ____ ----·-·-·-·-·-jtiktok. comJ.L _____ ·-Redacted ~·-·-·-·-·-·__J 
, --Reia-cted·-·-!m icroso ft. com]; r---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-···-·-·-Reiiacteci···-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-:googl e .com]; I Redacted i 
L--·-·-···-·-·-·-·-·-·-· L·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- L-------------------------------~ 

k~~~~:~i~1:~g;;1g~~:~~~~:;;t~~~~;~~;~!:t::~7:it~~~~~2:::::ope.o,gJ; 
rr-·-·-ii'eci:icte<i- ·- -·1m i er o so ft . com] · r ·--· - --·-·- -·-R;d~-.;1;;.·- - -·-·-·-·-·-·-1 oo I e. com) · 'r-·-·- -·- -·-Reii';cteci-·- -- - -·-1e u i. e u) · 
L.L,., .., ,.,._,.,, ... , ... ....... .. .. , ... ,1 I i . ..... . .. .. . .. .. .... .. ..... , . ...... ... , .. ,,. , .. , .. .. . . .. .. ,._,_g g 1 },..,.,,,VNl"ltNNNl'W"/IMNN.rvftu'IINr••• - • • • • • • •• 1 

CC: 

Subject: 

{~~~~~~;:ti~~~:J~~}:~:-.::~}p:~:~;·;-~[~~-~-~~~-~-~~:~-~diii~:;;~~~~;;~~-~=-~-~-~~~~~~~!:~~~~;-_·~·k'i:t!!~!~~·~;;d_~·.~-.i 

c·.~~~~.~i~·.]mi croso ft. com]; C-.~~~~-~~-.=~~~-.:-.~~~~-~~~!i~~~~~~:.::~~-.~-~~~] bytedance. com]; [~;,:.i;:~i~itwitter. com r--·---·-·Redac:'i;c:r- -···-·-·-·:meta .com l ;[·-···-·--·-·--Reciici.e;r-·----·-·-·-·-·-·}}goog le .com) 

WG Meeting - Crisis reporting templates 
Attachments: imageO0l.png; Crisis reporting template - Working draft.docx 
Location: DG CNECT, Rue de la Loi 51, 1000 Brussels 

Start: 12/8/2022 2:00:00 PM 
End: 12/8/2022 3:00:00 PM 
Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: {none) 

Dear all, 

Ahead of our meeting, we have introduced a new draft that incorporates the comments and feedback and proposes a 

compromise from the Commission side. You may find it in the ~ Teams document and attached as copy for 
convenience. Please note that while based on EC internal discussion! Redacted j could not review the shared version yet. 

Looking forward to seeing you later, kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Dear all, 

Thank you very much for your edits in the ~ crisis reporting template. As discussed last week, we schedule this meeting 

for tomorrow afternoon to finalise t he draft. 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

P.S.: FYI, for the purpose of clarity we have moved t he latest version of the table to the top of the document, and copied 

the previous ones to the bottom under "Former Versions". 

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
To follow up on the Prague conference, Faktograf prepared this relatively short overview of our activities and insights. It 
includes data on our outputs and insights on narratives and sources & vectors, as well as a few alerts (RT Balkans and 
current monetization practices that support disinformation). 
Faktograf is a fact-checking non-profit media working from Croatia mostly for audiences in Croatia and in Croatian 
language, but the scope of disinformation and misinformation that is being fact-checked is wider due to SEE Check 
network of fact-checkers from South East Europe (EU MS Slovenia & Croatia+ EU "candidates" Serbia, Bosnia and 
Herzegovina and Montenegro). 

Since the start of the war in Ukraine, Faktograf.hr established a dedicated live-blog and by November 30 produced 103 
articles, out of wh ich 88 were published in the section Exposed/Razotkriveno (debunks on social netwo rks - Meta's 
3PFCP), while 15 were analysis published in other sections of the website such as In Focus/Pod povecalom (deep dive 
reporting and analysis) and Accuracy Check/Ociena tocnosti (fact-checks of politicians' statements). Faktograf also 
participated in the UkraineFacts providing 87 articles to the database. 
Social networks have proven t o be a fertil e ground for pro -Kremlin disinformation in Croatia. Facebook rema ined the 
most popular social network amongst Croatian users but Telegram has proved to be the most important network for the 
dissemination of pro-Kremlin propaganda and disinformation, due to its complete absence of any kind of content 
moderation. Pro-Kremlin disinformation and propaganda narratives in Croatia most often spil l over from neighbouring 
countries, especia lly Serbia (home to regiona l versions of Sputnik and RT) and Bosnia-Herzegovina, which share the 
same language with Croatia, enabling digita l content to cross borders freely and effortlessly. Content of such 

disinformation and propaganda has mostly been aimed at vi lifying Ukrainians as neonazis and trying to paint a picture 
that the war in Ukraine is actually being fought between Russia and the collective West. Pro-Ukra inian disinformation 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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has also been reaching social networks in Croatia, but a huge majority of disinformation Faktograf has debunked since 
the beginning of the war obviously comes from Russia. The majority of disinformation being propagated on Facebook 
comes not from pages, but from private profiles (usually with obviously fake names) who spread it via Facebook groups. 
Disinformation and propaganda is most often being spread via short video clips, often claiming to reveal some sort of 
"hidden truth" behind the war in Ukraine with the aim to justify Russia's actions. 
Additionally, we noticed that Russia Today (in English available here https://swentr.site/) has recently started publishing 
its "Balkans" version. It announced it will be starting its television channel in Serbian language by 2024, but since 

November 15th 2022 it is publishing on its website and its profiles at Telegram ("This channel can't be 
displayed because it violated local laws"), Facebook, lnstagram, Twitter, Tik Tok and Youtube (''This channel is not 
available"). The operation seems to have an editor in chief (Jelena Milincic), but is lacking impressum (information on 
the publisher, the editorial policy, the editors and the newsroom). 
The SEE Check Network analysed the data from five regional fact-checking web portals during the first 150 days of the 

war in Ukraine showing that they had published a total of 313 analyses in which 1,396 articles and social media posts 
were rated as manipulative or inaccurate. Only 274 articles and publications were subsequently corrected after 
evaluation by fact-checkers. A total of 1,573 inaccurate and manipulative claims were recorded in the region, most of 
which are part of Russian propaganda that has found its way into the countries of Southeast Europe. Furthermore, the 
analysis found that "the media from Serbia are the most common sources of misinformation for the entire region, and 
tabloids dominate among them, which, without exception, are politically sympathetic to the current authorities. Of the 
20 individual sources with the most rated articles, 16 are from Serbia, two from Montenegro and two from Bosnia and 
Herzegovina." Details on the analysis are available here: Global Narratives And Local Actors: 150 Days Of The War In 
Ukraine And Over 1,500 Disinformation In The Region. 
Lastly, it is important to also reference the research on data provided by fact-checkers in South East Europe. "ProPublica 
found Google placed ads on 13% of English-language websites that NewsGuard deemed unreliable for having repeatedly 
published false content or deceptive headlines and failing to meet transparency standards. In contrast, ProPublica's 
analysis found anywhere from 30% to 90% of the sites most often flagged for false claims by fact-checkers in the non­
English languages examined were monetizing with Google". Details on the analysis are available here: How Google's Ad 
Business Funds Disinformation Around the World. 
For this overview to remain short, important details may have been left out, so please do reply with questions and 
comments. Also if there is a more appropriate form for this short report. 
All the best, 

[_ Redacted j 

! Redacted i 
! ! 
i..·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· 

l. Redacted :@faktograf hr 

!_ ______ _ Redacted ____ ___ : 

Faktograf.hr 

FB I TW I IG I YT 

Transparency Register 1D 521295644592-54 
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On Mon, 28 Nov 2022 at 17:31, CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu <C ECT-COP-TASK­
FORCE@ec.europa.eu> wrote: 

Dear all, 

We hope that - those who celebrated - had a nice Thanksgiving weekend and come back refreshed to the 
intense work going on under the Code. 

Let us take this occasion to follow-up - as agreed - on the last meeting of the crisis response subgroup 
regarding the necessary follow-up on the Prague High-level multi-stakeholder event on the Future of the 
Internet of ovember 2, the afternoon sessions whereof concentrated on disinformation and Central and 
Eastern Europe surrounding the war in Ukraine. 

You can find th full agenda of the event here and a complete recording here. In addition, we attach the 
presentations given by Claire Wardle (EDMO), Karina Stasiuk-Krajewska (CEDMO), Peter Erdelyi 
(LAKMUSZ) and Dominika Hajdu (Globsec). 

As recalled at the meeting of the subgroup, Vice President t Redacted]made a strong call in her closing speech 
for platforms to step up their action and measures to address disinformation on Ukraine in Central and 
Eastern Europe. 

In that view, following up on her call, as indicated at the last meeting of the crisis subgroup, we ask platform 
signatories to submit a short written summary by the 15th of December, explaining what concrete actions 
they are planning to take to improve their measures to reduce disinformation on Ukraine in Central and 
Eastern Europe? We would like you to concentrate in this regard in particular on information related to 
detection and content moderation capacities in the languages concerned - as well as ensuring fact­
checking, with the involvement of human resources and fact-checkers that speak the languages concerned and 
have a knowledge of the national specificities. Likewise, we would like to understand your policies and 
enforcement actions to improve demonetisation efforts in CEE, i.e. to avoid that advertising is supporting 
disinformation in these languages, and to avoid that disinformation content in these languages is amplified 
through advertising or disseminated in the form of advertisements. 

W also look forward to receive from fact-checkers and civil society signatories their written short 
summary of their experiences and findings related to disinformation on Ukraine in Central and Eastern 
Europe. This also by the 15th of December. 

We are looking forward to receiving your written inputs. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT _HJC_008460 
1438



Kind regards, 

! i Redacted i 
: '-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-.i 

!Zii \ 
European Commission 
Communications etworks, Content & Technology (DG CNECT) 

BU/25 05/61 
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From: 

Attendees: 

Location: 

Subject: 

Importance: 

Start Time: 

End Time: 

Required Attendees: 

CN ECT-COP-T AS K-FORC E@ec. europa .eu [CN ECT-COP-T ASK­
FORCE@ec. europa. eu] 

e 
eea 
eeas 
as.eu 

~meaCerven 
~google.co 

al haex loration 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Integrity of Services Subgroup (CoP task-force) - regular meetings 

Normal 

Tue 12/13/2022 6:30:00 AM (UTC-08:00) 

Tue 12/13/2022 8:00:00 AM (UTC-08:00) 

eeas.europa.eu; 
eeas.europa.eu; 

Teeas.europa.eu; (Twitter); 
eeas.europa.eu; Sta~ERGA • 

~mea Cervenova (ERGA); ---- ; 
~google.com 

' icrosoft) ; 
le); 

' 1crosoft); 
e); 

Optional Attendees: al haexplorationco.com; -

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
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- vteams.tech. 

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

L_ ____ __________ Redacted ____ ___________ \@tiktok.com] 
12/14/2022 6:16:30 PM 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu 
Subject: Re : RE: [External] Crisis response group follow-up - written input on action to address disinformation on Ukraine in 

Central and Eastern Europe 

Thank you i Redacted l and I heard the same was coo finned in the meeting earlier today. 

KR 

i Redacted i 
'·-·------~----·-·--.J 

From: CNECT-COP-T ASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu 
Date: Wed, Dec 14, 2022, 4:18 PM 
Subject: RE: [External] Crisis response group follow-up - written input on action to address disinfonnation on 
Ukraine in Central and Eastern Europe 
To: ·r·········· .. -·-· .. -·-····· Redacted ·· ·· ·-······ ·· .. ,-, ... ,., @tiktok.com> 

'-- -- - -- ---- - -- -- ·- -- ··-- -- - -- . - -- ---- -- ---- _.....,_. - . --- . - -- -- -- -- · -- ·--- -->:.::/ 

Dear i_ Redacted _i 

Sorry for the late reply. The submissions concerning central and eastern Europe will not be made public, but 
should be shared with the rest of the subgroup. The agreement of confidentiality of course also applies in this 
case, we will make sure to make these clarifications also at today' s subgroup meeting. 

Kind regards, 

' I Redacted ! . ' .... ....... ... ,. ,_,. , . .. .... , .. ... , _J 

From: [=:=·=:=:=-=-=:==:=:=:=-=:Redacted ·.=:=·.:.=·-==:=:=-=:=:==·-= ta{ttkto k.com> 
Sent: Monday, December 12, 2022 7: 10 PM 
To: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu> 
Subject: Re: [External] Crisis response group follow-up - written input on action to address disinformation on 
Ukraine ia Central and Eastern Europe 

Dear Commission team, 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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In respect of the report on CEE, can you please confirm if this report would be made public? Thank you. 

Kind regards 

[Redacted ! 
'-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-' 

From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu 

Date: Mon, Nov 28, 2022, 5:32 PM 

Subject: [External] Crisis response group follow-up - written input on action to address disinformation on 
Ukraine in Central and Eastern Europe 
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L .......... Redacted .......... 1@rsf.org>, r · ······· ····· ········Reda·cted······· ········-·········}@newsguardtech.com>, 
L. ......... Redacted ........... i@eeas.europa.eu r····· ·-Redacte·Ci······ ·· ;@eeas.europa.eu> 

Dear all, 

We hope that - those who celebrated - had a nice Thanksgiving weekend and come back refreshed to the intense work going on 
under the Code. 

Let us take this occasion to follow-up - as agreed - on the last meeting oftbe crisis response subgroup regarding the necessary 
follow-up on the Prague High-level multi-sbtkeholder event on the Future of the Internet ofNovember 2, the aftemoon 
sessions whereof concentrated on disinformation and Central ancl Eastern Euro1>e surrounding the war in Ukraine. 

Y ~~1.~~.l]..Y!l.c!.!.l.1~ .. f.ull agend~.9.f..~!1~ .. ~Y.~1~U.!~i:t:.~!.!.~ .. a. ~9mplete recprding here._I9 addition, we attac).~.!l)~.PEf:.~f:1..1!~!:i!)ns given 
byt ... ~.~~~.~!~~-.. JEDMO),i Redacted i(CEDMO)j Redacted :(LAKMUSZ) and i Redacted i(Globsec). 

'-•-•- • •••••••• • • • • •••• ••••• ••• ••••••••• ••••••• • • •••' L-- ---- •- -- ----•- -- •- -- •- · -· '-•••••••••••••••• •••••• •••• ~•••••,I 

As recalled at the meeting of the subgroup, Vice President Jourova made a strong call in her closing speech for platforms to 
stc1> u1> their action and measures to address disinformation on Ukraine in Central and Eastern Europe. 

In that view, following up on her call, as indicated at the last meeting of the crisis subgroi1p, we ask ulatform signatories to 
submit a short written summary by the 15th of December, explaining what concrete actions they are 11lanning to take to 
inlprove their measm-es to reduce disinformation on Ukraine in Central and Eastern Euro1>e? We would like you to 
concentrate in this regard in particular on infomJation related to detection and content moderation capacities in the 
languages concerned - as well as ensuring fact-checking, with the involvement of human resources and fact-checkers that 
speak the languages concerned and have a knowledge of the national specificities. Likewise, we would like to understand your 
policies and enforcement actions to improve demoneti~ation efforts in CEE, i.e. to avoid that advertising is supporting 
disinformation in these languages, and to avoid that disinformation content in these languages is amplified th.rough advertising 
or disseminated in the fonn of advertisements. 

We also look forward to receive from fact-checkers and civil society signatories their written short summary of their 
experiences and findings related to disinformation on Ukraine in Central and Eastern Europe. This also by the 15th of 
December. 

We are looking forward to receiving your written inputs. 

Kind regards, 

. • - --- --- ---- • - · - - --- -- • - ------1 

i Redacted ! 
, __ ---. - -- ·- --------. ------- --. • 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_004469 
1446



- -
European Commission 

Communications Networks, Content & Technology (DG CNECT) 

BU/25 05/61 
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Organizer: 

Subject: 

Location: 

Start Time: 

End Time: 

Attendees: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu: CNECT-COP-TASK­
FORCE@ec.europa.eu 

Crisis Response Subgroup (CoF' Task-force) Meeting 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

2022-12-14T16:30:00+01 :00 

2022-12-14T18:00:00+01 :00 
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Attachment: CID:264FAC02DF94B4498A201CSBF4BF55F7@ec.europa.eu 

Dear all , 

Ahead of our meeting this afternoon, please find attached the proposed agenda. 

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

In accordance with the calendar set forth in the Terms of Reference, we send you tlhe recurring meeting 
invitation for our bi-monthly meetings. 

Looking forward to seeing you, kind regards, 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 
Join on your computer or mobile app 
Click here to join the meeting 

> 

Download Teams<https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app> I Join on the 
web<https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting> 
Join with a video conferencing device 
-@vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu<mailto-@vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu> 
Video Conference ID: -
Alternate VTC 
instructions<https ://vp. tech.ec.eu ropa. eu/teams/?conf= 12 32183990&ivr=teams&d = vp .tech.ec .eu ropa. eu 
&ip=147.67.44.41 &test=test_call&w> 
Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 
Learn More<https:1/aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting> I 
Hel p<https:/ /ec .eu ropa. eu/newsroom/d igiUitems/692896> Meeting 
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CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_004475 
1450



CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_004476 
1451



Exhibit 102 

1452



VtRAJOUROVA 

VICl=- PRESIDl:Nf 

V ALUES AND TRANSPARENCY 

Dear Mr Shou Zi Chew, 

European 
commission 

- Ref . Ares(2022)8948639 - 22/12/2022 

THlERRY BRETON 

MEMBER OF THE EUROPEAN COM MISSION 

[NTERNAL MARKET 

Brussels, 22 December 2022 

Mr Shou Zi Chew 

Chief Executive Officer 

TikTok 

As Russia's brutal war of aggression against Ukraine rages on, the Kremlin's war 
propaganda, disinformation and foreign interference continues to spread rapidly, 
including on your services. We acknowledge the actions that signatories of the 
2022 Code of Practice on Disinformation have taken since the beginning of the 
war, yet we fail to see the step-change that the situation requires. 

As you know, the EU has put in place a clear and robust framework through 
several initiatives. 

It adopted sanctions prohibiting the distribution of any content by a number of 
Russian propaganda assets, including the Kremlin's propaganda TV channels. In 
addition, the sanctions include a prohibition of all advertisement of products and 
services in the content of the entities subject to these sanctions. We count on 
you to implement them fully across your services and to adopt efficient 
safeguards aga inst circumvention. 

Last month, in Prague, at the conference on the Future of the Internet, 
ministers, fact-checkers and civil society organisations identified shortcomings 
and platforms' vulnerabilities regarding the dissemination of disinfo rmation in 
Central and Eastern Europe and in the Baltic States. In view of the commitment 
to implement the Code in all Member States and languages, we call upon all 
platforms to step up their efforts in these areas of Europe. 

Your commitments include: designing platform services with user safety firmly 
in mind, providing appropriate mechanisms to avoid the vi ral spread of 
disinformation, also when artificially amplified by bots or 'fake accounts' among 
others. Content moderation, including through fact-checking, must build upon 
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sufficient technical, but also human capacities with the necessary language ski lls 
and knowledge of the local specificities. Demonetisation of disinformation must 
be also a clear marker of your efforts overall. 

Fighting disinformation and granting visibility to trustworthy sources of 
information are two sides of the same coin . It is paramount that online 
platforms pay specific attention to independent news media and avoid measures 
that negatively impact them. Protecting media freedom and pluralism also 
requires sufficient capacities and a strong cooperation with civil society, 
including media freedom organisations. It is in this spirit that the European 
Commission has recently proposed the Media Freedom Act. 

We trust your company will deliver in January strong reports, including detailed 
information regarding actions related to disinformation on the war in Ukraine 
and Covid-19, attesting a thorough implementation of all your commitments 
and measures in all Member States. 

This is an ultimate test for the success of the Code and we count on your active 
engagement in t he fight against disinformation to protect democracies. 

Yours sincerely, 

Ce-signed) 

Vera Jourova 

- Elect.ronically sig11ed on n/12/2022 20:05 (UTC•Ol) i11 accordanci' wilh Article ll of Commission Decision (EU) 2021/2121 
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

2023-01 -11T16:30:00+01 :00 

2023-01-11T18:00:00+01 :00 

1::::::i~i~~:li;~;:;;~:~I~r:~~F:i~:~::1~:~~c-europa.eu. 
C.~-~~~~iiit~~~~~~ustin.tv,[:~:~.~:~.-~:B~~~~i~.~~:~.-~~:~.!kinzen.com,i_ ~e~acted ___ i ,-·--·-·-·. 
L ... R..~c!.!!~l.!!.!l ____ :eaca. eu, L. ····--·-·-··-·-·--·R~c!.1!~t.!!.!J .......... ........ ,.--Jm 1crosoft. com, LR_'.':•..<~J 

; Redacted lb.com i Redacted i 

~::::~:;:~;~~~~::~;~,a;;;:;:~:~~j~:~:°:r°:i,~~~~J-
r··-R·iiciacteci'···:google.com,: Redacted eaca.eu,• Redacted: 
~•- •- •-•-•~-• • • • .•••••••• --·--- --------·-, l..,,., .... , - •••• •• ...,_,Al'...,_"' _ _,.,..., _ _,_,_,...., .. ...,,...,.....,_..,..,..,...,_,_,./ - · . - '•- ••• - ••• •••••••••• 

• Redacted google.com, ; Redacted :m1CrDSOft.COm, 

1~~~:~~;~~K;!!~i~i~;~~it~!~~~::;::·-for~~1~'~mrn~~'. 
r···-·-Redacted·-·-·-ivosteurope .org' r ····-·-·-·-·- -·-·-·-·Redacted-·-·-·-···-·-···-·-·-·-lwitch ' tv' i Redacted i 
1- · - · - · - · - · - · - ·--·· - · -·- · - · - · - I •• ,. , . .. ... , • .•.• .• , - - .• .• .• , . .. .. ... - .. .. .. .. ....... .. . - -- ·- ·- . 1 .,.., • • • • • • • • • • • , • • • 

r ·iieiiiiciec1-··1thebrightapp.com, L_ _____________ ~'!!:.?..~~~~ __ J __ q_\obsec.org,i.-1!~~.!'~!<:.iU 

t~--~--~--~--~~;·;·;·;~tff.~~!~~~;~~-::·::·;;rtograf:;~acte:edacter j 

r--·-R;·d·;·~t;;d···~crispth inking. com, r--·-···-·-···-·-···-·R~d;-;;i;·d·-···-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·1vosteurope .org, 
, •· - ·-·-· - ·--·- --·-·-·-·- •••••••--••••••••••• • L--·-; -·-·- ---·-·-·-·-'"-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-- ·-·-·- -- ••.• J • •• • • •••••• • 

i Redacted ~Witter .comi Redacted ·..------neva-

• 1;~\;;;iiE~:;:i::;;~;~~:i;;~.;;~,0}~~;J,:ii~::~J-·7 

,·-·-- --·--·-·-·- ·-R~~~t;;d·--···-·-- -·-- -·-·:pagel la pol itica .it, i Redacted : 

};;;;;!:~'!-;~~i1i~~=~~3:~~;~~~•'"5i"~;aii?~:~a·e~]~i:j 
L_ ________ J!~~'.!.~t~_d ____________ _:ec . europa. eu, L_ ________ ~~~'.!<:~~~-·-·-·-·-.Jeeas. europa. eu : 
! Redacted ;eeas.europa.eu, f Redacted :eeas.europa.eu : 

[:!~:l~=.:;~"~~~liE!::1··::=~--·:cs•urop• eu 
r--·-·-·-·R~-,i;;;;i;d·-·-·-·7meta .com, r···R;;d-;;-;;i;d-·:twitter .com : r-Fi;;;j-;;-;;1;·d·-·:-twitter. com, 

f.·~~~~~t;~Jrsforg~l_R_e_c!l!~t~Jstorgi~~-:~~~~~~: .. ::.~·.:c.~.~-~~~~~~--:c.:c·.:c·~-:::.::c~~---·' 
c-·-·-·-·-·-·-· --R;;;,i;·~.;d·-·-·-·-·- -·-···1e C. e u ro pa . ~ u L --· -·-·-·-·-R..':'..\f_~,!:!!:.~.---·-- ,_,_,_j 
L-·-·-·-·--R;;d~~t;;d·-·-·-·-·-·-;t,yted an ce . com ,L .. _ -·-·-·-···~~p_aEJ~.~---·- -·--·- _i 

[~~~~-~~~:~~:~~~-~::!rl~--~-~~=~-~~:~.~=-i~:-~:::·;~·~~--~~~f !~::::~;;;~;;:;::::::1~a Id ita .es, 
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l Redacted gtwitter.com 
CID: EB2 DEA65FEADD54 F92E1396C59CE88EO@ec.europa.eu 
Dear all , 

Ahead of our meeting tomorrow, please find attached the draft agenda. 

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

The CoP Oisinfo Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 
Join on your computer or mobile a 
Cl ick here to join the meeting 

Download Teams<https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app> I Join on the 
web<https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting> 
Join with a video conferencing device 
-@vteams.tech .ec.europa.eu<maillo-@vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu> 
Video Conference ID: -
Alternate VTC 
instructions<https ://vp. tech.ec.eu ropa. eu/teams/?cornf= 1232183990&ivr=teams&d =vp. tech .ec. eu ropa. eu 
&ip=14 7 .67.44.41 &test=test_call&w> 
Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 
Learn More<https ://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting> I 
Help<https://ec_europa_eu/newsroom/digiUitems/692896> 
options 
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Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start ; 

End : 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
1/20/2023 2:06:10 AM 
Alexis Bley (EACA) ogle.com]; 
-@twitter.co 

icros (TikTok) 
ktok.com]; le) 
oogle.com]; David , Brandi (GDI) 

ionindex.or om]; Fiona Campbel l-Webster 
mediamath. ktok.com]; Gabrielle Robitaille 
anet.org); Gor wsguardtech.com); Ines Ta lavera 

@iabeurope.eu]; ed iamath.com]; Israel Mirsky 
uardtech.com]; Ja mhh.hu]; Justin Adler-Swanberg 

(MediaMath) -@mediamath .co . , isa Ginsborg (EDMO) 
eui.eu];■■■■I ( google.com]; 
meta.com]; Martin Sambrook ■■■■@ebiquity.com]; 

gle .com];■■■■■■■■@meta.com]; Rob Rakowitz (WFA/GARM) 
anet.org]; Sam Jeffers (Wh o Targets Me)-@whotargets.me];■■■■(Googl e) 
oogle.com ]; Stanislav Matejka (ERGA) @rvr.sk]; Stephanie Posner (DV) 

@doubleverify.com]; Tfmea Cervef\ova (ERGA) @rvr.sk]; 

(Google) 

rosoft.com ); Virgin ia Padovese (Newsguard) @newsguardtech.com]; BIRGER Albin 
ec.europa.eu] 

RABBACHIN Alberto 
BRAIDA Mattia 
Stella 

ec.europa.eu]; STUMP Krisztina 
@ec .europa .eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

@ec.europa.eu] 

Ad-scrutiny Subgroup (CoP Task-force) - regular meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

1/30/2023 8;00;00 AM 

1/30/2023 9:00:00 AM 

ec.europa.eu]; 
@ec.europa.eu]; MEYER 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear colleagues, 

We hope you are all doing fine amid this reporting period. 

Looking ahead, we would like to call a first meeting of the Subgroup to kick off a discussion on work strands and 
meetings for 2023. 

Best wishes, 
Rob and Albin 

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
Sent: 1/31/2023 8:58:39 AM 
To: Alexis Bley (EACA) @google.com]; 

-@twitter.co (M icrosoft) [t-
icros @google.com]; (TikTok) 

ktok.com]; @eaca.eu]; (Google) 
oogle.com]; David @doubleveri fy.com]; Emanuele Brandi (GDI) 

ionindex.or @google.com]; Fiona Campbel l-Webster 
mediamath. @tiktok.com]; Gabrielle Robitaille 
anet.org); @newsguardtech.com); Ines Ta lavera 

@iabeurope @mediamath.com]; Israel M irsky 
uardtech.co @nmhh.hu]; Justin Adler-Swanberg 

(MediaMath) - • @meta.com]; Lisa Ginsborg (EDMO) 
eui.e @google.com]; 
met (Ebiquity) ■■■■@ebiquity.com]; (Google) 

@google .com]; @meta.com]; Rob Rakowitz (WFA/GARM) 
@wfanet.org]; Sam Jeffers (Who Targets Me) -@whotargets.me];■■■■(Google ) 

@google.com ]; Stanislav Matejka (ERGA) @rvr.sk]; Stephanie Posner (DV) 
@doubleverify.com]; Tfmea Cervef\ova (ERGA) @rvr.sk]; 

@microsoft.com); Virgin ia Padovese (Newsguard) @newsguardtech.com]; 

CC: 
@twitter.com 

RABBACH IN Alberto ec.europa.eu]; STUMP Krisztina 
@ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

(21ec.europa.eu) 
BRAIDA Mattia 
Jon 

ec.europa.eu]; 
@ec.europa. eu]; FILIPEK 

Subject : 
Location: 

Start ; 

End : 

Ad-scrutiny Subgroup (CoP Task-force) - regular meetings 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

2/13/2023 8;00;00 AM 

2/13/2023 9:30:00 AM 
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

-@vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: -
Aihm,ale \ITC instructlons 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn fviore I Help I l\keting options 

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

1/31/2023 9:07:04 AM 
To: Alexis Bley (EACA) 

-@twitter.co 
icros 

ktok.com); 
oogle.com]; David 

ationindex.or 
@mediamath. 

(WFA) [g.robitaille@wfanet.org]; 
(IAB Europe) @iabeurope 

uardtech.co 

(MediaMath) - • 
eui.e 
met 

gle .co 
anet.o 

~whotargets.m 
r . , 
rvr.sk]; 

ogle.com); 

(TikTok) 
le) 

, Brandi (GDI) 
om]; Fiona Campbel l-Webster 
ktok.com]; Gabrielle Robitaille 
wsguardtech.com]; Ines Ta lavera 

ed iamath.com]; Israel Mirsky 
mhh.hu]; Justin Adler-Swanberg 

. , isa Ginsberg (EDMO) 
google.com]; 

@ebiquity.com]; (Google) 
. , Rob Rakowitz (WFA/GARM) 

witter.com]; Sam Jeffers (Who Targets Me) 
@google.com]; Stanislav Matejka (ERGA) 

@doubleverify.com); Timea Cervenova (ERGA) 
@microsoft.com]; Virginia Padovese [Newsguard) 

CC: 
@newsguardtech.com] 

RABBACHIN Alberto ec.europa.eu]; STUMP Krisztina 
@ec .europa .eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

(21ec.europa.eu] 
BRAIDA Mattia 
Jon 

ec.europa.eu]; 
ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start ; 

End : 

Ad-scrutiny Subgroup (CoP Task-force) - regular meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

5/30/2023 8;00;00 AM 

5/30/2023 9:30:00 AM 
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

2023·02-08T16:30:00+01 :00 

2023·02-08T18:00:00+01 :00 

E~~~;~~;;~~~i~~e~~;:~~;.;;;.e~~r~.~~~~~E.~.S!.:~.~~It:.~ l ·-·-···-·--·-·-··, 
L Redacted @!i~!9.!<.,~.9.f.!!L .. ___ ···-··-·-·-- Redacted _..@maldita.es,!.~~e!_~c_t~~j 
i Redacted @vimeo.com i Redacted ! .._ • ~----·-·-------------·-'""·-·-·---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-------------'.---·-----------•--·-•-·-·-·-.. 
i Redacted .. ~goog I~. com) ·-···-· Redacted._. __ . .@kinzen.com,! ..... Redacted~·-.L·-·· 
! Redacted @eaca.euL Redacted @microsoft.com, aR,dac tod! 

E::~~=-:~]~iif tf ~~~~~··:~1:~.1~;~~;i~i~~~~i}i~.~1~~~~·~·=-=·:.::1._._._ .. , •••••••••••• , 
: Redacted@m1crosoft.com, i Redacted ; 
·1.-iieciaciecf ·-@ m icrosoft. com, r· -·-···- . ---·Redacte·d- -~-··- ··-·-~·~~~~~9-.~·~.~~tech .com, 

i Redacted ia'.lgoogle.com,l Redacted i 

t:Ji;~~~i~i:~~~"J~_eaca.-eux======: ... E~~.~.ifo~ .. ·.-·~·~=·==·==·@google.comf~~~~~~Ii~] 
! Redacted :lVmicrosoft.com,; Redacted ! t-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-..·-· lo;.;., ,·-·-·-·-.!,-J"'' ... -· -·-·-' -·-•-•.-·-· ........... ' ...... ..... -, ... .... , ·-·-· -·-.. 

L R~~:~t~dd@V~~
1
~.~~~:r.~.'.~~·-·······~¥.~-~£~~=~~~-----~g.~og:le.com, i'.~~~~~~1~.~J 

L·-···········- Redacted·-·····-······· ~ec.europa. ~.~ ' Redacted ··-·-····j 

~-R~~;~~!f-@!::~~~~=~~:~t:.~?_f!l!.L,,,~!f;~~f!~'"''J.·-·-·····7g2twitch.tv,[~!~~~~i.~:1 
~--·ii;d;·~1";;~t·'@1hebri hta .com ( .·M--R;da;ted --~·~~···1obsec.or 1"R~~;;;.:i7 
......................... ~····-···-·-·g······!QP_., '; ·····-···············-···-·-·-·g··········•• -. g I '-·-· ······ · · · ··· ' 

i Red.~.~~~·~···- -······f9lfa~!~9!.?I~.f;.L ............ ~~~~~~~~ ... , ...... _ .. J 
L.~.!.~.~.~t,.<;~ .. @.9.~.'.~..P.!~!_n.l<.1 ng. com, L. ..... ~•·····-···_13:~~~P!~~ ............ _ ....... ~Y.Q~teurope .org, 

Llabs. :o8~;eted ·······-···~::~:;~~om' ! ········-··~5~:~:~~=~com,': ., Re~~~=dvai 

.L~~.C!l!~t!~-~fb .com, L.. ............ ;~-~~.~~~~~ .. -·-·--·-·· .@,rsf.org, [···-·-···:fi~~ll.9J!2... ____ ~L_ ..... _ 

:1.~.~~~~1i·!~~f~~.~:.~Y.:~~r~~oft.c~~~~~!;':~j~~Q.!L.,~.,,,,~~~~,i1t:co~, 

F~~=~,R~~~~:~~~~~:=~~lo?~~~~i~s~~~~co~=1Q~~!~~eciac·ieCt]~~·iic~~~~£~~~~~~~~!.~~~? 
f°Redaciei:i""iilgoogle.com,i Redacted @justin.tv,: Redacted i 
r -Re~:~~-~~rsf ·~~·~~agog ~~r~~~~Fd Re!a~~}~ r ·i--·R~d~~t~---·--T···· 

L .. -. Redacted_._. __ jrvr.sk, J___·-·-··--··,_ ·---··Redacted _ __________ i@ec.europa.eu, 

t R~dacted@m1~6~~ft~6om~F"•mm .... - ~~;~~~~ ---·-·-Reda~~agell~politica.it, 
•-·-·-·-·-•--·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-•-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-l.---·-·-·--·-·-·-l -·-·-·--·-·-·-·- ·•·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·4 
l ····-··- --·8·~~:1_a.~te.<1. wrsf.org, :.__·-··~~.~~~~~<:~~~-·--··-·i 
, Redacted ~newsij"uardtech.comf Riiciacted rotwitter. com : 
:-•---·-·---------·--•-•-•-•-•-• ••••••• , ---·-·-·- ·-·--·---- - ----·-· - -· _ _ .J. _________ ____ ______ ~·-•- - · • • I 

t~E:~~.~.!!~.~~.Y!':!~!:~om, L...·-···-·-·-·-·--·r=~~~~£!~E~--===--•·~-JJec .europa. eu, L~.e·~·~·~!:.~J 
I Redacted @ec.europa.eu,L. Redacted. ~eeas.europa.eu : ,_ _________________ , .......... ~.... ......... ~ ~ 
L ......... ~~~!'~!.~.~·-··,·--@eeas. europa .e~J ...... .R~~l!f.~~····-··"" eeas. eu ropa. eu : 
l-..... '3-~~~.~!':.~ ....... @~,eas.europa.eu, L. ... i-=~!2!'.:;;~ ____ j,@.~eas.europa.eu : 
.L ...... ~!'l~~~t~.c! ... , ... _.~@eeas.eu ro~?..:.~-~!; Redacted ! ··-·· 
L. .. Redacted ._ .. @ec. europa. E;U, j -···········-··· Redacted················-· i·-···, 
l . . Redacted ~-r:!l~t.?..:~.om, L--·····-··············B~~.a.~~~.c! ... _._ ... _ ............. @feedback.org, 
: Redacted@rsf.org,1 R<!dacted_@rsf.org,f Redacted : ' ··-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-......, ··-·-·-·-·-·-·'"--.... --.... , , ___________ -,1••·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-····-·-·-·-·-·-··1 
, Redacted ~ec.europa.eu,; Redacted i 
\11u11i.n11u1U.1'1WIU'l'W9"9MTI/U,.W"ll.ffiff&ITW"..J.l'l"M,••·-·--·-~ 1·-·-·-·L--.•-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· --~ 

I Redacted _@bytedance . CQDJ.L. ......... ,_ ... ~.~<!a.~t~.<! ..... -·-·······L.. .. 
L. .... Redacted ......• @'f:iytedance.com, L.. ......... ·-·······~·~~~£t~.~ ..... _. __ ............ @maldita.es, 
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' Redacted 1 
:__ _______ ______ ______________ __ Red acted __ ____ __ _______________________ glee. europa. eu 

Dear all , 

Ahead of our meeting this afternoon, please find attached the agenda. 

we have also received alerts from members of the group that the amount of disinformation on social 
media regarding the earthquakes in Turkey and Syria is rapidly growing. We suggest to discuss any 
findings you may have at this stage about these narratives and their potential impact in the EU as part of 
the regular tour de table, being mindful of course of the fact that this is an evolv ing new situation. 

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

Meeting I : 
Passe ode: 
Download Teams<https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app> I Join on the 
web<https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting> 
Join with a video conferencing device 
-@vteams.tech .ec.europa.eu<mailto-@vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu> 
Video Conference ID: -
Alternate VTC 
instructions 

Joining is available on ly from a Commission videoconferencing system. 
Learn More<https://aka .ms/JoinTeamsMeeting> I 
Help<https://ec.europa.eu/newsroom/digiUitems/692896> 
options 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
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Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CN ECT-COP-TASK-FO RCE@ec.eu ropa . eu [CN ECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 

2/16/2023 1:20:29 AM 
anjabechmannATcc.au .dk - @cc.au.dk);-~twitter.com]; -
~ tiktok.com); (Microsoft) @microsoft .com]; 
(Google) - @google com]; (Google) @google.com]; 

tiktok.com); ■■■■ (Vimeo) (Google) 
o le.com]; ight A.pp) om]; ) 

vimeo. (Crisp) • ing.com]; -
om); Luc (YouTube) 
ogle.co uropa.eu]; 

eta.co h) ichal Feix (Seznam) @ch-c.eu); 

Michal Holas (Seznam) - @ch -c.eu]; - (Google) - @google.com]; Omri Preiss (All iance 4 
Europe) @all iance4europe.eu]; @eeas.europa .eu; Ondrej Tolar 

@firma.seznam.cz]; @meta.com]; ~ eeas.europa.eu; Paula 

ui.eu); Petra de Place Blak ■■■l@uni. au.dk ]; Richard Stansfield 
@crispthinking.com]; - (twitter) ~ twitter.com ]; 

Teeas.e ■■■■@eeas .europa. eu ];■■■■I (Google) 
gle.co eeas.europa.eu; Stanislav Matejka (ERGA) j @rvr.sk]; 

Timea Cervei\ova (ERGA) @rvr.sk]; - - @m icrosoft.com); 

eeas.europa.eu; RABBACHIN Alberto ■■■■■■-~ec.europa . eu ] ; STUMP Kriszti na 
ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter - @ec.europa.eu); BIRGER Albin 

ec.europa.eu] 
CC: BLA @ec.europa.eu ]; BRAIDA Mattia - @ec.europa .eu] ; KOLODZIEJSKA 

ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon ■■■■~ec.europa . eu]; GILLET Jeanne 

Subject : 
Location: 

Start : 
End : 

@ec.europa.eu) 

CoP - Integrity of Services Subgroup - regular meetings 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

2/28/2023 6:30:00 AM 

2/28/2023 8:00:00 AM 
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

Download Teams I Joln on the web 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0000571 
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Join with a video conferencing device 
- @vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: -
Alternate VTC instructions 

Joining is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn More I '·!elp I Meeting options 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

MET A-119HJC-0000572 
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Appointment 

From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 
Sent: 2/16/2023 1:22:12 AM 
To: dk]; @twitter.co 

• ok.c Mic @microsoft. 
@go (Goog google.c 
ktok (Vime vimeo . 

. com]; pp) .thebrightapp.com]; 

vime. risp)■■■■ · . , 
com]; Lucie firma. (YouTube) 
ogle.com]; @eeas.europa.eu]; 

meta.com]; @twitch.tv]; Michal Feix (Seznam)-@ch-c.eu]; 
Michal Holas (Semam)- (Google)■■■l@google.com]; Omri Prei ss (All iance 4 

alliance4eu as.europa.eu; Ondrej Tol ar 
. seznam. cz]; eeas.europa.eu; Paula 

i. eu]; Petra d .a 
crispthinking. r) @)twitter.com]; 

sabrina.spielederATeeas.europa.eu iiiiiiiii@eeas.europa.eu] ;■■■■ (Google) 
@google.com]; @eeas.europa.eu; Stanislav Matejka (ERGA) @rvr.sk]; 

Timea Cerver'\ova (ERGA) @rvr.sl<]; @microsoft.com]; 
eeas.europa.eu; RABBACHIN Alberto ec.europa.eu]; STUMP Krisztina 
ec.europa.eu]; BIRGER Albin @ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter 

@ec.europa.eu] 
CC: BLASCHKE Vann ie @ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia @ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA 

@ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon ■■■■,@ec.europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne 

Subject : 

Location: 

Start : 
End: 

@ec.europa .eu] 

CoP - Integrity of Services Subgroup - regular meetings 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

6/27/2023 6:30:00 AM 
6/27/2023 8:00:00 AM 

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

META-119HJC-0001029 
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

2023·02-22T16:30:00+01 :00 

2023·02-22T18:00:00+01 :00 
i-········~·-···R~d~~j;d············-···@eaca.eu r ·-··········Re<:i"acleci··-·········@fb.com' l Redacted l 
i RedacJ!.~--~.nmhh.hu,L.......... Redacted ----·j ··-··---·-· 
i ......... Redacted ....... J/2feedback .. orgt__ ................. ·· Redacted ............ ,·-·-· · @ec.europa,.eu, 
i. Re~.a-~~~.cL,····-·-· a>~.~eE?.!-.1!9.P.~.eu,l_ ...... R~.~?cted ! . . 
: Redacted :@ec.europa.eu,l Redacted @twitter.com,L Redacted: 
(--•-•••• ••••••••••••• -••••••••• • • ••••-•• •• •• • ••.., ~-- • - ·-··- ·•111,tr~,;w...,,.,,~...,rvn.1n.11W~IVNt., ••- ·--- --·-- - - ------

i Redacted @maldtta.es~ Redacted : 
r·-Redacteci"._@tlktofc-omr···-·······-····· Redacted ·····-·--·@microsoft.com, 

L. .. · .... . .J.~~~~c~eg· ... ··· ... · .. · ~l_l~V{?gua~c_l!~h_.Cpl!l.,1 ··-· ·--·· .. J~,~~cteCf ... ·~T·~· ····t.__ .. _ ... 
;~~:~ig~i!i~:~::.@.9.Sl9.9-!~• com, L.·-·-···-····<········B~~!!~!~~ ................ _ ....... _=·eac~. eu, L.~~.d..~~~e5!.] 
[ ____ Redacted ____@goog.le.co.m!)_. ___ .. Redacted ·-·· .. @m1crosoft.com, ... 
L. ... ·-··-·········-·- Redacted··-·······-•· ········ ®9 lo~sec.org,L_·····--· ···--· Redacted .... .......... _ ! 

l"'"'ii~d~~~~~~~~'fiiie6~c~J·~~.~~.~~.~~k~~·acied·······-···R.:.~~~e;ogle.com.L~.E:~~?.!~~_j 

1······-~~R;;:~;~d·-····~~c~~~~~~t.!~1~~J~.:::~:~~~~~;$J;J~~~~~~~;:r~as. eu ropa .eu : 
! Redacted "@eeas.europa.eu: Redacted , 
'------. .. --- - ·---· J. ..................... ________ ...,a ______________ __ , .. ------------ - ·-

! Redacted §?.?,~s.t~urope .org, L."i··············-'3~.g~Jg1~.~ .... ~ ....... -..... _.!3ltwitch. tv;_~~~.~~~~j 
! Redacted @globsec .o~g,; Redacted I ·-···--·········· 
1-··· ·Re.ciactect"····@raktograf.hr, i Redacted @vimeo.com, 
r~,., ..... ,., •.•.• ,., •.•. ii;'d~~-t~d···················-•-@cri'sp·1fil.nk1·ng·:cam;r--·--,R;d;;'t;;;········i 
\ __ Redacted ~·vo·steuro·pe~org;r··· -··~ ··········-R;d~~t;d·-·· L 11:>iie-va=fabs. co f_!l, 

(·····-··-· Redact~~dacted_~·ec·.-europ·a~!Y lob~=~~~f~~ --@eea~~~:~~ia.eu.: ~:~= l 
l Reda;t;d·-···-·2'feeas·.·euro a.eu r··-·-· ·'··Redi.cted·········-··'a)fb.comJ Redacted i 
'-(-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-··~ .-·-·--~P -·-·-·-·Z, •••••••••••••••••••••••• _, ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-,_,,,,, 1--·--· -·-·-·-·-·-·-·-" 
; Redacted wrsf.org ; Redacted l I ..... , ... _, _____ __ , _______ ,_. ___ ~ --·• 'L.-·-·-·---·-·-·--·-·-·-l·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·--·- ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- ·-. . ·-·-·-·-·-) 
: Redacted @bytedance.com,t.... Redacted illavaaz.org,: R,dacled ! 
f~-~-~~R-;7;;~i;;~"'······-····@ oo le .com,, Redacted ·--: _ '····-······ ···--··· · 
. ···-.. ····················,_,g .9 -··········-'-----·- ----- .,.... 
tB~.Q~~~.~ .. ~maldit,~.:~-~?LN-~N~~~~-~,8,~~~~!~.~ .... _:-·-··········.-~-~!~:.~9.~.L~~~N~~!~.J 

r~;;;~~~~i~tso_~co::r:;:;~-.:;,~~~J~o:~~;i *"~~] 
i ·--·-·-- Redacted··-··· ·· rrors~ rg, :····-······9R~-d~~t;d,·············aieuTeu:fReda~tEici'j l-
1--•-·-··-••n•n.,••··-·r6 ·- ······ ··· -+ •···············- ·····•·•·-·•·--···;---E-' ···•···-···•·-···-··········- .•. • 

,L··-··············B~~~f!~.c;1 .... , _@demcj.Q.Q!J...QJQ.,.PJ.J .............. .R.e~~~~~9 .......... _ .. J 
1: ·-·· Re:::;zded "fucr~et~~ieuropa • eu,Lr······· .~~.~:e~~~~cr·······}_···-··i 
I····-·····························,-, p p.KlO.<l~C.Qffi,.,, ••••••••••••••••••••• ~·····-··········-·-·········· 
.L.Redacted.@google.com, L ...... Reda<?ted····-·····~eeas.europa.eu : 
t .... - .. ... 8edact.e<,1 ..... -..... ,@eeas.europa.eu,L·· ·-·-·· Redacted.-····-· i .... 
l Redacted @rvr.sk, ! ·······-···R~~~.~1~~ ...... .,_ ~ec.e~J.Q.R.gJ:~.Y •. , 

,· NNNNR~d"'a"'ct;dNNNN: :@_~~9..:'.'.~.~~~pa·.·eu·;L..,.--~~-c!~~!!:~---JB.~eas~europa.eul_~_e·d·~-~t~j 
i••················-·,~·e.<!~~!.~~ ..... _ ... _ ...... ,···@[Y.f.:..~~.~ ........... .l.~':~~~t!:.d ........... l 
i Redacted ,@microsoft.com, L..·-····--·-· .. ~~_c:l.~~!El.~.- ............... .@.pagellapolitica.it, c~-···:::~:.::~i~i~~~~.~=~-=~~=:~~·.:~:~ ~~@byted a p9.~a.~9.~ L~----~~~~~!!'~ .... -· •.. : 
L---~!:~!!~~-<!. ____ @r::i.~.wsguard tech. co m!L. ......... ~~~.~-~!~~ .. , ....... .J@.~~.a.~.-.eu ropa. eu : 
l Redacted @eeas.europa.eu) Redacted @rsf.org, 
C ,~~~,~,~~,~:~,~,~,-,,~,~:,tf i..ii~~~~·.~~·.~.~~.~·.~.~.~.~.~.~.· .. ~·)1~~~~~~9.~~~~!~~~~x 0m;·········-·- ; ............... , 
; ........... -~~~-~~·~··-········i@eeas.eu ropa.eu,L_·-···-~~.~.a.~t~-~-·-··-·-@eeas.europa.euj Redacted j 
L_ ..... Redacted -·······,@twitter.com 
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Attachment: CID:7BCDB83F41 ABAF4D9431 B76412FE2798@ec.europa.eu 

Dear all , 

Ahead of this afternoon's meeting, we send you the draft agenda for your consideration. 

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
Download eams<https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app> I Join on the 
web<https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting> 
Join with a video conferencing device 
-@vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu<mailto-@vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu> 
Video Conference ID: -
Alternate VTC 

Joining is available only from a commission videoconferencing system. 
Learn More<https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting> I 
Help< https: /lee. eu ropa. eu/ newsroom/ d igit/items/692896> 
o tions 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

CN ECT-COP· T ASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CN E CT-COP· TASK·FORCE@ec.eu ropa. eu] 
3/8/2023 2:54:44 PM 

f-•-•- •-•--•-. • • • •- • • •- •- ••• • ,_,_ •-•• •- •• ••. ••-• I••••••-•--••••'•• - •- • ••. • • • •• ••• •••~ • • • • ••••·•• • • •• •• • • • •-• • 1 I - •• •••• ••••• • ·•• •••• •- ' •• ••-•] 

L ... ·-·····-··Redacted ........... t§lgoogle.comJ;.i Redacted ................... @ec.eu ropa .euJ;.L. .... Redacted ..... ! 
r····Reda·cte·d···@tiktok.com];i Redacted ~ec.europa.eu]; i Redacted i 
~::::;:::::=;::.•~•••••• •• •-••••' j -•••••••• •• •••••••':.•,-;.•,:,".":,',O::.:.".':-".":.".:.~-:,•,":,".".:;,~';.;:,".';.",:..:;:,;~•.-::;;:,'\,';.",":,".•· • •• ••,r- '1,.,r;,.-,1,...i,1'.T.l.'t',i,...r;'N,1'.,..,.-.,H\,l,1'"•11'.;""-'t'...:'•'• • •••· • ••••• 1 •••••-•••••••••••••••••r 

!Redactffd@avaaz.orgh Redacted @crispthinking.com];! Redacted µikinzen.com]i Redacted i 
.., _____ .....,, ____ ___ ... l.--- ••4 -·---·--·- -- -- --·-·---·-·-·-·-·-·-·- ·- ·- ·- ·- ·- ·-·-·---·t: ,----'- ·-·-·-·-·- ·- ·-·-·-·-·-·-·- ·C:-.-·- ·-·-·- ·- ·... ~·-·-----·- ·-· -·-·-·-·J 
! Redacted @eaca.eu);i Redacted @microsoft.comi;; Redacted e)fb.com]; 
~ ...................................... ...........; .. _. ___ ..... _ ,_,_._. ___ ~::;:.--;.;:::.;:.--:.:.--::.--::.-:.:.":"".";:.;..:.; ..... .................. _ ... _ . .,, ....... ........ ~r-............. .... ................ ........ ...... ... ... \-.......... - ....................... .,,. ..... ,;r,·-···-·-·-· -•-··-·-·-·-·· ·;:;. .... ...... ......... ... , ....................... ...................... , 

i Redacted ~ec.europa.eu];! Redacted 5lmaldita.es];i Redacted : 
:i;;.;~r;;t'@imf<:°ro.sott~comiT~~-~····-···-·-·-···-·······Re·~~d-------@micr~sott.comJ;r-·J·rieciacteci·--·1·············· 
I • 0 L.•-•••••• •('k"-1,,_,.Nt'>l.!Ml'>t"-ll'MNNn.lN~l'\U,UI.U!l<!'UJ'\al ft.l.""flifVN ~ l"la:IMl'\U'r.l.r,,,n.,,.• • • ••••• ••• •••I ;-•••••-·• •• •••••••• •L.-------..-•--•••••• 
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Subject: Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task•force) Meeting 
Attachments: Agenda Subgroup Crisis Response 080323 - Copy.docx 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

3/8/2023 3 :30:00 PM 
3/8/2023 5 :00:00 PM 

Show TI me As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Dear all, 

With apologies for the late circulation, please find attached the draft agenda for our meeting later t his afternoon. 

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
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EU CODE OF PRACTICE ON DISINFORMATION 2022 

Subscription Document for Signatory ActiveFence 

Name of the Signatory 

Active Fence 

About the Signatory 

[Provide a description of/he Company/Organisation and the relevant products, activities and services it and its 
subsidiaries offer, which are covered by the listed commitments and measures.] 

ActiveFence is the leading tool stack for Trust & Safely teams , worldwide. By relying on ActiveFence's end-to-end 
solution which combines automated content detection , agile moderation management, and scaleable Trust & Safety 
intelligence - on line platforms across industries can keep use rs safe from the widest spectrum of online ham,. This 
includes protecting against risks to child safety, disinformation , fraud , hate speech, terror, nonconsensual pornography, 
and more. 

Using cutting-edge Al and a team of world-class subject-matter experts, ActiveF ence's Online Integrity Platform 
continuously collects , analyzes, and contextualizes data, lo ensure that in an ever-changing world , customers are 

always two steps ahead of bad actoro. As a result, Trust & Safety teams can be proactive, minimizing violation 
prevalence as well as legal and brand risks, Whtie eff1cienlly providing maximum protection to users across a multitude 
of abuse areas and content formats, in 70+ languages. 

Service name Description of the service 

Trust and Safety as a Service - ActiveFence Al and online safety experts identify, qualify, map and explain emergent 
misinformation 
campaigns, inauthentic behavior and conspiracy theories across the indexed , deep and dark web. Covering over 80 
languages, nuanced cultural subjects and event specific support . 

Intelligence reports 
Early Trend Detection 
Election Integrity 
Repeat Offender Monitoring 
Bad Actor TTP's 
Disinformation Campaign Network Mapping 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

Doc ID: 

META-119HJC-0000986 
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List of adopted commitments and measures Qualitative reporting 
elements and service level 
indicators 

Commitment 29 - Relevant Measure 29_ 1 29.1.1 - Overarching Thematic 
Signatories commit to conduct Reporting 
research 29.1.2 - Transparency Centre 
based on transparent will be updated with 
methodology and ethical subset of Thematic Reporting 
standards, as well as to share subject to ActiveFence 
datasets, research Customer sign-off 
findings and methodologies with 29.1.3- Types of research and 
relevant audiences Thematic findings 

can be shared - specific 
methodologies are not 
able to be shared at this 
immediate point due to IP 
considerations. AcliveFence 
will seek to expand these 
going forward. 

Measure 29.2 29.2.1 - Overarching Thematic 
Reporting 
29.2.2 - Transparency Centre 
will be updated with 
subset of effectiveness 
measures subject to 
AcliveFence 
Customer sign-off 
29.2.3- Types of research and 
Thematic findings 
can be shared - specific 
methodologies are not 
able to be shared at this 
immediate point due to IP 
considerations. AcliveFence 
will seek to expand these 
going forward. 

Measure 29.3 NA 

Provide reasoning for the choice of commitments and measures, as well as future plans {if applicable) 

Understanding the level of detail and overarching engagement. ActiveFence will contribute but may on occasion need 
to recognize the confidential nature of our work in order to remain effective. 

Doc ID: 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-1 19HJC-0000987 
NOT FOR DISTRI BUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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IX. Permanent Task-force 

List of adopted commitments and measures Qualitative reporting 
elements and service level 
indicators 

Commitment 37 Measure 37 .1 ActiveFence to contribute as 
is appropriate based on the 
scale of the reporting and 
recogn izing client 
confidential ity 

Measure 37.2 ActiveFence to contribute as 
is appropriate based on the 
scale of the reporting and 
recogn izing client 
confidential ity 

Measure 37.3 ActiveFence to contribute as 
is appropriate based on the 
scale of the reporting and 
recogn izing client 
confidentiality 

~ 

Measure 37.4 ActiveFence to contribute as 
is appropriate based on the 
scale of the reporting and 
recogn izing client 
confidential ity 

Measure 37.5 ActiveFence to contribute as 
is appropriate based on the 
scale of the reporting and 
recogn izing client 
confidentiality 

Measure 37 6 ActiveFence to contribute as 
is appropriate based on the 
scale of the reporting and 
recogn izing cl ient 
confidential ity 

Provide reasoning for the choice of commitments and measures, as well as future plans (if applicable) 

Understanding the level of detail snd overarching engagement. ActiveFence will contn'bule but may on occasion need 
to recognize the confidential nature of our work in order to remain effective. 

03/ 22/2023 

1111 
Doc ID: 
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NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

1485



Signature 
Date and place 

Doc ID: 
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>C Dropbox sign 

Title 

Filename 

Document ID 

Audit trail date format 

Status 

Document History 

SENT 

VIEWED 

t ,-/ 
~ 

SIGNEO 

0 
COMP~E'TEO 

03 / 2212023 

15:02:32 UTC+2 

03 / 2212023 

15:31:23 UTC+2 

03/22/2023 

17:46:19 UTC+2 

03122 I 2023 

17:46:19 UTC+2 

Powerad by )I( Dropbox Sign 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -

Audit trail 

EU CODE OF PRACTICE ON DISINFORMATION 2023 

EU CODE OF PRACTI. .. Fence (1) (1 ).pdf 

MM/ DD/ YYYY 

• Signed 

Sent for signature to - -@activefence.com) from 

-@activefence.com 

IP: 85.250 .41 .216 

Viewed by - -@activefence.com) 

IP: 85.250 .110.56 

Signed by--@activefence.com) 

IP: 85.250 .110.56 

The document has been completed. 
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NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

1487



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Exhibit 113 

 

1488



Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Location: 

Start : 
End : 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
3/24/2023 6:41:30 AM 

eaca.eu]; 
ck.erg]; 
uropa.eu]; BRAI 
s]; 
m]; Chine Labb 

udie More 

a.com]; (Science Feedback) 
ropa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vannie 

~ec.europa.eu]; Carlos Hernandez 

t 

icrosoft.com]; • • • @globsec.org]; 
!@feedback. liilll■l@vimeo.com]; FILIPEK Jon 

ec.europa.eu ]; GILLET Jeanne ec.europa.eu]; lut2.guellnerATeeas.europa.eu 
@eeas.europa.eu]; Ines Narciso @vosteurope.org]; Jacquelyn Zehner 

Uzzehner@twitch.tv]; Jana Kaza2 @globsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic @faktograf.hr];-
@virneo .corn]; John-Orr Hanna ■■■l@crispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes 

@vosteurope.org]; Karolina Pietkiewicz @neva-labs.com]; Katarina Klingova 
@globsec.org]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna ■■■■■§>ec.europa.eu]; 

:@eeas.europa.eu;■■■ll■■l@meta.corn]; Laura Le Roho @rsf.org]; 
@bytedance.com ]; Luca Nicotra -@avaa2.org]; 

@google.com]; 111ri111■■■@mald ita . es]; 
@meta.com]; -@kimen.com]; tw1 tch.tv] ; 

@microsoft. com]; om]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral 
-@avaaz.org]; ■■I l■■■l@rsf.org]; Paula Gori 

@eui.eu]; Pawel Terpilowski demagog.org.pl]; Persa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/ERGA) 
@esr.gr]; RABBACHIN Alberto ■■■@ec.europa .eu]; Richard Stansfield 
@crispthinking.com]; i (Google) 

,■■■■ @eeas.europa.eu ]; Stanislav 
@rvr.sk]; STUMP Kriszti @ec.europa.eu]; 

·.corn); Tomma!:>u Cant:lt 

ance.com]; Veena Mee 
as.europa.eu; Vince 

newsguardtech.com]; 

@rvr.sk]; 
ica.it]; 

newsguardtech.com]; 

Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task-force): Follow-up meeting on discussion paper 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

3/28/2023 6:30:00 AM 
3/28/2023 7:15:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear all, 

As agreed during our meeting on Wednesday, we are following up with an additional ad -hoc meeting for next week to 

continue the conversation on the discussion paper, in particular with a view to the Digital Services Act (DSA). 

We will be joined for this meeting by Commission colleagues working on the implementation of the DSA. 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0000267 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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We hope that this slot works you, kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Cilek here to join the meeUng 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode: ­
Down!oad Teams I Join on the web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vtearns.tech.ec.europ;,1-eu 

Video Conference ID: -
A!tunate ,VT C. instructions 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Leitrn _t.,fore I Help I t-;1eeting_optian5 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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From: 
$,cnt; 
To: 

Subject : 

CNE:CT•COP-TASt::-FORCt@ec.europa.eu ICNE:CT•CO-P•TASk:·FORCE:@ec.europa.eul 

3/27/2023 7:54:12 AM 
Ale:ii:is. 81ev-~eaca.et1J:■■■lll!!!!!!!!!ll!!■■~m1crosoft .eomt·••■ATcc.au. d~ 

-

@cc.illu.dk); 11.ntolnit 8111"rn.iird - @rsf.org]; S.hu.i;; Jc - @nmhh.hulB.il-s;tlen C.it"nhi!I 

@feedback.c;ird Ben JCobren · ®neeva.col: Cartos Hi!rniimdez - :§l-maldih1.ei]; -

- I @'t(ktolu:=om l;.!!!!!!.!!!!!!!!!!liil•-mF.cro~oft.i=oml; Cadtl:11 Kun:t P:i.ut~en 
~ k.reakom.dkJ;Chine LaDbl! - @news:guardtech.rnmJ: ­
- @1oogl11:=,,com]; Clare= Mdford - @di:.informiltkininde}l;,orw;l ; -
_ toli;.,eoml; O::i\ldle Mofe~1-1 @e,.a-e.a.euJ;--@llOOS.l-e.com]; 

- t!l,lrnieros:oh.com]; 0.11\' id Goctd:>,rd - @do1,1bl ti11,1~rify.eol'l'IJ; Og-lphinQ G:11\ignol 

W:S.Dudc.com]; Oamlnlka Hadju ■■■■l'@gtob-sec.org1 : Elda Brog! - ~eut eu); 
EmilJH1ctc:- Br;;mdl - @di:;lnform;1t~n indc::-:.org); Emm;;rnucl Vin-cent - @fc~b;u;k,org]; ­

vlm@o . .com l ;■•••■-@is:.oogle . ,com]; !=l,on-,,CMTl~bell -Web~t@r 
medlamath.com]: Gabrlelle RoDltaill~ - @wfanet.org j; Ger_gl!ly Li!nclvc1i 

nrnhh,hu]; GordoA Crov,U - @n~w,s.u11rdtc=i;;h,<:oml 
ATeu$..e1,1, op~.,e,1-1 - @ee111$,turop~.e1-1]; G,.,,,.etii:ietle Mercier ~ doteu, op,e.1!1-1l; In~ 

NarciMl ~ vcHcuJ'Ope.Orli[;]; l(leS Tal.",v~,a ~ iabeuropt!.t'!:ul; Ingrid Hadt.ttt 
~th.com), ls.ra~ Milrs.ky ~ sgua.-dtt!<:h.c.om]; Iva Nl!"nadl, ~ 1!!:ul.eu); 

- ·@tW'ltch.tY ]; m~i~m-Hh,coiu]: 
ri:trf.HhtcipfJ,( Um]; l.tr"kll Kau.:: 

nmhh.hiJ]; Jelenifi a erkcr,1,11(: 
Ylml!o,icom ]; Joana Triana 

~c:r15,1:1,hrnk1ng..corri J; Jorge Gomes 

This Message Is From en External Sender 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED· 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION · MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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[rrlltum: Ten~"'t1vie d~t,e for the lint rne=ieting i, Mond11y 3 Aprl l at 16:00 
Sorry for t he mlsta\ e. 

From: CNECT COP TASK FORCE 
Sant: M0nday1 March 271 :2023 4:22 PM 
To: 'Alexi::; Bley' --@c.ac.a.cu>; ■■lll!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!U■■■l@miero:=oft.oom>; 'Anj.ii Bcchm.:iin n' 

@cc.au.elk>; 'Antoine Bern1:1rd' .._@rsf.org>; 'B-a lazs Jo' ~ nmhh.hu~; 'Beislien Carnie-I' 
@feeclbaick.org.>; 'Ben Kobren' - @neeva.co.>; 'Carlos Hernanclez' @maldlta.es->; 

tr ■-■■■I -miaosoft.com>; ·cecilia Kunz Paulsen· E .dk>;'Chlnelabbe' ch.com>; ~ 
oogle.com>; 'Clare f\l nformatfoninde,c.org>; ' 
t iktok.com>; 'Claudie M @eaca.eu>; @google.com>; 

@mic.rosoft.com>; 'David Goddard' ~ doubleverify.c.Ol'l'I>; 'Delphine 
@n,e,w$back.c:om:i-; 'Oominlka Hadju• --@g1obs.ec.org~; 'Elda Bto,lf 
; 'E"rn~n g>; 'E"mm:,,n1,1e l Vinoe-nt' 

@leed"b.;ick.org> 
- @google.com:>; "Fi ecliamath.CC)r'l"1:>; 'Gabrielle Robitai lle' 
- @wfan.el.org>;' h.hu:>; 'Gotdon Crovitz' 
- @newsgvard t ieeas.europa.eu>; 'Gwenael le 
Merder' ~ doleut ■■■iit@ .otg>; 'Ines T.alavefa' 
<alll@labeurope.eu>; 'In 

@newsgu ardte 
'Jam<1$ Van S1r~ndcr' 
Kazaz' ~ globsec, 

@faktograf, 

' ~ twitch.tv::,.; 
@thcbr(ght~pp.com>; 'J an:;i 

va;i2,01g>; ing.com>; 'Jorge Gomes' 
ostemope. dlamath.com>; 'Karolina Pietkiewicz' 
-labs.com>; 'K lobsec.org>; •ic:ate Brightwell' 
e,com>; 'Katya i,>; 'Kine.a Osierda' 

dem.agoB.org.p -tl■■-~eeas.europa .eu>; -
m>; 11111111111■ , Laura Le Roho' - @l rsf.ors>; 'l..:lura Morae~• 

avaaz.or.g>; 'Laur ui.eu>; 'Lisa Ginsborg' eui.eu>; 'Luca Nicotra' 

>; 'Lucie Mala' @lflrma.seznam.cz>; Jl■■■I oogle.com>; -
• - mtcrosoft.com>; 'Marc.~addoul' ~ @alforenslc.s.org>; 'Marina Sacristan' 

--@maldlta.e,>; JI■■■■ <a■■■l@fb.com>; -<all@klnzen.com>; 'Martin 
Sambrook' ~ @eblqultv.com>; --®twitch.IV>; ' 
~ m>: 'Matthias Forst~ A-HSH.de>; 'Michal Felx' - @ch-c.eu>: 'Michal 
Holas' @c:h,c: .eu>; ■■111!■1' m>; 'Nadia Guerl,enda Cabral' <111@av.aai2.org>; -

justln.tv:>; 'Omrl Hla,nce4europe.eu>; 'Ond,ej Tolar' 
eznam.ct>; --111■111 @lb.com>;'Pa ul Coppin' ~ @rsf.org>; 'Paula 

Gori' eul.eu>; 'Paiwel Te,pllowskl' @dema2o2.ore.pl>; 'Petra de Place Blak' 
@u nl.au.dk>; 'Richard Stansfleld' (!)crlspthlnldng.com>; 'Richard Woods' 

@disinformationindex.org>; 'Rob Rakowitz' - @wfanet.org>; 
~ twitter.com>; 'S.m Jeffers' ■lt@whotargets.me>; (Google)' ~ @google.com>; 
'Sarah Andrew' <ll■■~l@avaaz.org>; 'Shivika Sharma' logicallv.co.uk>: 'Siada El Ramv' 
~ doteurope. i' . k,eakom.dk>; tiktok.com>; 
'Sophie Murphy sica1 1y.co,ub; 'SPI ELCO @eea.s.europa.eu>; 
'Stani:sla @rvr.sk>; 'Stephanie Po .corn>; 'Sykora 
Ondroj' mea en1e~ovo (ERGA) ' 
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@rvr.~k>i ' <- @microsoft.com>; "Tomm;;iso Cilnetb - P;.igellaPo li t iC>() ' 
~ @p.;1,gellapolitiai .it>i 'Town!';:end Feehan' - @iabe1J rope.eL.J>i 'Veen.;1 McCoole' 

news.guardtech.com>; 'Vir-sinia P.adovese' <tl■■■■l@newsgua rdt!!ch.com> 
Cc: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CN ECi-COP•TASK-f:ORCE@!:!c: .europa.eu> 

Subject: RE: Ernpow@r'n'l!!'nl of fact-ch@d@rs SG TF CoP // Call for inll!!'rii!St 

This is. a kind reminder about ;a r,iew s.ubg, oup diedic-.a tied to the iempowermeM of fact-checkers.. Please indicate, i f riot 
yet done, wh@'thier you plan to take part In thls. 5-ubgroup and, if yes, who will represent vour organisation. We will 5,end 
an lrwltatlon to the first mee:tfng [Thursday, :30 March at 16:00) tomorrow. 

The CoP Disinfo Te;;1m 

From: CN ECT COP TASK FORCE 
Sent: Wedne~dav, Ma.-ch 22, 2023 9:.36 AM 

r tee ,com>; 
@me 

lobsec .ors>; 'Janos T 
ograf.hr.-; 

aaaa;:::==·~o=rg>; ~John-Orr Han 
-~==e,ro.,pe=.o=rg.>; 'Just jn Ad 
====c~om=>; 'Katartna l<llng 
:;;;:~=-= • •t::,n a Viadzio 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED. 
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ch.tv>; 

Ilia Kunz Paulsen' 

a Brogi' 
cent' 

'Gabrielle Robitaille' 

l.1vera ' 

twitch. tv>; 

- -==""'-""'"'"'"'o""m>; 'Jana 
VIC 

,, 
letklewlcz' 

ura Mo.-aes' 
• 'Luca Nlcotra' 

===~m= >; -

kin2en.com>; -

-==S~H=.d=e>; 'M iehe. I Feh,:' - @ch -<:.eu>; 'Michal 

1,1 Gucrlcnda Cabral' -cllll@avaaz.org>; -
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====~o~pe=·•~u>; 'Ondrej Tolar' 
Paul COppin' @rd.org>; 'P~ul;;:1 

- - <ll!<"'K98"'-1·2W'K<.J·Pe<I>; 'Pet ra de Place Blak' 

google.com>; 
y' 

ktok.oom>; 
eeas.@uropa.eu>; 

--""""""""'"'!'"'o"'m" .>: 'Sykora 
eilova I ERGA)' 

- Pagellc1Politic.a' 
Veena McCoole' 

@newsguardtech com> 
~l!c.~uropa.cu (CNECT) 

uropa.~u>; BLASCHKE Vannie (C @4!c.l!:uropa.eu>; BRAIOA Mallia 
c.curopa.l!u>; FILIPEK Jon Dec.curopa.e:u>; GllAR Simon (CNECT') 

~~~,...,,u.>; BIRGER Albin (CNECT) IDec.europa.eu>; KOLODZIEJ SKA Anna jCNECT) 
europa eu>; GILLET Jeanne @ec,europa,e!.I>; BURIAN Peter {CNECT) 

Subject: Empowerment of fact-checkers SG Tf CoP // Call for interest 

Deilr Members of the T.isk.-force. 

As decided by the Task-force Plenary in Oe<:ember, we would like to launch a new subgroup dedit ilted to the 
empowerment of fact-checkers. 
The main tasks foreseen in the Code for this subgroup are: 
co Discuss the agreement s between platforms and fact-checkers & coverage of all EU MS (QRE 30.1.1.) 
oo Cr@ate the r@pository of fact-checks and establish its funding structur@ (M@asure 31.3.) and its annual retvi~ 
co Review the contextualisation of quantitative information provided by platforms. about their actions to integrate 
and showcase the work of fact•checking organisations (SU 31.1.3.} 
oo Oisci.gs technological s.olutions to facilitate the effic:l@nt use of t he common tepository ac:rMS 
platforms and languages ,Measure 31.4.1) 
tll) Explore further relevant reporti ng metrics on the fact•ehecking repository (QRE 31.3.1.) 

We would be vety grateful if you could indicate whether you plan to lake part in this. subgroup and1 if yes, who will 
represent your organisation. To this end1 please inform us on CNECT·COP·TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu before 27 March. 

We would propose that this subgroup is coordinated by the representative~ of the fact-checkers and of the platforms. 
We would very much appreciate expressions. of interes.t in this regard. 

We propc,e that the first meeting of the Subgroup is held on Monday 3 April at 16:00. The time for the regular meetings 
can be then adjusted. In ease you have constraints regarding this date, please let us know asap, so that we can take this 
into account to schedule the meeting. 

We are looking forward to your replies. 
Kind regards, 

The CoP Ol~info Team 
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Appointment 

From: 
Sent: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 

3/30/2023 7:35:45 AM 
To: • ; -@twitter.c 

@google.com]; Bastien C • 

na Berkovic [ 

.com]; ■■■Ill@tiktok.co 
co.uk; 'Tfmea Cervei\ova (ERG 

it]; Carlos Hernandez-Ee 

.com]; Pawel Terpi lows 
.europa.eu]; RABBACHI 

c.europa.eu]; GILLET J 

@feedback.org]; 

(Google) ' 
@bytedance.com]; 

@rvr.sk]; Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA 

@maldita.es]; Marie BOHNER 

@demagog.org.pl]; STUMP Krisztina 
@ec.europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vannie 

@ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia 
.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon 

.europa.eu]; BURIAN Pete 
c.europa .eu]; KOLODZIEJSK 

@ec.europa.eu]; BIRGER Albin 

@ec.europa.eu]; GILAR Simon 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start : 
End: 

Kick-off meeting// Empowerment of fact -checkers SG TF CoP 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

4/3/2023 7:00:00 AM 
4/3/2023 8 :30:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Task-force, 

Thank you for your interest in the Empowerment of fact-checkers Subgroup. 

ec,europa.eu] 

Please find below the connectiion details to the kick-off meeting on Monday 3 April at 16:00. 

As indicated, in view of the Code commitments we propose this Subgroup to work on the following: 

• Agreements between platforms and fact-checkers & coverage of all EU MS (QRE 30.1.1.) 
• Creation the repository of fact-checks and establish its funding stmcture (Measure 3 l .3 .) and its annual 

review 
• Review the contextualisati.on of quantitative information provided by platforms about their 

actions to integrate and showcase the work of fact-checking organisations (SLI 31 .1.3.) 
• Discuss technological solutions to facilitate the efficient use of the common repository across 

platforms and languages (Measure 31 .4.1) 
• Explore further relevant reporting metrics on the fact-checking repository (QRE 31.3 .1.) 

We would propose that this subgroup is coordinated by the representatives of the fact-checkers an the platforms. We 
would very much appreciate expressions of interest in this regard. 

The agenda of the meeting and a link to the dedicated Teams space will follow. 

Kind regards, 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001060 
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CoP Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 
Passcode:­
Oown!,oad Tean1s I Join_on_thevveb 

Join with a video conferencing device 

-@vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: -
A!t:emate VTC instructlons 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

···-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····--------- ----
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Message 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 
4/19/2023 1:42:38 AM 

eaca.eu]; 
ck.org]; BIRGER Albi 
uropa.eu]; BRAID 
s]; 
m]; Chine Labbe 

udie Morea 
icrosoft.com] · • • • 

@feedback. 
.europa.eu); GILLET Jeann 

a.com]; Bastien Carniel (Science Feedback 
ropa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vannie 
ec.europa .eu]; Carlos Hernandez 

t 
@google.com]; 

); Emmanuel Vincent 
eo.com]; FILIPEK Jon 

eas.europa.eu]; . 
na Berkov ktograf.hr];-

vimeo.com]; ■■I I■■■ , Jorge Gomes 
vosteurope.org]; Karolina Pietkiewicz neva-labs.com]; Katarina Klingova 

@globsec.org]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna ■■■■l@ec.europa.eu]; 
.europa.eu;■■■ll■■l@meta. com]; Laura Le R f.org]; 

@bytedance.com); LU1 ca Nicotra -@avaaz.o 
le.com]; Marina Sacristan ■■■I • 

m);··· • 
@microsoft.com]; 

-@avaaz.org]; Olaf Cram me 
• ]; Pawel Terpilowski 

sr.gr); RABBACHIN Albe o 
crispthin king.com]; 

I 

@rvr.sk]; STUMP Kriszti 

.com]; Tornmaso Canel1 

tw1tch.tv]; 
]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral 
@rsf.org]; Gori, Paula 

rsa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/ERGA 
a.eu]; Richard Stansfield 
oogle 

as.europa.eu); Stanislav 
u]; 

ance.com]; Veena Mcco om]; 
as.europa.eu; Vincent Be dese 

ewsguardtech.com]; WANGE eeas.europa.eu] 
e'ec.europa.eu]; GILAR Simo u] 

Subject: Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task-force) Meeting 
Attachments: Agenda Subgroup Crisis Response 19.04.2023 (003).docx 

Dear all, 

With apologies for the late circulation, please find attached the draft agenda for our meeting later this afternoon. 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001745 
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
4/21/2023 7:59:24 AM Sent: 

To: Bastien Carn ie! (Science Feedback) @feedback.org]; @logically.co.uk; Carlos Hernandez-
Echevarria @maldita.es); ~twitter.com]; @gmail.com; 

@google.com); Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA @agcom.it]; Jelena Berkovic 
aktograf.hr]; @meta.com]; 
@bytedance. tiktok.com; Marie BOHNER @afp .com]; Marina 

@mal • • • ■■■■■I gog.org.pl]; (Google) ' 
-@google.com]; ■■I eeas.europa.eu; 'Tfmea 
Cervenova (ERGA)' ■■■ @microsoft.com]; STUMP Krisztina 

ec.europa .eu]; RABBACHIN Alberto ( @ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA 
@ec.europa.eu]; GI • @ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon 

uropa.eu); BLASCHKE Yanni @ec.europa.eu); BIRGER Albin 
.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia .europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne 

@ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter @ec.europa.eu] 

Subject: CoP TF // SG Empowerment of fact-checkers meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting Location: 

Start: 

End: 
4/26/2023 6:00:00 AM 
4/26/2023 7:30:00 AM 

Show Time As : Tentative 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Empowerment of fact-checkers Subgroup, 

As agreed at the kick-off meeting, the next meeting of the Subgroup will take place on 26 April (Wen) at 15:00. 

Draft agenda: 

1. Constitution of the Subgroup 
2. The co-chair on the platform side (thanks to META for volunteering) 

3. Initial feedback on the terms of reference for the Subgroup (draft to be circulated soon) 
4. Q&A 

As a reminder, the main deliverables foreseen in the Code for this subgroup are: 
• Agreements between platforms and fact -checkers & coverage of all EU MS (QRE 30.1.1.) 
• Create the repository of fact-checks and establish its funding structure (Measure 31.3.) and its annual review 

• Review the contextualisation of quantitative information provided by platforms about their actions to 
integrate and showcase the work of fact-checking organisations (SU 31.1.3.) - reference document 

• Discuss technological solutions to facilitate the efficient use of the common repository across platforms and 
languages (Measure 31.4.1) 

• Explore further relevant reporting metrics on the fact-checking repository (QRE 31.3.1.) 

Please note that we have created a dedicated Teams channel where all of you are added. 
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Please find a connection details below. 

Kind regards, 

CoP Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 
Passcode:­
Download Teams. I Join on the web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech. . . 1 

Video Conference ID: 

AlternateVrC instructions 

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

5/4/2023 11:31:15 PM 
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Bastien Carniel (Science Feedback) 

@logically.co.uk; Carlos Hernandez-Echevarrfa @maldita .es]; 
@feedback.org); 

~ twitter.com); 
@gmai l. com; ■■■■If ■■■■ @google.com]; Emmanuel Vincent 

@feedback.org]; Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA @agcom.it]; Jelena Berkovic 

faktograf.hr]; !~lllll~@meta .com]; 
@bytedance.com]; @tiktok.com; Marie BOHNER I 

@maldita .es]; Pawel Terpilowski @demagog.org.pl]; 
@google.com); ■■l§>eeas.europa.eu; 'Tfmea 

Cervenova (ERGA)' rvr .sk] ; @microsoft.com]; Tommaso Canetta 
@pagel lapol itica.it]; STUMP Krisztina ]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) 

@ec.europa .eu]; BIRGER Albin eu]; GILLET Jeanne 
ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon IDA Mattia 

(E'ec.europa.eu); BLASCHKE Yannic ropa.eu]; BURIAN Peter 
@ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna ec.europa.eu]; GI LAR Simon 

Subject : 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

e)ec.europa.eu] 

CoP TF / / SG Empowerment of fact-checkers meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

5/10/2023 6:00:00 AM 
5/10/2023 7:30:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Empowerment of fact-checkers Subgroup, 

Please find below the connection details to our next meeting which will take place on Wen 10 May at 15:00 -16:30. 

Kind regards, 
CoP Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
C!kk here to ioln the meeting 

Meeting ID: 
Passcode: ­
p.9_w!Jl_9_?_1:_Eg;:l}I.1:._ I )_QLQ__Q_i"l__faf_ \t,/_f:'Q 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
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Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech. • 
Video Conference ID: 
/\ltemate VTC instructions 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn h-1me i He:p I Meetino ootions 
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Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject : 
Location: 

Start: 

End: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
5/5/2023 8:11:26 AM 
Bastien Carn ie! (Science Feedback) @feedback.org]; 

@maldita.e twitter.co @gmail.com; 
om]; Emmanuel Vince @feedback.org]; Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA 

.it]; Jelena Berkovic ■■I faktograf.hr] ; ■■■ ■■■@meta.com]; 
@bytedance.c ==-_@tiktok.com; Marie BOHNER 

.com]; Marina • • wel Terpilowski 
dem @google.com]; 

@eeas.europa.eu; 'Timea Cervenova (ERGA)' @rvr.sk]; 
@microsoft.com]; Tommaso Canetta @pagellapolitica.it]; STUMP Krisztina 

ec.europa.eu]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) @ec.europa.eu]; BIRGER Albin 
ec.europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon 

@ec.europa.eu); BRAIDA Mattia @ec.europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vannie 
@ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter @ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

ec.europa.eu]; GILAR Simon §lec.europa.eu] 
@rpms.sk];-@google.eom; 

CoP TF / / SG Empowerment of fact-checkers meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

5/17/2023 6:00:00 AM 
5/17/2023 7:30:00 AM 

@google.com 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Empowerment of fact-checkers Subgroup, 

Please note that we have to re -schedule the meeting as per Carlos request. 
It will take place on 17 May at 15-16:30. 

Best, 
CoP Team 

Dear Members of the Empowerment of fact-checkers Subgroup, 

Please find below the connection details to our next meeting which will take place on Wen 10 May at 15:00 - 16:30. 

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
Download Teams I .Join on the web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

-@vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 
Video Conference ID: 
Altemate_V:C_instn.1 ctions 

Joining is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Le:am __ More ! Help I Meeting __ ootion.s 
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Appointment 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 

Location: 

Start : 
End: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
5/16/2023 8:12:35 AM 
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Alexis Bley ■■■l@eaca.eu]; 
Bastien Camie! (Science Feedback} feedback.erg]; BIRGER 
BLASCHKE Yann ic ■■■■ RAIDA Mattia I 
Hernandez ■■■■le'tiktok 

. , @newsguardtech.co 

@meta.com]; 
ec.europa.eu]; 

@ec.europa.eu]; Carlos 

II 
-@twitter.com]; -

@google.com]; Claudie Moreau ■■■■■I . , 
oogle.com]; @microsoft.com]; Dominika Hadju 
@globsec.org]; Elena Calistru @funky.ong]; Emmanuel Vincent (Science Feedback) 
dback.org]; • om]; FILIPEK Jon 

c.europa.eu] ■■■■ATeeas.europa.eu 
eeas.europa.eu]; Heather @democracy-reporting.org]; Ines 

@vosteurope.org]; Irene Larraz ■■■I @newtral.es]; 
@twitch.tv]; Jana Kazaz■■■l@globsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic 

@vimeo.com]; Joao Ribeiro @vosteurope.org] ; 
@faktograf.hr];--@crispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes @vosteurope.org]; @neva-

labs.com]; Katarina K:in:g~o:v~a!iiii~ @globsec.org]; Katya Viadziorchyk -@aiforensics.org]; 
KOLODZIEJSKA Anna ec.europa .eu]; KUKLIS Lubos ■■■■■eiec . europa . eu ]; 

eeas.europa.eu; ■■■@meta.com]; Laura Le Roho Uustice2@rsf.org]; 
@bytedance.com]; LU1ca Nicotra -@avaaz.org]; 

@google.com]; Marilin Gonzalo l!!IIIJ!!!!l!!!!l!!!!l!!l@newtral.es]; Marina Sacristan 
@maldita.es]; ■■■• @meta .com]; ■■■1-@kinzen .com]; 

l@twitch.tv]; @microsoft.com]; Michael Meyer 
@democracy-reporting.org); @google.com); Nadia Guerlenda Cabral 

-@avaaz. org];■■■■I @justin .tv]; Paul Coppin ■■■■@rsf.o rg]; Gori, Paula 
@eui.eu); Pawel Terpilowski @demagog.org.pl]; Persa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/ERGA) 

@esr.gr); RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT} llll!!l!!!!l!!ll■l@ec. europa . eu]; Richard Stansfield 
• • • ore R @ai forensic~.orgJ;■■■■ (Goot:le) 

ATee @eeas.europa.eu]; Stanislav 
riszti .eu]; 

a.eu; Timea Cervenova @rvr.sk];-
oft.com); Tom maso Canetta ■■■@pagellapolitica.it]; 

-@bytedance.com]; Veena Mccoole -@newsguardtech.com]; 
eeas.europa.eu; Vincent Berthier ■■■@rsf.org]; Virginia Pavodese 

~newsguardtech.com]; WANGEN Patrice (EEAS) eeas.europa.eu] 
-@rsf.org; Timea Cervenova @rpms.sk] 

Crisis Response Subgroup - Second Session on DSA and rapid response system 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

5/22/2023 8:00:00 AM 
5/22/2023 8:45:00 AM 

Show Time As : Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear all, 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001476 
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With apologies for the inconvenience, we need to relocate our session to Monday afternoon to resolve scheduling 
conflicts in the context of next week's EDMO conference. 

We hope that the new timing equally works for you. 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Dear all, 

As discussed, we send you hereby the invitation and connection details for our second session on the DSA and the rapid 
response system, based on the received questions. 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
C!k_k here to join tl:,e m~etLng 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode:­

Down\o;;id Teams I Join on trie_wer) 

Join with a video conferencing device 

111111,@vteams.tech.ec.europa .eu 
Video Conference !D: 
/\ lternzte VTC instructions 

Joining is ava iiable only trom a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Lea rn Mme i Help I Meeting options 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0001477 
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Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC; 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start: 

End : 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
5/16/2023 7:53 :23 AM 

. . 

v]; 
nda Cabra l 

@kinzen.com]; eaca.eu];■■■■■■ I 
@fb. , Vann ie 

opa.eu]; icrosoft.co 
microsoft.com]; Ch ine Lab 
laudie Moreau 

@microsoft.com] • 

eo.com]; ■■- @google.com]; GILLET Jeanne 
opa.eu]; Ines Narciso @vosteurope.org]; @twitch.tv]; 

thebrightapp.com]; Jana K @globsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic 

aktograf.hr];■■■■• e>vimeo.com]; 
@crispthinking .com]; Jorge Gomes @vosteurope.org); ■-l@neva-

labs.com]; ■■■■I l■■■■l@bytedance.com]; ■■■I l■■i@meta.com]; Laura Le Roho 
@rsf.org]; Luana Lo Piccolo -@support.avaaz.org]; Luca Nicotra -@avaaz.org]; -

- @microsoft.com]; @meta .com]; 
-@kinzen . com] ;■■■■l 1 @microsoft.com); Paul 
Coppin @rsf.org]; Gori, Paula @eui. eu); Pawel Terpi lowski 

@demagog.org.pl]; Stanislav Matejka ====~~@rvr.sk]; STUMP Krisztina 
c.europa .eu]; Tfmea Cerve @rvr.sk); 
ft.com ); Tommaso Canetta @pagellapolitica. it ]; Veena McCoole 
wsguardtech .com]; Vincen r@rsf.org]; Virginia Padovese 

@newsguardtech.com]; BURIAN Peter §)ec.europa.eu];■■■■■l@esr. gr; 
-@twitter.com]; Katya Viadziorchyk (Al Forensics) -@aiforensics.org]; Sa lvatore 

@a iforensi cs.org] 
FILIPEK Jun ■■■•@t:!c.euroµa .eu]; ■-~t:!eas.euruµa.t:!u; 
WANGEN Patrice (EEAS) @ec.europa.eu]; MERISIO Silvia 

@ec.europa.eu]; @rsf.org; KOLODZIEJSKA 
@ec.europa .eu]; bytedance.com);-

- @bytedance.com]; Marina Sacristan ]; BRAIDA Mattia 
~ec.europa.eu]; Richard Stansfield crispthinking.com]; 

ck.org; Bastien Carnie! ■■■ g]; Katarfna Klingova 
@google.com; (Twitter) ~twitter.com ]; 

@meta.com]; @iag.gr; KUKLIS Lubos 
@ec.europa.eu]; @linkedin.com] 

Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task-force) Meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

5/17/2023 7:30:00 AM 
5/17/2023 8:15:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001813 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Dear all, 

are following up on the last subgroup session's conclusion to prioritise the clarification of platform signatories' DSA 
rel ated questions with regards to continuing the work on the rapid response system. Since DSA colleagues have an 
overlapping commitment for tomorrow's meeting, we propose the following two actions: 

1. To shorten tomorrow's regular meeting to 45 minutes (focussing on the regular agenda point of exchanging on 
the latest threats and narratives) 

2. To hold a dedicated meeting with DSA colleagues next week Wednesday, 16:30 to 17:15 

We w ill send you an invitation for the meeting with the DSA colleagues shortly. 

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

- ----------------- ·····-·····-·····-·····-······-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-······-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-·····-· 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer or mobile app 
Click_here toj ointhe_meeting 

Meeting ID: 
Passcode: 

Qm~m.l.9."1rL:[.r1.1.-n~ I J._qi_q __ q_:.1.U.1.t.. . .\'\l~.P 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.t.ech.ec .europa.eu 

Video Conference fD: -
Alternate vrc instructions 

Joining is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Leam ~v1ore ! He[12 I Meetina O.QlQD.2 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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EUROPEAN COMMISSION 
DIRECTORATE-GENERAL FOR COMMUNICATIONS NETWORKS, CONTENT AND 
TECHNOLOGY 

Media Policy 
Media Convergence and Social Media 

Fifth plenary meeting of the Code of Practice's permanent 
Task-Force 

5 June 2023, 10:30 - 17:00 

Robert Schuman Room - Berlaymont, Rue de la Loi 200, 1040 
Brussels , Belgium 

From 09:30 

10:00-10:30 

10:30-10:50 

10:50-11:15 

11:15-11:30 

11 :30-12:45 

Arrival & security check 

Welcome coffee 

1 _ Keynote speeches 

2. a) Introduction of new Signatories 

b) ERGA support to the monitoring of the Code 

~---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· 1 
i Redacted : 
1, •• _ ,_ , _ ,_ , _ __ , _ , _ __ __ , _,_ , _ __ , _ , ____ _ ,_ ,_, _ __ __ __ , _ __ __ , _, ___ ,_ , _ ,_, _ __ , _ , __ _ , _ , _ ,_, __ _ , 

Coffee break 

3. Subgroups reporting to the Task-force Plenary on their 
activit ies: 
• SG Monitoring and Reporting 
• SG Integri ty of Services 
• SG Crisis Response 
• SG Transparency Centre 
• SG Outreach 
• SG Ad Scrutiny 
• SG Fact-checking 

(Presentation by the Subgroup coordinators followed by 
discussion) 

1 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT _HJC _ 007987 
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4. Preparation for the 2024 Elections (work planned for the 

12:45-13:00 
year ahead) 
(Introduction by the Commission and presentation by the 
WG) 

13:00-14:15 Lunch 

5. Opening remarks for the afternoon session 
14:15-14:30 

i ! 

r Redacted ; 
; 

i.., ... , .. . .. . .. , ... , .. . .... . ........ . .. . ... , . , .... . .. . ......... , ... . .. . .. , ... .. . .. . ..... , ... . ... . .. . .. , ...... . .. . ..... , ..... . .. . ......... . .. . .. , .. , .. . .. . ... , .. , ... , .. . ... . _, ,.. , .. . .. . ... , ...... , .. . .. . ..... , ... . .. . ... , .. , .. 

6. Thematic session #1 - New developments on generative Al 
14:30-15:30 and its impact on dis information & relevant user 

empowerment tools 

15:30-15:45 Coffee break 

15:45-16:45 7. Thematic session #2 -Access to data for research 

8. Next steps on the implementation of the Code, reporting 
and the Task-force's work 

16:45-16:50 

i Redacted i 
1, , ..... . ... . .. , ..... . . . ..... , .. .. . .. . ........ . . . . , .. , .. . ... . ... , .. , ...... . .. . .. , .. , ... . ... . .. ........ ... . ..... , ... , ... . .. J 

16:50-17:00 9. AOB 

2 

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

6/8/2023 3:01:23 AM 
Carlos Hernandez- Echevarria @maldita.es]; Bastien Carniel (Science Feedback) 

@feedback.org]; @logically.co.uk; @google.com]; Emmanuel 
@feedback.org]; Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA @agcom.it ); Jelena Berkovic 

@faktograf.hr ]; @meta.com]; 
@bytedance.com); @tiktok.com; Marie BOHNER afp .com]; Mari na 

@m • • ■■■■I @demagog.org.pl); (Google) 
gle.co eeas.europa.eu; Tfmea 

Cervenova (ERGA) ■■■ @microsoft.com]; Tomrnaso Canetta 
gel lapol iti @linkedin.com]; Irene Larraz @newtral.es]; 
YouTube Linkedln @linkedin.com] 

@twitt . . , risztin @ec.europa.eu]; 
RABBACHIN Alberto (CNEC c.europa.eu]; BIRGER Albi ec.europa.eu]; GILLET 

ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia 
ec.europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vannie ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter 

ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA An iiiiiiiiii■■~ec.europa.eu]; GILAR Simon 
c.europa .eu] 

Subject: SG Fact-checking Meeting 
Attachments: image002.jpg; imageOOl.jpg; image002.jpg 
Location: 

Start: 
End : 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

6/15/2023 6:00:00 AM 
6/15/2023 7:00:00 AM 

Show Time As : Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Em powering Fact-checkers SG, 

Please find the connection details to the next SG meeting which will take place on Thu 15.06 at 15:00-16:00. 

Best, 
CoPTeam 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to ioin the meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode:­
Download_Tearns I Join_on_t he .. web 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0001878 
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Join with a video conferencing device 

-@vteams.tech.e • 

Video Conference ID: 
Alte rnate VTCjnsl ructions 

Joining is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn h>'Jo:'e j He!n I Meetbg c ations. ••.•••...•••••. , ................ , ................ .ff, , , ...... .......... ,, .......... ,, . ...... ,, •••••• ,,. 

From: Carlos Hernandez- Echevarria~> 
Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 3:33 PM 
To: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu> 

feedback.or>;~-
~>; mail.com·-~>; Emmanuel 
Vincent~>; Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA~>; Jelena 
Berkovic fakto raf.hr>;-~>; 

b edance.com>;~ Marie BOHNER~>; 
Marina Sacristan~>; PawetTerpilowski dema o .or . l>;­
-(Google)~>;-~>; SYKORA Ondrej 
(EEAS) eeas.euro a.eu>; Timea Cervenova (ERGA) •-.. @.!Y.r:.0~_!p;-
(CELA ~>; Tommaso Canetta @ a ella olitica.it>; STUMP Krisztina (CNECT) 

ec.euro a.eu>; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT} 
Albin {CNECT) ec.euro a.eu>; GILLET Jeanne (CNECT) 

Jon (CNECT) ~>; BRAIDA Mattia (CNECT) 
Vannie (CNECT) a.eu>; BURIAN Peter (CNECT) 
KOLODZIEJSKA Anna (CNECT) ec.euro a.eu>; GILAR Simon (CNECT) 

ec.euro a.eu> 
Subject: Re: SG Fact-checking Meeting Tue. 3pm? 

Dear All, 

The Commission team will not be available at that time. Let's wait until after the assembly. 

Best, 

Carlos 

Carlos Hernandez-Echevarria @carlos hem 

Assistant Director, Head of Public Policy & Institutional 
Development 

Maldita.es is a nonprofit media outlet and a foundation that fights against di.sinformation through Journalism and fact-checking, Education, Research 
and Data in new formats. 
EU Transparency register 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001879 
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: : ~ 

: : I 

Hazte Maldit@ en https://comun ldad,maldita ,es 

Eljuc, 1 jun 2023 a las 12:33, Carlos Hernandez-Echevania (- >) cscribi6: 

Dear All, 

J'rn travelling most of the next nvo weeks so J was wondering if it would be possible to have a meeting 
to pick it where we left it yesterday on Tuesday June 6th at the usual 3pm. It doesn't conflict with 
other SGs that I'm aware of. 

Best, 

Carlos 

Carlos Hernandez-Echevarria @carlos hem 

Assistant Director, Head of Public Policy & Institutional 
Development 

Ma/dire.es is a nonprofit media outlet and a foundation that fights against disinformation through Journalism and fact-cl1ecking, Educa ion , 
Research and Data In new formats. 
EU Transparency register 

Hazte Maldit@ en .!it.~Q.;i_;_//cornu n~dad. maldi tq.!.~.~ 

Maldita.es -Periodismo para que note la cuelen 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001880 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC : 

Subject: 

Location: 

Start : 
End: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
6/13/2023 1:39:33 AM 
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Alexis Bley (EACA) 

(Ti 
(Ne 
Ha 

@google.com]; -@twitter.com]; 
(Microsoft) @microsoft.com]; 

@google.com); (TikTok) @tiktok.com]; Claudie Moreau (EACA) 
@eaca.eu]; (Google) @google.com); David Goddard (DV) 

@doubleverify.com]; Emanuele Brandi (GDI) @d isinformationindex.org]; 
@google.com]; Fiona Campbell -Webster @mediamath.com]; 

tiktok.com]; Gabrielle Robita ille (WFA) @wfanet.org]; Gordon Crovitz 
@newsguardtech.com]; Ines Talavera (IAB Europe) @iabeurope.eu]; Ingrid 

@mediamath.com]; Israel Mirskv■■■ @newsguardtech.com]; Janos Tamas 
@nmhh.hu]; Justin Adler-Swanberg (Media Math) f?mediamath.com]; 

@meta.com]; Lisa Ginsborg (EDMO) I (YouTube} 
@google.com]; (Ebiquity) 

@ebiquity.com]; (Google) 
@meta.com];Rob Rakowitz (WFA/GARM) ■■lll@wfanet.org]; 
@twitter.com];Sam Jeffers (Who Targets Me) ~whotargets.me); (Google) 

@google.com]; Stanislav Matejka (ERGA) ■■■-l!!!l!l@ rvr.sk); Stephanie Posner (DV) 
@doubleverify.com]; Trmea Cervei\ova (ERGA) @rvr.sk]; 

@microsoft.com); Virgin ia Padovese (Newsguard) @newsguardtech .com]; Amit Dar 
-@activefence.com); Carlos Hernandez @maldita.es]; 'Irene Larraz•■■■■@newtra l. es); 
'David Reis' -@activefence.com]; Maril in Gonzalo @newtral.es]; 'Marina Sacristan' 

@maldita.es]; 'Nathalia Watkins' ■■-@activefence.com]; 'Peter Jancar ik' 
@firma .seznam.cz] 

RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) @ec.europa .eu]; STUMP Krisztina 
@ec.europa.eu); KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

@ec .europa .eu]; (Google) @google.com) 

@ec.europa .eu); 
@ec.europa.eu]; BIRGER 

@google.com]; 
@google .com]; @l inkedin.com]; 

@disinformat ionindex.org 

Ad-scrutiny Subgroup (CoP Task-force) - regular meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

6/26/2023 8:00:00 AM 
6/26/2023 9:30:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Due to conflicting agendas we will reschedule the SG meeting by one week 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001489 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

1525



C!ick .. here. tojol n..the. meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode: ­
Download Teams I Join on the. web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: ·­
Altemate_VTC_instructions 

Jolning is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

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
6/23/2023 1:42:41 AM 
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.E!U; GILAR Simon ec.europa.eu]; 

@tiktok.com]; @vimeo.com]; 
@google.com]; - @kinzen.com]; Alexis Bley @eaca.eu]; Anahita Valakche■ 

[umicrosoft.com]; Ania Hels1:th ■■■■@fb.com]; BLASCHKE Vannie 
ec.europa.eu]; Cairlos Hernandez @maldita.es]; I 
ft. com]; ■■-l!!!!l!!!!l!!!!l!!!!l!!!!!!!!!iiliiill J!!l!!.■@m i crosoft. com); Chine Labbe 

sguardte @google.com]; Claudie Moreau 
eaca.eu]; m); Dominika Hadju 
globsec.o , uropa.eu]; Gordon Crovitz 
ewsguardtech.com]; Ines vosteurope.org]; 

.tv]; James Ward ■lPthebrightapp .com]; Jana Kaza • Jelena Berkovic 
faktograf.hr]; ••@vim 
hinking.com]; Jorge < urop @neva-

labs.com]; ■■■■I 1■■■11 tedance.com]; ■■■I . , 
); Luana Lo • uca Nicotra 
ogle.com); • 

]; . 
• · J;■■■■■ 1-■i · , 

@avaaz.or --@justin.tv]; Paul Coppin @rsf.org]; Gori, Paula 
• ]; Pawel Terpilowski■■■■■■ agog.org.pl]; Stanislav Matejka 

rvr.sk]; STUMP Krisz • ec.europa.eu]; Tfmea Cervenova 
rvr.sk); t.com]; Tommaso Canetta 
politica.it ]; Veena newsguardtech.com); Vincent Berthier 

g]; Virginia Padove dtech.com]; BURIAN Peter 
ec.europa.eu]; twitter.com]; Katya Viadziorchyk (Al 

Forensics) - @aiforensics.org]; org] 
FILIPEK Jon ■■■• · · · · 
WANGEN Patrice (EEAS) 

ec.euro . 
; - @r . 
@bytedance.com 
ita.es]; BRAIDA M 

eeas.eurupa.eu; 

@ec.europa.eu]; MERISIO Silvia 
@eeas.europa.eu]; @justin.tv; 

@ec.europa.eu); 
@bytedance.com); Marina Sacristan 

@ec.europa.eu]; Richard Stansfield 
@crispt hinking.com]; @feedback.org; Bastien Carnie! @feedback.org]; 

Katarfna Klingova ~ @globsec.org]; llllllllllll@google.com; ~ @iag.gr; KUKLIS Lubes 
@ec.europa.eu]; - @linkedin.com]; 

@linkedin.com] 

Subject : Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task-force) Meeting 
Attachments: imageOOl.png 
Location: 

Start: 

End: 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

7/5/2023 7 :30:00 AM 
7/5/2023 9:00:00 AM 

Show Time As: Free 

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

Due to a scheduling conflict, the chairs of the subgroup are unfortunately unable to chair our meeting next week. We 
therefore propose to move the meeting by one week to 5 Ju!ly. To avoid an accumulation of three meetings in July as a 
result from this, we'll add an agenda item to discuss the frequency of meetings of the subgroup during and after the 
summer months. 

In the meantime, we invite you to revisit the discussion paper (you may consult it under ~ Crisis Response Subgroup 
Discussion Paper.docx) and make any editing suggestions and comments you still see necessary in the framing text 
(pp.1-4). Where previous comments have already been addressed or clarified, please also consider closing them, which 
will make our next editing round faster. 

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
Clkk .. here.,tojain_the .. meeting_ 

Meeting ID; 

Passcode:­
.Down!oadTeams I Joinon.the.web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

.. @_y_teams.tes;hfac.europa,eu. 

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

Learn. .. Mme. i Help I Meetinttootions 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001384 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
6/28/2023 8:42:26 AM 

To: @logically.co.uk; Carlos Hernandez­
@microsoft.com]; 

@feedback.org]; Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA 
@linkedin.com]; Irene Larraz (i)newtral.es]; 

@meta.com]; 
@google.com]; 

@tiktok.com; Marie BOHNER afp.com]; Marina Sacristan @maldita .es]; 
@linkedin.com]; Pawel Terpilowski ■■■■l~@demagog.org.pl ]; -

@google.com]; (5lmeta.com]; 
eeas.europa.eu; 'Tfmea Cervenova (ERGA)' @rvr.sk]; (CELA 

@microsoft.com]; Tommaso Canetta @pagellapolitica.it); STUMP Krisztina 
@ec.europa.eu]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) ■■■■l@ec.europa.eu]; BIRGER Albin 

ec.europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vannie ec.europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne 
@ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter @ec.europa .eu]; BRAIDA Matt ia 
@ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon ■iiiiii@ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

ec.europa.eu] 

Subject: 

Location: 

Start : 
End: 

SG Fact-checking Meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

7/3/2023 3 :00:00 AM 
7/3/2023 4:30:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Em powering Fact -checkers SG, 

On behalf of Carlos, we would like to invite you to t he next Empowering Fact-checkers SG meeting. 

It will take place on Monday, 3,07 at 12:00 - 13:30. 

Please find the connection detail s be!ow. 

Best, 

CoP Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
C!kk.hern.,tojoin. the .. rneeting_ 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Meeting ID: 

Passcode: ­
Down!osd Teams I Join on t r1e Vv'eb - ····--·····- ··-··--··----·-·····- ··--·- ··· - ---- ···---···-····- -····- -···-··--····--·· 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech.ec.eu ropa .eu 

Video Conference ID: -­
Alterri,3l<\ VTC lnstructions 

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

1/31/2023 9:08:55 AM 
To: Alexis Bley (EACA) 

-@twitter.co 
icros 

ktok.com); 
oogle.com]; David 

ionindex.or 
mediamath. 
anet.org]; 

@iabeurope 
uardtech.co 

(MediaMath) - • 
eui.e 
met 

gle.co 
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
@ec .europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna BRAIDA Mattia 

ec.europa.eu]; 
ec.europa.eu) 

Subject: 

Location: 

Start : 

Ad-scrutiny Subgroup (CoP Task-force) - regular meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

7/3/2023 8 :00:00 AM 
End: 7/3/2023 9:30:00 AM 

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
Video Conference ID:~ 
A!ternate VTC instructions 

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

7/13/2023 6:15 :18 AM 
To: @logica lly.co.uk; Carlos Hernandez­

@microsoft.com]; 
@feedback.org]; Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA 

in.com]; Irene Larr (i)newtral.es]; 
@meta.com]; 

@google.com]; 
p.com]; Marina Sacristan @maldita .es]; 

• ---■~ .org.pl ]; -
gle.co eta.com]; 

; 'Tfmea C @rvr.sk]; (CELA 
.com]; Tommaso Canetta @pagellapolitica.it ); STUMP Krisztina 
europa.eu]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) ■■■■■■@ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon 

pa.eu]; BIRGER Albin i opa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vann ie 
.europa.eu]; BURIAN ec.europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne 

. ropa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start : 
End : 

ec.europa.eu] 

SG Fact-checking Meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

7/19/2023 7:00:00 AM 
7/19/2023 8:30:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear M embers of the Empowering Fact -checkers SG, 

On behalf of Carlos, we would like to invite you to the next Empowering Fact-checkers SG meeting. 

It will take place on Wednesday, 19.07 at 16:00-17:30. 

Please fi nd the connection detail s be!ow. 

Best, 

CoP Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
C!kk_hern __ tojoin. the .. rneeting_ 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0002152 
1538



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
7/25/2023 12:42:4 7 AM 
Am it Dar-@activefence.com]; BIRGER Albin ii @ec.europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vann ie 

@ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia @ec.europa.eu ]; BURIAN Peter 
'.§)P.c .europa.eu]; Carlos Hernandez @maldita.es]; 
@tiktok.com]; @microsoft.com]; Christina Elmer ■■■■■@tu-

dortmund.de]; Claes de Vreese llll"!!!@google.com]; Dominika Hadju 
@globsec.org]; ii■■- @vimeo.com]; FILIPEK Jon 

(:lec.europa.eu]; GILAR Simon @ec.europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne 
@ec.europa.eu]; Hans Brorsen -@thedailyledger.xyz]; Heather Dannyelle Thompson 

@democracy-reporting.erg]; Ines Narciso @vosteurope.org]; Irene Larraz 
@newtral.es]; Jakub Rybnikar ■■■■ @rpms.sk]; Jana Kazaz ■■■■B>globsec. org]; Jelena 

faktograf.hr]; Jens Brorsen ~thedailyledger.xyz]; Julian Merer 
@arcom.fr]; ■■■■■■■■@adobe.com]; ■■■■■@meta.com]; 

Katya Viadziorchyk -@aiforensics.org]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna ec.europa.eu]; 
§}eeas.europa.eu;■■■l ll■■l@meta.com]; Lisa Ginsberg @eui.eu]; -

@google.corn] ; Marc Faddoul -@aiforensics.org]; Marina Sacristan 
@maldita.es]; @microsoft.com]; Michael Meyer 

@democracy-reporting.erg]; @google.com]; Nicolas Faucouit 
arcom.fr]; @tiktok.com]; Peter Jancarik 

@firma.seznam.cz); RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) @ec.europa .eu]; Roslyn Rios 
@newsguardtech.com]; Salvatore Romano @aiforensics.org]; Sam Jeffers 

~whotargets . me];■■■• @logically.ail; STUMP Krisztina 
ec.europa.eu]; ■■■■■ ■■■l@microsoft.com] 

Generative Al Subgroup 

•• ::.r.-,*-".i,,;; ~ ·"'"·**-", · , :, ;-. 
~~1'~: 
;~~ 

. ...,} ·- ~~- ,.:, .... 1.i·. 
- -

Thank you for your interest in the Generative Al subgroup. We well noted your interest to participate. 

As several signatories volunteered to co-chair this subgroup, we propose to choose the co-chairs at the first meeting in 
September. 

The scope, purpose and deliverables of the group will be discussed and decided as well during the first meetings. 

We will inform you about the date of the first meeting planned for September in due time. In the meantime enjoy the 
summer. 

Kind regards, 
The CoP TF team 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Analysis of harmful content on Slovak language Tik Tok 

Center for Countering Hybrid Threats, Ministry of Interior of the Slovak republic 

September 2023 

Main findings: 

1. A small, relatively insignificant account can have a substantial impact, making it 
difficult to monitor the environment. 

• Despite tracking down the main and most followed accounts, smaller, hard to detect accounts 

can spread propaganda, hoaxes, and conspiracies without being under proper moderation and 

supervision. This helps deleted accounts as well - if an account gets deleted and loses its 

followers and likes, the viewers can actively search for the video, and this makes the algorithm 

promote it 

2. A practice of establishment of secondary accounts after being banned was found 
with new profiles resharing content from suspended accounts. 

• During the analysis, there have been several cases of suspended accounts detected, which 

were replaced by a new account on the same basis, with a very similar username, likely run by 

the same person. 

• Many of them have actively reshared content from the suspended account, as evidenced by 

the watermark of the previous (suspended) account. During the analysis, it was not possible 

to confirm, whether the reshared content had led to t he suspension of the previous account 

or whether mostly non-problematic content was reposted. Some profiles actively promoted 

their problems with compliance with TikTok Community Guidelines and claimed they would 

establish a new account in case they were to be blocked. 

3. Users are being closed in a loop of self-strengthening narratives, including 
conspiracies, pro-Russian propaganda, and other harmful content, which is 

recommended to them. 
• Experiments in t he Slovak environment showed that 1 in 5 displayed videos contain 

disinformation, misleading content, or other problematic content, such as climate change 

denial, hoaxes about vaccinat ion, and conspiracies about the war in Ukraine. In other 

experiments, it took a relatively short time until the algorithm offered problematic content to 

the user. 

• Once the algorithm acknowledges the interest of the user in such videos, their FYP can turn 

into a continuous stream of videos containing hoaxes, conspiracies, pro-Russian propaganda, 

and other problematic content, which has happened during this analysis as well. 

4. Among the most influential accounts spreading conspiracies and pro-Russian 
narratives, political accounts were prominent. 

• Despite the existence of not politically affiliat ed accounts spreading problematic content, 

accounts run by political parties or individual politicians were spreading a substantial number 

of conspiracies and pro-Russian narratives. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT _HJC_006528 
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S. Foreign accounts are prevalent as well, as the language barrier is not that important 

in graphic and audio content; Czech accounts have a lot of prevalence as well. 
• During the analysis, a number of Czech accounts spreading conspiracies, propaganda, and 

hoaxes were eit her recommended by the For You Page or found by keyword search. In addition 

to that, as TikTok offers audio-visual content instead of pure text, foreign, often Russian or 

English-speaking accounts can reach part of the population, that does not speak the language, 

and delivers t he message by audio and graphic features. 

6. A blending of entertainment and problematic content was detected. 

• Some of the accounts detected t ried to present t hemselves as a satire, however included many 

open or hidden conspiracy messages or pro-Russian narratives. 

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

Sent: 9/6/2023 5:55:30 AM 
To: 

CC: 

Carlos Hernandez- Echevarria 
RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) 

@mald ita.es]; (CELA) 
@ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

- 1 
age apolitica.it]; jelena .berk @faktograf. 

ft .com]; 

Subject: ToR / / SG on fact-checking 
Attachments: imageOOl.jpg 
Location: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Start : 9/13/2023 6:00:00 AM 
End: 9/13/2023 7:00:00 AM 
Show Time As : Tentat ive 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear AH, 

@microsoft.com]; 

tiktok.com]; 
Tommaso 

■ 

Following Caries's e-rn.ail (see below) we would like to invite you for a meeting to fina lise the work on the ToR for t he 
Fact-checkers SG. \Ne support Carlos' idea to meet in a smaller group so we can progress smoothly on the final draft 
to be presented to t he whole SG. 
Would you be able to have a call on Wednesday (13.09} at 15:00 -16:00? 

It would be great: if you could confam asap, so we block our agendas. 

Best, -
···- ------ ---- -------- -- - -- ---------- -------------- ----------- - ----· - ------------ ----------------- - ----· - ------------ ----------------- - ----·------ - ------ --

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to ioin the meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode: ­
Dovvnload Teams I Join_on he_web 

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
Alternate VTCjnsl ructions 

Joining is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn h>'Jo:'e j He!n I Meetbg cations. ••.•••...•••••. , ................ , ................ .ff, , , ...... .......... ,, .......... ,, . ...... ,, •••••• ,,. 

From: Carlos Hernandez- Echevarria~> 

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 12:55 PM 

To:-(CELA)~> 
Cc: CNECT COP TASK FORCE< - - - ORCE@ec.europa.eu>;-

~>; le.com>;-~>; 

- tiktok.com>; 
tiktok.com ........:.;=.:..:.==.:..:.· Canetta 

""'-'"-='--"-"-::C,C:..::..Cli'-"'ti..::.ca=·.:..e.it>; j • ,-....:_=:.;;;;:_cc,;._=-'-'-= <I 
~>;-~> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next steps SG on fact-checking ToR 

Dear AJI , 

I hope you've had a wonderful summer. Let me repost the last draft of the fact-checking SG ToR and ask 
if you'd open to have a mini-meeting of those more involved in the discussion to see if we can finalize 
it. 

Best, 

Carlos 

Carlos Hernandez-Echevarria @carlos hem 

Assistant Director, Head of Public Policy & Institutional 
Development 

Maldita.es is a nonprofit media outlet and a foundation that fights against disinformation through Journalism and fact-checking, Education, Research 
and Data in new formats. 
EU Transparency register 

Hazte Maldit@ en ht_tp5 ;L/corru.Jn idad,rnal;:litf! ,es 

El vie, 21 jul 2023 a las 9:59, Carlos Hernandez-Echevarria(->) escribi6: 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0002249 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Dearlllll and alJ, 

100% agree on how taxing the work involved in the TF can be. Point 6 does not have a related 
deliverable in tbe ToR but T thought it would be good to contemplate the possibility of those exchanges 
on integration, also as a way to streamline the comrnitment to "regularly exchange information between 
themselves and the factchecking community, to strengthen their cooperation" on M32 .1 in this key area. 
It's OK if we want to keep those exchanges separate from the SG, but I'd rather have the ToR to to at 
least contemplate the exchanges happening in the future. I also proposed a new point 7 in the doCLLment 
to reflect the language in 37.2 for the task force to "contribute to the assessment of the quality and 
effectiveness of Service level and Structural indicators and the data points provided to measure these 
indicators, as well as their relevant adaptation." 

Best, 

Carlos 

Carlos Hernandez-Echevarria @carlos hem 

Assistant Director, Head of Public Policy & Institutional 
Development 

Maid/ta.es is a nonprofit media out let and a foundation tha fights against disinformalion through Journalism and fact-checking, Education , 
Research and Data in new fom,als. 
EU Transparency register 

Hazte Maldit@ en .b.ttQs ;//comunidad .malclita.es 

Eljue, 20 jul 2023 a las 14:20, (CELA) ( microsoft.com>) escribi6: 

Thanks Carlos. The doc is shaping up nicely. Always happy to chat still working until Thu next week. 

On point 6 indeed, I had added a question in the doc just now (before seeing your email), asking if you could clarify which 
commitment/ measu re in the Code it is that places info and best practice exchange re (31 as a workstrearn onto the 
Taskforce. 

As indicated during yesterday's meeting (and earlier ones), given the tremendous workload not j ust for this SG, but also with 
the eight other existing SGs/WGs and the upcoming three new ones, we really want to ensure we focus the work in the 
Taskforce onto those aspects that we explicitly committed to in the Code. So unless I overlooked the point in the Code 
where the Taskforce was given a ro le regarding the "integration, showcas ing, or otherwise consistent use of fact -checkers' 
work in the signatories' services, processes, and contents.", we would suggest to remove this from the scope and purpose of 
the ToR. 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0002250 
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1548



Best, 

-
From: Carlos Hernandez- Echevarria~> 
Sent: Thursday, 20 July 2023 12:09 
To: Code Of Practice Task F 

>.;.;.<.I=-===-"-=-'-'--'-"--''=· ' • 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Next steps SG on fact-checking ToR 

Dear All, 

===·==, aso 
f.hr> 

After yesterday's meeting, a brief summary of where things stand so we can maybe push it towards the 
goal line. I included in tbe loop only those most active i11 the conversation yesterday, but happy to add 
others. 

The te1ms of reference are almost there, but there are a couple of points related to deliverable 3 that 
were a particular concern for Google and that also need the view of the Commission: 

• About the potential disclosure of the deliverable, the option of ditching the NDA reference and 
use "The document is subject to the confidentiality requirements set in the vademecum, 
remains taskforce internal unless by agreement of the signatories" -. 

• On the potential use of the deliverables as a compliance indicator, the suggestion by illllllll 
- to have Code-wide assurance that the deliverables from the different SGs "will not 
be used as a marker/or signatories' compliance with the Code under Lhe DSA ·s co-regulato,y 
regime". I don't think this is larger than FC and more related to the role of the EC as the 
compliance evaluator, but happy to contribute to the debate if it helps. 

And I also think wanted to have an additiona l look at point 6 i.n the scope before the 
doc can be adopted. 

Should we have a mini-meeting early next week to try to iron those final differences and have a 
ToR before the summer break? 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED- MET A-119HJC-0002251 
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Best, 

Carlos 

Carlos Hernandez-Echevarria @carlos hem 

Assistant Director, Head of Public Policy & Institutional 
Development 

Maldita. es is a nonprofit media outlet and a foundation that fights against disinformation through Journalism and fact-checking, Education, 
Research and Data in new formats. 

EU Transparency register 

Hazte Maldit@ en https://cornunldad.maldita.es 

Maldita.es - Periodismo para que note la cuelen 

Maldita.es - Periodismo para que no te la cuek:n 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0002252 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

1550



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 132 
 

 

 

1551



Message 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Dear all, 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 
9/6/2023 9:06:01 AM 

@eaca.eu]; 
back.org]; BIRGER Albi 

ec.europa .eu]; BRAI 
ta.es]; 

icrosoft.co • 

@meta.com]; Bastien Carnie! (Science Feedback) 
ec.europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vannie 

@ec.europa .eu]; Carlos Hernandez 
@tiktok.com];■■■■■■■ 

@newsguardtech.com]; Claudie Moreau 

Dominika Hadju 
Feedback) 

@eaca.eu); @google.com); ■■■■■■ ■■■@microsoft.com] ; 
@globsec.org); Elena Calistru -@funky.ong); Emmanuel Vincent (Science 

@feedback.org]; iil■■■l1@vimeo.com]; GILLET Jeanne 
@ec.europa.eu]; @linkedin.com); Teeas.europa.eu 

@eeas.europa.eu); Heather Dannyell,e Thompson ■■■l@democracy-reporting.org]; Ines 
@vosteurope.org]; Irene Larraz @newtral.es]; 

@twitch.tv]; Jana Kazaz■■■t@globsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic @faktograf.hr];-
@vimeo.com]; Joao Ribe iro @vosteurope.org]; -

@crispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes @vosteurope.org]; @neva-
labs.com]; Katarina Klingova @globsec.org]; Katya Viadziorchyk -@aiforensics.org]; 
KOLODZIEJSKA Anna ■■I ec.europa.eu]; KUKLIS Lubos @ec.europa.eu]; 

@eeas.europa .eu; ■■■I l■■l@meta. com]; Laura Le Roho @rsf.org]; 
bytedance.com]; LU1ca Nicotra -@avaaz.org]; 

@google.com); Marilin Gonzalo @newtral.es]; Marina Sacristan 
(:'maldita.es]; @meta.com] ;■■■■l l■■l@twitch.tv]; 

@microsoft.com]; ■■■l@linked i n . com] ; Michael Meyer 
@democracy-reporting.org]; qf ~oogle.com]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral 

-@avaaz.org]; Olaf Cram me @justin.tv]; Paul Coppin ■■■■@rsf.o rg ]; Gori, Paula 
@eui.eu); Pawel Terpilowski ■■■- @demagog.org.pl); Persa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/ERGA) 

@esr.gr]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) @ec.europa.eu]; Richard Stansfield 
@aiforensics.org]; ■■■■I (Google) 

;■■■■■IATe ■■■l@eeas . eu ropa.eu]; Stanislav 
@rvr.sk]; STUMP Kriszti c.europa.eu]; 
pa.eu; Timea Cerveno r.sk); 

@microsoft .com]; Tommaso Canetta @pagellapolitica. it]; 
dance.com]; Veena Mccoole ■■■■■@newsguardtech.com); 

eeas.europa.eu; Vincent Berthier -@rsf.org]; Virginia Pavodese 
newsguardtech.com] 

Follow-up crisis response meeting: New meeting schedule and invitation to participate in steering group for risk 
methodology and rapid response system 

Thank you very much for your participation in today's meeting of the crisis response subgroup. For everyone's benefit, 

but particularly for those who could not attend, we send you this follow-up to summarise the decisions taken today. 

Firstly, the schedule of the regular meetings has been switched to once per month. You should have already received 

the updated invite, in case of any problems, please contact UIS. 

Secondly, the work on the common document which aims to develop the risk assessment methodology and a rapid 

response system for crisis situations will be taken up by a dedicated steering group. This group will - without regular 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0002253 
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meetings - coordinate and implement the further development of the document, and will update the subgroup on the 
progress during the regular monthly meetings. As discussed during the meeting, please write to us if you would like to 
participate in the steering group. 

Kind regards, 

Vannie on behalf of the CoP Disinfo team 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - MET A-119HJC-0002254 
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Appointment 

From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 

Sent: 9/6/2023 5 :55:44 AM 
To: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Carlos Hernandez- Echevarrfa @maldita.es); 

(CELA) @microsof t .com]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) @ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA 

ec.europa.eu] 
CC: @google.com]; oogle.com); 

I 
Tommaso 

I 

Subject: ToR / / SG on fact-checking 
Attachments: imageOOl.jpg 
Location: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Start : 9/11/2023 6:00:00 AM 
End: 9/11/2023 7:00:00 AM 
Show Time As : Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear AH, 

As agreed by e-mails, a meeting on ToR fol' the Fact-checking SG will take place today {Monday) 15:00. 
Link to the document ToR for the Fact-checkers SG. 

Best, 
CoP team 

Dear AH, 

Following Carlos's e-mail (see below) ·we would like to invite you for a meeting to fina lise the work on the ToR for the 
Fact-checkers SG. We support Carlos' fdea to meet in a smaller group so we can progress smoothly on the fi nal draft 
t o be presented to the whole SG. 

Vvould you be able to have a call on Wednesday (13.09} at 15:00 ·- 16:00'? 

It would be- great if you could confi rm asap, so we block our agendas. 

Best, 

1111 
-··-··--·-·---·-·····--··-·----- --·--··-··--·-·---·-·····--··-·----- ·-·--··-··--·-·-···-·-···--··-·----- -----··-··--·-·---·-·-···- -··-·---
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Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode:­
Download Teams I Join on Hie web ---···· . ··-·--·· ·····-------·-··. ·- ---·· ·------· ·------ ...•. ·--·--·· -·-·--· . ·- ----· ·--···-· ---·-·· . ---· 

Join with a video conferencing device 

-@vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: 
Alternate VT( instru ctions 

Joining is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn __ More I Heip I rv1eeting options 

From: Carlos Hernandez- Echevarria~> 
Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 12:55 PM 
To: (CELA) ~> 
Cc: CNECT COP TASK FORCE< T- - A - ORCE@ec.europa.eu>;-
~ le.com>;-< meta.com>; 

tiktok.com>; 

Canetta 
a ella olitica.it>; jelena.berkovic fakto raf.hr>; <I 

~>; ~> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Next steps SG on fact-checking ToR 

Dear All, 

l hope you've had a wonderful summer. Let me repost the last draft of the fact-checking SG ToR and ask 
if you'd open to have a mini-meeting of those more involved in the discussion to see ifwe can finalize 
it. 

Best, 

Carlos 

Carlos Hernandez-Echevarria @carlos hem 

Assistant Director, Head of Public Policy & Institutional 

Development 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0002732 
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Maldita.es is a nonprofit media outlet and a foundation that fights against disinformation through Journalism and fact-checking, Education, Research 
and Data in new formats. 
EU Transparency register 

Hazte Maldit@ en https://cornunldad.maldita ,es 

El vie, 21 jul 2023 a las 9:59, Carlos Hernandez- Echevania (~>) cscribi6: 

Dear .. and all, 

100% agree on bow taxing the work involved i□ the TF can be. Point 6 does not have a related 
deliverable in the ToR but I thought it would be good to contemplate the possibility of those exchanges 
on integration, also as a way to streamline the commitment to ''regularly exchange information between 
themselves and the factch ecking community, to strengthen their cooperation" on M32 . l in this key area . 
It's OK if we want to keep those exchanges separate from the SG, but I'd rather have the ToR to to at 
least contemplate the exchanges happening in the future. I also proposed a new point 7 in the document 
to reflect the language in 37.2 for the task force to "contribute to the assessment of the quality and 
effectiveness o_fService Level and Structural Indicators and the data points provided Lo measure these 
indicators, as well as their relevant adaptation .'" 

Best, 

Carlos 

Carlos Hernandez-Echevarria @carlos hem 

Assistant Director, Head of Public Policy & Institutional 
Development 

Maldita.es is a nonprofit media outlet and a foundation that fights against disinformation through Journalism and fact-checking, Education, 
Research and Data in new formats. 
EU Transparency register 

Hazte Maldit@ en https:/ /comunidad.n1aldita.es 

El jue, 20 j ul 2023 a las 14 :20, (CELA) @microsoft.com>) escribi6: 

Thanks Carlos. The doc is shaping up nicely. Always happy to chat, still working unti l Thu next week. 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0002733 
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On point 6 indeed, I had added a question in the doc just now (before seeing your email), asking if you could clarify which 
commitment / measure in the Code it is that places info and best practice exchange re C31 as a workstream onto the 
Taskforce. 

As indicated during yesterday's meeting (and earlier ones), given the tremendous workload not just for this SG, but also with 
the eight other existing SGs/WGs and the upcoming three new ones, we really want to ensure we focus the work in the 
Taskforce onto those aspects that we explicitly committed to in the Code. So unless I overlooked the point in the Code 
where the Taskforce was given a role regarding the "integration, showcasing, or otherwise consistent use of fact-checkers' 
work in the signatories' services, processes, and contents", we would suggest to remove this from the scope and purpose of 
the ToR. 

Best, 

-
From: Carlos Hernandez- Echevarria ~ 
Sent: Thursday, 20 July 2023 12:09 

fee Task F • • 

===a.:.:·=~ , aso 
Canetta aJ ao-ella olitica.it>; jelena.b erkovic fhr> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Next steps SG on fact-checking ToR 

Dear All, 

After yesterday's meeting, a brief summary of where things stand so we can maybe push it towards the 
goal line. I included in the loop only those most active in the conversation yesterday, but happy to add 
others. 

The tenns of reference are almost there, but there are a couple of points related to deliverable 3 that 
were a pa11icular concern for Google. and that also need the view of the Commission: 

• About the potential disclosure of the deliverable, the option of di tching the NDA reference and 
use "The document is subject to the corrftdentiality requirements set in the vademecum, 
remains taskforce internal unless by agreement of the signatories" -

• On the potential use of the deliverables as a compliance indicator, the suggestion by~ 
- to have Code-wide assurance that the deliverables from the different SGs "will not 
be used as a marker/or signatories' compliance with the Code under the DSA 's co-regulatory 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED- MET A-119HJC-0002734 
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regime". J don't think this is Larger than FC and more related to the role of the EC as the 
compliance evaluator, but happy to contribute to the debate if it helps. 

And I also think wanted to have an additional look at point 6 in the scope before the 
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

Maldita.es is a nonprofit media oullel and a foundation that fights against disinformation through Journalism and facl-checking, Educalion, 
Research and Data in new formats. 

EU Transparency register 

Hazte Maldit@ en https :/ /comunidad .mald1ta.es 

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
9/13/2023 8:10:50 AM 
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Amit Dar -@activefenc cc.au.dk 

cc.au.dk]; • • t) [t-
soft.com I (Google} 
gle.com]; David Reis -@activefen tiktok.com]; 
(Vi ■■■■@vimeo.com];■■■■ . ]; Heather 

Dannyelle Thompson iiiii App) 
thebrightapp.c e hn-Orr Hanna (Crisp) -

crispthinking.com); J • • J; 
.com]; Lucie ouTube) 
oogle.com); ropa.eu]; Marilin Gonzalo 

@newtral.es a.co (Twitch} 
h.tvJ;■■I I Meyer ocracy-

reporting.org]; Micha l Feix (Seznam)-@ch-c.eu]; Michal Holas (Seznam) -@ch-c.eu]; ■■■■I (Google) 
ogle .com]; Nathalia Watkins @activefence.com]; Omri Preiss (Al liance 4 Europe) 

• nce4europe.eu); eeas.europa.eu; Ondrej Tolar ■■■■l@firma.seznam.cz] ; 
@meta.com]; Patrice Wangen (EEAS) ■■■■■■@eeas.europa . eu]; Gori, Paula 

u]; Petra de Place Blak @un i.au.dk]; Richard Stansfield 
@crispthinking.co • • ■■■■■-Teeas.europa.eu 
@eeas.europa.eu]; ogle.com]; 
as.europa.eu; Stan @rvr.sk]; Timea Cervenova (ERGA) 

rvr.sk];■■■■■ @microsoft.com) ;llll■■■■~eeas . europa . eu ; 
v; RABBACHIN Alberto @ec.europa.eu]; STUMP Krisztina 

ec.europa. ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter 
@ec.europa .eu]; ■■■■ @logically.co.uk] 

BLASCHKE Vann ie ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA 
Anna ec.europa.eu]; FILIPEK Jon @ec.europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne 

@ei.;.europa.eu]; Ti rnea Cervenova @rpms.sk]; PeLr·a de Place Bak - @cc.au .dk.); 

Stanislav Matejka @rpms.sk] 

CoP - Integrity of Services Subgroup - reconvenes in September 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

10/3/2023 6:30:00 AM 
10/3/2023 8:00:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Now postponed by a week to 3 Oct. 

As agreed at the last SG meeting, let's reschedule this meeting to September - where we will touch base on the SG 

priorities and upcoming work 

Albin & Clement 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001395 
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
Alternate VT( inst ru ctions 

Join ing is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn i'v10!'e ! He!p I rv1~1fU?PJions 

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
Sent: 9/22/2023 9:35 :52 AM 
To: @logica lly.co.uk; Carlos Hernandez­

@microsoft.com]; 
@feedback.org]; Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA 

in.com ]; Irene Larr (i)newtral.es]; 
@meta.com]; 

@google.com]; 
p.com]; Marina Sacristan @maldita .es]; 

@demagog.org.pl]; -
gle.com]; ('.j)meta.com]; 

; 'Tfmea Cer @rvr.sk];■■■■■ (CELA 
ft.com]; Tommaso Canetta llapolitica.it]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) 
ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJS ■■■■J@ec. europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Yannic 
ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Pet @ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia 
.europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne ec.europa.eu]; STUMP Krisztina 

Subject : 
Location: 

Start : 
End : 

ec.europa.eu] 

Empowering Fact-checkers SG // meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

9/27/2023 7:00:00 AM 
9/27/2023 8:30:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Se.nder 

Dear Members of t he Em powering Fact--checkers SG, 

We would like to invite you to the next Empo•.vering Fact-checkers SG meeting. 
While finali sing the ToR, we would Hke to kick of the work on the first deliverables. 

We propose to focus this first meeting on the SU 31.1.3. Plea se fi nd on Teams the document fact-checkers prepared 

long time ago as a possible bluepdnt for the work on SU 3LL 3. They called as well for your feedback and vour ideas 
about the type of quantitative information platform signatories have in mind. 

The rneeting will take place on Wednesday, 27 .09 at 16:00 - 17:30. 

Please find the connection detail s below. 

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
Click here to loin the meetlnq 

Meeting ID:■ 
Passcode:-
09WDl.9~_q_T.;~un? I Jg_i_n_qn ___ tf!.t:.\l'l.{:;R: 

Join with a video conferencing device 

-

"" t t • @V .earns .. ecn.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: 

Alternate VTC instructions 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferendng system. 

Learn.More I Heip I rv-ieeting options 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED-
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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From: 
Sent: 

r···-················R·eiiaci«i···············-····)ec. eu ro pa. e u] 

9/26/2023 11:38:40 AM 
To: 
CC: i 1 ······-·-··-·········-~~~~~~cle-d··--·-···-···~~~~~.~~:~re ~. ~ u ro pa . e u l; L .......................... ~E!Q~P!.~.!:i ................. , ......... @ec . e u rop a . e u 1; 

Subject: 
L ... ·-···············-···· Redacted .......................... @ec. europa. eu] 
[External] FW: Podklady k Tik-Toku 

Attachments: TikTok • 1 Pager.docx; TikTok • Problematic accounts and posts.xlsx 

Deaf: Redacted j 

I apologise, my understanding was, that these were already shared with you, and now I see this is not the case. 

Please find the files from! Redacted i in the attachment. 
L------·--- ·-·--- .1 

Best 

l Redacted! 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 
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Appointment 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Location; 

Start : 
End : 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
9/27/2023 8:43 :35 AM 
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Aaron Sugarman (GDI) disinformationindex.org]; Alexis 

@eaca.eu ]; Amit Dar-@activefence.com]; Carlos Hernandez @maldita.es]; 
(:)tiktok.com); ■■■■■■ (Microsoft) @microsoft.com];-

e>tiktok.com]; Claudie Moreau (EACA) @eaca.eu); 
@google.com]; David Goddard (DV) ■■I @doubleverify.com]; David Mallon (GDI) 

@disinformationindex.org]; David Reis -@activefence.com]; Fiona Campbell-Webster 
@mediamath.com]; (TikTok) @tiktok.com]; Gabrielle Robitaille 

@wfanet.org]; Gordon Crovitz (Newsguard) @newsguardtech.com]; 
@linkedin.com]; Ines Talavera (IAB Europe) @iabeurope.eu]; Ingrid Hackett 

mediamath.com]; Irene Larr @newtral.es]; Israel Mirsky 
newsguardtech.com]; Ja nos Tamas Pa nmhh.hu]; 
uity.com]; Justin Adler-Swa 

a.com]; Lisa Ginsberg (EDM ■■■■(YouTube) 
google.com]; Maril" . s]; Marina Sacristan 

ita . esJ;■■I meta.co (Ebiquity) 
@ebiquity.com ]; din.com]; (Google) 

.com];•!"==~-:~==~ oogle.com) liiii@google.com]; Nathal ia Watkins 
@activefence.com]; @meta.com];Peter Jancarik 

@firma.seznam.cz); Rob Rakowitz (WFA/GARM) @wfanet.org] ; Sam Jeffers (Who Targets 
Me)~whotargets.meJ;■■■■(Googl e} @google.com]; Stanislav Matejka (ERGA) 

@rvr.sk]; Stephan ie Posner (DV) @doubleverify.com]; Tim ea Cervei\ova (ERGA) 
@rvr.sk] ;■■■■■ ■■I @microsoft.com]; Virginia Padovese (Newsguard) 
@newsguardtech.com]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) ■■■■■■@ec.europa .eu]; BRAIDA 

@ec.europa.eu] 

Ad-scrutiny Subgroup (CoP Task-force) meeting 
Mic.;rosof t Teams Meeting 

10/2/2023 8:00:00 AM 
10/2/2023 9:30:00 AM 

Show Time As: Free 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear all, 

We would like to reconvene the Subgroup and discuss upcoming work on demonetisation. 

Best wishes, 

Rob & Albin 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 

ClicJs here to fal n th.? 31weti ng 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Meeting ID: 

Passcode:­
Download Teams I Join on trie web - ····-- ·--··-----------·- ·------·--·---- - --· - ----------·-·- ··--· --------·····- ·· 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: 

AltesnateVTCinstruct[oos 

Joining is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001401 
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Appointment 

From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 
Sent: 10/3/2023 1:33:18 AM 
To: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Carlos Hernandez- Echevarria @maldita.es]; Bastien Carnie! 

(Science Feedback) @feedback.org]; @logically.co.uk; I 
@microsoft.com]; @google. com]; Emmanuel Vincent 
@feedback.org]; Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA @agcom.it); 
@linkedin.com]; Irene Larrazllll~@newtral .es]; [jelena.berkovic@faktograf.hr]; 

@meta.com]; @bytedance.com];■■■■I YouTube 
@google.com); @tiktok.com; Marie BOHNER ■■■■■le>afp,com] ; Marina 

@maldita .es]; !!l!!!!l!!l!l_llinkedln @linkedin.com]; Pawel Terpilowski 
@demagog.org .pl]; (Google) @google.com]; 

@meta.com]; eeas.europa.eu; Timea Cervenova (ERGA) @rvr.sk]; 
(CELA @microsoft.com]; Tom maso Canetta ■■■@pagell apol i t ica . i t]; 

■l@meta.com]; DERIVRY Tamian ■■■■■l@ec.europa.eu] 
CC: STUMP Krisztina ••:e:iec.europa.eu]; RABBACH IN Alberto (CNECT) ■■■■■■@ec.europa.eu ] ; 

BIRGER Albi n ec.europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vannie ■■■■■■ ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter 
@ec.europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne @ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia @ec.europa.eu] 

Subject : Empowering Fact-checkers SG meeting 
Attachments: image002.jpg; image00l.jpg; image002.jpg 
Location: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Start : 10/11/2023 8:00:00 AM 
End : 10/11/2023 9:00:00 AM 
Show Time As : Busy 

Recurrer1ce : (none) 

This Message Is From an Ext~mal S~nder 

Dear Members of the Empowering Fact-checkers SG,. 

We would like to invite you to the next SG meeting. It will take place on Wednesday, 11.10 at 17:00 -18:00. Please find 
the connection detail~ below. 

\A/e will discuss t he comments received to the paper on SLI 31.1.3 (ddl 6 Oct- plea se find the link below in Carlo's 
email). 

Best, 

CoPTeam 

From: Carlos Hernandez- Echevarria~> 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001259 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Sent: Friday, September 29, 2023 4:26 PM 
To: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu> 

Cc: Bastien Carnie! (Science Feedback) feedback.or >; ~-

- microsoft.com>;-~>; Emmanuel Vincent 
~>; Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA ~>; 
~>; Irene Larraz ~>; Jelena Berkovic 

fakto raf.hr>;-~>; 
b edance.com>; YouTube~>; 
~ Marie BOHNER~>; Marina Sacristan 
~>;-Linked In~>; Pawel Terpilowski 

dema o .or . I>;-(Google)~>;­
~>; SYKORA Ondrej (EEAS) eeas.euro a.eu>; Tim ea Cervenova 
(ERGA) ~>;-(CELA ~>; Tommaso Canetta 

a ella olitica.it>; STUMP Krisztina (CNECT) ec.euro a.eu>; RABBACHIN Alberto 
(CNECT) 
(CNECT) 

ec.euro a.eu>; FILIPEK Jon (CNECT} ~>; BIRGER Albin 
ec.euro a.eu>; BLASCHKE Vannie (CNECT} ec.euro a.eu>; BURIAN 

Peter (CNECT) a.eu>; GILLET Jeanne (CNECT) ec.euro a.eu>; 
KOLODZIEJSKA Anna (CNECT) ec.euro a.eu>; BRAIDA Mattia (CNECT) 

Subject: Next steps fact-checking SG 

Dear All, 

After a meeting of the co-chairs today and our last conversation in the SG, a summary of the next steps: 

• Our next meeting will be on Oct. 11, tim_e TBA, focused on SLl 31.1.3. 
• For that conversation, please contribute your insights and suggestions in the common 

document before Oct. 6th w it can he reviewed hy the other signatories hefore the medi ng in 
order to have a substantial conversation. 

Have a great weekend! 

Carlos 

Carlos Hernandez-Echevarria @carlos hem 

Assistant Director, Head of Public Policy & Institutional 
Development 

Ma/dita.es is a nonprofit media outlet and a foundation hat fights against disinformation through Journalism and fact-checking, Education, Research 
and Data in new formats. 
EU Transparency register 

Microsoft Teams meeting 
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Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
~!kk.h§re to irnn tnq meeting_ 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode: ­
Powni.:;:,a._;:l_J9_,.~Jn$ I Jql.ogn.JhttwPr-2 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 
Video Conference ID: 

t\lternate VTC hstructions 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferendng system. 

Learn} .,-lof'e I Heip I Meeting opt ions 

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

10/9/2023 1:00:00 PM 
10/9/2023 2:00:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Dear Members of the Crisis Response subgroup, 

Unfortunately we have to reschedule tomorrow's meeting due to an unforeseen scheduling conflict. We suggest to 

move this meeting to Monday afternoon, 15:00 - 16:00. 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_006441 
1576



To maximise uti lity and to keep the overall number of subgroup meetings lower, we propose to use the opportunity to 
hold- on top of the regular update on Ukraine - a debrief session on the Slovakian elections, together with the working 
group on elections (which forms part of this subgroup) . 

For Monday, we would therefore ask you prepare any updates you may want to share on disinformation with regards to 

the Ukraine war, as well as insights on disinformation narratives, campaigns and behaviours you may have observed in 
the course of the Slovak elections and any actions you took to mitigate them. 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup, 

In accordance with the latest agreement, we send you the recurring meeting invitation for our monthly meetings. 

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

A leeas.europa.eu 
@eeas.europa .eu; ■■■■■ATeeas .europa .eu 

@eeas.europa.eu]; eeas.europa .eu; Alexis Bley @eaca.eu]; -
@meta.eom); Bastien Carnie! (Science Feedback) @feedback.org]; Chine Labbe 

@newsguardtech.com]; Claudie Moreau ■■■■I @eaca .eu]; 
@microsoft.com]; Elena Calistru -@funky.ong]; Emmanuel Vincent (Science Feedback) 

@feedback.org]; @twitch.tv];■■■■■I ~-■■■■@vimeo.com ); 
@neva-labs.com); KUKLIS Lubos @ec.europa.eu]; Laura Le Roho 

~rsf.org]; Luca Nicotra -@avaaz.org] ; Maril in Gonzalo @newtral.es); Marina Sacristan 
@maldita.es); Nadia Guerlenda Cabral -@avaaz.org]; ■■■l@justi n.tv]; Paul 

@rsf.org]; Gori, Paula @eui. eu] ; Persa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/ERGA} 
@esr.gr]; Richard Stansfield @crispth inking.com]; Stanislav Matjeka 
@rvr.sk]; Timea Cervenova @rvr.sk]; Veena Mccoole 

@newsguardtech.com]; Vincent Berthier @rsf.org]; Virginia Pavodese 
@newsguardtech.com]; CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa .eu; BIRGER Albin 

@ec.europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Yannic 1!!!!!1!!!!1!!!!1!!.■@ec.europa .eu]; BRAIDA Mattia 
(:'ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter ec.europa.eu]; Carlos Hernandez 

@maldita.es]; .com]; 11 
·@microsoft.com]; iiiiill .com]; 

Dominika Hadju 
@google.com]; 

@bytedance.com]; GILLET Jeanne 
ec.europa .eu]; @linkedin.com]; Heather Dannyell e Thompson 

@democracy-reporting.org]; Ines Narciso @vosteurope.org]; Ines Narciso 2 
@pm.gov.pt];Irene Larraz■■■■,@newtral.es]; Jana Kazaz ■■• @globsec.org]; Jelena 

@faktograf.hr]; Joao Ribeiro ■■l(Evosteurope . org]; ■■■■l-
@crispthinking .com); Jorge Gomes @vosteurope.org] ; Julian Merer 

arcom.fr]; Katarina Klingova @globsec.org]; Katya Viadziorchyk 
-@aiforensics.org]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna ec.europa. 

@meta.com];~111111.11 ance.com]; 
; M.:uc Fadt.loul -@aifuremit;s.or g]; -

twitch. 
om] • 

reporting.org]; k@google.com]; Nicolas Faucouit r]; Omri Preiss 
• .eu]; Pawel Terpilowski ■■■■■■@demagog.org.pl); RABBACHIN Alberto 

(CNECT) pa.eu); Salvatore Romano ~aiforens ics.org]; Sam Jeffers 
ia@whotargets.me]; (Google) omL■■■l l■■■@bytedance.com]; 
STUMP Krisztina c.europa. eeas.europa.eu; 

@microsoft.com]; Tommaso Canett litica.it]; 
@bytedance.com] 

FW: Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task-force) Meeting 

10/9/2023 6:00:00 AM 
10/9/2023 7:00:00 AM 

Show Time As : Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0002791 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

1579



Dear member of the Working Group on elections, 

As the Slovak elections that just took place, it is important to have a comprehensive debrief and draw lessons 
from it. We therefore we propose to have a "combined" meeting with the Crisis Response Subgroup members 
on Monday 9/10 from 15:00-16:00. 

Ahead of the meeting, we would therefore ask you to prepare any relevant updates you may want to share and 
insights on disinformation narratives, campaigns and behaviours observed in the course of the Slovak 
elections, and any actions taken to mitigate them. 

Many thanks 
Kind regards, 

- and -

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Chck_heretojolnthe_meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode:­
Down!oad Teams I Join on the web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- (iiJvteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: 
Alternate_VTC..i_nstructions 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn More ! Heio I 1v1eetino ootions --------------------------------- ' ---- -----•'-- -------- ------ -----~------ -----------------

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED-
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

MET A-119HJC-0002792 
1580



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 141 
 

 

 

1581



Appointment 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start : 
End: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
10/13/2023 6:31:26 AM 
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Amit Dar -@activefenc 

cc.au.dk]; • 
soft.com I 
gle.com]; David Reis -@activefen 
(Vi ■■■■@vimeo.com]; 

Dannyelle Thompson 
thebrightapp.co e 

crispthinking.com); J • • 
.com]; Lucie 

c.au.dk 
t) [t­
(Google) 
tiktok.com]; 
]; Heather 

(Crisp)-

oogle.com); @eeas.europa.eu]; Marilin Gonzalo 
@newtral.es a.co (Twit ch) 
h.tvL■■I I Meyer ocracy-

reporting.org]; Micha l Feix (Seznam) .@ch-c.eu]; Michal Holas (Seznam) -@ch-c.eu]; (Google) 
ogle .com]; Nathalia Watkins @activefence.com]; Omri Preiss (Al liance 4 Europe) 

• nce4europe.eu); eeas.europa.eu; Ondrej Tolar ■■■■l@firma.seznam.cz] ; 
@meta.com]; Patrice Wangen (EEAS) @eeas.europa.eu]; Gori, Paula 

]; Petra de Place Blak @un i.au.dk]; 
@crispthinking. • ); ATeeas.europa.eu 

eeas.europ @google.com]; 
as.europa.eu; ically.ai]; Stanislav Matejka (ERGA) 
@rvr.sk]; Tfm ■liiiiiii■@rvr.sk]; 
soft.com ];•■■■■■ eeas.europa.eu; Anil Bandhakavi .@logically.ai]; BIRGER Albin 

ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter ■■■■l@ec.eu ropa.eu] 

Integrity of Services Subgroup Meeting 
onli ne 

10/26/2023 6:00:00 AM 
10/26/2023 7:00:00 AM 

Show Time As: Free 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode: -

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0001404 
1582



Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference iD: 

/'.\ltemate VTC_ instructions 

Joining is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0001405 
1583
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Appointment 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start : 
End : 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 

10/18/2023 9:20:31 AM 
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Carlos Hernandez- Echevarrfa @maldita.es]; Bastien Carniel 
(Science Feedback) @feedback.org]; @logically.co .uk; 

@microsoft.com]; ■■I I■■ @google.com]; Emmanuel Vincent 
@feedback.org); Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA [•■■■l@agcom.it); 

I 

@linkedin.com]; Irene Larraz llll@newtral.es]; Jelena Berkovic @faktograf. hr]; 
met ■■■■■■@byteda nce.com]; ■■■■■ You Tube 

e.co @tiktok.com; Marie BOHNER @afp.com]; Marina 
@mal Linkedln @linkedin.com]; Pawel Terpilowski 
em (Google) @google.com]; 

@eeas.europa.eu; Timea Cervenova (ERGA) 
(CELA @microsoft.com]; Tommaso Canetta @pagellapolitica. it ); 

~meta .com]; DERIVRY Tamian ■■■■■■~ec.europa.eu]; STUMP Kr isztina 
ec.europa .eu]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) ■■■■■@ec.eu ropa.eu] ; BIRGER Albin 

ec.europa.eu] ; BLASCHKE Yannic @ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter 
@ec.europa .eu]; GILLET Jeanne ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Matt ia ■■l@ec.europa.eu] 

Empowering Fact-checkers SG // working document 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

10/25/2023 6:00:00 AM 
10/25/2023 7:30:00 AM 

Show Time As: Free 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear M embers of t he Empowering Fact-checkers SG, 

As discussed at the last meet ing in order to facilitate fu rt hea discussion, we propose to cont inue a work on t he SLI 31.1.3 
in a forr11 of a table. For your convenience, t he table preseiits an overview of the inputs on the SU 31.1.1 and SU 31.1.2 
(as well as SLI 21.1.1, 21.1.2) from the last September report s. Please fi nd the table on our channel in Teams: Cross­
platform overview fact-checking indicators fo r Taskforce.docx 

We would like to ask you to add your proposals for the SU 31.1.3 fn the last rows. Please do so before Monday, 23 Oct 
COB. On t hat basis we can have a discussion at our next meeting on Wednesday, 25 Oct at 15:00-17 :30. 

Kind regards, 

- for the T earn 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001257 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

1585



Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
(:J_kk here tqjQ_i_n the rne~&IJ9. 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode:­
_Qownload Tea IT)1 I )pin (,)ll thr..J<Y.@ 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech.ec.europa.eu 
Video Conference !D: 
Altemate_VTC_instructions 

Joining is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferenci ng system. 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0001258 
1586
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start: 
End: 

CN ECT-COP· T ASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CN E CT-COP· TASK·FORCE@ec.eu ropa. eu] 
10/27/2023 2:25:05 PM 

[~~.~~~~~~!~~.~~~."J@eeas.europa.eu;[···RE!dac·teci··-ic@eeas.europa.eu;[~~=~~~~~~~~E!if~.~~~=~~@eeas.europa.eu; ................ . 
r······Redacted······@eeas.europa.eu;[''··•···-·R~-.;~t;J·········@eeas.europa.eu;r-·········Red"ii'ctecf'·······-:avaaz.org); i Redacted l 
i~~~~~-J ~-----~ 

L:::::J~.~~jf~~~:::::~::]ec. eu ropa .e u ); t:=:=:=:=:=:=:==:=:=:=:=~~~cJ~:=:=:=:=:=:=:==:=:=:Jec. europa. eu] ;! Reda£!.~.~·······.J 
c:~~~:aifi.~L]> ma ldi ta .es l t:;.~:::.~c:.~.~:.~§iii~}~g:.~::c~~:~:::::::J, tiktok.com ); L._...... ~!~:'NS.tE;.<! .. N .. NJ .... , 
L ... ~~~.a.~!~<! ... Jm icrosoft. com lL ........... Redacted ··-···-·······@newsguardtech.com] L. ...... ~.e.<!~i:f:.e.d.. ....... ] 
[' •••••• Rectacteci·····-·7eaca. eu ]; t·····-··· ••••• ·Reciac1e<i······· ••••••• --,google .com] f" ••• ··········Rec1aciect····· ••• ·-·· ... !mi crosoft. com]; 

L .... ·············-····· Redacted ·····················-_Jglobsec.org] ;L····-······ Redacted ····-······.Jfunky .ong]; L. ................ Redacted ................. t 

[~~~:.~~:~~~!~~t~~:;e·c·.:~~f:::~~;f~:.?.!.~~.~.·~~.·~~~.~~;;;;t~~·~··~.~.·~~·~.~.~e~~l;~~·:~~·~~~::;·;·~.·~.·.~~~.~-~:.c?;::!E~;~~~i.~.f~.~=~~-/ 

[ ~'.j(~~~~i~~:·.:::Jd e moc racy-re po rt in g. or g); r.=~·.=:.::==~~~i~~.i.~~~=:.::=~~:.~·.Jvo st e u rope.or g]; i ..... 13~.d.~~t.~E . .J .-•··········~ 
c::~;~;:~.fi(Jnewtra I. es) ;[:::::::::::::::::~i~i.~\e~:·~::::::::::~:::::)witch. tv] ;L~:::::::::::::~i~~~!i~:~:::::::~=::)~1 ob sec. orgJ;l Redacted j 

L.T~~~~~~~~~;~~:~~~-t·~c;~·p~~~~gk1:~.~~~~=~~.~.~~·:~~~~~I~~:~~~~~~:~~~~~~:j~·~1~pthi·~~~;;.;~~E~~~~~~~~;.~~::1--- · J 
[f~~~:~:~~~~~i.iC~Jvoste urope. org]; L"~.~.·~.·=·~.~.·~.·~.·~.·~3~i<!~cj!.~·~.~.·~.·~:~.·~.·~.·~~.·]neva •labs.com]~ Redacted i 
ir·········Reciiicie'ct·-···-·-··1g1 ob sec. o rg]; c···············Redacie<i-··· ••••••••••••• ja i forensics. o rg] r ·-.... . Redacted ....... 7 

l~i~~~i~~~?~f i~~Jii~1~~~,~~{:~~~~if f:i~~ri~~b~~~~;;;::7 

~~l!~~\~~~:.:r~~~r·~Y.:.~.:.~:'!.~~~~i~;~l~L;:;;;;;~~i·~~~f~~{~i:;:·;:;:;:~·;:;:~~;;~;~~~~.!L ....... irs~:~~;r:~dacted :\ 

~;~;~~!!,~~1~:;~):~!.~:~) ;L_· · · · ···i--NNNNNNNNN~!~!£~NNNNNNNNNNNNNJ~.~~.~~?,g. org' pl] i L. ···-· · ·,c;c;,:.-.-:-;;;;;;~i~,~g~c,,c,;c;;cc;··· · · • • . ... ) 

! Redacted •esr.gr)J Redacted @ec.europa.eu];! Redacted : 

L._ ... ~~~.~~!~!1··-·-·_J§l er i S pt hi n king. com) ;C~~:~:~:~~~~::~~~~~~~:~:~£f~iL:~:~::~~:~::~::~:Ja if Oren Si CS. 0 rg]; c~:~:~:::Jf~:~ii:i~r::::::::J 

~ --------
[~~::~:~~~~~£t~:::~~Jbyteda nee. com]; C:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=:::==~~~~si~~C::=:=:=:=:=:=:=:=::Jn ewsguardtech. com) L ... ~.~~.~~.!~.~ ... )-· -·· .... , u· R;di~i;,;:j···1rsf .or ]; r-···························R;;,i'acted···························7news uardtech. com]; r-······Redacie<i····---:ia . r; t Redacted ! 
·············-···-·· ' g ·········-·········-····················-······-·····················' g '···-··························) g g '-·······-·······-

i Redacted :@ec.europa.eu) 

'"[~~;~~;~~5p~tify~~o~f ~::~:::·~::~~i.~:~~i~~:~~~~=:·~:Jmeta. com I; L.~~:=.~~:=.·:~~·:==·~.~~!~~~ie.iC.~.~==~:~:.~==.·~=."Jrp ms. sk 1 ;[~~.;~~;~J 
L.·-·······-·····-·····-· Redacted ·-···············-··-·-· im eta.com] 

Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task.force) Meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

11/8/2023 3:30:00 PM 
11/8/2023 5:00:00 PM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Dear all, 

We send here the agreed re·schedule of the regular crisis response subgroup meeting. 

For this meeting, we would like to ask you in particular to prepare any observations or reflections you would be able to 
share on the spread of disinformation and misinformation concerning: 

The Russian invasion of Ukraine 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_006311 
1588



The Israel-Ha mas conflict 
The Polish parliamentary election of 15 October 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup, 

In accordance with the latest agreement, we send you the recurring meeting invitation for our monthly meetings. 

looking forward to seeing you, kind regards, 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
Click here.tojoln.the rneeti!1g 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode:­
Download Teams I Join on the web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @)vtearns.tech.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: 

~)Jrrna te VT c;Jrr~J[.\.A.;ti9..n.~ 

Joining is avai lable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn More I J.i(;'!jp_ I Meeting Qptjg_o_;:;_ 

CONTAINS BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED 

TT_HJC_006312 
1589
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Appointment 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 

11/6/2023 7:25 :31 AM 
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Carlos Hernandez- Echevarrfa @maldita.es]; Bastien Carn iel 
(Science Feedback) @feedback.org]; @logically.co.uk; 

@m icrosoft.com]; ■■I I■■ @google.com]; Emmanuel Vincent 
@feedback.org); Francesco Marrazzo (AGCOM/ERGA [•■■■l@agcom.it); 

■ 

@linkedin.com]; Irene Larrazllll@newtral.es]; Jelena Berkovic @faktograf.hr]; 
met ■■■■■■@bytedance.com]; ■■■■■ You Tube 

e.co @tiktok.com; Marie BOHNER @afp.com]; Marina 
@mal Linkedln @linkedin.com]; Pawel Terpilowski 
em (Google) @google.com]; 

eeas.europa.eu; Timea Cervenova (ERGA) [ 
(CELA @microsoft.com]; Tommaso Canetta @pagellapolitica. it); 

~meta.com]; STUMP Kri sztina ■■■■Ill! ec.europa .eu]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) 
@ec.europa.eu]; BIRGER Albin §lec.europa.eu ]; BLASCHKE Vannie 

ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter ec.europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne 
@ec.europa.eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA An11a iiiiiiii■■■@ec.europa.eu); BRAIDA Mattia 
@ec.europa.eu] 

Subject: FW: Empowering Fact-checkers SG meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting Location: 

Start : 11/8/2023 6:00:00 AM 
11/8/2023 7:30:00 AM End: 

Show Time As: Free 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Empowering Fact-checkers SG, 

Please find below the connection detail s to our regular cal ls {15:00-16:30) : 

• Wed November :?.2, 2023 

• Wed November 2.9, 2023 

• Wed December 13, 2023 

• Wed December 20, 2023 

• Wed January :1.0, 2024 

"' Wed January 24, 2024 

Kind regards, 
CoP Team 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0001273 
1591



Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 
(:J_kk here tqjQ_i_n the rne~&IJ9. 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode:­
_Qownload Tea IT)1 I )pin (,)ll thr..J<Y.@ 

Join with a video conferencing device 

-@vteams.tech. 
Video Conference !D: 
Altemate_VTC_instructions 

Joining is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0001274 
1592
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Appointment 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Location: 

Start : 
End: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 
11/6/2023 6:43:17 AM 
Carlos Hernandez- Echevarria @mald ita.es]; Bastien Carniel (Science Feedback) 

r @logically.co.u @microsoft.com]; 
@google.co @feedback.org]; Francesco Marrazzo 

agcom.it ]; y@linked in.com]; Irene Larraz 
c>newtral.es]; Jelena Berko faktograf.hr];■■-IJ!!l!!!!l!!!!l!!@meta .com]; 

Lorenzo Andreozzi ■■■■■■@ ■■■■ YouTube @google.com]; 
·ktok.com· Marie BOHNE afp.com]; Marina Sa @maldita.es]; 

@linkedin.com]; Pawel T • ■■■■■■~@demagog.org .pl);-
@google . comJ;■■■■• meta.com]; 

eeas.europa.eu; Timea Cervenova (ERGA) @rvr.sk]; (CELA 
@microsoft.com]; Tom maso Canetta @pagellapolit ica.it]; @meta.com]; 

ec.europa.eu]; RABBACHIN 
ec.europa .eu]; BLASCHKE Vann ie 

ec.europa.eu]; GILLET Jeanne 

DERIVRY Tamian ec.europa.eu]; STUMP Krisztina 
Alberto (CNECT) @ec.europa.eu]; BIRGER Albin 

ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter 
@ec.europa .eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA An11a 
@ec.europa.eu] 

Empowering Fact-checkers SG meeting 
Microsoft Teams Meeting 

11/8/2023 6:00:00 AM 
11/8/2023 7:30:00 AM 

@ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of t he Em powering Fact-checkers SG, 

Please find below th e connection detail s to our next call which will 1:ake p lace th is Wednesday {8.11) at 1Sn16:30. 
We will conti nue to review the p latform's data that we could n't fi nish tast time (Meta), and we will look into YouTube 

and TikTok (not present last time). 

The table on the basis of which we discuss: Cross-platform overview fact-checking indicators forTaskforce.docx 

Kfnd regards, 
(oPTeam 

- ------------------------- --- -------------------------------------------------- - --------------- - --------------- - ------- ----

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001279 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

1594



C!ick .. here. tojol n..the.meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode: ­
Down!oad Teams I Joinon_the.web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams.tech.eceuropa.eu 
Video Conference ID: 
Alternate VTC instructions 

Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn tv10'e i He1p I Meotinq cotions 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0001280 
1595
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Appointment 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 
Location; 

Start : 
End : 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu] 
11/17/2023 4:48:59 AM 
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; Amit Dar -@activefence.com]; BI.RGER Albin 

@ec.europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vannie @ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia 
@ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter @'ec.europa.eu]; Buse Raziye ~etin 

-@aiforensics.org]; Carlos Hernandez @maldita.es]; ■■■■■@tiktok .com]; 
@microsoft.com]; Christina Elmer @tu-dortmund.de]; Claes de 

@google.com]; Dominika Hajdu 
@globsec.org]; @vimeo.com]; GILLET Jeanne 

@ec.europa.eu]; Hans Brorsen - @thedailyledger. xyz]; Heather Dannyelle Thompson 
@democracy-reporting.org]; Ines Narciso @vosteurope.org]; Irene Larraz 

@newtral.es]; Jakub Rybnikar■■■■ @rpms.sk]; Jana Kazaz ■■■l@globsec.org]; Jelena 
@faktograf.hr]; Jens Brorsen -@thedai lyledger.xyz]; Julian Merer 

@arcom.fr]; Katarina Klingova l!l!!l!!•■■■@globsec.org]; 
@adobe.com];Katya Viadziorchyk-@aiforensics.org]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

ec.europa.eu]; :@eeas.europa . eu;■■■l l■■l@meta.eom]; Lisa 
@eui.eu]; I @google.com]; Marc Faddoul -@aiforensics.org]; 

afp.com]; Marina Sacristan @maldita.es]; 
@meta.com]; @microsoft.com]; Michael Meyer 

@democracy-reporting.org]; @google.com]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral 
-@avaaz.org]; Nicolas Faucouit arcom.fr]; @ti ktok.com]; 
Peter Jancarik @firma.seznam.cz]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) @ec.europa.eu]; 
Roslyn Rios @newsguardtech. com]; Salvatore Romano ■■■@aiforensics . o rg]; Sam Jeffers 
~whotargets.me];■■■I @logically.ai ] ; STUMP Krisztina 

[?ec.europa.eu]; ■■■■■ ■■■l@microsoft.com] ; 
Victor Rico -@maldita.es] 

Generative Al meeting 
Mic,;rosof t Teams Meeting 

11/22/2023 4:30:00 AM 
11/22/2023 6:00:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence : (none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Generative Al Subgroup, 

Please find below the connection details for the next meeting of the Subgroup. 

The co-coord inators will follow with the agenda. 

Kind regards, 

The CoPTeam 

------------------------------- -----·- --- - ---- ----------------- --------------------------

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

--- ----------- - ----· - ----------- - -----------------
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
"'"t t. @V .eams .. ecn.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID:.-· 
Alternate VT( instru ctions 

Joining is ava ilable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

Learn i'v1me ! He!p I rv1~1fU?PJions 

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

11/29/2023 5:48:21 AM 
--@google.com);--@meta.com);-• 
-@microsoft.com); @bytedance.com) 

CC: @google.com); @microsoft.com); 
@microsoft.com]; @ inkedin.com]; STUMP Krisztina 

ec.europa.eu]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECTI ■■■■l@ec.europa.eu ); BIRGER Albin 
-ec.europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Yannic @ec.europa.eu]; GILLET.Jeanne 
-@ec.europa.eu] 

Subject: RE: Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task-force} Meeting 

Dear all, 

Ahead of today's meeting of the crisis response group, we are reaching out separately to those of you who have very 
large online platform or very large online search engine serviices subscribed to the Code. 

Through the course of the last meetings of the subgroup, we have regretted to see a substantial drop in engagement 
from your side with regards to attendance, taking the floor, or both. In order to ensure a useful exchange that includes 
views from the full range of signatories, we want to invite you to take a more active role again. In our view, even if you 
do not have additional observations to report for your respective services, the confirmation that this is the case is useful 
information to the subgroup and helps to maintain an informed overview of the state of play. 

Kind regards, 

The CoP Disinfo Team 

-----Original Appointment----­
From: CNECT COP TASK FORCE 
Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 12:33 PM 
To: GU ELLNER Lutz (EEAS); KUM PAS Siim (EEAS); SPIELEDER Sabrina (EEAS); SYKORA Ondrej (EEAS); VILCINSKAS Jurgis 
(EEAS);_;_;_; Bastien Carnie! (Science Feedback); BIRGERAlbin (CNECT); BLASCHKE 
Yannic{CNECT); BRAIDA Mattia (CNECT); ; - ; -
--; ; -; Emmanuel Vincent (Science Feedback); 
- GILLET Jeanne (CNECT); ;_;_;_ 

--; ;-; ;-; 
; KOLODZIEJSKAAnna (CNECT); KUKLIS Lubes (CNECT);_;_ 

--;-; ;- ;-
- ;-; ;-;-;1111 
- ; Persa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/ERGA); RABBACH IN Alberto (CNECT); ; -

--(Google); ; STUMP Krisztina (CNECT); 

;-; 
Tamian (CNECT); BURIAN Peter (CNECT) 

Cc: ;-; 
Subject: Crisis Response Subgroup (CoP Task-force) Meeting 
When: mercredi 29 novembre 2023 16:30-18:00 (UTC+0l:00) Brussels, Copenhagen, Madrid, Paris. 
Where: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0002416 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup, 

For todays meeting of the subgroup, we propose the following agenda: 

1. Regular Crisis Updates: 
a. Russian invasion of Ukraine 
b. lsrael-Hamas conflict 
c. Elections 
2. Update on the joint work of the steering groups for the crisis and elections rapid response systems 
3. Any other business 

Please let us know if you would like to add any additional points. 

We look forward to the discussion, kind regards, 

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
12/5/2023 11:15:27 AM 

(CELA) @microsoft.com] 

ec.europa.eu] 

CC: @logically.ail; 
google.com); 

-@democracy-reporting.org]; KOLODZIEJ SKA Anna 

@democracy-reporting.org]; 
microsoft.com]; Jan Nicola Beyer 

@ec.europa.eu] ; DERIVRY Tamian 
@ec.europa.eu] 

Subject: RE : [EXTERNAL) Re : CoP Plenary - draft summary Gen Al & Disinfo subgroup 

Thank you very much for this-

Since M icrosoft drafted the summary, will you be able to present it during the plenary? It can be very short (around 3 

minutes) during the t imeslot dedicated to updat es from the subgroups. 

Best, 
Tami an for the CoP t eam 

From (CHA) g)microsoft.com> 

Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 10:23 PM 

To: < @google .com>; Michael Meyer -,;democracy-reporting.org> 

Cc: CNECTCOP TASK FORCE @ec.europa.eu>;- j j j 4l■■■@logically.ai>; 
@microsoft.com>; Jan Nicola Beyer ~democracy-reporting.org>; 

KOLODZIEJSKA Anna (CNECT) ■■■■■■■-@ec.europa.eu>; DERIVRYTamian (CNECT) 
@ec.europa.eu> 

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: CoP Plenary - draft summary Gen Al & Disinfo subgroup 

Thanks all, and thanks for the draft. 
Moved the doc to the relevant fo lder. 

Best, -
From: ci1google.com> 

Sent: Monday, 4 December 2023 18:18 
To: Michael Meyer wdemocracy-reporting.org> 
Cc: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu; 

@microsoft.com>; 
reporting.org>; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

,iec.eu ropa .eu> 

dlogically.ai>; 
wmicrosoft.com>; Jan Nicola Beyer 

,@ec.europa.eu>; DERIVRY Tamian 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: CoP Plenary - draft summary Gen Al & Disinfo subgroup 

ok by me as well! 

On Mon, Dec 4, 2023 at 7:52 AM Michael Meyer c 

Ok for me, thank you! 

rode m oc racy-re porti n g.o rg> wrote: 

(CELA) 
@democracy-

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-00000784 
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From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu> 
Sent: Montag, 4. Dezember 2023 16:37 

To: =___,,,== ; (CELA) 

- @microsoft.com> 
Cc: c @microsoft.com>; Michael Meyer<••-~ d.e.rilQC.Ill~ 
~orting.org>; Jan Nicola Beyer odemocracy-reporting.org>; I 
c rngoogle.com>; KOLODZIEJSKAAnna c::J•------~~L!IQ.Qa&Y. 
Tamian @ec.europa.eu> 
Subject: RE: CoP Plenary-draft summary Gen Al & Disinfo subgroup 

Hi all, 

I have checked again, and it should be ok now. 

Best, 

Tamian for the CoP team 

From: ~ ica l'.i,..ill> 
Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 3:10 PM 
To: microsoft.com> 
Cc: CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu>; ------.. 

• >; - r@._democracy-reporting, org: - @democracy'.=[fil)__o__rti_ng,mg; 
·<>====m....,.>; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna (CNECT) 

ec.e o a.e >; DERIVRYTamian (CNECT) 
Subject: Re: CoP Plenary-draft summary Gen Al & Dis info subgroup 

.eu> 

None except to ask the Commission if they can verify the list of Subgroup Members, as I wasn't certain it 
matched the people who are part of the email thread. 

Best, 

Senior Government Affairs Manager (EU & 

UK) 

Government Affairs & Pol icy I Logically 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL 

□~ 
□ .ai 
D www.logically.ai 
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□□□□ 

On Mon, 4 Dec 2023 at 14:08, ( CELA) "1••··'.l~Llmmi.{ic;_rrQJOS~O)fftL!.CQ:lO~mn> wrote: 

@ @Michael Meyer@ logically.ai 

Any further comments to this doc? 

Best, 

-
From: CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu <CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.eu ropa.eu> 
Sent: Thursday, 30 November 2023 11 :08 

To: ■•••••■ < microsoft.com>; - @democracy-reporting.org;-
(CELA) c l@microsott.com>: • udemocracy-re~ ; 

1@google.com>; ~ lly.ai 
Cc: KOLODZIEJSKA Anna< '.@ec.eu rog .eu>; DERIVRYTamian 

<■■■I @ec.europa.eu> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: CoP Plenary- draft summary Gen Al & Disinfo subgroup 

Dear all, 

I am coming back to you regarding the Al subgroup's summary for the plenary meet ing. 

Could you let us know by tomorrow (1 /12) whether this is the fi nal version, so that we can move it to the 

dedicated folder? 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-00000786 
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Thanking you in advance for this, and looking forward to seeing you at the plenary, 

Kind regards, 

Tamian for the CoP team 

From: icrosoft.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 4:28 PM 
To: @de mo cracy-re po cti o g.o.rg: ■■lll@~dciJea.imI1.Qoc.C.cura11:c;jy1=.-ruettPl..!:P!Icttiinog,g,..coLDrg: 
< @google.com>; hlogically'..ai ; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) 

g u>; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna (CNECT) 
==,,._,__,,,~a.,_,,,e-u>; CNECT COP TASK FORCE <CNECT-COP-TASK­

E._OBCE@...ec_,_ey_mpa.eu_> 
Cc: ••••• (CELA) •••• J@91.rrmli!ic<lr:Qo£.JS0~f't.,_t.QC0QJm[Il> 
Subject: CoP Plenary - draft summary Gen Al & Disinfo subgroup 

Dear all, 

I am sharing a draft summary of the Generative Al & Disinformation subgroup's activity ahead of the 
plenary taking place next week. Please feel free to add comments and track changes directly in the 
document, since it's uploaded on the EC Teams channel. 

Best, 

Policy Coordinator 

European Government Affairs 

Rue Montoyer 51, 1000 Brussels 
Email a>microsoftcom 

Phone 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-00000787 
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Google 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL 

• 
• Head of Information Quality Strategy 

Google Trust and Safety 

• ----@@.gg!Q_OOQlg;i!le~.QCOQ!m!)_ 
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Message 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC; 

Subject: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 
12/18/2023 6:19:23 AM 
Amit Dar -@activefence.com]; Bertie Vidgen -@activefence.com]; BIRGER Albin 

ec.europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Vannie @ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia 
@ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter I e'ec.europa.eu]; Buse Raziye <;etin 

-@aiforensics.org]; Carlos Hernandez @maldita.es]; ■■■■■@tiktok.com]; 
i@microsoft.com]; Christina Elmer @tu-dortmund.de]; Claes de 

Vreese @uva.nl]; @google.com]; David Reis (Active Fence) 
-@activefence.com]; DERIVRY Tamian ec.europa.eu]; Dominika Hajdu 

@globsec.org]; ■■■■I l■■l@vi meo.com]; GILLET Jeanne 
@ec.europa.eu]; Hans Brorsen -@valid.tech] ; Heather Dannyelle Thompson 

@democracy-reporting.org]; Ines Narciso ■■■l@vosteurope.org ]; Irene Larraz 
@newtral.es]; Jakub Rybnikar @rpms.sk]; Jan Beyer-@democracy-reporting.org]; 

Jana Kazaz @)globsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic ■■■■@faktograf.hr]; Jens Brorsen 
~valid.tech]; Julian Merer■■■■l,@arcom.fr]; Katarina Klingova ■■■■@globsec.org]; Katya 
Viadziorchyk -@aiforensics.org]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna ■■■1111■1 @ec.europa.eu]; 

'.§leeas.europa.eu;■■■ll■■l@meta. com]; Lisa Ginsberg I (:)eui.eu);-
@google.com]; Marc Faddoul -@aiforensics.org]; Marie Bohner 

afp.com]; Marina Sacristan lllll!l!!!l@maldita.es); 
@meta.com];■■■ @microsoft.com]; Michael Meyer 

@democracy-reporting.org); @google.com]; Nadia Guerlenda Cabral 
-@avaaz.org]; Nicolas Faucouit arcom.fr]; @tiktok.com]; 
Peter Jancarik ■■■■1@firma .seznam . cz]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) ec.europa.eu]; 
Rachael Levy (Active Fence) -@activefence.com]; Roslyn Rios ■■■I@newsguardtech.com]; Salvatore 
Romano ■■■@aiforensi cs.org]; Sam Jeffers -@whotargets.me]; Sivanne Shalev (Active Fence) 

@)activefence.com]; ■■■I @logically.ail; 
:;;>adobe.com]; STUMP Krisztina ec.europa.eu]; eeas.europa.eu;-

@microsoft.com]; Vfctor Rico -@rnaldita.es] 
GILLET Jeanne @ec.eurnpa.eu]; RABBACHIN Alberto (CNECT) ■■■■■■-~ec.europa.t:!u]; 
CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu 
Generative Al SG / Terms of reference// Code of Practice on Disinformation 

Dear Members of the Generative Al Subgroup, 

Please find here the draft terms of reference for the Subgroup. Feedback is welcomed in 'comment' form with 
a deadline of 5th January 2024. Due to time constraints, please note that the terms of reference has not been 
fully agreed on by all four co-coordinators. 

As you will have seen, the next Subgroup meeting wi l! take place on 11th January from 15:00 - 16:30 wi t h 
Commission colleague working on the At Act. 

l<ind regards, 

The CoPTeam 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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Appointment 

To: 

CC: 

Start: 

End : 

Recurrence: 

@eeas.europa.eu]; 
@eeas.europa.eu]; 

eeas.europa.eu; eeas.europa.eu; Alexis Bley @eaca.eu];-
@meta.eom); Bastien Carnie! (Science Feedback) @feedback.org]; BIRGER Albin 

ec ,europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Yannic ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia 
ec.europa.eu]; Carlos Hema @maldita.es]; 
'ktok.com];■■■■■■ @microsoft.com]; Chine Labbe 
sguardtec • iiil■■l@eaca .eu]; 

ogle.com]; m1crosoft.com]; Dominika Hadju 
globsec.org]; Elena Calistru @funky.ong]; Emmanuel Vincent (Science Feedback) 
back.org]; vimeo.com]; GILLET Jeanne 

din.com]; Heather Dannyelle Thompson 
mocracy-re . , vosteurope.org]; Irene larraz 

wtral.es]; • ]; Jana Kazaz■■■l@globsec .org]; Jelena 
faktograf.hr]; ■■■@vimeo.com]; Joao Ribeiro 

teurope.orgJ;■■■ @crispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes 
vosteurope.org]; Karolina Pietkiewicz iiiii@neva-labs.com]; Katarina Klingova 

@globsec.org]; Katya Viadziorchyk -@aiforensics.org]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 
ec.europa.eu]; KUKLIS Lubos @ec.europa .eu]; 

@meta.com]; Laura Le Roho (?rsf.org]; @bytedance.com); 
Luca Nicotra -@avaaz.org]; @google.com); Marilin Gonzalo 

@newtral.es]; Marina Sacristan @maldita.es]; 
@meta.com]; @twitch.tv); 

@microsoft.com]; @linkedin.com); Michael Meyer @democracy-
reporting.org];■■■■I @google.com); Nadia Guerlenda Cabra l ~@avaaz.org); 
I @justin.tv]; Paul Coppin ■■l@rsf.org]; Gori, Paula @eui.eu]; Pawel Terpilowski 

@demagog.org.pl); Persa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/ERGA) @esr.gr]; RABBACHIN 
@ec.europa.eu]; Richard Stansfield 

Salvalore Rumano @.:iifun:msic~.org]; (Google) !liiiiiii .cum]; Slan isl.:iv Maljeka 

@rvr.sk]; STUMP Krisztina ec.europa.eu]; Timea Cervenova 
rvr.sk]; t.com]; Tommaso Canetta 

@pagel lapol itica.it]; @bytedance.com]; Veena Mccoole 
@newsguardtech.com]; Vincent Berthier ■■■@rsf.org]; Virginia Pavodese 

~newsguardtech.com];-@iag.gr; DERIVRY Tamian 
ec.europa.eu]; BU RIA @ec.europa.eu] 

-@spotify.com; Timea Cervenova ms.sk]; Victor Rico -@maldita.es] 

1/24/2024 7:30:00 AM 
1/24/2024 9:00:00 AM 

(none) 

This Message Is From an External Sender 

Dear Members of the Crisis Response Subgroup, 

We're writing you with the suggested agenda for our first meeting in the new year this Wednesday. As you will see, in 
view of the EP elections approaching, we would like to put a strong emphasis on this, of course fully building on the 
work of the WG of elections. 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001458 
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 
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In this regard we count on hearing your updates on the state of play of your preparations for the EP elections as well as 
your insights about trends, narratives and threats observed on the ground. 

In addition we would also like to use this meeting to receive an update about the work done by the elections WG and 
discuss how to speed up the delivery on the items that are crucial in view of the EP elections approaching fast. 

Proposed agenda: 

1. Regu lar Crisis Updates: 
a. Russ ian invasion of Ukraine 

b. lsrael-Hamas conflict 
c. European Elections: State of preparation of signatories, measures put in place, narratives and trends 

observed from the ground. 
2. Update on the joint work of the steering groups for the crisis and elections rapid response systems: State of 

play and next steps 

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
Click _here . toj oi n the_ me-etin_g 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @vteams. tech.ec.europa.eu 

Video Conference ID: 
A. lternat e_VTC._instn.1 ctio rJs 

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

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001460 
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

@ec .europa.eu]; BLASCHKE Yannic ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia 
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
emocracy-re . , vosteurope.org]; Irene larraz 

@newtral.es]; • ]; Jana Kazaz ■■■l@globsec .org]; Jelena 
faktograf.hr]; ■■■@vimeo.com]; Joao Ribeiro 

@vosteurope.org];IIIIIYIIII @crispthinking.com]; Jorge Gomes 
@vosteurope.org]; @neva-labs.com]; Katarina Klingova 

@globsec.org]; Katya Viadziorchyk -@aiforensics.org]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 
ec.europa.eu]; KUKLIS Lubos @ec.europa .eu]; 

@meta.com]; Laura Le Roho (?rsf.org]; I @bytedance.com); 
Luca Nicotra-@avaaz.org]; @google.com); Marilin Gonzalo 

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

Salvalore Rumano @.:iifun:msic~.org]; (Google) liiiiiiii .cum]; Slan isl.:iv Maljeka 

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
@ec.europa.eu]; BU RIA @ec.europa.eu] 

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

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0002608 
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
Click _here. toj oi n the_ me-etin_g 

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

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0002610 
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Organizer: 

Subject: 

cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu : cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu 

Generative Al SG Meeting 

Location: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Start Time: 2024-02-22T14:00:00Z 

End Time: 2024-02-22T15:30:00Z 

Attendees: google.com 

Dear Members of the Generative Al Subgroup, 

The next Subgroup meeting will take place on Thursday 22nd February from 15:00 to 16:30 CET. 

Please find below the agenda of this meeting as set by the co-coordinators: 

* Agreement on finalised Terms of Reference (5-10 mins) 
* Discussion on the key generative Al issues related to disinformation (all members, 30-45 mins) 
* Planning for Subgroup meeting at the end of May with platform experts - proposals welcome (15 

mins) 
" Any other business i.e. 15 March deadline for reports - next Subgroup meeting at the end of Apri l will 

focus on how these reports addressed generative Al (5-10 mins) 
Kind regards, 

The CoP Team 

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
Video Conference ID: ••••o 
Alternate VTC 
instructions<https://vp.tech.ec.europa.eu/teams/?conf=1262493750&ivr=teams&d=vp. tech.ec.europa.eu 
&ip=147 .67.44.41 &test=test_call&w> 
Joining is available only from a Commission videoconferencing system. If E2EE option is enabled, for 
SNC purposes, please join from the Teams desktop or mobile app. 
Learn More<https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting> I 
Help<https://ec.europa.eu/newsroom/digiVitems/692896> I Meeting 
options< https://teams. microsoft. com/meeting O ptions/?organ izerld= 1 d 7 a2068-5f 12-4a2a-a4 72-
6e6d65f9782f&tenantld=b24c8b06-522c-46fe-9080-
70926f8ddd b 1 &thread Id= 19 _meeting_ Mj 11 MzMyMjYtZjk5YS00N GY2LWE 1 M DktYWZkOTlkN2 FhOTI m@ 
thread. v2&messageld=0&language=en-US> 
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Organizer: 

Subject: 

cnect-cop-task-force@ec. europa .eu : cnect-cop-task-force@ec. europa. eu 

Generative Al SG Meeting 

Location: 

Start Time: 

Encl Time: 

Attendees: 

Microsoft Teams Meeting 

2024-02-22T14:00:00Z 

2024-02-22T15:30:00Z 

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

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-000014 73 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu [CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa.eu] 
3/1/2024 5 :04:12 PM 

GDI) @dis informati onindex.org}; 
~activefence.com]; 

@democracy-reporting.org]; 
r••··@lessurligneurs.eu]; 
-@aiforensics.org]; 

@fidu.it]; 
@rsf.org]; @eaca 

@fidu.it]; 
feedback.org]; 

@logically.co.uk]; @maldita.es]; 
tiktok.com]; 

-@kreakom.dk]; @google.com]; 
microsoft.com]; 

@newsguardtech.com]; 
tiktok.corn]; 

-
@disinforrnation index.org]; 

eaca .eu] §)google.com]; 
doubleverify .com]; ( G DI) @disinformationindex.org]; 

@' news back.corn]; activefence.com] ; 
@globsec.org]; 

@feedback.org]; 
~funky.ong) 

media math.com]; 
vimeo.com]; 

@iabeurope.eu]; 
--@wfanet.org]; @~pe.eu]; 

,~ linkedin.com); @newsguardtech.com ]; 
@valid.tech]; §) doteurope. eu]; 

@democracy-reporting.org]; [ @vosteurope.o~ 
@iabeurope. e u]; @mediamath.com]••••[~ newtral .es]; -

@newsguardtech.corn]; @vosteurope.org]; CMS/ERGA) 
@rpms.sk]; 

.@thebrightapp.com]; 
mediamath.com]; The Bright App 

- @democracy-reporting.org]; @globsec.org];-
faktograf.hr); ~ val id.tech]; 

eo.com]; (Ebiquity) §)P.biquity.com]; 
urope.org]; §)google.com]; 

@vosteurope.org]; @media math .com]; 

@globsec.org]; [~ aiforensics.org]; 
@demagog.org.pl] L rb.com]; 

avaaz.org] §)logically.ai]; 
e'fi rma.sezna google.com]; 
@tiktok ~ aiforensics.org]; (CEM/ERGA) 

@cem.bg]; afp.com]; 
[ms fb.com]; 
@ebi . ] 

@microsoft.com]; 
reporting.org];-llll§>ch-c.eu]; 

avaaz.org]; 
' 1 

@twitch.tv]; 
@linkedin.com]; 
~ch-c.eu); 

justin.tv]; 
firma.seznam.cz); 

newtral .es]; 

r@democracy­
~ google .corn]; 

@rsf.org]; @demagog.org.pl]; 
iag.gr]; @firma.seznam.cz]; 

activefence.com]; crispthinking.com]; 
disinformationindex.org]; @wfanet.org]; 

@newsgua rd tech .com]; ea iforens ics .org]; 
.-@whotargets.me]; {Google) @google.com]; 

1111111111119ilogically.co.uk]; -@doteurope.eu]; 
activ~o-m]; -kreakom.dk]; 

@meta.com]; @logica lly.co.uk]; 
@rvr.sk]; 
@doubleverify.com]; 

@google.com]; 

@microsoft .com]; 
@iabeurope.eu]; 

@newsguardtech.com ]; 

@adobe.com]; 
eaca.eu]; 

(ERGA) @rvr.sk]; 

@pa gel lapol it ica. it ); 
@a I Ii ance4eu rope.eu]; 

~maldita .es]; 
@lessurligneurs.eu]; 

@newsguardtech.com J 

avaaz.org]; 
Active Fence) 

tiktok.com]; 

@debunk.org]; 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-00001454 
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CC: RABBACHIN Alberto [ @ec.europa .eu]; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 
@ec.europa.eu]; STUMP Krisztina ec.europa.eu); BURIAN Peter 

@ec.europa .eu]; DERIVRY Tam ian @ext.ec.europa.eu] 
Subject : Generative Al and the March reporti ng round 

Dear Signatories, 

We wanted to reach out to you in view of the next reporting round approaching, with the DDL to submit the reports by 
the 15th of March and to upload them to the Transparency Centre on 22nd of March. 

Following our discussions in the working groups on Elections and on the Generative Al, it seems key to us to have strong 
reporting on these aspects in the next reporting round. 

Like last time, we count on you to put a strong emphasis in your reports on the measures that you are taking to mitigate 

the risks stemming from generative Al. 

In parallel, with the upcoming EU elections, we would like to ask you to include also strong relevant information in the 
chapter dedicated to the EP elections related to your activities and measures related to generative Al. This also in view 
of the recent relevant announcements made by several signatories about new developments in this field. 

This would help to showcase the important efforts taken by signatories in t his field that is currently very much in the 
focus of attention ahead of the upcoming elections. 

Please don't hesitate to reach out in case of any questions in this regard. 

Kind regards, 

Krisztina with the Team 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-00001455 
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From: @google.com) 
Sent: 3/19/2024 2:18:47 PM 
To: STUMP Krisztina ec.europa.eu] ; RABBACHIN Alberto @ec.europa.eu] 
CC: @google.com]; •·•• §)google.com ] 
Subject: YouTube update on Generative Al 

Dear Krisztina and Alberto , 

I wanted to share an update we announced yesterday related to Generative Al. While not specifically 
focused on disinformation, we thought it might be interesting to you. 

At YouTube, innovation and responsibility go hand-in-hand and while we look forward to seeing how 
our creators continue to harness Al across our platform, responsibility remains at the center of all we 
do. 

As we shared at the end of last year, we believe it's in everyone's interest to maintain a healthy 
ecosystem of information on YouTube and that we help inform viewers when they're engaging with 
content made with generative Al. 

Yesterday, we launched the next phase of this work, including a new tool to enable creators to easily 
share when the content they're uploading is made with altered or synthetic media, including 
generative Al. Creators will be required to disclose this content when it's realistic, meaning that a 
viewer could easily mistake what's being shown with a real person , place, or event. Labels will then 
appear within the video description information , and if content is related to sensitive topics like health , 
news, elections, or finance, we will also display a label on the video itself in the player window. 

More information can be found in a new blog , please let me know if you have any questions or would 
like to discuss these topics further. 

I look forward to seeing you at our Fighting Misinformation Online event on Thursday! 

Best, 

I Head of EU Government Affairs and Public Policy 

@google.com I ~ I 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-000007 47 
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Appointment 

To: 
@eeas.europa.eu]; 

@eea s. europa . eu]; eeas.europa. eu; 
eeas.europa.eu; Alexis Bley @eaca.eu]; @meta.com];Bastien 

Carniel (Science Feedback) ■■■■l@feedback . org]; BIRGER Albin @ec.europa .eu]; BLASCHKE 
@ec.europa.eu]; BRAIDA Mattia ■■■■I @ec.europa.eu]; Carlos Hernandez 

@maldita.es];■■■■I 1!!1!!!!1!!!!1!!.@tiktok.com]; ■■■■■■ 
@microsoft.com]; Chine Labbe @newsguardtech.com]; Claudie Moreau 

@eaca.eu]; Clement Wolf @google.com); 
@globsec.org]; Elena Calistru - @funky.ong]; 

@feedback.org]; GILLET Jeanne @ec.europa.eu]; 
@linkedin.com]; Heather Dannyelle Thompson @democracy-reporting.org]; Ines Narciso 

:@vosteurope.org]; Irene Larraz @newtral.es]; Jacquelyn Zehner 
@globsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic ■■l@faktograf.hr]; Jessica Roepken 
vimeo.com]; Joao Ribeiro @vosteurope.org]; -

@crispthinking .com]; Jorge Gomes @vosteurope.org]; ■■■@neva -
labs.com]; Katarina Klingova @globsec.org]; Katya Viadz iorchyk -@aiforensics.org]; 
KOLODZIEJSKA Anna ■■I @ec.europa.eu]; KUKLIS Lubos (E'ec.europa.eu]; 

@meta.com]; Laur @rsf.org]; @bytedance.com); 
Luca Nicotra @avaaz.org]; @google.com]; Marilin Gonzalo 

newtral.es]· Marina Sa @maldita .es]; 
meta.com]; l@twitch.tv]; 
icrosoft.com @linkedin.com); Michael Meyer @democracy-

reporting.org];■■■■I @google.com); Nadia Guerlenda Cabra l -@avaaz.org]; 
• • v]; Paul C ■■l@rsf. org]; Gori, Paula @eui.eu]; Pawel Terpilowski 

I]; Persa Lampropoulou (NCRTV/E @esr.gr]; RABBACHIN 
@ec.europa.eu]; Richard Stansfield 

@aiforensics.org]; (Google) 
@crispthinking.com]; 

@google.com]; Stanislav M atjeka 
@ rvr .~k] ; STUMP Kriszt irh1 @ec.euroµ.i.eu]; Tirnt:!a Ct:!rvenova 

@rvr.sk]; • rosoft.com] ; Tommaso Canetta 
pol itica @bytedance.com]; Veena Mccoole 

@newsguardtech .com]; Vincent Berth ier @rsf.org]; Virginia Pavodese 
newsguardtech.com]; ■■■■■@iag .gr; DERIVRY Tamian 

ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter -@ec.europa.eu]; ­
ogle.corn]; 'David Reis' -@activefence.com] 

CC: @spotify.com; Timea Cervenova @rpms.sk]; Victor Rico - @maldita.es]; 
arcom.fr 

Start: 4/17/2024 7:30:00 AM 
End: 4/17/2024 9:00:00 AM 
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

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001429 
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
C!kk here to join the meeting 

Meeting ID: 

Passcode: ­
Download_ Teams I Join on the.web 

Join with a video conferencing device 

- @_vt~i3.tJJ'.:;J_Q~D.,t'~,ft) ropa.eu_ 

Video Conference !D: 

~lt.ern,~t,·uLn~JnsJ1J.1ct19os 

Joining is ava iiable only from a Commission videoconferencing system. 

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED -
NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION - MEMBERS & STAFF ONLY 

META-119HJC-0001430 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

(CELA) 
5/2/202410:08:17 AM 

@microsoft .com] 

@logically.ai]; 
democracv-reporti ng. org] 

CNECT-COP-TASK-FORCE@ec.europa .eu; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna 

google.com]; Michael Meyer 

@ec.europa.eu]; 
microsoft.com]; GILLET Jeanne ec.europa.eu] 

Subject: RE : [EXTERNAL] Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections 

Thanks 

For the dates: 
Tue 28/5 slot coincides with the Elections WG meeti ng. 
Thu 30/5 slot is fine for me 
Fri 31/5 slot also f ine for me 

slot preferably not, but could make it work if necessary. 

On the experts, happy to look at someone from our side internally but also happy to defer to Google if they have a 
good suggestion. Of course, on our side content c redentials/ provenance tools are an important part of the work 
we do in this space, together with Adobe and others. So would you see the session as focusing on that aspect or 
would it be more broad and if so, are there specific aspects you and others would seek to cover in particular? Just 
to hone a bit more the theme/ content of the session and think about relevant experts from that perspective? 

Best, -
From: logically.ai> 
Sent: Wednesday, 1 May 2024 11:03 

To:■•••• (CELA) • §)microsoft.com>; §)google .com>; Michael Meyer 
llllllllr@democracy-reporting.org> 

Cc: cnect-cop-task-force@ec.europa.eu; KOLODZIEJSKA Anna ........ ~ec.europa.eu>; 
microsoft.com>; GILLET Jeanne ~ec.europa.eu> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL) Next Subgroup meeting due before the European elections 

Hi all, and a very happy 1st of May! 

As we have set out that the next Subgroup meeting will take place by the end of this month, we 
should set a date. Please find proposals below (all in CET): 

• Tuesday 28th May 14:00 - 16:00 OR 16:30 - 18:00 

• Thursday 30th May 15:30 - 17:30 
• Friday 31st May anytime between 14:00 - 18:00 

• Monday 3rd June 14:00-16:00 

We have set out that this Subgroup meeting will gather researchers and/or experts to better understand 

the risks at the intersection of generative Al and disinformation, as well as possible measures to mitigate 
such risks. Do you have any ideas of whom we could invite to join us? 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL GOOG-HJCFG-00000897 
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• For example. from Adobe already offered to bring a technical expert to introduce Content 
Credentia ls to the Subgroup 

• In addition to Adobe's expert, I would propose that we aim to have TWO external 
researchers/experts and ONE expert nominated internally from either Microsoft or Google 

• This would ensure that we limit speakers to ensure meaningful Q&A thereafter, but I encourage 
you to put forward other ideas or justifications for more than 4 researchers/experts, or for an 
alternative composition 

• >From Logically's side, I am already canvassing internally for suggestions. This is also work that 
we have carried out internally, and so we will be happy to nominate a Logically staff member to 
speak to the Subgroup on this topic if my co-coordinators deem this appropriate. 

Looking forward to hearing from you. 

Best, 

Senior Manager, Government Affairs 

(EU & UK) 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL 

@logically .ai 

www.logically .ai 

GOOG-HJCFG-00000898 
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Appointment 

To: 
@eeas.europa.eu]; 

@eea s. europa . eu]; eeas.europa. eu; 
eeas.europa.eu; Alexis Bley @eaca.eu]; @meta.com];Bastien 

Carniel (Science Feedback) ■■■■■@feedback . org]; BIRGER Albin ec.europa .eu]; BLASCHKE 
@ec.europa.eu • BRAIDA Mattia @ec.europa.eu]; Carlos Hernandez 

maldita.es]; ■■■■■ ll!!l!!!!l!!!!l!!.@tiktok.co I 
@newsguardtech.com]; Claudie Moreau 

@google.com); @microsoft.com]; 
@globsec.org]; Elena Calistru - @funky.ong]; Emmanuel Vincent (Science 

@feedback.org]; GILLET Jeanne @ec.europa.eu]; 
@linkedin.com]; Heather Dannyelle Thompson @democracy-reporting.org]; Ines Narciso 

:@vosteurope.org]; Irene Larraz @newtral.es]; [ (Etwitch.tv]; Jana 
@globsec.org]; Jelena Berkovic ■■l@faktograf.hr]; 
vimeo.com]; Joao Ribeiro @vosteurope.org]; 

@crispthinking .com]; Jorge Gomes @vosteurope.org]; @neva -
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
meta.com]; @twitch .tv]; 
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

ec.europa.eu]; BURIAN Peter-@ec.europa.eu];­
ogle.corn]; 'David Reis' -@activefence.com] 

CC: @spotify.com; Timea Cervenova @rpms.sk]; Victor Rico - @maldita.es]; 
arcom.fr 

Start: 5/15/2024 7:30:00 AM 
End: 5/15/2024 9:00:00 AM 
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

CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED - META-119HJC-0001521 
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

META-119HJC-0001522 
1636


	Section V Part 1 of DSA II Report Appendix
	Section V Part 2 of DSA II Report Appendix



